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The Group aspires to be a leading Chinese
property developer with a renowned brand
backed by cultural substance.
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The Group is driven by a corporate spirit and fine tradition that attaches
importance to dedication, honesty and integrity. Its development strategy
advocates professionalism, market-orientation and internationalism. It also
strives to enhance the architectural quality and commercial value of the
properties by instilling cultural substance into its property projects.
Ultimately, it aims to build a pleasant living environment for its clients and
create satisfactory returns to its shareholders.
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Agricultural Bank of China Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TS

Corporate Background

The Group is one of the foremost property
developers in China and is the real estate offshore
listed flagship of China Poly Group (a state-owned
enterprise). Its major businesses include property
development, investment and management. The
Group develops residential and commercial
properties in the cities along Yangtze River Delta
and Pearl River Delta as well as the second-tier
cities and provincial capitals. Projects of the Group
are located in 22 cities including Shanghai, Hong
Kong, Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Wuhan, Suzhou,
Guiyang and Nanning, among others. Meanwhile,
the Group maintains a high-quality investment
portfolio in various cities comprising landmark
properties such as Shanghai Poly Plaza, Shanghai
Stock Exchange Building and Beijing Poly Plaza.

Xue Ming &8
Chairman */&
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERWE

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2017, “Houses are for living but not for speculating (&
FA1)" was the main theme of the regulation of the real
estate market in China. According to the first quarter
government work report of 2017, “City-specific policies
and destocking” was the focus of government policy.
Various policies and measures were adopted by local
governments to regulate the real estate market. In
addition to “purchase restriction” and “credit restriction”,
and

restriction” were introduced. In response to the spillover

control measures of “price restriction” “sales
effect of first-tier and second-tier cities, the geographical
coverage of regulatory measures has been expanded to
include a cluster of nearby cities. Efforts were made to the
adjustment of liquidity in different cities to play down
On the other hand, through

adjustments of land supply according to the inventory and

market expectations.

sales levels in different areas, the supply and demand
balance was further maintained by increasing supply rather
than suppressing demand as done previously. In the
second half of the year, local governments sought to
facilitate the development property rental market by
introducing policies of “equal rights of tenants and owners
(FABERI#) ", “common property rights(XBZE#)" and
“hold-and-lease (E#1 &)" so as to curb the overheat
property purchase market. The securitisation of properties
held-for-lease by companies made a breakthrough. Both
helped to accelerate the establishment of the long term
housing mechanism for the China real estate market.
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During the year, the Group recorded profit attributable to
shareholders of HK$2,462 million, representing a significant
year-on-year increase of over 29 times, mainly attributed
to the further improvement in gross profit margin of
recognised property sales. The price of commodity
properties in the Chinese market rose moderately while the
supply and demand structures of certain third-tier and
fourth-tier cities were gradually improved by the
“destocking” policy, resulting in steady growth in the price
of the development projects of the Group and further
improvement in overall gross profit margin. The Board of
Directors of the Group recommended distribution of a final
dividend of HK13.5 cents per share to shareholders in
appreciation of their support.

In the face of a series of stringent policies introduced to
regulate the real estate market in China, the Group paid
close attention and adapted itself to the market changes.
By capitalising on market opportunities, the Group's
market segmentation enables us to better serve our
customers in different geographical areas. Flexible and
effective marketing strategies were adopted to introduce
high-quality and innovative products to meet market
demand and to reduce inventory. During the year, the
Group launched 61
contracted area sold achieved approximately 2.64 million
square metres. The tax-inclusive contracted sales hit a

new and existing projects. The

record of approximately RMB40.2 billion, representing a
year-on-year increase of approximately 15%. The sales
strategies were mainly based on market conditions.
Margin-oriented approval led to a balance between the
selling price and sell-through rate. Excluding the sales of
Hong Kong projects, the average contracted selling price
in the Mainland China market during the year was
approximately RMB13,195 per square metre, representing
a year-on-year increase of approximately 5%. In addition,
“Vibe Centro”, the first residential project wholly-owned
and operated by the Group in Hong Kong, was launched
for sale successfully. During the year, the project launched
a total of 599 units, achieving a sell-through rate of 100%.
This has led to the successful establishment of “Poly”
brand in Hong Kong.
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In order to ease the imbalance of supply and demand, the
PRC government significantly increased the supply of
residential land in 2017. Margin fell despite the increasing
average prices of gross floor area sold. Real estate
developers invested in a sensible manner and acquired
land through different channels. During the year, the
Group remained prudent for business development and
replenished land reserves, mainly in blooming second-tier
cities, based on development progress and expansion
needs. The Group secured 13 development projects in
Nanning, Jinan, Suzhou, Ningbo, Foshan and other cities
with an aggregate gross floor area of approximately 3.79
million square metres. The Group maintained its light asset
business model and gained a number of new projects with
less resources in the highly competitive market by joint
venture or holding minority interests. The Group also
in the

expanded into European market by investing

London Cambium Project.

The Group has endeavoured to balance sales collection
and investment expenditure by accelerating sales and
capital return on one hand and enhancing cash flow
management and investments on the other hand. During
the year, the net cash inflow from operating activities
amounted to approximately HK$7,383 million. The Group
raised low-cost capital of RMB1.62 billion by issuing
commercial mortgage backed securities (CMBS) of
Shanghai Poly Plaza and successfully secured a three-year
loan of HK$3.9 billion. The

consolidated funding costs decreased to 5.20% and the

unpledged syndicated

debt structure was further improved.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The global economy will continue to recover in 2018 which
provides a favourable external environment. China will
continue its supply-side reformation, together with the
proactive fiscal policy and the sound monetary policy, to
support the industrial transformation and upgrading. It is
expected that the deleveraging of the financial sector and
control of the real estate industry will continue. The 19th
Communist Party of China National Congress confirmed
the future development of the real estate market in China
and reiterated that “Houses are for living but not for
speculating (B F A KRER - TEARKLE)”. In 2018, it
is expected that the government will regulate the property
market by introducing more measures of parallel
development of the leasing and purchasing markets, equal
rights of tenants and owners and common property rights.
The government will develop a comprehensive land supply
land
management and taxation measures. The government will
long-term
condition and market

system through a combination of financial,

also accelerate the establishment of a
mechanism that suits the local
practice to facilitate the sustainable and healthy growth of

the real estate market.

The Group will focus on project sales and profit margin.
Efforts will also be made to expand its marketing channels,
explore customer resources and promote the awareness of
its brand and projects for higher operating results and
profits in accordance with its sales-oriented strategy.
Adhering to the policy of destocking, the Group will
proactively adapt to market policies and adopt a flexible
pricing strategy, revitalise the inventory and optimise asset
allocation. At the same time, the Group will strive for
product innovation and cost control. It will further promote
the standardisation and innovation of products to meet
market demand and improve product quality. With more
effective cost control, the Group will also enhance its
capabilities and “soft powers” in respect of product,
service and brand premium.
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The real estate market in China is in the advanced stage of
development and will see more mergers and acquisitions.
Property developers will acquire land in many different
ways. The Group will proactively adapt to the long-term
regulating mechanism of real estate and the market
environment and focus on major cities. It will pay close
attention to domestic urban redevelopment, primary and
secondary land development and opportunities of
acquisition and cooperation. The Group will also
proactively study new business and operation models of
upstream and downstream businesses, including themed
real estate, special feature towns and long-term leasing
apartments.

For overseas business, the Group will continue to
implement its medium to long term developing strategy of
business globalisation and actively search for and
accelerate overseas investments mainly in Hong Kong and
It will also selectively participate
investment opportunities of “the belt and road initiative”
and strategic equity investment in the European market. In

Macau. in various

terms of project types, the Group will initially focus on
residential projects of higher turnover rate and seize
opportunities to invest in premium leasing projects such as
offices and commercial properties with stable return. It will
also arrange funding for project development to secure a
strong foothold in overseas markets. The Group is highly
confident about the development of its existing overseas
projects. To take advantage of market opportunities, the
sales of the Vibe Centro project in Kai Tak of Hong Kong
will continue while preparation for completion and delivery
will be made according to the development progress. The
Tuen Mun project is positioned as high-end villa and is
scheduled to be completed in the first half of 2019. The
Tuen Mun project is planned to commence its sales near
completion while the London Cambium Project has
commenced its pre-sale successfully. The Group officially
entered into the Macau market upon successful investment
in a residential development project in Macau in early
2018.
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The Group will strive to maintain a stable financial position
by focusing on managing cash flow, strengthening sales
and capital return, reducing inventory, improving its liability
structure, adopting flexible financing arrangements,
replacing high interest rate loans with low interest rate
loans, and reducing gearing ratio and funding cost. The
Group will seek new sources of funding. It will actively
engage in securitisation of operating properties, and issue
commercial mortgage backed notes (CMBN) in the inter-
bank market. The Group will also strengthen internal
governance and risk management, supervision of operation
and key aspects of business so as to boost quality as well
as effectiveness for more comprehensive value creation.

The Group strives to become a leading real estate
developer in China. Being the only overseas-listed real
estate flagship of China Poly Group, the Group is
confident of its business prospects and believes that it will
continue to receive continuous attention and steady
support from its parent company. The Group will firmly take
an active role in business operation and development,
adjust industrial structure, strengthen its competitive
advantages and continue to raise its corporate value to
achieve greater returns for its shareholders.

Xue Ming
Chairman
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE R B AT

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 (the “Year"”), the
Group recorded a revenue of HK$31,703,042,000 (2016:
HK$30,580,326,000), representing an increase of 3.7%
when comparing to the corresponding period of last year.
Profit attributable to shareholders amounted to
HK$2,462,061,000 (2016: HK$80,745,000), while basic and
diluted earnings per share were HK67.24 cents (2016:
HK2.21 cents). The Directors of the Company
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK13.5
cents per share.

As at 31st December, 2017, shareholders’ equity of the
Group reached HK$28,296,364,000 (as at 31st December,
2016: HK$24,696,715,000), along with a net asset value per
share of HK$7.73 (as at 31st December, 2016: HK$6.74).

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

During the Year, the total GFA of newly commenced
construction of Poly Property Group (the Group, together
with its joint ventures and associated companies), was
approximately 2,370,000 square metres. The total
contracted area sold amounted to approximately 2,640,000
square metres. There were 58 continual launches and four
debut launches during the Year. The GFA of the
completed construction for the Year was approximately
3,070,000 square metres. As at 31st December, 2017, Poly
Property Group had 78 projects in various phases,
covering a total GFA of projects under construction and
projects under planning of approximately 20,240,000
square metres.
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PROPERTY SALES

In 2017, the Chinese real estate market faced a more
stringent control. In addition to continuing its strategy of
“City-specific Policies” and “destocking”, the Central
Government emphasised “Houses are for living but not for
speculating” for the real estate market in the future.
Under austerity measures of “five restrictions”, the
transaction amount decreased in major cities, in particular
first-tier cities. Benefiting from the policy of destocking
and shed reform monetisation, third-tier and fourth-tier
cities have become a major driver of the sales volume in
the PRC. In respect of pricing, according to the selling
prices of residential properties in 70 major and medium
cities published by the National Bureau of Statistics, the
prices of newly built residential properties in major cities
were stable in general and the real estate has gradually
returned to a rational level.
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During the Year, the Group proactively coped with
difficulties and challenges in the real estate market. By
persisting on its general principle of “steady growth,
structural adjustment, reform facilitation and building-up of
a new landscape of development”, the Group have put
more efforts in its business development. In the past two
years, the Company emphasised on its marketing
strategies and premiums of its projects and strived to
balance the relationship between pricing and sell-through
rate. By seizing the opportunities brought from the
policies regarding third-tier and fourth-tier cities, the
Company further optimised its inventory and land reserve.
Regional companies focused on identifying major
deficiencies, building the brand, promoting new project
and

comprehensive breakthrough in their operating results. In

reducing inventories, in order to realise a
2017, Poly Property Group recorded contracted sales
(including tax) of approximately RMB40.2 billion with
contracted area sold of approximately 2,640,000 square

metres.

In 2017, the Company proactively conformed to the
market cycle by grasping market opportunities in some
non-major province capitals or cities and promoting the
sales of projects in southwestern region, including Nanning
Poly Town, Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay and Kunming Poly
One Family One World. The sell-through rate of projects in
southwestern region achieved 75% and the prices of
certain projects recorded significant increases in the year.
In addition, Vibe Centro, the first Hong Kong residential
project wholly-owned and operated by the Company, was
launched for sale successfully and received overwhelming
With all this has
provided a solid foundation for the successful presence of

response. units launched sold out,
“Poly” brand in Hong Kong. Through strategic shift of
cities and projects, the Group has successfully mitigated
the pressure arisen from the policies towards first-tier
cities and realised a steady growth in contracted sales and

optimised the structure of its inventory.
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Contracted

Contracted Area Sold in

Sales in 2017 2017 by
by Region'’ Percentage Region Percentage

—E-tF —E-tF

EHHESSE ERHEEE
B i 5 i 15 E& B2 15 £t

('000 square

(RMB million) metres)

(BEBARY) (FF 75 K)
Yangtze River Delta E=A 8,895 22% 310 12%
Pearl River Delta R=A 4,736 12% 281 11%
Southwestern gz 11,734 29% 1,242 47%
Others H 9,153 23% 783 29%
Hong Kong and Overseas &/ &35 91 5,679 14% 28 1%

Note: Hat -

! Contracted sales include car parking sales. ! ERHESMEEN -
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NEW LAND RESERVES

Adhering to its prudent investment strategy, Poly Property
Group added new land reserves, mainly in second-tier
cities, in 2017. During the Year, 13 development projects
were acquired in Nanning, Jinan, Suzhou, Ningbo and
Foshan with a total planned GFA of approximately
3,790,000 square metres. During the Year, the Group
entered the European market by making investment in
London Cambium Project in UK.

LAND RESERVE ACQUIRED IN 2017

Land Plot/Project Site Area’

ik, HE o i E R

18 L i GE B

“ELF O BEXEEBENERERNKRE
RO AT AR-_BBETAEIN LRS-
FRAADRBIBERZER  HRIURNEE K
B AR BRMGILEW T REAEER
TBRBI9BF K - FR - NEETBEBRER
BB RIEE  BREABMNTS -

—E-LtFHBIHREEIR

Interests
Planned Attributable to
GFA' the Group  Current Status?
HEESE 58
[ER§ AEEER BHEEE?

('000 square (000 square
metres) metres)
(TFHK)  (FFFK)
Deging Poly Prime Regency Residential 28 49 100%  Under
construction
BRRMNFERERN E= BT
Nanning Poly Town, Phase |l Residential 307 1,399 100%  Under planning
BERMNEFAHN B F= HRET
Jinan Phili House Residential 71 282 25%  Under
construction
BREBEBAE TE=x BT
Jinan Hai Zi Wa Project Residential 102 188 60%  Under planning
EEEFEEEB F=x & T
Suzhou Wei Tang Project Residential 57 150 100%  Under
construction
#NBYEIRE E=x BRI
Ningbo Prosperous Reflection  Residential 157 480 33%  Under
construction
BR PR E F= BRI
London Cambium Project Residential 13 16 50%  Under
construction
RERIPELLBIEE E= EHI
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Interests
Planned Attributable to
Land Plot/Project Site Area’ GFA' the Group  Current Status?
REESE 5B
#o 358 18 B 3 1 3t T A& & AE@EESE HBERE?
('000 square (‘000 square
metres) metres)

(FERK)  (FEHK)

Jinan Da Shi Zi Yuan Project  Residential 58 155 51%  Under planning
ErEAMFEIER F= HRE T
Foshan Chan Cheng Project Residential 28 128 100%  Under planning
B IE B F= &R
Weihai Xiang Gang Road Residential 124 334 30%  Under planning
Project

BEEBRKIER F= REH
Jinan Zhang Qiu Project Residential 110 287 33%  Under planning
BEELER F=x REH
Suzhou Lu Zhi Project Residential 60 170 40%  Under planning
#ZMNMEEER T=x &
Zibo Xin Hua Road Project Residential 48 155 65%  Under planning
MEFE(CKIER F=x RE
Total &5 : 1,162 3,793

Notes: Mit -

L Since figures were rounded up to the nearest thousand, their total 1 HTFRENEKRELNTAE  WEMET—ERE

may not equal to the actual sum. NERTEF -

2 As at 31st December, 2017. 2 HEEEHZE-_Z—+tF+=-_A=+—8-
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SUMMARY OF NEWLY ACQUIRED
PROJECTS IN 2017

Deqing Poly Prime Regency

The project is located in Fuxi Street, prime area of
Chengdong New District, Deqing, Zhejiang and
southwestern side of the Deqing Poly Origin Project.
The project, with a planned GFA of approximately
49,000 square metres on a site of approximately
28,000 square metres, is intended to be developed
into exquisite housings, mainly targeting at first-time
buyers and first-time upgrade buyers.

Nanning Poly Town, Phase Il

The project is located in the arm of Yong River in the
eastern region of Dongmeng Business Zone in
Qingxiu District of Nanning, and is adjacent to Qing
As the city
development is planned to migrate towards the East,

Xiu Shan, a 5A-level scenic area.

the geographic location and transportation facilities
of the project are well embedded at the new city
centre of Nanning. The project, with a planned total
GFA of approximately 1,400,000 square metres on a
site of approximately 307,000 square metres, is
intended to be developed into an urban community
that comprises high-end apartments and villas.

Jinan Phili House

The project is located in the East of Jinan and within
3.5 kilometres radius of Xindong Station in Jinan and
North of the Industrial North Expressway which is
under construction. It is 20 kilometres away from
Jinan International Airport with four planned rail
transit lines around and well-positioned to enjoy the
geographical benefits of convenient transportation.
The project, with a planned total GFA of
approximately 282,000 square metres on a site of
approximately 71,000 square metres, is intended to
be developed into a mid-end residential project,
featuring distinguishing characteristics.

—
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Jinan Hai Zi Wa Project

The project is located in Changging District, Jinan,
which is at the Western part of the key urban
development district of Jinan. According to
government planning, the area will be developed into
an integrated area, comprising tertiary education
institutes, technology and research institutes, leisure
and exhibition facilities, as well as residential
community. The university city of the region brings
together a number of key universities and colleges in
the province, pooling all elites together. The region
enjoys excellent environment and assembles
enterprises with convenient transportation network.
The project, with a planned total GFA of
approximately 188,000 square metres on a site of
approximately 102,000 square metres, is intended to
be developed into a high-end residential community
with low-density, featuring culture of Poly Property
and catering to first-time buyers and first-time
upgrade buyers.

Suzhou Wei Tang Project

The project is located in Weitang Town, Xiangcheng
District, Suzhou. The region enjoys prosperous
economy and its freshwater pearl industry is the top
nationwide. The Southwest of the land parcel is close
to the transportation terminal and within walking
distance. In the future, the Metro Line 9 which is
under planning will have access to Weitang Town.
Being surrounded by hospitals, primary and
secondary schools, the land parcel has all-round
ancillary facilities. The project, with a planned total
GFA of approximately 150,000 square metres on a
site of approximately 57,000 square metres, is
intended to be developed into a premium living
community mainly comprising high-rise residential
buildings.
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6. Ningbo Prosperous Reflection ERLEHBE
The project is located at the North of Minghu, which TH B 7 70 B R R AT AR O R LA 2 PR
is located at the East of the central area of Ningbo WAL R - B =R AE R - B HE 8 A K
Eastern New City, composing of three land parcels o BEEETRAFTNER2AE  ZFEFEH)
and connected to natural waters. It is less than two BB R BRI E200K - HAIAE
kilometres away from the office of Ningbo Municipal PRIEKEHBER - EYHOLFLER
Government, only 200 metres away from the R-EFREFRERD  RBEF-IBE
Shengmo Road Station of Ningbo Metro Line 1, and K578 F K REBREEELD
with the ancillary school of Central China Normal BOBFH K -BERREBYEN - I
University located east of the project. In proximity to N AREERA—BHMTSWAS T
shopping centres, the site has all-round ancillary & ©
facilities and convenient transportation. The project,
with a planned total GFA of approximately 480,000
square metres on a site of approximately 157,000
square metres, is intended to be developed into a
high-end integrated complex comprising shopping
mall, office tower and eco-friendly residential
community.

7. London Cambium Project KEfmBE L BRI H

The project is located in Wandsworth, Southwest
London, which is well-known for its high-quality
school district and tranquillity. It is approximately
30-minute drive from Central London, approximately
15-minute walk from the nearby tube station and
approximately 20-minute drive from Victoria Station.
Surrounded by a 400-acre protected green belt
landscape in a tranquil environment, the project is
also close to a number of schools. The project, with
a planned total GFA of approximately 16,000 square
metres on a site of approximately 13,000 square
metres, is intended to be developed into a
residential community comprising apartments and
villas.
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Jinan Da Shi Zi Yuan Project

The project is located in Changging District, Jinan,
which is at the major western district under the
general urban development plan of Jinan, “One City
and Two Districts”. The project will be developed
into an integrated area, mainly comprising tertiary
education institutes, technology and research
institutes, leisure and exhibition facilities, as well as
residential community. Upon the construction of
Railway No. R1, the commencement of operation of
Changqging Yellow River Bridge and the
commencement of construction of Huayi Movie and
Television City (ZFHF %), the transportation and
geographical advantages of this land lot will be
further strengthened. The project, with a planned
total GFA of approximately 155,000 square metres on
a site of approximately 58,000 square metres, is
intended to be developed into a mid-end residential
project, mainly comprising three-room and four-room
units.

Foshan Chan Cheng Project

The project is located in Old District, Chan Cheng,
Foshan, which is a commercial area with education
institutions, transportation, medical and municipal
facilities within two kilometres distance. It is 50
metres away from Tongji Road Station of Guangzhou-
Foshan Railway and has a geographical advantage.
The project, with a planned total GFA of
approximately 128,000 square metres on a site of
approximately 28,000 square metres, is intended to
be developed into a basic project, mainly comprising
small and medium units.
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10.

11.

12.

Weihai Xiang Gang Road Project

The project is located in the core district in Weihai
Economic and Technological Development Zone and
is a major development project in the urban
development strategy in Weihai, “The Rise of the
Centre (/) UE #E)".
enterprises and population,
transportation

The region enjoys clustered
developed
comprehensive

well
network and
commercial and education facilities. The project, with
a planned total GFA of approximately 334,000
square metres on a site of approximately 124,000
square metres, is intended to be developed into a
quality high-rise project, targeting at upgrade
buyers.

Jinan Zhang Qiu Project

The project is located in the main area of Zhanggqiu
District, Jinan, with geographical advantage and
excellent transportation. There are many tertiary
education institutes nearby with comprehensive
ancillary facilities. The region is well developed and
has extensive natural resources and ideal for living.
Under the urban planning of Zhangqiu, Shandong
University, the top university in Shandong Province,
decided to relocate its campus to Zhanggqiu, which
will effectively stimulate the growth of industries and
population. The project, with a planned total GFA of
approximately 287,000 square metres on a site of
approximately 110,000 square metres, is intended to
be developed into a mid-end residential project,
mainly comprising three-room and four-room units.

Suzhou Lu Zhi Project

The project is located in Luzhi Town, Wuzhong
District, Suzhou, with comprehensive commercial,
facilities, as well as
The Metro Line 6 is
planned to be constructed in the future. Luzhi Town,
which is near Hudong part of Suzhou Industrial Zone,
benefits from the growth of the industrial zone. The

education and medical
convenient transportation.

project, with a planned total GFA of approximately
170,000 square metres on a site of approximately
60,000 square metres, is intended to be developed
into a semi high-rise and high-rise residential project,
mainly comprising small and medium units.

10.

11.

12.
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13. Zibo Xin Hua Road Project

The project is located
The
transportation network, comprehensive living ancillary

District, Zibo,
convenient

in Linzi

Shandong. region enjoys

facilities, rich natural resources and strong cultural
atmosphere, which meets the leisure, cultural and
entertainment needs of the residents. The project,
with a planned total GFA of approximately 155,000
square metres on a site of approximately 48,000
square metres, is intended to be developed into a
mid-end residential project, which is suitable for basic
and upgrade buyers.

PROJECTS UNDER CONSTRUCTION
AND PROJECTS UNDER PLANNING

As at 31st December, 2017, Poly Property Group had a
total of 54 commodity properties and integrated real
Of the 54
projects, approximately 24% of the total GFA was located
in Yangtze River Delta and Pearl River Delta Regions,
approximately 51% in Southwestern Region, approximately
24% in Other Regions,
Kong and overseas regions.
under construction, with a total GFA of approximately
8,670,000 square metres (attributable area amounted to
approximately 5,800,000 square metres), and a total GFA
of approximately 11,570,000 square metres under planning

estate development projects in 22 cities.

and approximately 1% in Hong
Meanwhile, 44 projects are

(attributable area amounted to approximately 7,310,000
square metres).
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List of Projects under Construction and BE-Z—+tHF+=ZA=t—H=Z
under Planning as at 31st December, 2017 HEEEBRFEEBIR

Interest
GFA under GFA under attributable

Project construction’ planning’  to the Group
EEER #E®EA x&
HE AEEER BEEER Efh =

("000 square ('000 square

metres) metres) (%)
(F¥HK) (FFHK) (%)
Yangtze River Delta Region REZABE
1 Shanghai Jiading Project 1 LEETHEHAER 164 — 100%
2 Shanghai Poly Greenland Plaza 2 LBRNEMES 208 — 50%
3 Shanghai Shan Jin Poly Plaza 3 LERLERMNES 121 — 50%
4 Shanghai Xijiao Jinmao Palace 4 LEBRBEXRN 216 — 14.867%
5 Suzhou Poly West Bank Villa 5 HNRFIBEEAR 6 — 100%
6 Suzhou Poly Lake Mansion 6 ERMERABHER 241 100 100%
7  Suzhou Wei Tang Project 7 ®NBEER 150 — 100%
8 Suzhou Lu Zhi Project 8 HMBEREE — 170 40%
9 Ningbo Poly City 9 EREFM 88 299 100%
10 Ningbo Poly Wonderland 10 ZREMEIME 82 — 100%
11 Ningbo Prosperous Reflection 11 BRELHRE 223 257 33%
12 Yuyao Poly Jordan International 12 RURFIBEERER 13 281 100%
13 Deging Poly Origin 13 EERNRE 24 68 100%
14 Deqjing Poly Prime Regency 14 EERNFERERN 49 — 100%
Sub total 1 & /5t 1,586 1,174
Pearl River Delta Region K=A®E
15 Guangzhou Poly Gratified West Bay 15 ENRFI A1 & 26 446 55%
16 Guangzhou Nansha Poly City 16 BN R A 227 287 85%
17 Guangzhou Poly Jade Hills 17 BEMERFERL 65 — 100%
18 Foshan Poly Central Park 18 BILERANFRAE 255 — 100%
19 Foshan Chan Cheng Project 19 HILEHIER — 128 100%
20 Huizhou Poly Deutch Kultur 20 FMRFI LK 24 — 80%
21 Huizhou Poly Sunshine Town 21 FEMRMEG R 353 356 70%

Sub total i & /) 5t 949 1,217




Project

HE

GFA under
construction’
EEEH
AEEER

RANEXEERE AT

GFA under

planning’
HRER
REEER

ZE—LFFR

Interest
attributable
to the Group
KEE

FE 1 R 2=

(000 square (000 square
metres) metres) (%)
(FFHK) (FFHK) (%)

Southwestern Region AELE

22 Guiyang Poly Spring Street 22 EBEBRIMERKE 42 180 66.5%
23 Guiyang Poly Park 2010 23 EFERMAE2010 393 687 100%
24 Guiyang Poly The Place of A Lake 24 BEBRFZH 304 4 50%
25 Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay 25 ERRFEEE 621 405 51%
26 Zunyi Poly Metropolis of Future 26 BERFARRMT 500 2,823 35%
27 Nanning Poly Crescendo 27 BMERMUEE 172 105 100%
28 Nanning Poly Dream River 28 BERMERE 210 — 30%
29 Nanning Poly Hearty 29 MERMOLE 191 — 100%
30 Nanning Poly Town 30 BMERNEEM 1,059 665 46.7%
31 Nanning Poly Town Phase Il 31 BERMNEFAMN S — 1,399 100%
32 Liuzhou Poly Merization World 32 HUMARFIARIIE 216 — 100%
33 Kunming Poly One Family One World 33 EMEHN AR 365 — 73%

Sub total & /) 4,074 6,268
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Project

HE

GFA under
construction’
HEHER
BEEER

('000 square

GFA under

planning’
HREER
BEREER

(000 square

Interest
attributable
to the Group
rEE

FE 1 R 22

metres) metres) (%)

(FFHK) (FFHK) (%)
Other Regions Hipih &
34 Wuhan Poly City 34 RERMH 440 459 68%
35 Wuhan Yangyuan Project 35 HREBEER 141 — 51%
36 Wuhan Poly Park 36 HRERMABER — 252 55%
37 Wuhan Poly Up Town 37 HERFER 451 156 64.3%
38 Harbin Poly The Water's Fragrant Dike 38 MEIERFKERE 1M 140 58%
39 Harbin Poly City 39 BRAERNE 136 121 100%
40 Jinan Poly Hyde Mansion 40 EEERNEBEAE 69 — 100%
41 Jinan Poly Center 4 EBEERFHL 153 — 85%
42 Jinan Poly Elegant Garden 42 EERFIERE 128 — 80%
43 Jinan Phili House 43 EEBEDE 74 208 25%
44 Jinan Hai Zi Wa Project 4 EEBTFERE — 188 60%
45 Jinan Da Shi Zi Yuan Project 45 EEAMFEIER — 155 51%
46 Jinan Zhang Qiu Project 46 EEERIEA — 287 33%
47 Yantai Poly Ocean Luxe 47 EERIERE 121 84 70%
48 Weihai Poly Maple Valley 48 EUBRALEA 129 — 70%
49 Weihai Xiang Gang Road Project 49 BBBEBRIER — 334 30%
50 Zibo Xin Hua Road Project 50 JEEF(RIBE — 155 65%
51 Hainan Poly Peninsula No.1 51 BERMESIR — 369 100%
Sub total & /) Et 1,954 2,909
Hong Kong and Overseas Regions BERERENME
52 Hong Kong Kai Tak Vibe Centro 52 HEMEES 70 — 100%
53 Hong Kong Tuen Mun Project 53 FBWFIER 21 — 100%
54 London Cambium Project 54 HERRIUELLRIER 16 — 50%
Sub total it B /M Ef 108 -
Grand total &t 8,670 11,568

Note: i -

Since figures were rounded up to the nearest thousand, their grand ! BFEENZREON TR BURMET — TS
PAN
=]

e AR B E

total or sub total may not equal to the actual sum. S
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T—tF BEXEERTEENI7TEFT
/Jr FREBERTIEE H3ME -

COMPLETED CONSTRUCTION

In 2017, the Poly Property Group has achieved a total GFA
of approximately 3,070,000 square metres in completed
construction. The construction of all phases of three
projects has been completed in the Year.

List of Completed GFA in 2017 —E-LtFRIZEEEEIR

Project

HE

Completed
GFA in 2017"

—E—t5F
BIEEERE

("000 square

Accumulated
completed GFA by
the end of 20171
S —tF

& IE E i =)
BITEEEE

("000 square

metres) metres)
(FF 75 K) (FF 75 K)
Yangtze River Delta Region REZAKE
Shanghai Poly Deluxe Mansion FERNREFE 116 180
Shanghai Poly Greenland Plaza BRI ES 65 122
Shanghai Poly Phili House FEBRMNIEBRE 34 249
Shanghai Poly Phili Regency EBRAEBFE 125 125
Suzhou Poly West Bank Villa BEMNRANBERE 97 370
Suzhou Poly Lake Mansion AR AR 5 B BR 276 720
Ningbo Poly Wonderland BEORR A ENIE 261 261
Pearl River Delta Region K=ZAE
Guangzhou Poly Gratified West Bay & /N R F| 7 13 74 74
Guangzhou Nansha Poly City J& M R AR 3k 103 287
Guangzhou Poly Jade Hills & AR F11 35 22 1L 28 28
Foshan Poly Central Park B ILAR T A R A E 157 409
Huizhou Poly Deutch Kultur SR A L K38 76 473
Southwestern Region ARt E
Guiyang Poly Park 2010 EI5RFAE2010 92 893
Guiyang Poly The Place of A Lake E SR TR 26 555
Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay EERAEEE 190 527
Zunyi Poly Metropolis of Future B AR A AR R 226 1,847
Nanning Poly Crescendo RS 87 362
Kunming Poly One Family One World E R F] KX 87 337
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Accumulated
Completed completed GFA by

Project GFA in 2017" the end of 2017’
BE_2-tHF
—E—+tF EEHBRFE
BRITEEER BRITEEER
("000 square ("000 square
metres) metres)
(FF 75 K) (FF 75 K)
Other Regions Hithith &
Wuhan Poly City U AR T 9K 260 831
Wuhan Poly Up Town EOZ R A 33 185 185
Harbin Poly City ma R & R A 241 353
Jinan Poly Hyde Mansion EERTEEALE 63 365
Jinan Poly Center & AR ) AR 173 324
Jinan Poly Elegant Garden 75 R ) 2 B2 29 291
Grand total: &t 3,072 10,170
Note: B it
! Since figures were rounded up to the nearest thousand, their grand 1 HEAGENEREIN TS AEMETR—THE
total or sub total may not equal to the actual sum. RAsHS DB/t E -



RECOGNISED PROPERTY SALES

The sales of over 50 projects of Poly Property Group have
been recognised in 2017, with a total sales value of
RMB26.4 billion and a total
2,430,000 square metres. The recognised average selling

GFA of approximately

price was approximately RMB10,865 per square metre.
Among the sales recognised, ordinary residential housing
accounted for 82%, villas accounted for 7%, retail shops
accounted for 5%, offices accounted for 2% and parking
spaces accounted for 4% of the total value. In terms of
geographical distribution, Yangtze River Delta, Pearl River
Delta, Southwestern and Other Regions accounted for
approximately 36%, 17%, 20% and 27%, respectively.

List of Major Projects with Sales
Recognised in 2017

RANBEEEERRAA]
—E—LFFR

mEIEE

—E-tF BESEEHAGBRS0EEEERE
ERE BEITEEN24ETARYE  &EE
EH2438 F K - BEGELNR10,865TAR
WSRO REE R EBRETH82%
RE1ET% - B HES% - B FAE(h2% - BAI(h
4% - BRI DM L R=AHK36% HK=A1h
#17% - 79 F M 16 K920% - E b i & (5 4

27% -

—E-tFXEFBEAIR

Sales recognised

Project in 20171
—E—tF
=R gEEHE
(RMB million)
(ARBBHET)

Yangtze River Delta Region R=EZAE
1 Shanghai Poly Deluxe Mansion 1 EERIXREFSE 640
2 Shanghai Poly Elegant Mansion 2 LEBRMXIEEL 120
3 Shanghai Jiading Project 3 LBEmTERAMIEER 72
4  Suzhou Poly West Bank Villa 4 HNRFBER=E 1,505
5  Suzhou Poly Lake Mansion 5 ERAR FIEDH R BR 2,489
6  Ningbo Poly City 6 EIRRTIK 203
7  Ningbo Poly Wonderland 7 BRARMNENIE 3,51
8  Yuyao Poly Jordan International 8 FRHURMNBEBRBREER 260
9  Degqing Poly Origin 9 EBRANIR 658
10 Others 10 EfhEHIER 78
Sub total i & /D EF 9,534
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Sales recognised

Project in 2017
—
5 A HESRE
(RMB million)
(ARBBET)

Pearl River Delta Region K=ZAME
11 Guangzhou Poly Golf Shire 1M1 BEMNERFEBEKE 298
12 Guangzhou Poly Zephyr City 12 BEMARFIE S 45
13 Guangzhou Poly Gratified West Bay 13 BEINRF 1,125
14 Guangzhou Poly Up House 14 BEMERNEE 115
15 Guangzhou Nansha Poly City 15 BN E R A 1,239
16 Foshan Poly Cullinan Garden 16 BILERMRXEEER 43
17 Foshan Poly Prestige City 17 BBILERF oK 112
18 Foshan Poly Central Park 18 FILERFMFPRAER 662
19 Shenzhen Poly Up Town 19 RIMRA AR 55
20 Shenzhen Poly Joy-Zone 20 ORYIR A FBIEE 191
21 Huizhou Poly Deutch Kultur 21 FERA LK 458
22 Huizhou Poly Sunshine Town 22 FBMRPEE W 8
23 Others 23 HEHIEAR 36
Sub total i & /) 5t 4,385

Southwestern Regions AEEE

24  Guiyang Poly Hot Spring Newisland 24 BERFR R 27
25 Guiyang Poly International Center 25 BEBERAERES 32
26 Guiyang Poly Spring Street 26 EGRAMERKE 26
27 Guiyang Poly Clouds Hill International 27 BBRRME LR 10
28 Guiyang Poly Park 2010 28 EBRHMAE2010 626
29 Guiyang Poly The Place of A Lake 29 EBRAZEM 292
30 Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay 30 EGRANERE 1,038
31  Zunyi Poly Metropolis of Future 31 EBERRF AR S 654
32 Nanning Poly Crescendo 32 BMERMNLEE 304
33 Nanning Poly Aegean Sea 33 MERMNEEE 32
34 Nanning Poly Hearty 38 BMERMULE 386
35 Liuzhou Poly Merization World 35 WMAR B ROIER 223
36 Kunming Poly Lakeside Mansion 36 EBEHARNENS® 31
37 Kunming Poly Sky and Earth 37 BBHRFAERM 38
38 Kunming Poly One Family One World 38 EHRIAR 1,477
39 Others 39 HMERIEAR 25
Sub total i & /)5t 5,223
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Sales recognised

Project in 20171
ZE—tF
HA ‘EEHE
(RMB million)
(ARBBHET)

Other Regions Hithith &
40 Wuhan Poly City 40  EORR T 1,961
41 Wuhan Poly Blue Ocean District 41 HERMEER 16
42 Harbin The Tsinghua Summer Palace of Poly 42 MEAERFEEREE 74
43 Harbin Poly The Water's Fragrant Dike 43 BRBKBRE 117
44  Harbin Poly Up Town 44 BRIBRHN L 238
45 Harbin Poly City 45 e @B R FIH 1,823
46 Jinan Poly Hyde Mansion 46 BERNEEDE 836
47 Jinan Poly Center 47 ERERF|F D 1,158
48 Jinan Poly Elegant Garden 48 B EIR T E fE 410
49 Yantai Poly Champs Elysees Mansion 49 EAaRFEHEANE 31
50 Weihai Poly Triumph Mansion 50 ELBRAMELIE A B 100
51 Hainan Poly Peninsula No.1 51 BERMFESIHR 476
52 Others 52 HE&IEA 7
Sub total i & /) 5t 7,249
Grand total: aF 26,391

Note: et
! Since figures were rounded up to the nearest thousand, their total ! BFEM ERBENA T SANET T8RS

may not equal to the actual sum. RNEFTETF -
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Recognised Sales in 2017 by Property Type Z—Z—tHF#EYEERIIR

Sales
recognised in

Property type 2017 Percentage
—E—tF

MEER #EESH Elase
(RMB million) (%)

(NR¥EBET) (%)

Apartment NE 21,718 82%
Villa 7l &2 1,826 7%
Retail shop 72 4 1,278 5%
Office BTE 528 2%
Parking space E=Xiv2 1,041 4%
Total = 26,391 100%




INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Poly Property Group has various investment properties and
hotels located in first-tier cities and second-tier provincial
capitals. Its investment properties had a total GFA of
approximately 694,000 square metres and an asset value
of approximately HK$10.9 billion. In 2017, the occupancy
rates for the Poly Property Group’s office buildings and
shopping malls remained steady. The rental rates achieved
higher as compared to the corresponding period of last
year. Regarding the hotel operations, Beijing Poly Plaza,
Wuhan Poly Hotel and Guiyang Poly Hot Spring Hotel had
also performed reasonably well.

List of Major Investment Properties and
Hotels as at 31st December, 2017

RANBEEEERRAA]
—E—LFFR

REWE

EXSERAEZALR —RET R _REEW
MHREMEREE EPREMEREZER
BHE9ABF K BEBEMOERT - =F
—tHF BEXSEETRSFERESLEEXA
BEBFE HEKFREFERPAME -
BESE ERERNRKEEERLD - BOERF
RIBE K & 55 R F BB FOF 5 &£ 218 IR
R4 o

E-E—tHE+=ZHA=+—H=E
EREVERBEIEIR

Average Average Interests
occupancy occupancy attributable to
Region Project GFA held rate of 2017  rate of 2016 the Group Property type
2] “E-tF —E-RE
®BE HH BREAR FiIH AR FiIH AR FEEEE NRER
('000 square
metres)
(FF5%)
Investment properties
REME
Beijing Beijing Poly Plaza 15 100% 100% 75%  Office building
b EREMAE N
Shanghai Shanghai Poly Plaza (partial) 34 92% 97% 100%  Office building and
commercial
L8 HERNES (B9) WMOBREE
Shanghai Shanghai Stock Exchange 48 90% 92% 100%  Office building
Building (partial)
L8 LBEFAE D) YN
Shenzhen Shenzhen Poly Cultural Plaza 135 100% 100% 100%  Commercial
(partial)
3l RYNRA A B () EES
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Average Average Interests
occupancy occupancy attributable to
Project GFA held rate of 2017  rate of 2016 the Group Property type
BE “Z-tfF ZE-XKE
HH EEHR FHHER P HAR AEEEL NEER
('000 square
metres)
(FF5K)
Wuhan Wuhan Poly Plaza (partial) 97 85% 81% 100%  Office building and
commercial
B RERMES (H2) MABREZE
Guiyang Guiyang Poly International 52 100% 100% 66.5%  Commercial
Center
&5 EF5 R EIR &5 GES
Hotel properties
BEEME
Beijing Beijing Poly Plaza 63 76% 69% 75%  Hotel
IR EREFKE B s
Wuhan Wuhan Poly Hotel 28 72% 74% 100%  Hotel
B BOE RN AE B iy
Guiyang Guiyang Poly Hot Spring 39 55% 51% 66.5%  Hotel
Hotel
& B R A EBORSOBE B IR

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

The Group has various property management companies
engaging properties,
commercial properties, offices, urban complexes, starred

in management of residential

commercial hotels, resort hotels, theatres and cultural
plazas. They have been the leading players in China which

have received numerous titles and awards in recent years.

In 2017, the Group’'s property management companies
recorded total revenue of RMB705 million, representing an
increase of 43% when comparing with the corresponding
period of last year. The companies managed a total of 145
property projects with an aggregate GFA of 29,500,000
square metres, representing an increase of 7.7% when
comparing with the corresponding period of last year.

MXEE

AEEREZRYEXEERR] EHY RE
EBE - WLE HWEEE EARKE
EERBE Bk XEESEZEBRELY
ENEEEERT  E2BAPEEETERS
SRS - WAL FRES % (H LB ERIF -

ZE—LF AEEMEERRAAERRARK
FF7.05BITTARE  REFRH LF43% 0 BE
Y) %78 B145(8 0 5P iE M 82,9508 F &
K BREFRHEAERTI% -



2018 OUTLOOK

In 2018, it is expected that the real estate market of
China will continue to be under stable control with more
specific regulatory framework for the long term housing
mechanism. The current “five restrictions” are likely to
remain stringent, only with slight finetunes by the local
housing supply and
demand and economic development. In order to foster the
steady and sound development of the real estate market,

governments based on the local

the Central Government will optimise the multi-layered
housing supply system and establish a long-term
mechanism adapting to the national condition and market
practice of China by means of finance, land supply and

taxation.

The current control policies have effectively held back the
speculation and investment demands for real estate. It is
expected that the continuous improvement of the long-
term housing mechanism will result in higher percentage of
self-used properties. A majority of the key products of the
Group are properties in provincial capitals with added
value of comprehensive community and cultural facilities
mainly for first-time buyers and existing owners looking for
upgrade of living condition. The Group is confident that it
will be able to adapt to the ever-changing market flexibly
by improving the quality of products and premium in
selling prices and optimising the cost control mechanism in
order to raise the brand value and market influence of
“Poly”.

The Group will pay close attention to the direction of
control policies in regions where it operates and the
impact of financial regulations and de-leveraging on the
real estate business, and timely adjust the sales strategies.
The Group will strengthen its management of sales
collection and cash flow management and explore new
financing channels, such as asset securitisation of operating
properties. In order to minimise the risks and grasp the
opportunities arising from the industry development, the
Group will also fully dig for the opportunities of deep
cooperation between real estate and financial business to
realise the rapid integration and collaborative innovation of
capital and industry.

R BEEEGRAR
—E—LFFR

= s

—Z-N\F - BEPEFEMET IS8 ZEBUR
ERFVBENFE FHERBEHIERSEE
MEW - RANTARIBERMS MR &t
77 BUR 2k [ 8 AN 3 71 45 1 {E 5 41 7 M AR 07 3 IR
BRELMBE PREAEESERASR =
WHFHREFR TEZBRANEEHER
F RUR2NATEBBEMMESRENRN
HHl - RESHEMSFREFRRR -

RN 5 EE RS E R RO G TR B AR E
MRR BERAREREIN TGS FE
MEEBUHEBE-—FPRIL - AEENTIBER
SZRUNEGHU™T  BXIEHRMIUCH INED
MBRMAERER AKEEELAEERE
HEENTHERE SHARNEREENHEE
B HEBCKAEERER  2HIERMRA]
WmEEENTSTES -

AEBETEZ TR EEBLE L ENBE
FETE AR ERMEET MEERYEEZX
BHMARBTE REABREERE MRHEE
CEMRERERE RIEEEUEDEEERS
fEEHURE TR - AEEINK T R IEE
EETBORAGERE BREANEXN
REBAMBREIF BEEHTEEROE
B o
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In respect of the land market, it is expected that local
governments will increase land supply through various
measures, including the promotion of renting house as an
alternative to buying house, equal rights between property
tenants and buyers and common ownership in 2018. In
addition to obtaining lands through traditional ways such
as bidding, auction and listing, the Group will pay close
attention to opportunities from urban redevelopment,
primary and secondary land development, and acquisition
and cooperation projects in China. The Group will also put
efforts in exploring the development and operation models
of new businesses, such as themed real estate, special
feature towns and long-term leasing apartments, and strive
to launch such projects in the near future.

In respect of Hong Kong and overseas business, the
smooth delivery of Vibe Centro project in Hong Kong is
one of the major tasks in 2018. The project in Tuen Mun is
planned to be completed in the first half of 2019 and will
be launched near completion. The Group will actively carry
out the preparatory work. The Group is confident about
the development of its Hong Kong and overseas projects,
further
investments and speed up the set up of industry funds so
as to develop
breakthrough in business innovation.

and  will increase Hong Kong and overseas

new growth drivers and achieve

In 2018, the Group will continue to maintain steady
growth and promote reforms to transform its development
pattern. The Group will further optimise and expand its
principal real estate business through strengthening its
core competitiveness and introducing
restraint mechanism. The Group will further improve its

incentive and

operating results to provide its shareholders with

sustainable and considerable returns.

THHSETEH ER T - N\FRXMITBFE
EHEBY S HERBEMAEERSTAEMNRA
HE - AEEEERBAHENLHN T2
S MBI BE M mESR - £ — — &
BBMUBASHE YTRBRRETEAM
E -Fe) ENEHABRERNEHORENE
AR FRERERABER R -

FRELBINEHIE BEIERIHB RO
IEMZ SR - - NFOEHTIE: HFEE
AEE_T-NFLFEFRT  ARNERER
BRAE AEBETSREGRMNPEGTE-
AEEHDER BB REINABNERTM
B0 - X HEE MRE B RBIMIE M B M E
XEEF BAESERRMPE  FAHE
BHEB R -

ZE-)N\F - AEERIER[ERGE R ER
2 HAEARRENKEINEEER  HEMK
EMBEEHEFTEER RAZLEF I F
RUBH RS - TE RS EEEE ARE
RIS EMIBERE R o



SUMMARY OF MAJOR REAL ESTATE

PROJECTS

1. Yangtze River Delta Region

As at 31st December, 2017, the Poly Property Group
had 18 projects in the Yangtze River Delta Region
with a total GFA of approximately 2,760,000 square
metres, accounting for approximately 13.7% of Poly
Property Group's total land reserves. Among which,
approximately 1,590,000 square metres were under
construction while 1,170,000 square meters were
planning.

under

1. R=ZAHME

Four of these projects were

completed, thirteen were under construction and one

had yet to commence construction.

Location
Bl

Yangtze River
Delta
k=4

City/District

W/ E

Shanghai
L&

Project
HHE
Poly Deluxe

Mansion

RIREFE

Poly Elegant
Mansion

RAIRIE AT

Jiading Project
FTR#ARE

Geographical Location
WENE

Located in the prime area of
Jiading District, close to the
Metro Line 11
UREEEHAZLE -
115 0 38 R

[EH#13.7%
BRENEIREER

Property type
NERR

Residential buildings
FE

RFELEEARAT
—B e

TEFHERBRBE/EN

HE-_T—+tF+-A=+—H BX%
ERE=AERB18EF b ERMH A
B HEEAZEMBAIS9ETF A &F
EERERMBONTIEF K
EEH27T6BF T K HEXSEBE L
c HAP4EER 2% T - 1313

ALt

MEIE B M ARFE L -

Development status
RREE

Delivered with sales of
remaining apartments

INERHE

Residential buildings
FE

Delivered with sales of
remaining apartments

INERHEE

Residential and
commercial
buildings, hotel and
theatre

FE BE BER
S

Residential buildings
delivered

Hotel and commercial
building are under
construction
FERM

BIE R

HEER

Located at Dalian Road,
Yangpu District, CBD of

Residential
buildings, office and

Residential buildings
delivered and sold out

waterfront Inner Loop, Golden | commercial Office and commercial
Poly Greenland ) o - .
Plaza T\n\anglc\a of Lu!|azu| o b\mlﬁdmg:ﬁ buildings for sale
RF S NRGERKER B V‘Jiﬁ‘/ﬁ FE -BFE- (Partially delivered)
’ JICBDR% - BERXEES=/A | &% FERRIEE
B BYEREEES (B9
2A)
Located in Sijing, Songjiang, Residential and For sale (partially
near Sijing Station of Metro commercial delivered)
Line 9 with access to buildings EE(HBHRMA)
Poly Phili House convenient transportation and | £

RABERE

full-fledged ancillary facilities
R IR » 8530 30 E195%
RIS ERA KER
E3

=
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B E S

Location
E i3

Yangtze River
Delta
k=4

DT

City/District

Project

Geographical Location

Property type

Development status

HE HEALE nERH RBER
Located within the inner ring Office and Under construction and
along the waterfront at the commercial prepared for sale
. Eastern Bund, in proximity to | buildings EEFE
'S:raazr; Jin Poly Yangshupu Road Station of BTE HE
. Metro Line 4
WEFHES | armmnn . siesTe
T RAnERRBEE
B 8
Poly Phili Regency Located within the Eastern Residential buildings | For sale
Shanghai RILERE Bund in Yangpu District £ EE
L8 fiz 7 15 %0 & RN AR 378
Located in New Jiading, 800 Apartments and Under construction and
metres away from New villas prepared for sale
Jiading Station of Metro Line | A% - Fl% EREE
Xijiao Jinmao 11, fully equipped with living
Palace facilities to a large capacity of
EBEKE population
IR EEHE - EHENER
SR 800K - AERLEM
#oMERE
Located in the economic Apartments and For sale (partially
development zone of villas delivered)
Poly West Bank Wuzhong District, the project | A% - 7l E EE (@B RM)
Villa stands on a peninsula of
RAIBEFR=E Dushu Lake
MURRPEEREE  XAR
B
Located in the economic Residential and For sale (partially
development zone of commercial delivered)
Poly Lake Mansion | Wuzhong District and the buildings, office and | & (H7 X {T)
R FI & B R northern tip of Yinshan Lake hotel
URRPEERER - EE BX BFE
FlE OB &
Suzhou Located in Weitang Town, Residential and Under construction and
M Suzhou, in proximity to commercial prepared for sale
Wei Tang Project transportation terminal and buildings EREFE
with access to Metro Line 9 TE BE

BRI E

which is under planning
fIREMNERER  ZMEEA
By AR B B BN R

Lu Zhi Project
MEER

Located in Luzhi Town, Suzhou
and facing Zone Hudong in
Suzhou Industrial Park(Z /| T
EEEHRRE), and with
access to Metro Line 6 which
is under long-term planning
UREHMBEE BHEMIX
BEHRERBE  REAE
& i 565 &5

Residential buildings
Fx

Under construction
I+
5




Yangtze River
Delta
R=A

City/District

Project

HH

Poly City
RAH

Geographical Location
wENE

Located in the prime location
of Zhenhai New Town, facing
the new administrative and
cultural center of Zhenhai
REBITNZLE  BRiTE
BETHOUE R

Property type
NEER

Residential and
commercial
buildings and office
FE-BER
BFE

RANEXEERE AT
—TtFFR

Development status

RREE

For sale (partially
delivered)

EE#HrRM)

Located at Shuixiang Lane,

Residential and

For sale (partially

Poly Wonderland Dongshang New Town, commercial delivered)
RIENIRE Ningbo buildings EE(FHHrxH)
. URERREHAKEE Tz B
Ningbo
=ik Located in the central area of | Residential and For sale
Ningbo Eastern New City and | commercial K&
less than two kilometres away | buildings and office
from the office of Ningbo TE BER
Prosperous Municipal Government with BT
Reflection access to convenient
TRz transportation and full-fledged
ancillary facilities
URERRBIAZLE B
ERTBRTE2AE @
MoEEER
Located in the Southeast of Residential and For sale (partially
Poly Jordan the intersection of Chengdong | commercial delivered)
Yuyao International Road and Tanjialing Road, buildings and office | £& (#BH X ()
Rk RHEZE Yuyao TE HER
R URARARBEERER BFiE
RIKEOREA
Located in the Eastern New Residential For sale (partially
Town in Deging, 5-minute buildings, delivered)
driving distance from the hotel and EE(FHHrRM)
Nanjing-Hangzhou High-speed | commercials
Poly Origin Railway station and with FE BEREE
R R4 superior scenery and
landscape
_ IR EBRBIE - EENS
Deging EspEER KUEK KA
R LEEERE
Located in Fuxi Street, the Residential buildings | Under construction and
central of the Eastern New £ prepared for sale
Poly Prime Town in Deging and the ERFE
Regency Southwest of the Poly Origin
RH B T project
MREERENEZLERZ

HE RMNRBEAEDA
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K=ZAME
HE-_Z-—+H5+-_A=+—HB B%%
ERKR=AMERE4EFEREIE

2. Pearl River Delta Region 2.
As at 31st December, 2017, Poly Property Group had
14 projects in the Pearl River Delta Region with a

total GFA of approximately 2,170,000 square metres, B ERAREEBRNSET L S8
accounting for approximately 10.7% of the total land MEETMBENI22BF K G5t R

BR21I7EF TR EEXEE R TR
#H#10.7% - ER7EE B 2R T 6ff 1R
BN IEE  1EEB mARMI-

reserves of the Group. Among which, approximately
950,000 square metres was under construction and
approximately 1,220,000 square metres was under
planning. Seven of these projects were completed,
six were under construction and one was yet to

commence construction.

City/District Project Geographical Location Major Products Current Status
W/ HE BH WwENE TEEM BB OR
Located in Huadu District; adjacent | Residential buildings | Delivered with sales
to the Asian Games New Stadium | and offices of remaining
Poly Golf Shire at Fengshen Avenue and the Tz BF¥E apartments
RFABRLE Metro Line 9 SRBREEE

REHE ZHEHRAE
TEEHMER B EIRR

Located in the center of Xinhua

Residential and

Delivered with sales

Poly Zephvr Cit Town of Huadu District, east to the | commercial of remaining
2 %J ?EJ;Z YA district government buildings apartments
BRESERERTL B | BT EE RHRBHE

& B 2R

Located in Huadu District, in

Residential buildings

Delivered with sales

Poly Gratified
West Bay
AT E

Guangzhou Metro Line 1 with
commercial and educational
facilities

IR % ERES BRI EM i EN5
R BERHEREERZ

buildings and offices
FEx BER
BT

proximity to Metro Lines 3and 9 | % of remaining
Poly Up House which is accessible to the whole apartments
RAEE city TREBRHEE
MRATERE - BT B3R MIRLE -
Pearl River BERY
Guangzhou - — -
Deﬁa =3 Located in the South of Liwan Residential and For sale (partially
K=# ) District; adjacent to the commercial delivered)

EEEHH M)

Located within the Toyota Auto Residential and For sale (partially
City in Huangge Town, Nansha commercial delivered)
Nansha Poly City | with access to a comprehensive buildings EE@BHRM)
D R F transportation network T HE
fIREYERRS AR
Located at the junction of North Residential, office For sale
i i &
Poly Jade Hill }Jr:aasuhaedlljoad and Sandong Avenue Ez(iildcirc:rr;merC|al EE
e 2

fIREBRRILEE=RRBRR

FE BFER
EES




Region
Bl

Pearl River
Delta
K=A

City/District

Project

BHHE

Poly Cullinan
Garden
RMRELE

Geographical Location
wENE

Located in the centre of
Chancheng District neighbouring
the Asia Arts Park in the west and
equipped with a full range of
community facilities
fRERER LR ABEER
CREEERRERE

=
=y

RANEXEERE AT

Major Products
TZER
Residential, office
and commercial
buildings

TE - BFER
[GES

“EFFER

Current Status

Delivered with sales
of remaining
apartments

INEEHEE

Poly Prestige
City
A L

Located in Longjiang Town,
Shunde District, with the benefit of
an extensive transportation
network and thriving commercial
activities

fir R IR4E & 82T 38 - AR 58 8

Residential and
commercial
buildings

TE B

Delivered with sales
of remaining
apartments

TNRERHE

Foshan maEN\E HERARE
5 1L Located in the north of Shunde Residential and For sale (partially
New City, the project stands in the | commercial delivered)
Poly Central Park | heart of Pearl River Delta and buildings and hotel EE#HHIRMN)
REFRDE enjoys convenient transportation FE BERBE Under planning
MR BB E - wER=ARE e
o AERBTE RBEMN
Located in old town district in Residential and
Chancheng, Foshan with the commercial
benefit of the thriving commercial | buildings
Chan Cheng activities and 50 metres away from | % H¥
Project Tongji Street Station of
BHIEA Guangzhou-Foshan Railway
fIRFILERZHERR  BER
ARE BEEGUEFERLE
50K
Located in the prime commercial Residential and Delivered with sales
location of Longgang District, the | commercial of remaining
project is easily accessible by the buildings apartments
Metro Line 3 and is also FE BE INEBBIEE
Poly Up Town . .
BF LS IEE cor.n.p'lemented with ancillary
facilities
RBEHEERZOE  HEH3N
i BREFKRE
Shenzhen -
JtH\
3l

Poly Joy-Zone
R EBTE

Located in Longhua, Bao'an
District, Shenzhen; close to the
transportation terminal and the
metro station, with sound business
and community facilities
IRANELREREE EBREN
B EN BE

2% RERE

Residential and
commercial
buildings

TE B

Delivered with sales
of remaining
apartments

TNRERHE
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City/District

Project

W/ e BHE

Geographical Location
wENE

Major Products

IREM

Current Status

BEHRR

Located next to the Shenzhen- Residential and For sale (partially
Shantou Expressway and Palm commercial delivered)
. Island Golf Course, the project buildings EE@BHRM)
Poly Sunshine . ) L .
Town enjoys an environment of natural FE BE
5w scenery
RHBAR | prpuszons 25
Pearl River . FESERXINE 8R4
Delta ;udl\ﬁhou REEX
h=A . Located in the prime area of Huibo | Residential and For sale (partially
and the northern bank of East commercial delivered)
Poly Deutch River, the project is only a buildings EE@rRM)
Kultur 10-minute drive from downtown of | £ @ %
RA LK Huizhou
MREEZL - RLLE - BB S
LREE10DEER
Southwestern Region 3. HAEHEE

HE-_T—+H8+-_B=+—H B%s
B AR E T E18EFE i E R %A
B EEREEEMBELOW0IEF H K #
BUEEAEBYIET K At
EH1,034BF K (hEXEBE L1
B 451.1% - EFR6EEBE % T » 1@

As at 31st December, 2017, Poly Property Group
held 18 projects in the Southwestern Region with a
total 10,340,000 square
metres, accounting for approximately 51.1% of the

GFA of approximately

total land reserves of the Group. Among which,
approximately 4,070,000 square metres was under

construction and approximately 6,270,000 square

metres was under planning. Six projects were

completed, eleven were under construction and one

was yet to commence construction.

Region

City/District

Project

Geographical Location

HEERE TR

Major Products

CMEAEE MARFEL -

Current Status

& i W/ e BH WENE TEEM BB RR
Poly Hot Spring Located in Wudang District amidst | Residential and Delivered with sales
Newisland a picturesque setting at the center | commercial of remaining
RFE S 54 of lake areas . buildings apartments
REER AN RAEX | £ BF XNERHEE
Located in the heart of Nanming Residential, Delivered with sales
Poly International District and standing on the bank | commercial and of remaining
Center of Nanming River with a shoreline qffice buiyldings T)artments ‘
Southwestern | Guiyang RHERES of approximately 300 metres FE BHER XNEBREE
i £ TR | AR D ERERRERS kS

B A 300K 7 7 4R

Poly Clouds Hill
International

RME LB

Located in Yunyan District and a
5-minute drive from the downtown
of the city, which is convenient and
easily accessible

IREER BHHL5HE

Bl £EHERE

Residential and
commercial
buildings

TE BE

Delivered with sales
of remaining
apartments

INERHEE




Southwestern

il

City/District

W/ HE

Project

BHHE

Poly Spring
Street
RAUFERKE

Geographical Location

WENE

Located in the south of Wudang
District, the project is 1 kilometre

away from the center of the
district

fIREEEMES ESERTOIA
Bz

Major Products
TZER
Residential and
commercial
buildings

FE -BE

RFELEEARAT
—B e

Current Status
B

For sale (partially
delivered

£ (B2 %H)

Poly Park 2010
R 7|2 E2010

Located in Wudang District and in
close proximity to the district
administration center, the project
incorporates an 18-hole
international standard golf course
and enjoys established community
facilities in the neighbourhood
IREERITEFOE HEETN
RERRESHEX

B5 BERERBTE

Residential and
commercial
buildings

TE -HE

For sale (partially
delivered)
EE@HRN)

Guiyang Standing against the backdrop of Residential and For sale (partially
&b Huaxi National Wetland Park, the commercial delivered)
Poly The Place of proje.ct is. situated irf the prime b\uldings‘ EEFHARM)
A Lake location in thfe sT:en.|c eco-tour T B%
BN zF)ne otHuam D!sttlct
RTEEREERERRE
RO ERERET
KERM AR
Located in Nanming District; built Residential, For sale (partially
on the site previously occupied by | commercial and delivered)
Guiyang Power Plant (5[5 Z ), office buildings EE(FPRH)
the project is a transportation hub | = HEK
Poly Phoenix Bay | linking the downtown of Guiyang, | BF1#&
RIBEE and Xiaohe and Huaxi Districts in
the south
fRmEE  wERERER
Ei REREGTROEEHN
TEENRBER
Located in the south of Zunyi; the Residential, For sale (partially
project is close to the center of commercial and delivered)
Zunyi Poly Metropolis | transportation created by the o\fﬁce buildings EEFHARM)
- of Future B government and links to the old Tz BER
R SRS town of Zunyi BTiE

frnEEE S ZHRMTENE
BEZREHEARBRR
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Region
E i3

Southwestern

il

BIEE S AT

City/District
W/ HE

Nanning
HE

Project

BHE

Poly Crescendo

RAWESE

Geographical Location

WENE

Located in the north of Nanning,
the project is approximately 20
minutes away from the city center
URAETRLE  EfE

#2050 EH 12

Major Products
TEEM
Villas and

apartments
E 28

Current Status
BRI

For sale
delivered

EE(H

partially

2

o

Located in Xiuxiang main road and

Residential and

Delivered with sales

neighbouring the Lion Hill Park, commercial of remaining
the project enjoys convenient buildings apartments

Poly A S N y ~ y g

° ymeg?an e transportation and community FE -BHE RNEBEE

facilities
IREEMARALE  EAMUA
B RARMN EEEZ
Located at Mingxiu Road near the | Residential, For sale (partially
former site of Chongzuo CPC commercial and delivered)
Academy, the project is a premium | office buildings EE(@BHRM)

Poly Hearty
fRM DR

residential development in Beihu
Sub-district
URAFBRREEEREL
fiisr RIHFEEEER

EE-BER
BT

Poly Dream River

RAB S

Located in the heart of the Liusha
Peninsula, the project neighbours
the state guesthouse Liyuan Resort
and Qing Xiu Mountain Golf
Course in the east, Liusha Eco Park
in the west with a planned gross
floor area of over a thousand
acres, as well as a spectacular view
of river in the south
RMDEERLES REEE
EFRILENSSL

BRARS  ARBETROND
ERNE AELEIS HBUE
B

Residential buildings
=

Under construction
and prepared for
sale

EREE

Poly Town
RIEERR

Located at the junction of
Qinghuan Road and Fengling South
Road in Qingxiu District, in
proximity to the 3 CBDs of
Dongmeng, Longgang and
Wuxiang, facing Qingxiushan Park
in the west and overlooking Yong
River in the south
IREERERE LB HEBERE
fi R RER AR =ACBDF
L BAHEFUAE BEEL

Residential,
commercial and
office buildings
TE BHER
BTE

For sale

EE




Southwestern

il

City/District

W/ HE

Project

BHHE

Geographical Location
wEyE

4%%‘J§%%@EI§EEE

Major Products

TREM

—tFER

Current Status

B

Located in the arm of Yong River Residential and Under planning
Poly Town Phase in the eastern region of Dongmeng | commercial 53
Nanning I Business Zone in Qingxiu District, b\ukﬂingsy
aE RAEEY and is adjacent to Qing Xiu Shan, | FE H%
— a 5A-level scenic area
- NREAEREARRRFNET
ZE - MBS LARERE
Neighbouring the old town of Residential, For sale (partially
Liubei on the west and the commercial and delivered)
business district on the south, and | office buildings and | & (H5 X f})
Poly Merization standing on the Liu River bank with h\otel ,
Liuzhou World a shoreline of more than 200 FE -BE-
M RFIKTIH metres, the project boasts a prime | BT & KA E
location and natural scenery
EENILZHE  BRATEE &
THEREEB0K LEEH R
£ ES
Located in Ninghu Xincheng of Residential and Delivered with sales
Datun District in Anning City, the commercial of remaining
project shares the same buildings apartments
Poly Lakeside neighbourhood of “Kunming Sunny | % % INRBHEE
Mansion Lake & Splendid Life" which is one
RAUEHEHR block away
i 5 % B A AT & M AT
Eﬁi%‘}/ﬂ B— %ZE
ERARTENERAHH
Situated in the prime area of Residential, Delivered with sales
Renmin Road in the downtown commercial and of remaining
Kunming area, the project is next to the City o\ffice bui\ldings a!partments
= Stadium Station serviced by the FE BER INEBBIEE
* Poly Sky and Metro Line 3, which is currently BT
Earth under construction. The
REN AR neighbouring area offers
comprehensive ancillary facilities
MRERERARBZOME B
RARE  BEHEIRETEER
i BREEREREER
Located in the intersection of Er Residential, For sale (partially

Poly One Family
One World
RIAR

Huan Bei Road and Puji Road
IR -RIEEEETHRRER

commercial and
office buildings
FE BER
BT

delivered)

EE@HoRHM)
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H fth it &
BE-_Z—+tE+-_A=+—0 B%=
BERZ BRE BELEESHER
B25EEER EEBEEMBENISBEF
TR FREBEEMBEL29TEBF 7K
At ELL8ETF T K (HEEE
B 48 + M (F 1 #24.0% - HP7{EEE 2%
T -1MEABEERELREE  7EEBEE &
KT o

4. Other Regions 4.
As at 31st December, 2017, Poly Property Group has
a total of 25 projects in other regions, namely
Wuhan, Harbin, Jinan and Hainan. The land bank
amounted to a gross floor area of approximately
4,860,000 square metres that contributed to roughly
24.0% of the Group's property development
portfolio. Projects under development accounted for
a total gross floor area of approximately 1,950,000
square metres and an approximate gross floor area
of 2,910,000 square metres was reserved for future
development. Seven of the projects were completed,
eleven were currently under construction and seven

had yet to commence construction.

City/District

Project

Geographical Location

Major Products

Current Status

Wi/t B

HH

WENE

IEREM

BEMR R

Located in Wuchang, the project is | Office buildings, and | Delivered for lease
a comprehensive commercial plaza | commercial and for sale
integrating commerce, fashion and | buildings RfEFER R
Poly Plaza . ;
RFIRS alwre | BFRER
IRKER REHEH HHE X
ABONGAUBRE
B
The project is located in Hongshan | Residential, office For sale (partially
District, and is complemented by a | and commercial delivered)
Poly City full range of community and buildings EE(@yRM)
R educational facilities Fx BEFER

fIRILE  BEEER#UE
RERH

HE

Poly Blue Ocean
District
RME B

Wuhan Metro Line 2, the project
enjoys an excellent transportation
network

fIRHERLE - —RERH -

i VR 2R R 0 IR

fii & &

Others Wuhan Located at the prime area of Residential and Delivered with sales
At R Wuchang District, the project commercial of remaining

boasts unparalleled panoramic buildings apartments

lakeside views. Close to the T Bx TNEREE

Yangyuan Project
HE®ER

Located in Wuchang, the main area
of the Central District and near the
Yangtze River

RERERE BORT

Residential, office
and commercial
buildings

TE - BFER
[HES

Under construction
and prepared for
sale

EREE




RANEXEERE AT
—TtFFR

City/District Project Geographical Location Major Products Current Status
W/t E "H WENE TEER B
Located at Hongtu Avenue in Residential and Planned for
Dongxihu District, which stands commercial construction
close to the Metro Line 2, the buildings 53
Poly Park o . .
- project is surrounded by numerous | %€ HE
RMRER . e
ancillary facilities
fIRREHREERE tﬁzﬁ
2RERR RAERES
Located in the newly emerging Residential, For sale
Others Wuhan Baishazhou area, the project is commercial and EE
it R adjacent to the Wuchang District office buildings
and the new town of Nanhu. T BER
Located within the Second Ring, BT
Poly Up Town : .
X the project neighbours the planned
A L .
Metro Line 5
IRHFEOADMAE B4
RERMBBEENHNE LR
RA - BHERD
1 55 4%
Situated in the Nangang District, Residential and Delivered with sales
the central district, which is the commercial of remaining
The Tsinghua cultural and education base for buildings apartments
Summer Palace higher education, the project Fx #% RENERREE
of Poly enjoys benefits from well-
RMEER established community amenities
firpLHEEHE SEEFE
& ERRERETE
New residential community located | Residential and Delivered with sales
alongside Songhua River in Harbin | commercial of remaining
Poly Up Town West, developed as a key project buildings apartments
R 5 designated by the government FE BE INEBBIEE
R FEBRIETI—%  BREK
FESHTENEEHE
Harbin Located in Songbei District, the Residential and For sale (partially
BEA project neighbours major provincial | commercial delivered)
government offices in Harbin and is | buildings EE(BHRMA)
only 500 metres away from FE -BHE

Poly The Water's
Fragrant Dike

ERIKERE

Songbei Avenue, with improving
municipal facilities in surrounding
areas

fir AL R - Bk AP R B T B 3t
AR BIEKBES0K - BEH
KEEERS

=
TE

Poly City
RA

Located in Daoli District at the
junction of West Youyi Road (R
EV and Langjiang Road (B3/T %)
UREERREARERIRRE
J&ﬁ

Residential and
commercial
buildings

TE -HE

For sale (partially
delivered)

FEEn M)
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BEE i

Region
E i3

Others
HAh

DT

City/District
Wi/t E

Jinan

Em

Project

Geographical Location

Major Products

Current Status

BH WENE TEER BRI
Located in the Honglou business Residential and For sale (partially
Poly Hyde area of the Licheng District, a commercial delivered)
Mansion commercial center of the new b\uiﬁlﬂdings\ EE@BHRM)
RFGE AR district ih the east of J?nan Fx B%
fIRERR  REFERSHE
BERL K @Fﬁ%l
Situated at the west of the Residential and For sale (partially
southern City, the project is commercial delivered)
Poly Center adjacent to the Jinan West Market b\ul::lings\ EE(#HH M)
RF that is renowned as a hundred- T BE
year-old commercial market
fIREmERNEEEER
ik
Neighbouring the Honglou Residential and For sale (partially
Poly Elegant business area, the project is commercial deliveied) N
Garden located in the Lixia District with b\uirlHdings\ EE@BHRMN)
RREE convenient trgpsportation Tx HE
fIRETR  BOHEEE -
ZEEF
Located at a prime location within | Residential, For sale
a distance of 3.5km away from the | commercial and EE
New Jinan East Station (E@¥7® | office buildings
Phili House it) and surrounded by 4 metro T BER
HERE Iines BTiE
AT E R TR IE3.50 BB
%”IW FERE BTG
HERRE BUEY
Located at Changging District, with | Residential buildings | Under planning
. adequate scientific and human i=x ¥
Efoljitwa resources, excellent environment
GFEER and convenient transportation \
IREBR FRAMBMANE
RRE RERR EER
Situated at Changqing District, and | Residential buildings | Under planning
in proximity to the Metro Line R1 | £ (5
which is under planning,
Da Shi Zi Yuan Changging Huanghe Bridge (K&
Project )1 K1) and Huayi Studios
X EEE (EEZRMN)
ME@E/H[ ik g ik
BRIGER  RBEIABUARE
ke E/ﬁyﬂi
Located at the downtown of Residential buildings | Under planning
Zhanggqju, surrounded by a number | F= e
Zhang Qiu of high schools, and with adequate
Project ancillary facilities and convenient
ERER transportation

RECRIFE BHEER
& RERE RBRM




Region
Bl

Others
Hib

City/District
Wi/t E

Yantai
Za

Project

BHHE

Poly Champs
Elysees Mansion

RN

Geographical Location

WENE

Located next to the Phoenix
Mountain Reservoir, the project
enjoys a convenient transportation
network

ZRBELKE  ZBEF

RANEXEERE AT

Major Products
TEER

Residential buildings
£

“EFFER

Current Status

Delivered with sales
of remaining
apartments

INEEHEE

Poly Blossom
Garden
RMRB

Located in the core area of the
Southern New City, the project is
about 500 metres away from
Guanzhuang Station (B i) in the
Yantai section of the planned
Qingrong Intercity Railway (& & %
PR35, creating a circle of which
Qingdao, Yantai and Weihai can all
be reached within one hour
UREBHHGEOE  EERRE
RERERESRE L4500k -
58 EBa RARER—/EARE
B

Residential buildings
E=x

Delivered with sales
of remaining
apartments

XNERHEE

Poly Ocean Luxe

RAZ Hi8

Situated in the core area in
High-tech District, the project is
north to Binhai Road and is
approximately 300 metres away
from the coastline, offering
unparalleled sea views
UREHEROLE LEES

B BYBEREI300K  BER
REX

Residential buildings
FE

For sale

EE

Weihai
Bg

Poly Triumph
Mansion

(DN

Situated in the Huancui District,
the project is close to the
Xianguding Scenic Spot and is east
to the ocean, offering unparalleled
sea views

URRRE BBLLEERR
tBE - RERE BHE

RREEX

Residential buildings
FE

Delivered with sales
of remaining
apartments

TNEERHE

Poly Maple
Valley
RAIES

Located in the heart of Huancui
District, the project is surrounded
by hills in three directions. In
proximity to Darunfa business circle
and Green Zone planning area, the
site is easily accessible with
comprehensive ancillary facilities in
the neighbourhood
MREREERE  ZEERL - BF
NEEBE S8

REE - BEMN Fig
EEREER

Residential buildings
FE

For sale

rE
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City/District Project Geographical Location Major Products Current Status

W/ E BHE WENE IREM BEHRR

Situated in the traditional town Residential buildings | Under planning
center of the economic and F=z 53
technology development zone
where businesses and population
Xiang Gang Road | are concentrated, the project is
Project easily accessible with convenient
ERKIER transportation and comprehensive
ancillary facilities

IR EER MR ERERT LR
B EXEMAOES.

RPRE RETE

Located at Linzi District with Residential buildings | Under planning
convenient transportation, =2 E3
comprehensive ancillary facilities
Xin Hua Road and abundant nature resources, the
Project project is surrounded by rich
FIHRIER cultural atmosphere

IREER BEN BE

xE BREREE:
AXRERE

Located in the resort district of Residential and Under planning
Shenzhou Peninsula in Wanning commercial ¥

Wanning Poly Peninsula City, Hainan Province, the project b\uildings\
S No.1 enjoys beautiful coastal resources Tz B¥
B RAMEB1% IREREEEMHMNELS
FEERE FEEEE
BENEFER

Weihai
e

Others
Hit

Zibo
N




Hong Kong and Overseas

As at 31st December, 2017, Poly Property Group has
a total of three projects in Hong Kong and overseas
regions, all under construction, and the aggregate

land

reserves amount to approximately 110,000

RANEXEERE AT

5. BRERENMME

square meters, representing approximately 0.5% of
the total land reserves of Poly Property Group.

Region

B

Hong Kong
and overseas

BB REN

City/District
Wi/t E

Hong Kong

Project

HH

Kai Tak Vibe
Centro

MEEs

Geographical Location

WENE

Located in the Kai Tak
Development Area of Kowloon
East, the project will be developed
as a part of the core business
district of Kowloon East. It is near
the Kai Tak Station along the
Shatin — Central MTR line and will
take only 10 minutes by MTR to
reach the core areas of Hong Kong
Island in the future
ERNERBERERRA
BERANERELOEERN -
o BEERAMED G EME

B RRI0DEERIERSH L

=]
(i1

Major Products
B

Residential buildings
Fx

“EFFER

HE-Z—+F+ZA=+—H0 BX&
BERBRBEMNMERTAIMERR - =8
i ARt LHEEONERT K HE
EEBEB T HREL05% -

Current Status
BRMRR
For sale

rE

Tuen Mun
Project

PR A

Located in the Castle Peak Bay
section of Castle Peak Road, Tuen
Mun, the project is a low-density
beachside residential project
encircled by ancillary facilities such
as Harrow International School
Hong Kong, Gold Coast and Tuen
Mun Hospital in the
neighbourhood
MREMERFLURABELER &
GYOBEZDEETEE -FEER
BR2 HOBRREMBRER

Villas
Gl

Under construction
and prepared for
sale

rEEE

London

GE

Cambium Project
HEHRER

The project is located in
Wandsworth, Southwest London,
which is well-known for its
high-quality school district and
tranquillity. It is approximately
15-minute walk from the nearby
tube station and approximately
30-minute drive from Central
London

MUREREZARR UEEZR
RBEMBRERE 517

159 §8 7 23 s 8 f -

B R AL AI309 EE 12

Residential buildings
s

For sale

EE
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Capital Structure

As at 31st December, 2017, total equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company amounted to
HK$28,296,364,000 (2016: HK$24,696,715,000), while the
net asset value per share was HK$7.73 (2016: HK$6.74). As
at 31st December, 2017, the Group’s gearing ratio (on the
basis of the amount of total liabilities divided by the
amount of total assets) was 76.1% (2016: 77.9%).

As at 31st December, 2017, the Group had outstanding
bank and other borrowings (including the notes payable) of
HK$46,825,236,000. In terms of maturity, the outstanding
bank and other borrowings (including notes payable) can
be divided into HK$19,735,437,000 (42%) to be repaid
within one year, HK$8,517,558,000 (18%) to be repaid after
one year but within two years, HK$15,572,872,000 (34%) to
be repaid after two years but within five years,
HK$2,999,369,000 (6%) to be repaid after five years. In
terms of currency denomination, the outstanding bank and
other borrowings (including the notes payable) can be
divided into HK$37,358,818,000 (80%) in Renminbi,
HK$3,900,000,000 (8%) in United State dollars,
HK$5,566,418,000 (12%) in Hong Kong dollars.

and

43.7% of the bank and other borrowings (including the
notes payable) of the Group are subject to fixed interest
rates and the remaining 56.3% are subject to floating
interest rates. Therefore, under circumstances of interest
rates uncertainty or fluctuations or otherwise as
appropriate, the Group will consider the use of hedging
instruments (including interest rates swaps), in order to

manage interest rate risks.

As at 31st December, 2017, the Group had net current
assets of HK$39,624,720,000 and total bank balances of
HK$21,250,887,000 (2016: HK$42,837,416,000 and
HK$18,366,789,000 respectively). With the available
banking facilities and cash revenue from business
operations, it is believed that the Group has sufficient
resources to meet the foreseeable working capital
demands and capital expenditure.

Bt %5 B i

RBEESREREE
RZE—tF+_A=+—8 KARAIZKR
JE {5 HEE 25 48 B 528,296,364,000/8 7T (— & — /<
F 1 24,696,715,0008 7C) MEREEFEAL
7738 L (ZE—RFE 6748 L)  R_E—+
FHZA=1+—H FTEEEEBENLEX (G
BRI ABERERIUNEERE) B761% (=
T—RNF 1 77.9%) °

RZE—+F+_A=1+—08 K&E@EHKE
BEROTEEMEERERREENER A
46,825,236,000/8 7T © IZEIHAR 5 %8 - REEIR
TREMEE(BRENEBR) IDAE—FA
E & 219,735,437,000/8 7T(42%) /£ —F & (B
M N1E & 28,517,558,00078 JT(18%) * £/
18 HFRNEE 215,572,872,000/% TT(34%) M
HERFEEIE 22,999,369,000/ 7T(6%) ° & %
EEME AEERTREMEE(BEENME
B Ao AR AR E 237,358,818,000% T
(80%) ~ ¥Z3= JTEH{E 2.3,900,000,0005 JT.(8%) &
¥ 74 T EHE 25,566,418,000 TT(12%) °

AKEA3TRBITRAMEE (BEENER) A
ERRGE - MR T56.3%81 AT 8 8 X5t
BoRAM  EMETHEEIEBAEMEER
AT AEESEEERE TR (BEN X
H)EEAN KRR -

RZE—+F+_A=1+—08 AEEZAH
& EF(E539,624,720,0008 7T © SRITHRALEF A
21,250,887,000 7T (= T — N F: 9 5l A
42,837,416,000/8 7T %2.18,366,789,000/8 7T) - B
TRAPHARTEERLERWE  HELASE
EAEREERENAERZ 2BESERK
BEARRY °



liabilities and business
transactions of the Group are mainly carried and
Renminbi and United
States dollars. The Group maintains a prudent strategy in

The monetary assets and

conducted in Hong Kong dollars,
its foreign exchange risk management, where foreign
exchange risks are minimised via balancing the monetary
assets versus monetary liabilities, and foreign exchange
The
management believes that the foreign exchange rate

revenue versus foreign exchange expenditures.

between Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars is
relatively stable. On the other hand, despite the recent
the Board believes that
Renminbi will only gradually appreciate by a small percent
in the foreseeable future. In this regard, the management
believes that the exposure of the Group to foreign

appreciation of Renminbi,

exchange risks is minimal.

Pledged Assets
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying value of
the Group’s assets which were pledged to secure credit

facilities granted to the Group are as follows:

RANBEEEERRAA]
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AEBEZEREERABREBRITENR
T ARBEETREMIIERET - AEE
£ 5N E R B EIEEE”H%%’IEZE% &8

BEYEERTY A E L RIMNE KA EINME F
o BNERBBRERK - BEEMEE BT
AETZEXEEYRBE -Z—THEH BAAR

BEXSOEMAE EFSGHEARKERX
ERREREGESIUBIZAILTE B
g EREEREAREERH ZINERRIY NE
* o

CEFEE
RBEER  AEBDEREATEEERED
EERANERNEERAGET

HK$'000 HK$’'000

THET TR

Investment properties wREYHE 3,704,286 2,809,663
Hotel properties B E ) 2 157,143 507,865
Buildings BF — 36,076
Prepaid lease payments AT & RIE 65,414 194,866
Properties under development BERAPYE 21,637,628 13,792,049
Properties held for sale FIELEME 2,719,388 3,017,770
Bank deposits BITIE R 329,237 785,305
28,613,096 21,143,594
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In addition to above pledge of assets, at 31st December,
2017 and 2016, the Group’s interests in certain subsidiaries
were pledged to secure credit facilities granted to the
Group. The details of net asset value of subsidiaries are as

follows:

REREERTIN RZFT—EtFR-FT—RX
FT_A=1t—8 AKERETHERF K
RETCEMEALAEBERNEERENE
Ro-MBRRAEEFENFFRAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT FHET

Total assets BEE 12,823,267 9,413,596
Total liabilities FES= (12,999,927) (8,486,520)
(176,660) 927,076

Contingent Liabilities

The Group arranged mortgage loan facilities with certain
banks for purchasers of property units and provided
guarantees to banks to secure obligations of such
purchasers of repayment. The maximum guarantees given
to banks amounted to HK$28,685,243,000 as at 31st
December, 2017 (2016: HK$28,393,520,000). Such
guarantees terminate upon the earlier of (i) issue of the
real estate ownership certificate; and (ii) the satisfaction of
the mortgage loans by the buyers of the properties. The
Group has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of these guarantees as its fair value is considered to be
minimal by the Directors. The Directors also consider that
the fair value of the underlying properties is able to cover
the outstanding mortgage loans generated by the Group in
the event the purchasers default payments to the banks.

At 31st December, 2017, the Group had given guarantees
to certain banks in respect of credit facilities granted to
certain joint ventures of the Group amounting to
HK$2,170,910,000 (2016: HK$1,853,932,000), of which
HK$2,088,743,000 (2016: HK$1,853,932,000) had been
utilised by the joint ventures.

HARBE
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2,088,743,0008 (= T — X -
1,853,932,000/% 7T ) °



EMPLOYEES

As at 31st December, 2017, the Group employed about
13,166 employees with remuneration for the year
amounted to HK$1,116,271,000. The Group provides its
employees with various benefits including year-ended
double-pay, contributory provident fund and medical
insurance. In addition, share options and discretionary
bonuses are also granted based on the Group’'s and
individual’s performance. Employee trainings are also
provided as and when required.
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This corporate governance report (“CG Report”) presents
the corporate governance matters of Poly Property Group
Co.,
subsidiaries, the “Group”) during the period covering the

Limited (the “Company”, and together with its

financial year ended 31st December, 2017 and up to the
date of this CG Report (“CG Period”).
devotes to the best practice on corporate governance, and
to comply to the extent practicable, with the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) contained in Appendix

The Company

14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the CG Period, the Company has complied
with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code, other
than code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4 and E.1.2. The reasons
for deviations are explained below:

Code Provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4 of the CG

Code — Nomination Committee

Under code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4 of the CG Code,
listed issuers should, among others, establish a nomination
committee with specific written terms of reference. The
Company has considered the merits of establishing a
nomination committee but is of the view that it is in the
best interests of the Company that the board of directors
of the Company (the “Board”) collectively reviews,
deliberates on and approves the structure, size and
composition of the Board and the appointment of any new
director. The Board is tasked with ensuring that it has a
balanced composition of skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the businesses of the Group and
that appropriate individuals with the relevant expertise and
leadership qualities are appointed to the Board to
complement the capabilities of the existing directors.
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Code Provisions E.1.2 of the CG Code —
Attendance of Chairman of the Board at the
AGM

The chairman of the board (the “Chairman”) should attend

annual general meetings. Due to other important
Xue Ming, the
Chairman, was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company ("AGM”) held on 25th May,

2017.

engagement at the relevant time, Mr.

The Company considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
SET OUT IN APPENDIX 10 TO THE
LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code"). Having made specific enquiry of all the directors
of the Company ("Directors”), all Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code and the
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions
adopted by the Company throughout the CG Period.

THE BOARD

Board Composition

The Board comprises five executive directors (“ED"), one
non-executive director (“NED"”) and three independent
("INED"). The three INEDs,
representing one-third of the Board, have constituted a

non-executive directors

proper balance of power maintaining full and effective
The
Company has received from each of the INEDs a written

control of both the Group and its management.

confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules and has considered that
all INEDs are
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

independent in accordance with the

Biographical particulars of the Directors are set out on
pages 85 to 89.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

In order to reinforce their respective independence,
accountability and responsibility, the role of the Chairman
is separated from that of the managing director of the
Company (the The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good

corporate governance practice and ensuring the

“Managing Director”).

effectiveness of the Board. With the support of the
management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring
that the Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on
issues arising at Board meetings.

The Managing Director focuses on managing the Company

and its subsidiaries, developing and implementing
objectives, policies and strategies approved and delegated
by the Board.
charge of the Group’s day-to-day management and

operations and is also responsible for developing strategic

In addition, the Managing Director is in

plans and formulating the organisational structure, control
systems and internal procedures and processes for the
Board'’s approval.

Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board collectively takes responsibility for all major
matters of the Company, including the approval and
monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies, internal
risk management systems,
information, appointment of Directors and other significant
The day-to-day
administration and operation of the

control and financial

financial and operational matters.
management,
Company are delegated to the Managing Director and the
management. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transaction entered into by the

officers.

Nomination of Directors

The Board shall be composed of members with mixed skills
and experience with appropriate weights necessary to
accomplish the Group’s business development, strategies,
operation, challenges and opportunities. Each member of
the Board shall possess, be recognised for and be able to
exhibit high and professional standard of a set of core
criteria of competence.
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The Company had adopted a nomination policy for the
criteria, procedures, and process regarding the
appointment and removal of Directors.

Under the nomination policy, the board of EDs has been
delegated the full power to the administration of the
nomination policy and the appointment and the
termination of directors, where the full Board remains to
have the full and overriding power and absolute right

thereover.

The Board adopted the board membership diversity policy
for maintaining the appropriate skills and experience
required by the Company’s business and a diversity of
perspectives on the Board. In considering the new
appointment of Directors, the Board will consider a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge, and industry and regional

experience.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of

Directors

The appointment of the directorship is subject to, as to
EDs,
every three financial years and, as to NED and INEDs,

retirement, rotation and re-election at least once
their specific term of office or their retirement by rotation
at AGM, at which they being eligible can offer themselves
for re-election.

Separate resolutions are proposed for the election of each
director. One-third of the Directors, or if the number is not
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-third,
must retire from office at each AGM and their re-election
is subject to a vote of the shareholders. Any Director
appointed during the year to fill a casual vacancy is
subject to re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Han Qingtao, Mr. Ye Liwen and Miss
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia shall retire by rotation and being
at the

eligible, offer themselves for re-election

forthcoming AGM.
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Directors’ Training and Continuous

Professional Development
All Directors, INEDs, should have good
understanding as to their collective responsibilities as

including

directors and the businesses and activities of the Group.
Each newly appointed Director would receive an induction
package covering the Group’s businesses and the statutory
and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed
company. The Group also provides briefings and other
training to develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge
and skills, and updates all the
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other

Directors on latest
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance
and to enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. During the CG Period, all existing
Directors have received
relating to corporate governance and regulations and have

provided their training records. The Company is of the

relevant trainings on topics

view that all Directors have complied with code provision
A.6.5 of the CG Code based on the above.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance
The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liabilities insurance in respect of legal action
arising from the business of the Group against the
Directors and officers.

Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and
operating performance of the Group and to discuss future
strategy. Four regular Board meetings were held in 2017.
At the Board meetings, the Board reviewed significant
matters including the Group’s annual and interim financial
statements, proposals for final and interim dividends,
annual report and interim report. At least 14 days’ notice
is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings and
all Directors are given the opportunity to include matters
for discussion in the agenda. The agenda and Board
papers for each meeting are sent to all Directors at least
three days in advance of every regular Board meeting. All
minutes of the Board meetings are kept by the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) and
are available to all Directors for inspection. In addition, the
Chairman had an annual interchange with all the non-
executive Directors (including the independent non-
executive ones) of the Company without the other
executive Directors present.
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The attendance record of each Director at the Board THAZEEFN _T—+FHFEFELEN
meetings and AGM in 2017 is set out below:

BRBEAENHFECHE :

Name of Director Board capacity Attendance AGM
Esns REZ=SZ 54 HE R RRBEKRE
Xue Ming ED, Chairman

= WITES IR 5/5 -
Han Qingtao ED, Managing Director

RE B WITES EFRAKE 5/5 -
Wang Xu ED

T8 HITES 5/5 -
Ye Liwen ED

E s HITES 5/5 -
Zhu Weirong ED

ZRER HITES 5/5 -
Ip Chun Chung, Robert NED

iR & FHITES 5/5 v
Choy Shu Kwan INED

k= BYERNTES 5/5 -
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia INED

RF5 %5 BYFRTES 5/5 v
Wong Ka Lun INED

BEXf® BYFERNTES 5/5 v
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) from the adoption date
and currently consists of one ED and three INEDs, being
Mr. Han Qingtao, Mr. Wong Ka Lun (Chairman), Mr. Choy
Shu Kwan and Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia.

The role and function of Remuneration Committee include:
J formulating remuneration policy;

. recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
policy for the Directors;

° review of, approval of and recommendation for (if any)
the remuneration package of each Director including
benefits in kind, pension right, performance bonus
payment and compensation payable;

o review and approval of the compensation payment to
any Director upon his/her cessation of directorship in
or employment with the Company; and

J engagement of external professional advisers to assist
and/or advise Remuneration Committee on its duties
when necessary.

The terms of reference of Remuneration Committee had
been compiled since the establishment of Remuneration
Committee and were revised in December 2015 and were
endorsed and adopted by the Board. It is available on the
Company's website.

The summary of the work performed by Remuneration
Committee for the financial period under review is as
follows:

J endorsement to the remuneration policy for the
Directors; and

J assessment of the performance of EDs, review and
approval of the remuneration package of each
Director including benefits in kind, pension right,
bonus payment and compensation payable.
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid to and/or entitled by each of the
Directors for the financial period under review is set out in
note 11 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

During the CG Period, Remuneration Committee held one
committee meeting. The composition of Remuneration
Committee and the respective attendance of the

committee members are presented as follows:

RFELEEARAT
—B e
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REBESHBERASEELNR AEEEE
BZME HRANFEREEVHHRERMEN -

REFERREPEARN FHEESRTT —
REEEEZ FHZBESZANNREZES
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Name of Members Board capacity Attendance
EEHA REZSEZ254H HE =R
Wong Ka Lun (Chairman) INED

BRMW(EE) BUYFATES 11
Choy Shu Kwan INED

559 BYFATES 11
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia INED

R BIUFPTES 1/1
Han Qingtao ED, Managing Director

5858 HITES BFRAKRE 11

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the "Audit
Committee”) was established on 19th March, 1999 and
currently consists of one NED and three INEDs, being Mr.
Ip Chun Chung, Robert, Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia
(Chairlady), Mr. Choy Shu Kwan and Mr. Wong Ka Lun.

Throughout the CG Period, the Company had maintained
an Audit Committee. The major functions of the Audit
Committee include serving as a focal point for
communication between Directors and external auditors,
reviewing the Company’s financial information as well as
overseeing the Company's financial reporting system and
internal control procedures
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee had been
compiled since the establishment of the Audit Committee
and revised by the Board on 21st January, 2009 and 18th
December,

2015 respectively. It is available on the

Company's website.

Acknowledgement of Responsibility for the
Financial Statements

The members of the Audit Committee acknowledged their
responsibilities for reviewing the financial statements of the
Group. In reviewing the accounts for the financial period
under review, the members have:

o based on a going concern basis;

o selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

o made judgements and estimates that were prudent,
fair and reasonable.

Review of Internal Control
During the financial the Audit

Committee had arranged to conduct a review over the

period under review,

effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group
including functions of financial, operation, compliance and
risk management. The review had been reported to the
Board.

External Auditor and Their Remuneration

The external audit provides an objective assessment of the
financial information presented by the management. BDO
Limited was engaged as the external auditor of the
Company. Their independence and audit process are
reviewed and monitored by the Audit Committee which
considered the scope of the audit work, audit fees, non-
audit services as well as their appointment and retention.

For the year ended 31st December, 2017, the fees paid or
payable by the Group to the auditor in respect of their
audit services amounted to approximately HK$8,750,000. In
addition, the Group has also paid HK$2,667,000 to its
network firm in respect of other services provided to
certain subsidiaries in the PRC. Other services mainly
consist of taxation services,

professional services.

advisory and other
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During the CG Period, the Audit Committee had held two REESAMESHB ERETESRITT =
physical meetings to (i) review and discuss the key audit EEI?,\ S ZERGERE2EE A()%Fﬁ&ﬂ
matters, audited full year financial statements and the ®WASEREIEN KB BEREZSIE K
unaudited interim financial results of the Group of the %ﬁi\iﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ%&ﬂim%@qﬂHﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
financial period under review before submission to the HBEXTEELABZLTIE: (\RAUZEINE
Board for adjustment and publication, (i) endorse the — TZBRNETTIFZERE < BUK + (i) & B A
policy on the engagement of external auditor for non audit T WS RANRF ZNEFEIEREAT o

services and (iii) review the internal audit reports and the

Company's statement an internal control.

The composition of the Audit Committee and the BEZZESHENRURZESZESTAZERE
respective attendance of the committee members are <IN

$

presented as follows:

Name of Members Board capacity Attendance
EENBE REEZSZH50G HE =
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia (Chairladly) INED

REZ(LE) BYFATES 2/2
Ip Chun Chung, Robert NED

EiRA FBITES 2/2
Choy Shu Kwan INED

559 BYFATES 2/2
Wong Ka Lun INED

EENC BIYFPTES 2/2
RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE EREEEES

The risk management committee of the Company (the ZAAREAKBEEZES((AREEZES])
“Risk Management Committee”) was established in @ RZ-Z—FE+ A EFfEWMEZHITE
December 2015 and currently consists of two EDs being ZE . —ZIRTEELN =-"ELBILIENTEEHA
Mr. Han Qingtao and Mr. Ye Liwen, one NED being Mr. Ip K BEEEgEEAE ERELE ERDE
Chun Chung, Robert and three INEDs being Mr. Choy Shu 4 - #8455 4 (X E)  2F XN ERERG
Kwan (Chairman), Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia and Mr. S o

Wong Ka Lun.
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Throughout the CG Period, the Company had maintained
a Risk Management Committee. The major role and
function of the Risk Management Committee are as
follows:

o monitor and review the process of the risk
management and advise to the Board about the
effectiveness of and improvements to be made to the
existing risk management system;

o provide guidelines to the management on risk
management and set up procedures to unveil, assess
and manage material risk factors; and ensure
management discharges its responsibility to
implement an effective risk management system;

o review the internal control policies in respect of the
control procedures of risks, including the risk
management and the communication and co-
operation with operating units;

o analyse the result of the material investigations on the
risks identified and management’'s feedback on the
investigation; and report to the Board with the
findings of deficiencies of the existing risk controls
and make recommendations on improvements;

o ensure the risk management is embedded in the
structure and culture of the management team within
the Group;

o review and report to the Board the effectiveness of

the risk management system;

o review with the Group’s management, external auditor
and internal auditor, the adequacy of the Group's
policies and procedures regarding internal controls
(including financial, operational and compliance
controls), risk management system and any statement
by the directors to be included in the annual
accounts prior to endorsement by the Board;
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° review and monitor the scope, effectiveness and
audit function,
ordination between the internal and external auditor

results of internal ensure co-

and ensure that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing

within the Group; and

o discuss with management the scope and quality of the
risk management and internal control systems and
ensure that management has discharges its duty to
have effective systems including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget.

The terms of reference of the Risk Management

Committee has been compiled since the establishment of

Risk Management Committee and has been set out on the

Company's website.

During the CG Period, the Risk Management Committee
had held two physical meetings for discussing matters in
relation to the risk management of the Group.

The report of work performed by the Risk Management
Committee for the financial period under review is set out
in the section headed “Risk Management Committee

Report” of this CG Report.
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PEEBRE

The composition of the Risk Management Committee and
the respective attendance of the committee members are
presented as follows:

REEELZE S Z2HEKNUARL
HEERMT

ZBg€ZEBE%AXZ

Name of Members Board capacity Attendance
ZEHA REBEZ254H R
Choy Shu Kwan (Chairman) INED

258 (EE) BUFATES 2/2
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia INED

RFEZF BUFATES 2/2
Wong Ka Lun INED

N BUFATES 2/2
Ip Chun Chung, Robert NED

EiRD FRTES 2/2
Han Qingtao ED, Managing Director

Yy WITES EFAKHE 2/2
Ye Liwen ED

ERHE WITE=R 2/2

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping detailed
minutes of each meeting of the Board and the committees
including any dissenting views expressed by the Directors,
which should be available to all Directors for inspection.
She is also responsible for ensuring that the Board
procedures comply with all applicable laws, rules and
regulations and advising the Board on corporate
governance matters. All agenda, relevant materials and
documents are required to be sent out at least three days
prior to the intended dates of the Board meetings or
meetings of the Board committees. It is the responsibility
of the Company Secretary to send the draft minutes of the
meetings of the Board or the Board committees to all
Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the
aforesaid meetings. Final versions of minutes of meetings
of the Board and the committees are also required to be
sent to all Directors for record. All Directors have access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to

ensure that the Board procedures and all applicable laws
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are followed. Moreover, the Company Secretary is
responsible for keeping all Directors updated on the
Listing Rules, regulatory requirements, as well as internal

codes of conduct of the Company.

During the CG Period, the Company Secretary had
confirmed that she had taken relevant professional training
in accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
shareholders of the Company.

Procedures for Convening a General
Meeting

Shareholder(s) holding not less than 5% of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders have a right to vote at
general meetings can submit a written requisition to
convene a general meeting in accordance with Section 566
of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).

The written requisition must:

(i) state the general nature of the business to be dealt
with at the meeting;

(i)  contain the signatures of all the requisitionists (which
may be contained in one document or in several
documents in like form); and

(iii) be deposited at the Company’s registered office
(Room 2503, Admiralty Centre, Tower 1, 18 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong) for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

If Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
general meeting for a day not more than 28 days after the
date on which the notice convening the general meeting is
given, the requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a general meeting, but any
general meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of 3 months from the said date.
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Shareholders’ Enquiries
Shareholders may at any time send their enquires to the
Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary
through the following methods:

(i)  in writing to the Company’s registered office at Room
2503, Admiralty Centre, Tower |, 18 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong; or

(i)~ fill in the enquiry form set out in the “Contact Us”
section of the Company’s website.

Proposing Directors for Election at General
Meetings

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for
election as a Director are laid down in Article 120 of the
Company's Articles of Association:

No person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for
election as a Director at any general meeting, unless there
shall have been lodged at the registered office of the
Company a notice signed by a shareholder (other than the
person to be proposed) entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his/her intention
to propose such person for election and also a notice
signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to
be elected. The period for lodgement of such notices shall
be no less than seven days and shall commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and no later
than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

Accordingly, if a shareholder wishes to nominate a person
to stand for election as a Director of the Company at the
general meeting, the following documents must be validly
served on the Company Secretary at the registered office
of the Company:

(i) his/her notice of intention to propose a resolution at
the general meeting; and
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(i)  a notice executed by the nominated candidate of the
candidate’s willingness to be appointed together
with:

(a) that candidate’s information as required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules and such other information; and

(b) the candidate's written consent to the

publication of his/her personal data.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy and other Corporate
Governance Principles of the Company could be reviewed
at Company’s website.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Board evaluates the effectiveness of the internal
control system based on the reviews made by the Audit

Committee, the executive management and the external

auditor.

For the financial period under review, the Audit
Committee had performed the following duties:

o reviewed and commented on the audited full year

financial statements and the unaudited interim
financial results of the Group of the financial period
under review before submission to the Board for

adoption and publication;

o endorsed the policy on the engagement of external
auditor for non-audit services;

o met with the auditor to discuss the financial matters
of the Group that arose during the course of the
audit
recommendations and representations of the auditor;

process, and reviewed the findings,

o reviewed and approved the remuneration and the
terms of engagement of the auditor for both audit
services and non-audit services for the financial
period under review; and

o reviewed the internal audit reports and the Company’s
statement on internal control.
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After due and careful consideration of the reports from the
management of the Group and the auditor, the Audit
Committee suspected

was of the view that no

irregularities, internal control deficiencies, or breach of
regulations had been found. The Company has taken
control

necessary measures to strengthen its internal

system so as to ensure that it is adequate and effective.

During the year, the Board continued to review the
internal control system of the Company on a regular basis,
including whether the resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the accounting and financial
reporting functions were adequate. Based on the
information available to the Board and its own
observation, the Board was of the view that there were
sufficient resources and staff qualification for the
accounting and financial reporting functions of the

Company.

The Board reviewed the self-assessment report on the
internal control of the Company and was of the view that
the
fundamental and sound, and there was no material default

internal control system of the Company was

as to its completeness, compliance and effectiveness.

Based on the reviews and discussions performed by the
Audit Committee, the Audit Committee had:

o recommended to the Board for the approval of the
audited financial statements of the financial period
under with the
Auditor’'s Report attached thereto,
announcement of the annual results; and

review together Independent

before the

o recommended to the Board for the approval of the
unaudited financial statements of the financial period
under review before the announcement of the interim
results.
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
REPORT

The Group has been dedicated to identifying, monitoring
and managing risks related to its business activities.
The internal control system of the Group is designed
to provide reasonable assurance against material
misstatements or losses.

During the financial period under review, the Risk
Management Committee had performed the following
duties:

o monitored and reviewed the process of the risk
management and advised to the Board about the
effectiveness of and improvements to be made to the
existing risk management system;

J provided guidelines to the management on risk
management and set up procedures to unveil, assess
and manage material risk factors; and ensured
management discharged its responsibility to
implement an effective risk management system;

o reviewed the internal control policies in respect of the
control procedures of risks, including the risk
management and the communication and co-
operation with operating units;

o analysed the result of the material investigations on
the risks identified and management’s feedback on
the investigation; and reported to the Board with the
findings of deficiencies of the existing risk controls
and made recommendations on improvements;

o ensured the risk management was embedded in the
structure and culture of the management team within
the Group;

o reviewed and reported to the Board the effectiveness

of the risk management system;
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reviewed with the Group’s management, external
auditor and internal auditor, the adequacy of the
Group's policies and procedures regarding internal
controls (including financial, operational and
compliance controls), risk management system and
any statement by the Directors to be included in the

annual accounts prior to endorsement by the Board,;

. reviewed and monitored the scope, effectiveness and

results of internal audit function, ensured co-
ordination between the internal and external auditor
and ensure that the internal audit function was
adequately resourced and had appropriate standing

within the Group; and

o discussed with management the scope and quality of
the risk management and internal control systems
and ensured that management has discharged its
duty to have effective systems
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the accounting and financial reporting

including the

function, and their training programmes and budget.

The Group has established and implemented a sound risk
management system within the Group. The system is
designed to manage and reduce rather than eliminate the
risks arising from failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Risk
Management Committee has discussed the effectiveness of
the risk management system established by the Group,
evaluated the identified risks and analysed corresponding
measures in its meetings.

The Risk Management Committee collects information
through the reporting procedures of the risk management
system, and including the discussion of such risks and
other risks that the management has not identified into the
agenda of its meetings. The Risk Management Committee
will supervise the follow-ups agreed upon in accordance
with the recommendations.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, COMPANY SECRETARY AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BF RRMERSREEARBN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

XUE Ming, aged 56, holds a master’'s degree in Economics
from Renmin University of China, a doctorate degree in
Economics and Management from Beijing Forestry
University and is a senior economist. Mr. Xue has been
appointed as an executive Director of the Company since
April 2006, was the Managing Director of the Company
during the period from July 2009 to October 2014, and
has been the Chairman of the Board of the Company since
April 2010. As the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Xue is
primarily responsible for overall

management, major

decision-making, strategic planning and business
development of the Group. Mr. Xue is also a deputy
general manager of China Poly Group Corporation Limited
("China Poly Group”), the chairman of Poly (Hong Kong)
Holdings Limited (“Poly Holdings”) and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. He has over 37 years’

experience in management.

HAN Qingtao, aged 57, holds an Executive Master Degree
of Business Administration from Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law. Mr. Han was the managing director of
Poly Southern Group Co., Ltd. (“Poly Southern”) during the
period from December 2005 to September 2007, an
executive Director of the Company during the period from
October 2007 to August 2011, and a senior officer of the
Real Estate Department of China Poly Group during the
period from August 2011 to October 2014. He has been
appointed as the Managing Director of the Company since
October 2014 and
operation and management of the Group. He is also the
managing director of Poly Holdings and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group with over 20 years’

is primarily responsible for the

experience in finance and management.

WANG Xu, aged 58, has been an executive Director of the
Company since October 2007. Mr. Wang had been the
chairman of Poly Southern during the period from March
2003 to September 2007, the Managing Director of the
Company during the period from October 2007 to July
2009 and is also the chief economist of China Poly Group,
the deputy chairman of Poly Holdings and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group with over 25 years of
extensive experience in investment and management.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, COMPANY SECRETARY AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

B ReWERSREEAEBN

YE Liwen, aged 47, holds a bachelor degree from Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics and a master degree
in Business Administration from Peking University. Mr. Ye
was a senior officer with China Poly Group for the period
from 1994 to 2001 and joined the Company in 2001 as a
manager of investments department. He has been
appointed as an executive Director of the Company since
November 2006, and currently also acts as the Chief
Financial Controller of Poly Holdings, and a deputy general
manager of the Company, and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Ye has over 20 years of

experience in management.

ZHU Weirong, aged 55, holds a master's degree in

International Relations from the Department of
International Politics at Peking University. Mr. Zhu worked
for China Poly Group from 1994 to 2001, joined Poly
Holdings and the Company in 2001. He has been
appointed as an executive Director of the Company since
August 2016 and currently also acts as a deputy general
manager of Poly Holdings and the Company, and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Zhu has

over 20 years of experience in management.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

IP Chun Chung, Robert, aged 61, has joined the Company
as an independent non-executive Director since January
2001 and has been redesignated to the position as a non-
executive Director since July 2004 and currently is also a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Risk
Management Committee. Mr. Ip has been a practising
solicitor in Hong Kong since 1985 with over 30 years of
extensive experience in legal aspects and more than 17
related matters and
corporate takeover, merger and acquisition areas. He is

years of experience in listing

also an independent non-executive director of Changhong
Jiahua Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8016).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

CHOY Shu Kwan, aged 63, holds a master degree in
Business Administration and has over 20 years’' extensive
experience in financial business and investment
management. Mr. Choy worked for the CITIC Group Hong
Kong for over 20 years. Before his resignation in 2007, he
Markets

Limited. Mr. Choy has joined the Company since July 2004

was the managing director of CITIC Capital

as an independent non-executive Director and currently is
the chairman of Risk Management Committee, a member
of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Mr.
executive director of Skyfame Realty (Holdings) Limited
(Stock code: 59).

Committee. Choy is also an independent non-

LEUNG Sau Fan, Sylvia, aged 54, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Miss Leung holds a
bachelor's degree in Accountancy from City University of
Hong Kong and had studied as an external student and
passed the accredited examinations and obtained a
bachelor of laws degree from the University of London.
Miss Leung has joined the Company since August 2010 as
an independent non-executive Director and is currently the
chairlady of Audit Committee and a member of each of
the Remuneration Committee and the Risk Management
Committee. Miss Leung is currently an independent non-
executive director of both China Aerospace International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 31)
Construction Holdings Limited (stock code: 6816), shares
of both are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

and Prosper

Limited, and a director and responsible officer of Celestial
Capital Limited, a company licensed to conduct, among
others, type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated
activity under the Securities and Futures Ordinance. She
has over 20 years of experience in company secretarial and
corporate finance advisory.
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B ReWERSREEAEBN

WONG Ka Lun, aged 68, holds a bachelor degree in Social
Sciences from The University of Hong Kong majoring in
Economics and Psychology. Mr. Wong had held various
executive and management positions with Cathy Pacific
Airways, John Swire & Sons (China) Limited and Swire
Travel Limited. He has joined the Company since
November 2012 as an independent non-executive Director
and currently is the chairman of Remuneration Committee,
a member of each of the Audit Committee and the Risk
Management Committee. Mr. Wong is also an executive
board member of Hong Kong Air Cadet Corps, a director
of the board of The Hong Kong International Film Festival
Society Limited and a council member of The Hong Kong
Chinese Orchestra.

COMPANY SECRETARY AND
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

POON Man Man, aged 48, holds a bachelor degree in
Business Administration from Simon Fraser University in
Canada majoring in Finance and Marketing. She is a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. Miss Poon has joined the Group since
March 2013 as the Company Secretary and authorized
representative, and currently also acts as the head of
executive Directors’ office of the Group.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ZHAO Shenhai, aged 60, holds an EMBA from Zhongnan
University of Economics and Law and is a senior political
engineer. Mr. Zhao joined China Poly Group in October
1992 and joined the Group in September 2007. He
currently acts as a deputy general manager of the Group
assisting the general manager in managing the human
resources department in Mainland China and is
responsible for Suzhou subsidiaries.

WU Guangming, aged 56, holds a PhD in Business
Administration from China Academic Affairs Division of
Liberty University, U.S.A. and is a senior economist. Dr. Wu
joined China Poly Group in January 2005 and joined the
Group in September 2007. He currently acts as a deputy
general manager of the Group assisting the general
manager in managing the safety control and supervision
department, Guangxi subsidiaries, Guizhou subsidiaries,
Yunnan subsidiaries and some property management
companies.
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CHAN Hiu Lai, aged 55, holds a bachelor degree in
Economics Management from Navy Engineering College.
Ms. Chan joined China Poly Group in February 2002 and
joined the Group in November 2012. She currently acts as
a deputy general manager of the Group, assisting the
general manager in managing the administration
department and legal department in Mainland China,
responsible for union work, media work and certain
business management companies.

ZHAO Guoang, aged 48, holds an EMBA from Tongji
University and is a senior economist as well as qualified
property valuer. Mr. Zhao joined China Poly Group in 1995
and joined the Group in January 2006. He currently acts as
a deputy general manager of the Group assisting the
general manager in managing the cost contract
department, Shanghai subsidiaries, Zhejiang subsidiaries
and the construction company.

CHOI Wai Sang, Kenny, aged 46, holds a bachelor degree
in Computer Science from the University of Hong Kong. He
is a Chartered Financial Analyst. Mr. Choi joined the
Group in August 2001 and currently is a deputy general
manager of the Group and the managing director of Poly
Property (Hong Kong) Co., Limited.

WAN Yuqing, aged 42, holds an EMBA degree from
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business and an EMBA
degree from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law.
Mr. Wan joined China Poly Group in 1997 and joined the
Group in September 2007. He currently acts as a deputy
general manager of the Group assisting the general
manager in managing the investment management
department, brand marketing department and product
management department. He also serves as the chairman
of Guangdong Poly Property Co., Limited* and Hubei Poly
Investment Co., Limited*.

PUN Chi Ping, aged 51, holds a master’'s degree in finance
management from the City University of Hong Kong. He is
a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Pun joined Poly Holdings in May 1994
and joined the Group in April 2000. He is an assistant to
the general manager and the financial controller of the
Group and is in charge of the financial affairs of the
Group.

* Certain of the subsidiaries are Chinese entities and their names have
been translated into English for reference only.

The list of directors of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company during the financial year and up to the date of this
report is available on the Company’'s website at
www.polyhongkong.com under the “Corporate Governance”
section.
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The board of Directors present its annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of Poly Property
Group Co., Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year

ended 31st December, 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 50
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st
December, 2017 are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss on page 115 of this annual report.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2016: Nil).
The Directors recommend payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.135 per share for the year ended 31st December,
2017 (2016: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital
in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

of the Company are set out

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

As at 31st December, 2017, the investment properties of
the Group were revalued by an independent firm of
professional surveyor and property valuer on an open
market value basis at HK$10,904,879,000.

Details of these and other movements during the year in
the investment properties of the Group are set out in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 17
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company's reserve available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31st December, 2017 represented the
accumulated profits of HK$2,319,789,000 (2016:

HK$2,705,882,000).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the
Group for the preceding five financial years is set out on
page 314.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The business overview for the year ended 31st December,
2017 of the Group in the “Chairman’s
Statement” on page 4 and “Management Discussion and

is set out

Analysis” on page 22 of this annual report.

POTENTIAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES OF THE GROUP

The financial position, operating results, business and
prospects of the Group may be affected by various risks
and uncertainties. Major risks and uncertainties identified
by the Group are set out below. However, there may be
other material risks or uncertainties which are not known
to the Group or which may not be material now but could

turn out to be material in the future.
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BUSINESS RISK

A majority of the operational assets of the Group are
in the PRC,
substantial portion of its turnover will continue to be

located and the Group expects that a
generated from the operations in the PRC. Operating
results and prospects are subject, to a significant extent,
to economic, political and legal development in the PRC.
The PRC economy differs from the economies of most
developed countries in many respects including the level of
government involvement, the level of development, growth
rate and government control of foreign exchange. The
Group are unable to predict whether changes on the
political,
regulations and policies of the PRC will have any material

economic and social conditions, and laws,
adverse effect on the current or future business, operating

results or financial position of the Group.

FINANCIAL RISK

The financial risk management of the Group is set out in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Xue Ming (Chairman)

Han Qingtao (Managing Director)
Wang Xu

Ye Liwen

Zhu Weirong

Non-executive Director:
Ip Chun Chung, Robert

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Choy Shu Kwan

Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia

Wong Ka Lun
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In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Han Qingtao, Mr. Ye Liwen and Miss
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia will retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The term of office of Mr. Ip Chun Chung, Robert, the non-
executive director, and Mr. Choy Shu Kwan, the
independent non-executive directors, is three years from
6th October, 2017, subject to retirement by rotation as
required by the Company’s Articles of Association.

The term of office of Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia, the
independent non-executive director, is three years from
11th August, 2016, subject to retirement by rotation as
required by the Company’s Articles of Association.

The term of office of Mr. Wong Ka Lun, the independent
non-executive director, is three years from 23rd
November, 2015, subject to retirement by rotation as

required by the Company’s Articles of Association.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, than statutory
compensation.

other

The Company has received an annual written confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive directors
concerning their independence and considered that the
independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st December, 2017, the interests and short
positions of the directors and their associates in the shares
of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
("“SFO"), or

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Ordinance as otherwise notified to the

Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies were as follows:
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Long position

Ordinary shares of the Company

Mr. Xue Ming is holding 1,020,000 shares (0.03%) of the
Company.

Mr. Choy Shu Kwan is holding 300,000 shares (0.01%) of
the Company.

Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia is holding 33,000 shares (0%) of
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations as at 31st December,
2017.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes are set
out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the option holdings set out in note 38, at no
time during the year was the Company or any of its
holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries, a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December,
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than the
interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors,

2017, the register of substantial

the following shareholders had notified the Company of

relevant interests in the issued shares of the Company:
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Ordinary shares of the Company

Number of shares

B 5 & E

Beneficial

RIBZEEBEER AR
ZE—LFFR

all
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Approximate

percentage
Held by of the issued

controlled Total number share capital of

Name of shareholder owner corporation(s) of shares the Company

B R

=1 BESERA

Long position

RN

22 BERITREZ
DARE R4 48 2 BREDH

i)

Congratulations Company Ltd. 1,037,975,080 — 1,037,975,080 28.35%

Source Holdings Limited 228,398,760 100,086,800 328,485,560 8.97%

(Note 1)(K171)

Ting Shing Holdings Limited — 1,366,460,640 1,366,460,640 37.32%
(Note 2) (f1522)

Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited 112,410,476 1,366,460,640 1,478,871,116 40.39%

RIA(BB)ERBRAF (Note 3) (/f7t3)

Poly Southern Group Co., Ltd. 253,788,246 — 253,788,246 6.93%

®MmETEEERA A

China Poly Group Corporation Limited — 1,732,659,362 1,732,659,362 47.32%

FEFEFNEEER QA (Note 4) ([ 7t4)

Poly Real Estate Group Co., Ltd — 1,478,871,116 1,478,871,116 40.39%

RAHUEBE(RERAARAA (Note 5 (#/i%5)

Notes: M it -

1. Source Holdings Limited is deemed by the SFO to be interested in 1. BB E S LB E G - B35 Source Holdings Limited
328,485,560 shares of the Company as a result of its direct holding HIEFH228,398, 760 IR RBEBHEEWE R A
of 228,398,760 shares and indirect holding of 100,086,800 shares Musical Insight Holdings Limited }2Wincall Holding
through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Musical Insight Holdings Limited % Bl ¥ & 2 44,658,8004% % 1 }% 55,428,000/
Limited and Wincall Holding Limited, of 44,658,800 shares and fi% 153 T FE % 555 100,086,8000% f& {5 + F L4 48 ARF A
55,428,000 shares, respectively. 328,485,5600% % 17 2 # % ©

2. Ting Shing Holdings Limited is deemed by the SFO to be interested 2. RIEESRBEED - B R Ting Shing Holdings

in 1,366,460,640 shares of the Company as a result of its indirect
holding of 1,366,460,640 shares through its subsidiaries, Source
Holdings Limited and Congratulations Company Ltd., of 328,485,560
shares and 1,037,975,080 shares, respectively.

Limitedi7 i3 H [} & /2 &]Source Holdings Limited }&
Congratulations Company Ltd.% 5l & A& 2
328,485,5600% % 19 %2.1,037,975,0808% A% {7 if i %
51,366,460,6400% fix 17 - H % & A H R RQ A
1,366,460,6400% 5 17 2 #E 25 ©
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3. Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited is deemed by the SFO to be
interested in 1,478,871,116 shares of the Company as a result of its
direct holding of 112,410,476 shares and indirect holding of
1,366,460,640 shares through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Ting Shing
Holdings Limited.

4. China Poly Group Corporation Limited owns 50% and 100% of the
issued share capital of Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited and Poly
Southern Group Co., Ltd. respectively, and is accordingly deemed by
the SFO to be interested in the shares directly and indirectly owned
by Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited and Poly Southern Group Co.,
Ltd..

5. Poly Real Estate Group Co., Ltd owns 50% of the issued share capital
of Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited and is accordingly deemed by
the SFO to be interested in the shares directly and indirectly owned
by Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in
the issued shares or underlying shares of the Company as
at 31st December, 2017.

PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS OF
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Disclosures pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the

Listing Rules

On 16th May, 2013, the Company (as the issuer) and China
Poly Group Corporation Limited (“China Poly Group”)
entered into a keepwell deed in relation to the
US$500,000,000 4.75% notes due 2018 issued by the
Company.

On 5th November, 2014, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as borrower, and the Company, as guarantor,
entered into a facility agreement with certain banks for a
total term loan facility of HK$5,000,000,000. The final
maturity date of the facility will be the earlier of (a) the
date falling 48 months after the date of the facility
agreement and (b) the date falling 6 months after a
certificate of compliance is issued by the Director of Lands
in respect of the development of New Kowloon Inland Lot
No. 6527, Kai Tak Area 11 Site 3, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
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On 2nd September, 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as borrower, and the Company, as
guarantor, entered into a facility agreement with certain
banks for a total term loan facility of HK$1,900,000,000.
The final maturity date of the facility will be the earlier of
(a) the date falling 48 months after the date of the facility
agreement and (b) the date falling 9 months after a
certificate of compliance is issued by the Director of
Buildings and Lands in respect of the development of Tuen
Mun Town Lot No. 542, Castle Peak Road, Castle Peak
Bay, Area 48, Tuen Mun, New Territories, Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the aforesaid keepwell deed and facility
agreements, the Company undertakes with the banks that,
if, among other things, China Poly Group (a) ceases to be
the single largest shareholder of the Company or ceases to
least 40%
ownership of the issued shares of the Company; (b) ceases

maintain at direct or indirect beneficial
to maintain management control of the Company; or (c)
ceases to be under the control and supervision of the
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council of the People’s Republic
of China, all loans together with accrued interest may

become immediately due and payable.

On 23rd May, 2017, the Company (as the borrower)
entered into a facility agreement with China CITIC Bank
International Limited as facility agent (the “Facility Agent”)
and certain other banks for a 36-month term loan facility
of HK$3,900,000,000.

Pursuant to the above facility agreement, the Company
undertakes with the banks that, if, among other things,
China Poly Group (a) ceases to be the single largest
shareholder of the Company or ceases to hold, directly or
indirectly through its controlled corporations (as defined
under Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance), at
least 40% of the issued share capital of the Company; (b)
ceases to maintain management control of the Company;
or (c) ceases to be under the control and supervision of
the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council of the People’s Republic
of China, the Facility Agent may declare that all or part of
the loan together with interest and any other amounts
accrued thereunder be immediately due and payable.
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On 7th February, 2018, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as borrower, entered into a facility agreement
with Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau)
Limited as facility agent and security agent (the “Agent”)
for a 24-month term loan facility of HK$4,000,000,000.

Pursuant to the above facility agreement, if, among other
things, China Poly Group ceases to be the single largest
shareholder of the Company or no longer maintains
(directly or indirectly) beneficially not less than 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company, the Agent may
declare that all or part of the loan together with accrued
interest and all other amounts accrued thereunder be
immediately due and payable.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

We set out below the connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions of the Group during the
year pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”):

(1) The Construction Agreement

The Company entered of the
construction agreement with Poly Southern Group
Co., Ltd. (“Poly Southern”) on 12th November, 2014
(the “Construction Agreement”) for provision of

construction work service and other services ancillary

into a renewal

to the provision of construction work service by Poly
Southern and its subsidiaries. Pursuant to the renewal
of the Construction Agreement, both parties agreed
to renew the Construction Agreement for a period of
three years from 1st January, 2015 to 31st
December, 2017. The proposed annual cap for the
construction fee payable under the Construction
Agreement for each of the three years of 2015, 2016
and 2017 is RMB2,100 million, respectively.

The pricing policy of the construction service fee is
determined at the state-prescribed prices or where
there is no state-prescribed prices, on prices no less
favourable than those offered by Poly Southern to
independent third parties or those charged by other
independent third parties to the Group.
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Poly Southern is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Poly Group Corporation (“China Poly Group”), a
controlling shareholder of the Company, and
accordingly Poly Southern is a connected person of
the of the

Construction Agreement and the transactions

the Company. As such, renewal
contemplated thereunder therefore constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company

under Rule 14A.31 of the Listing Rules.

The renewal of the Construction Agreement and the
proposed annual caps for each of the three years
ending 31st December,
independent shareholders of the Company on 18th
December, 2014.

2017 were approved by

During the year under review, the total construction
service fees paid or payable to Poly Southern under
the Construction Agreement are RMB163,278,000
(approximately HK$187,676,000) which did not exceed
the cap of RMB2,100 million.

New Construction Agreement

In view that the existing Construction Agreement
entered into between the Company and Poly
the

Company entered into a renewal of the Construction

Southern expired on 31st December 2017,

Agreement with Poly Southern on 21st December,
2017 for a period of three years from 1st January,
2018 to 31st December, 2020 for provision of
construction work service and other services ancillary
to the provision of the construction work service by
(the
Construction Agreement”). The proposed annual cap

Poly Southern and its subsidiaries “New
for the construction fee payable under the New
Construction Agreement for each of the three years
of 2018, 2019 and 2020 is RMB500 million,

respectively.
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The fees payable by the Group to Poly Southern will
either be at state-prescribed price or at rates no less
favourable than those offered by independent third
parties based on the tender documents submitted
during the tender process. The bidders are required
to submit their tender bids to the Group in
accordance with the PRC Tendering and Bidding Law.
An assessment committee comprising no less than
two-thirds of independent industry experts randomly
chosen from respective local government pools of
experts will be formed to review the bids (which shall
be no less than three) and to select the successful
bidder. Selection criteria include but are not limited
to the industry experience of the bidders, quality and
management of the proposed work, fee quote as well
as safety measures employed.

Poly Southern is wholly-owned by China Poly Group
and is a Shareholder holding approximately 6.93% of
the issued share capital of the Company. Poly
Southern is an associate of a connected person of
the Company and the renewal of the Construction
Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder therefore constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Rule 14A.31 of
the Listing Rules.

As all applicable percentage ratios under Rule 14.07
of the Listing Rules of the proposed annual caps for
the construction fee payable under the New
Construction Agreement for each of the three years
ending 31 December 2020 exceed 0.1% but are less
than 5% for the Company, the renewal of the
Construction Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder are subject to reporting,
annual review and announcement requirements but
are exempt from the independent shareholder’s
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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(3)

Financial Framework Agreement

On 20th December, 2016, the Company and Poly
Finance entered into the Financial Framework
Agreement (the “Financial Framework Agreement”)
for a term of three years from 1st January, 2017 to
31st December, 2019. Pursuant to the Financial
Framework Agreement, the Group will utilize financial
services including deposit services, unsecured loan
financing services, unsecured guarantee services and

settlement services offered by Poly Finance.

According to the terms and conditions of the
Financial Framework Agreement, the Group will place
deposits with Poly Finance from time to time, and
the interest rates should be higher than the interest
rates offered by independent third parties for the
similar services obtained in the PRC. The Group and
Poly Finance will monitor the deposit of the Group’s
member entities from time to time.

The proposed annual cap of the deposit services (i.e.
maximum daily deposit balance) under the Financial
Framework Agreement is RMB410,000,000 for each of
the three years ending 31st December, 2019.

Poly Finance is owned as to 82.83% by China Poly
Group, the controlling shareholder of the Company,
and its associates. Therefore, Poly Finance is an
associate of a connected person of the Company.
The Financial Framework Agreement and the deposit
contemplated thereunder
constitute a continuing connected transaction of the

services therefore

Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As all the applicable percentage ratios of the annual
cap for the deposit services under the Financial
Framework Agreement are less than 5%, the Financial
Framework Agreement and the deposit services
contemplated thereunder are subject to reporting
and announcement requirements but are exempt
from the independent shareholder’s approval

requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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During the year under review, deposits placed with
Poly Finance did not exceed the maximum daily
balance of RMB410 million. As at 31st December,
2017, deposits of RMB405,554,000 (approximately
HK$482,802,000) were placed with Poly Finance.

ANNUAL REVIEW AND CONFIRMATION
REGARDING CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS IN
PURSUANCE OF RULE 14A.55 AND
14A.56 OF THE LISTING RULES

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
continuing connected transactions (the “Transactions”) set
out above and confirmed:

1. the Transactions were entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group;

2. the Transactions were conducted on normal
commercial terms or better; and
3. the Transactions were entered into in accordance with

the relevant agreements governing them on terms

that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of

the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
The auditor of the Company had reviewed the
Transactions and provided an unqualified letter to the
Board in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules
and confirmed, inter alia, that the Transactions have been
entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the Transactions and the Transactions have not
exceeded their respective annual caps as disclosed in the
relevant announcements and circulars.

OTHERS

A summary of significant related party transactions during
the year are disclosed in note 47 to the consolidated
financial statements. Transactions as disclosed in note 47(a)
“Transactions and balances with China Poly Group” to the
consolidated financial statements also constitute
connected/continuing connected transactions as defined in

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules (where applicable) with respect to the
connected transactions and continuing connected

transactions entered into by the Group during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the financial year and as at the date of this report,
a qualifying indemnity provision made by the Company for
the benefit of the Directors is in force as required by
section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the laws of Hong Kong).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Director nor any entity connected with a Director is or
was materially interested, either directly or indirectly, in
any transaction, arrangement or contract, which is of
significance to the business of the Group and to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, its parent company
and the subsidiaries of its parent company was a party,
subsisting at any time during, or at the end of, the year
ended 31st December, 2017.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, both the aggregate sales attributable to
the Group's five largest customers and the aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
were less than 30% of the Group’s sales and purchases,
respectively.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
set up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of
their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company's
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.
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The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of
the scheme is set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31st December, 2017.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31st December, 2017 have been audited by
BDO Limited (“BDO"). The term of office of BDO will
expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

A resolution will be submitted at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO as

auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

XUE Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21st March, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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BDO

EEE ¢ +852 2218 8288
{85 : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
BAETHAEPIE
k=258

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO.,
LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Poly Property Group Co., Limited and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 115 to 314,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31st December, 2017, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
2017,
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated

the Group as at 31st December, and of its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for

Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other

Professional

ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and, in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

(i) Revenue recognition from sales of
properties
The Group recognised revenue arising from sales of
properties of HK$29,862,706,000 for the year ended
31st December, 2017.

Revenue is one of the key performance indicators of
the Group which gives rise to an inherent risk that
revenue could be recorded in the incorrect period or
subject to manipulation.

Sales of properties are recognised as revenue at the
point in time when substantial risks and rewards of
ownership of the property are passed to the buyer.
Determination of this point in time is dependent on
the contractual arrangements for a sale, the laws in
the
management judgement.

relevant jurisdiction and may require
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Refer
statements and the accounting policies on pages 182
to 183.

to note 8 to the consolidated financial

Our response:

involved
the
specifically included:

Our procedures
transactions for

sampling
sales of properties

revenue
and

o obtaining evidence regarding the transfer of
substantial risks and rewards of ownership
(including, completion

certificates, occupation permits and acceptance

where relevant,

letters);
o reading the

signed sales and purchase

agreements to identify contractual
arrangements;
o reconciling the amounts from the ledger and

agreeing the corresponding contracted terms to
the signed sales and purchase agreements; and
o agreeing the deposits, final
mortgage receipts to bank statements.

payments or

Valuation of investment properties
Management has estimated the fair value of the
Group’'s investment properties to be
HK$10,904,879,000 at 31st December, 2017, with a
revaluation gain for the year ended 31st December,
2017 recorded in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss of HK$66,329,000.

Estimations of fair value are dependent on certain
key assumptions and unobservable inputs that require
significant management judgement, including
capitalisation rates and market transaction prices for
comparable properties.

Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in fair value of
and the

corresponding adjustments to the gain or

the Group’s investment properties
loss

recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
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(iii)

loss. As a result, the financial performance can be
affected by the
unobservable inputs.

greatly assumptions and

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies on pages 158
to 159.

Our response:

Our
valuation of investment properties included:

procedures in relation to management’s

o evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of independent external valuers;

J obtaining external valuation reports and meeting
with external valuers to understand the results
of their work. We assessed and challenged the

and the

appropriateness of the significant assumptions,

valuation methodologies used

including market transaction prices for
comparable properties and capitalisation rates.
We benchmarked these assumptions to relevant
market evidence including specific property
sales and other external data; and

o checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used as supporting
evidence.

The significant inputs have been appropriately
disclosed in note 16.

Impairment of properties under
development and held for sale

The net carrying amount of the Group's properties
under development and held for sale as at 31st
December, 2017 was HK$75,239,834,000. No
impairment loss was recognised for the year ended
31st December, 2017.

(iii)

ERcBEaRERNED - At ZFR
BERTABEGABBEUMBREBTERKR

B 488
= °

F2HEAVBERERME16 K F158EF
1598 2 &5t K »

AITHEE :

ATFHEREEREREDENERFE
&

o HIEBIUINBHEMNEL D
MEBNE

o  ERINEBERS  BIEGERM
AT EAR - AITR A RE B
REETEREABRELSRE (2
ERALBNENERZEREN
) BB EZRTRREMEET S
EE(BERMERHEEED REMIN
2R R

s MEERBDIENE ABBRER

BRBARBDRMEI6ZERE -

RERPERFELHEYERE

BEEER=T—+t&E T+ A=+T—HK%
RAEAEKBELEDEEBFEAL
75,239,8340008 T ®HE =T — £ F
+ A=+ BLEFETEERREE

18-



Estimations of net realisable value of the Group's
properties under development and held for sale are
dependent on certain key assumptions that require
significant management judgement, including current
schedules of the projects, construction progress by
contractors, estimated costs to completion, intended
use and management's expectation on future
property market.

Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in change in net realisable
value of the Group’s properties under development
and held for sale and the corresponding adjustments
to the impairment recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. As a result, the financial
performance can be greatly affected by the
assumptions.

Refer to note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies on pages 162
and 163.

Our response:
Our procedures in relation to management’s

assessments of the net realisable value of the
properties under development and held for sale

included:
o assessing the valuation methodologies used;
J challenging the reasonableness of key

assumptions, specifically including future market
value, estimated costs to completion, intended
use and current market environment, based on
our knowledge of the Group’s business and
property industry; and

° reconciling, on a sample basis, the input data
used as supporting evidence, such as approved
budgets of the project and most recent
transaction prices of comparable properties in
the market, and considering their
reasonableness.
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We also assessed the recoverable amount of properties we
deemed at high
independent publicly available information, such as
property industry reports for potential impairment triggers.
Where the market environment or estimated costs to

risk of impairment by reviewing

completion
management as to whether this indicated impairment had
occurred.

changed significantly, we challenged

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial

statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process. The Audit Committee
assists the directors in discharging their responsibility in
this regard.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

RFELEEARAT
—T e

FUBAHBERN EFARNE BEME
SEEBEOEN LHRBEREECEABOE
H(ER) - RFEFAES BEEELRL
SHELEE  RBUZILE R R
tpE - FAEFARA AR EEE BER
LR

EETAEEE ESENMBBRERE -&F
REZEGRABHEEBETZBE -

REMELGEVBRR2EME

AIHWEREAERESAVBBRRERES
TEEHRMFHBERMEFINEARER
Mo WHEHBEEATERNRBENERE - &A17
RBEE R AURPIZE405KE R BEBRRKRE -
BRUEIASN » R ERIEEMAE - N7 EH
ABRENBTHEMEMALE EFAEEMNE
£ -

FEREESEXRNRE BTERERES
BEFENETNERERERRAEAKRE
PRt - 5% B R AT RE R O BRFF S8 AR - A (@ R
SERBEAEBHBATEREELAERER
EMBERRFLNEERE  MR/AERKXE
PRt

111



112 POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO. , LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
AR A GRS

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise  AN{TIRIEB B EF A ETEZNITIERNAE
professional judgement and maintain professional FEAZFHXHE CEEEZBERRIFEEE

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: BEEREE o RATIN
. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement Rl R A AR S MR R E GG S EE AR P

of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and

content of the consolidated financial statements,
the

represent the

including the disclosures, and whether

consolidated financial statements
underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on

statements.

responsible for the direction,

the consolidated financial We are
supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Amy Yau Shuk Yuen

Practising Certificate No. P06095

Hong Kong
21st March, 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFTT OR LOSS

] /\ =3 N\ 7/
— Z N\
e EmIR
For the year ended 31st December, 2017
HE=—F— 4= =1 — B R

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B = FHExT FET
Revenue WA 8 31,703,042 30,580,326
Cost of sales & KA (25,162,217)  (25,582,484)
Gross profit E A 6,540,825 4,997,842
Increase in fair value of investment R &Y% 2 A F(E L0
properties 16 66,329 116
Other gains, net H by 25 F 58 9 994,129 157,148
Selling expenses BHE R X (1,009,851) (688,183)
Administrative expenses THAX (1,405,405) (1,404,984)
Gain on disposal of interest in & — B AR
a subsidiary % 2 W 53 — 644,158
Gain on step-up acquisition of a HE RN E AR 2K
subsidiary 52 848,352 —
Impairment loss on properties under ZERE R RIFIEHE
development and held for sale Y% 2 R EEE — (86,207)
Other operating expenses H 58 F X (371,317) (430,176)
Finance costs A& KR 10 (961,878) (910,434)
Share of results of associates DIEHE NTEE (10,083) (15,530)
Share of results of joint ventures DIHEEDEELE 198,088 (30,529)
Profit before income tax expense B PT 15 54 B 32 Al s A 13 4,889,189 2,233,221
Income tax expense Fri8 i X 14 (2,322,549) (2,012,049)
Profit for the year F A T 2,566,640 221,172
Attributable to: T3 FEAS -
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEETE? PN 2,462,061 80,745
Holders of perpetual capital KABARTEHFA
instruments 39 —_ 72,325
Non-controlling interests I 12 f i = 104,579 68,102
2,566,640 221,172
Earnings per share BRAN
(expressed in HK cents) (ABMLE7R) 15
— Basic — BEK 67.24 2.21
— Diluted — &8 67.24 2.21
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e EEWER

For the year ended 31st December, 2017
BE—F—+F+—F=1—HIFE

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

ltems that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences arising on
translation of financial
statements of foreign operations

Change in fair value of
available-for-sale investments

Items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss:

Surplus (deficit) arising on revaluation

of properties

Other comprehensive income
before tax effect

Deferred tax liability arising on
revaluation of properties

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Holders of perpetual capital
instruments
Non-controlling interests

Notes
M =E
FRER
Hit2HE KA
HEAEEN 7 EE 1B m #
HE -

BINEB 2 BB BRRBEE
EZERER

AHEEREZ

AFEED

TEEN D HEER=MIER -

Y ¥ E R (B4

BB EN 2 it 2 H W&

MEEM[ELE ZELHRIA
B{E

FRHEAMREKE -
HBRH H

FARMEWKSAE

T3 AL -
ZN/NESIEZ R =N
KXKAEARTE

BEA
FEPE B e 2

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET
2,566,640 221,172
1,354,507 (1,285,505)
14,895 (7,289)
1,369,402 (1,292,794)
44,548 (71,323)
1,413,950 (1,364,117)
(11,137) 17,831
1,402,813 (1,346,286)
3,969,453 (1,125,114)
3,530,535 (863,300)
—_ 1,741
438,918 (263,555)
3,969,453 (1,125,114)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

=IZAN i/ SN
ire SRR
As at 31st December, 2017
Ro-EB—+F+-H=+—H

Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments
— non-current portion

Goodwill

Interests in associates

Interests in joint ventures

Available-for-sale investments

Loan receivables

Deposits paid for acquisition of land
use rights

Deposits paid for acquisition of
subsidiaries

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Properties under development
Properties held for sale
Other inventories
Trade and other receivables
Prepaid lease payments
— current portion
Short-term loan receivables
Amounts due from associates
Amounts due from joint ventures
Amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries
Taxation recoverable
Pledged bank deposits
Bank balances, deposits and cash

Total current assets

HRBEE

1E %
W BERRE
%18 0B

— ERBHH
e

WS A R 2 M2
RABOYE R

AHHERE

& W & 3R

Yo Bg + 3th i A 42
EffZE

WEHBARENZS

BT IR E B

FRBEELR

RBEE

BRTYE
RIELEME
Hifr &

JE W 5 B B A B K

BNHEEREA
— REBED

J& W rE HR & 3R

J& W B & X B R IR
fEU & & b RIA

& W Bl /B8 2 B

FEIE R B R AR

AJ Y [B] 75 18
BEHERIRITER

RITETF FRERE

MBEERRE

Notes
=S

16
17

18
19
20
21
28
27(a)

22

23
41

24
24
25
26

18
27(b)
20
21

32

33(a)
33(a)

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FE T
10,904,879 10,406,785
1,890,842 2,016,012
325,385 316,243
298,155 246,317
3,956,952 2,309,944
325,839 310,877
112,583 —
1,643,905 1,551,551
238,095 2,471,910
319,150 303,786
20,015,785 19,933,425
53,631,353 52,859,911
21,608,481 20,904,988
54,057 137,808
4,776,797 4,677,407
10,175 10,397
757,418 37,078
4,141,267 2,938,059
939,600 542,767
1,592,664 1,664,408
329,237 785,305
20,921,650 17,581,484
108,762,699 102,139,612
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ARE BEIAER
As at 31st December, 2017
R-ZF—+F1+=-H=1—H

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Pre-sale deposits
Property rental deposits
Amounts due to joint ventures

Amount due to the ultimate holding

company
Amount due to an intermediate
holding company
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries
Taxation payable
Notes payable
Bank and other borrowings
— due within one year

Total current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves attributable
to owners of the Company
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company

Perpetual capital instruments

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

RBEE

BN E 5 MEMERR
BERSE
mEHeES
ENEERENA

JE& N B AR P B ] 3R R

B —M P EZERA A
R
J& {5 [B) B B8 & B 3R IA
J& 1< B /B8 2 )
FEIERY B R KR
e IR

RN
RITEEMEER

— —FAEH

mH

mE A f
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kv

RBEEFME

REERRBAE

EARER ARG
EXRf#EE
[N
1

AATEE AE
% 7
KAEXRIA
TR ER

IR

Notes
M =E

21

29

30
317

32

36

35

37

39

2017 2016
—B-tF ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TEL
15,552,504 13,953,062
25,906,757 25,723,676
126,151 126,120
2,258,285 672,749
411,592 388,469
21,034 509,304
587,869 825,110
2,529,004 2,161,076
2,009,346 1,543,986
3,900,000 —
15,835,437 13,398,644
69,137,979 59,302,196
39,624,720 42,837,416
59,640,505 62,770,841
17,685,677 17,685,677
10,610,687 7,011,038
28,296,364 24,696,715
2,520,217 2,285,344
30,816,581 26,982,059




Notes
B 7
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank and other borrowings RITRAEMEER
— due after one year — —F1&RIH 35
Notes payable R R % 36
Loan from a fellow subsidiary —HRRWERARTER 40
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHIEAR 41
Total non-current liabilities EMBEEARE

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 21st March, 2018.

HAN QINGTAO
Managing Director
EFpsE

RZFE-N\F=ZA-t+ - BREHEFTSEHER

AT -

FRANEREEARR AT

e
2017 2016
—BE-tF ZT-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TEL
27,089,799 30,325,635
— 3,900,000

214,286 202,247
1,519,839 1,360,900
28,823,924 35,788,782
59,640,505 62,770,841

YE LIWEN
RRH

Director

EE
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BE-F—+F= =1 ALFE

Notes:

(iii)

Statutory reserves are reserves required by the relevant laws in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and are applicable to the
Group's PRC subsidiaries.

Included in other capital reserve at 31st December, 2017 is deemed
capital contribution arising on acquisition of subsidiaries of
HK$244,221,000 (2016: HK$244,221,000) and deemed capital
contribution arising from interest-free loans provided by a fellow
subsidiary of HK$62,678,000 (2016: HK$62,678,000).

Other reserve represents the difference between the fair value of
consideration paid and payable and the carrying amount of net
assets attributable to the changes in ownership in the subsidiaries
being acquired or disposed from non-controlling interests without

change of control.

M E

(iii)

SEFEREBTIREARKME ([F B ) 8 BE G AT E
BERNASEE 2R EMER RS -

RZE—tF+-A=+—H HtELXREERER
VEUFE [T /B8 A | BT = A& [ & 2244,221,0008 70 (= F
— 734 : 244,221,000 7T) K BB — @ R R i B A 7=
HRIERGT RERNE £ 2 H & 262,678,000% 7T (=
T — X4 ¢ 62,678,000 7T) ©

HibEEEE N RENKERFERETKEEGE
ZERT R EEBAXBE MBI ERE
BYRE2FEERMEME ZHNERE -
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T tEFR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
N Eﬁi//lb@%
For the year ended 31st December, 2017
BE—F—+F+—_F=1—FHIFF
2017 2016
—E-tF —E-RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7 FER FAT
Cash flows from operating RERETHNRESRD
activities
Profit before income tax expense B P 15 B 5 52 Al & A 4,889,189 2,233,221
Adjustments for: MATHEBELFER
Bank interest income RITH B U A 9 (139,128) (130,310)
Interest income from loans to ERTEERERRZ
joint ventures A 2 WA 9 (186,774) (176,721)
Interest income from loan to ERT—HEBERFER
an associate Z M BWA 2 (6,844) (8,299)
Interest income from non- ERTHERERTRZ
controlling interest ﬂ B A 9 (17,170) —
Dividend income B B A 9 (6,323) (57,512)
Amortisation of prepaid lease B MR & FIE
payments 10,160 10,636
Depreciation of property, plant Mk WEREZEITE
and equipment 17 124,950 127,905
Finance costs BE KA 10 961,878 910,434
Impairment loss on goodwill 8 Z R E R e 19 — 281,331
Impairment loss on other JE W EL i BR R 2 R (B &5 18
receivables —_ 86,458
Impairment loss on properties BRPARBELEMEL
under development and held VERIEN =t
for sale 24 —_ 86,207
Impairment loss on property, ME - BERZHEZ
plant and equipment VA= ! 17 — 783
Increase in fair value of investment & &Y% 2 A F AN
properties 16 (66,329) (116)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of HEKEMEZ
investment properties (=), E#E (5,326) 10,245
Loss on disposal of property, plant  HEWE - lE & #EH 2
and equipment & 1B 10,343 4,333
Gain on disposal of interest in a HE—FHRBRAAERZ
subsidiary & 53 — (644,158)
Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries % AP BB A Bl 2 E5 18 — 110
Gain on step-up acquisition of a HEEE — [ B 2R 2 WS

subsidiary 52 (848,352) —_
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= A TH 42
T A Eﬁi/}\b@]%
For the year ended 31st December, 2017
BE—F—+FE+ —F=1—HIFE

Gain on re-measurement of an
associate to acquisition date fair
value in step acquisition

Reversal of impairment loss
previously recognised in respect
of other receivables

Share of results of associates

Share of results of joint ventures

Operating profit before working
capital changes

Increase in deposits paid for
acquisition of land use rights

Decrease in properties under
development and held for sale

Decrease in other inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade and
other receivables

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other
payables

(Decrease)/increase in pre-sale
deposits

(Decrease)/increase in property rental
deposits

Cash generated from operations
PRC income taxes paid
Interests paid

Net cash generated from operating
activities

DHEBREETEHNGE
— [ E QR EWRE
Bz RFEZ B

0 38 1 B R UK AR
B R Z R E & 18

DIEHE R FEE
DIERELRER

LEESHNKERT

U B + 3t (56 R #E Y
E 4% & 18 N

BRPRBELE

H i 17 &R

FE W 5 B H Al Bk R
L (FE )

e E 5 B E AR X
g, O )

HEZEORd) HEhn

WMEBERS ORD) /B
REMBERES
ENFEMAEHR
BN FHE

REFZHFERTFHE

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RF

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 TER FET
— (21,256)

9 —_ (3,250)
10,083 15,530

(198,088) 30,529

4,532,269 2,756,100

22 — (1,424,584)
7,207,901 11,513,332

91,954 795

308,016 (1,094,117)

1,002,684 (2,599,212)
(1,348,090) 1,570,772

(6,979) 13,810

11,787,755 10,736,896
(1,729,836) (2,156,354)
(2,675,004) (3,498,183)
7,382,915 5,082,359




Cash flows from investing activities REREFTEHNE SR

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Purchase of investment properties

Investments in joint ventures

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of
cash acquired

Acquisition of additional interests in
a subsidiary

Acquisition of associates

Net cash inflows arising on disposal
of a subsidiary

Net cash outflows arising on
dissolution of subsidiaries

Increase in loan receivables

Decrease/(increase) in pledged
bank deposits

Bank interest income received

Interest income received from loans
to joint ventures

Interest income received from loan
to an associate

Interest income received from
non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries

Dividend income received from
investments in securities

Dividend received from a joint
venture

(Advance to)/repayments from joint
ventures

(Advance to)/repayments from non-
controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries

(Advance to)/repayments from
associates

Proceeds from disposal of
investment properties

Notes
B =
BEME BEKXE
17
BEREYHE 16
REEGLEZRE
IR BB K B A A
kB WER 2 52
1 B T BB N B HE 2
Uiz B B 2 1 A 20
HE—HBRRMES
ZBEERAFE 53
2 BR HY B 2 &) B
EEZBEES L FE
JiE U B F 38 0
B FRITER
A (38 hn)

B YR 1T FLE WA
ERTRELE

W E WA B A
ERT M E QR &R
Bz A B WA

(= PNSE 22
mRE W Z B HEA

EREFRERBEA
BE—REELERR

(BRTFAELE) AH
&R ER
(BT W B 2 A IR
B,/ 7 JE R
BEER
(BRTFBEAT) /B
AFER

HEREMEMBRA

RAEREE AR AR

T tFFRH

2017 2016
—BE-tF ZT-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TEL
(32,309) (39,261)
(2,018) (737)
(63,823) (712,689)
(2,015,407) 374,523
(120,064) —
(47,618) —

— 11,411
— (110)
(112,583) —
456,068 (344,868)
139,128 130,310
186,774 176,721
6,844 8,299
17,170 —
6,323 5,162
31,407 370
(1,028,416) 1,040,824
(367,423) 196,634
(718,134) 274,028
20,069 55,094
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= /\
T A imﬂ%%
For the year ended 31st December, 2017
BE—F—+FE+ —F=1—HIFE

Payment for purchase of available-

for-sale investments
Deposits paid for acquisition of
subsidiaries

Net cash used in investing
activities

BEAHLEREXN
IR
WEHBARENZS

REEFBFMAREFE

Cash flows from financing activities REBMETHN RS HRE

Borrowings raised

Repayments of borrowings

Redemption of perpetual capital
instruments

Distribution to holders of perpetual

capital instruments

Capital contribution by non-
controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries

Advances from/(repayments to)
fellow subsidiaries

Advances from/(repayments to)

non-controlling shareholders of

subsidiaries
Repayment to ultimate holding
company

(Repayments to)/advance from an

intermediate holding company

Advance from the ultimate holding

company
Advances from joint ventures

Dividends paid to non-controlling

shareholders of subsidiaries

Net cash used in financing
activities

IEEE
f& & &R
BRI KABEATA

DIRTHKABARTEA
FAEA

BB A B FEHE AR
BREE

BESGY=PNCE-T/ 0
CEXTREMNME QA
W%’ATE‘H P B 3R
ROCERTH S
’“T#T HxHx%)
BT REERRR

(BRT—HEFHEER
’L\\ﬂ)/_FEﬂ‘:F‘ FEIEJTgJ&
NGIE T
S S N R

AELEBK
B 1 MY 2 7 FE S AR AR R
0 % B

MEFHFAREFESR

Notes
M =E

39

39

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET
— (154,787)
— (2,247,191)
(3,644,012) (1,226,267)
17,130,554 26,310,544
(20,090,456) (29,583,432)
— (1,123,596)
—_ (105,617)
7,935 72,942
577 (34,667)
163,778 (668,771)
(12,719) —
(518,586) 480,864
— 352,257
1,545,491 660,998
(59,814) (169,011)
(1,833,240) (3,807,489)




Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

RERERREEMER

FAZRERERARS

Effect of exchange rate changes on EXS#HH RS REF

cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year

Represented by bank balances,
deposits and cash

REe®

FRZEAEZRERRE

BRITEST FRERE

Notes
M 5E

FHEZEEARAR] 127

—T—+tFFR

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
1,905,663 48,603
17,581,484 17,908,117
1,434,503 (375,236)
20,921,650 17,581,484
20,921,650 17,581,484
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B ek MY et

For the year ended 31st December, 2017
HE—T—+FF+_F=+—HIFE

1.

GENERAL

Poly Property Group Co., Limited (“the Company”) is
a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries (together “the Group"”) are engaged in
property development, property investment and
management, hotel operations and its related
services, manufacturing and sales of digital discs and
others. The principal activities of principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 50.

The directors consider the Company’'s immediate
holding company is Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings
Limited (“Poly Holdings”), a company incorporated in
Hong Kong. The ultimate holding company is China
Poly Group Corporation Limited (“China Poly”), a
state-owned enterprise established in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). China Poly and its
affiliated companies, other than members of the
Group, are hereinafter collectively referred to as
China Poly Group.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1st January, 2017

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 7
Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax
HKAS 12 Assets for Unrealised

Losses
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 12,
to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities

—REHR

RMEXEBERQR(ARRAE]) HER
BEMRILZARERAR  ERNES
BHMAERIMARAE (BT L e

ARARRKEZERATR  HHEB QR (5
BIAKEDREEVEER VERER
B BEEEREMARRY - BUEHE
SRR N EMWIER - TEZMB AR Z
T E X E AN IEESO

EEARARRAZEEERAA /RN
(FBE)EBREERAB (RMZER]) - &2
AR —MEZTBEMAL AT - RKE
BARATFERNEEERAR ([HEF
M ZARR—BRPEAREMNE
(TFE]) R 2BARE - BRAKEZK
BRAESN AR REBRARENAT
BT BERNEE -

RMBEEMNBRELEN(H
& B8 R s 22 A )

(a) BRANHE] RIETE B
BHREEN — —F—+F
—A—BBER

BE G £ RKERE
FT5 (BRI A)

ER e &4 RAERERERE
FIZR(BFTAX) RHAEE

—Z-NEE BRI HREER
“E-RFRY F12W(BIAK)
MEEMBRE RECEROED

ERFRENE KE



2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1st January, 2017
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 —

Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional
disclosure that will enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities.

The adoption of the amendments has led to the
additional disclosure presented in the notes to
the cash flow statement, note 33(b).

Amendments to HKAS 12 —
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of
deferred tax assets and clarify some of the
necessary considerations, including how to
account for deferred tax assets related to debt
instruments measured of fair value.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the clarified
treatment is consistent with the manner in
which the Group has previously recognised
deferred tax assets.

FRANEREEARR AT
T FER

RMBERMBREEAN(E
B BHREER])(E)

(a)

A5 3T R AE AT 8 B
BREER — —B— &
—B-REEXE)

BB H R B 75 (155
) — BB
BB IRE —HEIINEE - §6
W mRERAEEATERETD
EENBEES-

RMZEETABERS R RMN
332 NI EE L -

EBGSTERE125 (BF]
) — RAEBEHREEER
Eﬁﬁﬁﬁé
ZETAEERRECHEEER
BEETNEEE - Lm0
B ATFESBOERETAEMY
EERIERE -

R EE R A BT AN B 5T
AIERECEHBEEN TN — 2

RAMSETHAMBRRLEY
Z o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017
BE—F—+FE+ —F=1—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —

effective 1st January, 2017
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle — Amendments to
HKFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS
12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, to
clarify that the disclosure requirements of
HKFRS 12, other than the requirements to
disclose summarised financial information, also
apply to an entity’s interests in other entities
classified as held for sale or discontinued
operations in accordance with HKFRS 5, Non-
Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations.

The adoption of the amendments to HKFRS 12
has no impact on these financial statements as
the latter treatment is consistent with the
manner in which the Group has previously dealt
with disclosures relating to its interests in other
entities classified as held for sale or
discontinued operations in accordance with
HKFRS 5.

RKMBERMBBREEAN(E
U BHREER]E)

(a)

RN s] LIEIEEH
BEER — —FBE—tF
—A—BREME)

TE-NEZE=EE—XF
BHNEEMEREEAR
FERE — BEBUBRE
R 51258 (BT &) - R
HMuEENWERRE

RIBFEEUERIEEMNZZIET
7N 1 39 15 3 7 B9 B A9 % 1B 2 B 4
MERTEIMER - LhaEY
EB IS WS A B2 REM
BEENEARBEOETA  RBE
BB SIS RS & E125 0
BERAT HEVEENBEER
5N - TRE AR B RAREE ST SR
EERESH  BEBENERDE
EROCRIMEELBEHEAEIEY
EFORIHELEBHE M EEE

S o

H

R R E R BEIE 77 S B K SR 8 5T Al
REFEAREMERER (RER
B BRELRNESE D ERFTIEL
EHCRIERERT) — B RIRMA
ERYBREERFI125ROERT A
BMBERRLBREE -



2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements,
have been issued, but are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group. The

Group’s current intention is to apply these

changes on the date they become effective.

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKAS 40
HK(IFRIC) — Int 22

Amendments to
HKFRS 9
HKFRS 16

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23
Amendments to

HKFRS 10 and HKAS
28

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
First-time adoption of Hong
Kong Financial Reporting
Standards'

Amendments to HKAS 28,
Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Classification and Measurement
of Share-Based Payment
Transactions'

Financial Instruments'

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)!

Transfers of Investment Property!

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?
Leases?

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

RUBEEEMARAT | 131
—T e

RMBERMBREEAN(E
B BHREER])(E)

(b)

C 28 i 1B 1) K &£ M EY H
A/ RETEBMBERE

% g

-

T B A AE i AR A R HT AT
ERIBEMBHRELRAREERE
BoPBHRRAR  MAKEYLE
REEM - AKEBREHEREXRA
HERZEE

—E-MEE-T

BREM RS ER

—NEBENEE BRI

MBEREEANFE EARMNERMHB

B¢ HE A
“Z-MEE-T FASHERRNR

—NEBRBNES (BN REE
BHEREENEE DAREELEMN
Wi K&
EERBHRELLN BROSHKRHNHLE
E25% (BRI A) Lit&
REEMBHRELL S@IA
F95%
BEERBHRELL REBFAHMAT
155
EBEMBRELENE REXFAHNRA
15% (B FT &) (BT BREER
FE155 2 BE)!
EBGFEDFA05 BREENE
CHES)
EEBERIBHRE HIEXHRBEFRE
REZE9)
— REE2R
EERBHRELN MEABEMNER
E% (BRI A) IR
BEEBBHRELEN HE
F16%
EEEBRTBERE NEHEENTRE
ﬁé%ﬁﬁz\ E) }:E‘iz
— REBE2LH
BEEMBHRELN HEFHEBEDNA

FIORREBA G
%8I F28%%
(BFI %K)

ARELFZHN
EEHERIE
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on

or after 1 January 2018

Effective for annual periods beginning on

or after 1 January 2019

g The amendments were originally intended
to be effective for periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016. The effective date
has now been deferred/removed. Early
application of the amendments of the
amendments continue to be permitted.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle — Amendments to
HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 1,
First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, removing transition
provision exemptions relating to accounting
periods that had already passed and were

therefore no longer applicable.

RKMBERMBBREEAN(E
U BHREER]E)

(b)

€ 58 5 {8 & 2R £ R 89 H

Al RIEFTERBMBRE

2 Bl (#8)

T ZE-\F-A-ARZKH
4 10 4 FE A R

> —E-AF-A-BAZHKH
4 10 4 [ £ R

P REEHARAR-E-AF
— A — Bz IR ERT £
Mo M B BRELE M
% o BRI TS £ R IR AT
FEA -

TE-NEZEZEE—XF
BHNEBMEREER
FERE — BEBUBRE
ZRIZE15R (BETA) » IR
RNE B EREER
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle — Amendments to
HKAS 28, Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 28,
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures,
clarifying that a Venture Capital organisation’s
permissible election to measure its associates or
joint ventures at fair value is made separately
for each associate or joint venture.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 —
Classification and Measurement of

Share-Based Payment Transactions
The amendments provide requirements on the
accounting for the effects of vesting and non-
vesting conditions on the measurement of cash-
settled share-based payments; share-based
payment transactions with a net settlement
feature for withholding tax obligations; and a
modification to the terms and conditions of a
share-based payment that changes the
classification of the transaction from cash-
settled to equity-settled.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial
assets. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to hold
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
test) and that have
contractual terms that give rise to cash flows

(the business model

that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test)
are generally measured at amortised cost. Debt
instruments that meet the contractual cash flow
characteristics test are measured at FVTOCI if
the objective of the entity’s business model is
both to hold and collect the contractual cash
flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities
may make an irrevocable election at initial
recognition to measure equity instruments that
are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All other
debt and equity instruments are measured at
FVTPL.

HKFRS 9
impairment model for all financial assets not

includes a new expected loss

measured at FVTPL replacing the incurred loss
model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to
better reflect their risk management activities in
financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

(Continued)
HKFRS 9 carries forward the
classification and measurement requirements for

recognition,

financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for
financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, where
the amount of change in fair value attributable
to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income
unless that would create or enlarge an
In addition, HKFRS 9
in HKAS 39 for
derecognition of financial assets and financial

liabilities.

accounting mismatch.

retains the requirements

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from

Contracts with customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for

those goods and services. HKFRS 15
supersedes existing revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11

Construction Contracts and related

interpretations.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from
Contracts with customers

(Continued)
HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps
approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance
obligations in the contract

J Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

o Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to

each performance obligation

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when each
performance obligation is
satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on
particular revenue related topics that may
change the current approach taken under
HKFRS. The standard also significantly enhances
the qualitative and quantitative disclosures
related to revenue.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments HKFRS 15 — Revenue
from Contracts with Customers
(Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15
clarifications on identification of performance

included

obligations; application of principal versus
agent; licenses of intellectual property; and
transition requirements.

Amendments to HKAS 40,
Investment Property — Transfers of

Investment Property

The amendments clarify that to transfer to or
from investment properties there must be a
change in use and provides guidance on making
this determination. The clarification states that a
change of use will occur when a property
meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is supporting
evidence that a change has occurred.

The amendments also re-characterise the list of
evidence in the standard as a non-exhaustive
list, thereby allowing for other forms of
evidence to support a transfer.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 — Foreign
Currency Transactions and Advance

Consideration

The Interpretation provides guidance on
determining the date of the transaction for
determining an exchange rate to use for
transactions that involve advance consideration
paid or received in a foreign currency and the
recognition of a non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability. The Interpretations specifies
that the date of the transaction for the purpose
of determining the exchange rate to use on
initial recognition of the related asset, expense
or income (or part thereof) is the date on which
the entity initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 —
Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable
financial assets with negative compensation can
be measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income if
specified conditions are met — instead of at fair

value through profit or loss.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 “and
interpretations, introduces a single

“Leases related
lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with
a term of more 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value. Specifically,
HKFRS 16, a

recognise a right-of-use asset representing its

under lessee is required to
right to use the underlying leased asset and a
lease liability representing its obligation to
make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee
should recognise depreciation of the right-of
use asset and interest on the lease liability, and
also classifies cash repayments of the lease
liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the statement of
cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the
lease liability are initially measured on a present
value basis. The measurement includes non-
cancellable lease payments and also includes
payments to be made in optional periods if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an
option to extend the lease, or to exercise an
option to terminate the lease. This accounting
treatment is significantly different from the
lessee accounting for leases that are classified
as operating leases under the predecessor
standard, HKAS 17.

RFELEEARAT
—T e

RMBERMBREEAN(E
B BHREER])(E)

(b)

B 78 7 {8 5 R &£ M F

A RBRETERBUMBRE
2Rl (&)
ERMBBREERNFE165
—HE

BB IS LB B1657 1 1 £
ZBRRAREBCERFE175:(H
EIRABRE - BEUBREER
F165E e ANE — AP A SRR
B WERKAREA S BB12E A
AHzEERABEB(REEERIN)
EITHER BEMBRE LD F16
FERERARAHERAES
ENFERAEEERINBEEZERN
HEABETHER - HEMN A
AEBBHERELEENTEREE
BEMFEETHER TEHES
BENRSERDEEAS I MF
BE#n THEIRRBEBERER
Roltih ERHEEEMEERRE
NRBEETONLSRER  BREYRH
BETEE MRS IEE E R AL
NR(CEAAARERERSKKIER
H) - BB IEHEERIE165E 5
BAKESHEHERE AN S EIE
BN BB ENEI7HREE
KA e

139



140

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO. , LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e B RR M

For the year ended 31st December, 2017
BE-F—+F= =1 ALFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor
HKAS 17.

Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its

accounting requirements in
leases as operating leases or finance leases, and
to account for those two types of leases
differently.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 — Uncertainty
over Income Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of
HKAS 12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance
over how to reflect the effects of uncertainty in
accounting for income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall
determine whether to consider each uncertain
tax treatment separately or together based on
which approach better predicts the resolution of
the uncertainty. The entity shall also assume the
tax authority will examine amounts that it has a
right to examine and have full knowledge of all
making those

related information when

examinations. If the entity determines it is
probable that the tax authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment, then the entity should
measure current and deferred tax in line with its
tax filings. If the entity determines it is not
probable, then the

determination of tax is reflected using either

uncertainty in the

the “most likely amount” or the "expected
value” approach, whichever better predicts the
resolution of the uncertainty.

RMBERBUB®REEA
U BHREER]E)

(b)

—~
=
|

© 8 fif 1B [ R 4 3% 89 3
Al RIEFTERBMBRE
2 Bl (#2)

BRI REEQF165H
— HE (&)

BRI R A 65 H N A
AW R BRREINA T BB R
B ETHEAEBER Atk i
BADKERES BAGEERE
B A REE DR LA
EHE -

B (ERVEREREBR
BE) — REE23% —
PR BRI T HEE M
R IRIE B B 0 R B 15 Bt B A
BRIZ R TR E M B R 4R 4 0K
3| AE BRI LI E 12K EH
B SE R B34 -

REZ=2E BERABES &K
TEREEIHEMBERE UE
ERB A EEERZROBEIRTTE -
ERNTABRRVGHEAKSERE
BRSNS YAEFL LT
BREDEMNEMAEEBERS -NE
BETHSHBEIEERET AL
ENRERE HERBERZREAR
BEBARMN T AGFENRREL
IR - fis B B8 8 TE A5 B T AT BE
SR -ATHEEMNERE  AK
A& EeBE IR BHEIRES
AR R ETER AT E A RER
AABTARRBRETEREBL KA
THEEMERE-



2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or
losses to be recognised when an entity sells or
contributes assets to its associate or joint
venture. When the transaction involves a
business the gain or loss is recognised in full,
conversely when the transaction involves assets
that do not constitute a business the gain or
loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint
venture or associate.

Further information about those HKFRS that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is
described as follows.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 on a
retrospective basis. The Group plans to use the
exemption from restating comparative
information and will recognise any transition
adjustments against the opening balance of

equity at 1 January 2018.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
(Continued)

Expected impacts of the new requirements on
the Group's financial statements are as follows:

(a)

Classification and measurement
HKFRS 9 contains three principal
classification categories for financial
assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2)
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

(3) fair value through other

comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

The classification for debt
instruments is determined based on
the entity’'s business model for
managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. If a debt
instrument is classified as FVTOCI
then interest revenue, impairment
and gains/losses on disposal will be
recognised in profit or loss.

For equity securities, the
classification is FVTPL regardless of
the entity’s business model. The only
exception is if the equity security is
not held for trading and the entity
irrevocably elects to designate that
security as FVTOCI. If an equity
security is designated as FVTOCI
then only dividend income on that
security will be recognised in profit
or loss. Gains, losses and
impairments on that security will be
recognised in other comprehensive
income without recycling.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
(Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

The Group has assessed that its financial
assets currently measured at amortised
cost and FVTPL will continue with their
respective classification and measurements
upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

With
assets currently classified as “available-for-

respect to the Group’s financial

sale”, these are investments in equity
securities which the Group has the option
FVTOCI

(without recycling) on transition to HKFRS

to irrevocably designate as

9. The Group plans not to elect this
designation option for any of the
investments held on 1 January 2018 and
will recognise any fair value changes in
respect of these investments in profit or
loss as they arise. This will give rise to a
change in accounting policy as currently
the Group recognizes the fair value
changes of available-for-sale equity
investments in other comprehensive
income until disposal or impairment, when
gains or losses are recycled to profit or
loss in accordance with the Group's
policies set out in note 4(m). This change
in policy will have no impact on the
Group's total

comprehensive income, but will increase

net assets and

volatility in profit or loss.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
(Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

The classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities under
HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged from
HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires
the fair value change of a financial
liability designated at FVTPL that is
attributable to changes of that financial
liability’s credit risk to be recognised in
(without
The
Group currently does not have any
financial liabilities designated at FVTPL and
therefore this new requirement will not

other comprehensive income

reclassification to profit or loss).

have any impact on the Group on adoption
of HKFRS 9.

Impairment
The new impairment model in HKFRS 9
replaces the “incurred loss” model in
HKAS 39 with an

model.

“expected credit loss”
Under the expected credit loss
model, it will no longer be necessary for a
loss event to occur before an impairment
loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is
required to recognise and measure either
a 12-month expected credit loss or a
lifetime expected credit loss, depending
and the facts

circumstances. The Group expects that the

on the asset and
application of the expected credit loss
model will result in earlier recognition of

credit losses.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts

with customers

Management has assessed the effects of
applying the new standard on the Group's
financial statements and has identified the
following areas that will be affected:

o Revenue from pre-sales of properties under
development is recognised when or as the
control of the asset is transferred to the
customer. Depending on the terms of the
contract and laws that apply to the
contract, control of the properties under
development may transfer over time or at
a point in time.

®  The timing of revenue recognition for sale
of completed properties, which is currently
based on whether significant risk and
reward of ownership of properties
transfer, will be recognised at a later
point in time when the underlying
property is legally or physically transfer to
the customer under the control transfer
model.

e The Group currently offers different
payment schemes to customers, the
transaction price and the amount of
revenue for the sale of property will be
adjusted when significant financing
component exists in that contract.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts

with customers (Continued)

e  The Group provides different incentives to
customers when they sign a property sale
contract. Certain incentives (e.g. free gift
and property management service)
represent separate performance
obligations in a contract. Part of the
consideration of the contract will be
allocated to those performance
obligations and recognised as revenue
only when performance obligation is
satisfied. The amount of revenue for the
sale of property will also be reduced for
any cash payment to customer which does
not represent fair value of good or service
provided by the customer.

e  Certain costs incurred for obtaining a pre-
sale property contract (e.g. sale
commission), which is currently expensed
off in profit or loss directly, will be
eligible for capitalisation under HKFRS 15
and match with revenue recognition
pattern of related contract in the future.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 4(g), currently the Group
classifies leases into finance leases and
operating leases and accounts for the lease
arrangements differently, depending on the
classification of the lease. The Group enters
into some leases as the lessor and others as the
lessee.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is
significantly on the way that lessors account for

not expected to impact
their rights and obligations under a lease.
However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees
will no longer distinguish between finance
leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to
practical expedients, lessees will account for all
leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of
the lease the lessee will recognise and measure
a lease liability at the present value of the
minimum future lease payments and will
recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset.
After initial
liability, the
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of

recognition of this asset and
lessee will recognise interest
the lease liability, and the depreciation of the
right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy
of recognising rental expenses incurred under
operating leases on a systematic basis over the
lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee
can elect not to apply this accounting model to
short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term is
12 months or less) and to leases of low-value
assets, in which case the rental expenses would
continue to be recognised on a systematic basis
over the lease term.

RFELEEARAT
—T e

RMBERMBREEAN(E
B BHREER])(E)

(b)

€ 58 # 1B = 2R 4 R B9 H
Al RETERBMBERE
28 (#8)

BRI ®REERF165
— HE(E

BB BB REEAE16RIET
CABEYELBARBBOREH
RAREBOFR - AT RAE
B ISR R E 165 1k - AT A
KTEESRAMERGEERS -
MR RATHRTENRR &
BARERERARABE AR
FOREUM T AR E R AR - B
KRB A RREABRAE
SERSNRERZRGERER
- RS TR AR (= B M)A
E-RYSHBRAERAMGER
RGBS A BB ATE L
WA BT REREEENE M
HRBREBRENARNRRRE
ERRREGEANFEENEE
- tER—BA TR K &
A TR BT 6 1t & 5 B AR
S EEE (S A12M A HUT)
RIEBEAENHE RZEHER
T HSEX S RANERNE R
REERR -

147



148

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO. , LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR BTSRRI AT
For the year ended 31st December, 2017
BE-F—+F= =1 ALFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s
accounting as a lessee of leases for properties,
plant and equipment which are currently
classified as operating leases. The application of
the new accounting model is expected to lead
to an increase in both assets and liabilities and
to impact on the timing of the expense
recognition in the statement of profit or loss
over the period of the lease. As disclosed in
note 42, at 31st December, 2017 the Group's
future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases amount to
HK$1,877,349,000 for office and shop, the
majority of which is payable either between 1
and 5 years after the reporting date or in more
than 5 years. Some of these amounts may
therefore need to be recognised as lease
liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use
assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The Group
will need to perform a more detailed analysis to
determine the amounts of new assets and
liabilities
commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after
taking into account the applicability of the
practical expedient and adjusting for any leases
entered into or terminated between now and
the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of
discounting.

arising from operating lease

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1st January, 2019.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"),
accepted in Hong Kong and the provisions of

accounting principles generally

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), which concern the preparation of financial
statements. In addition, the financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except
for investment properties, hotel properties and
which are

available-for-sale investments,

measured at their fair values or revalued
amounts, as explained in the accounting policies

set out below.

Functional and presentation

currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company. These
consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars
("HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31st December, 2017 comprise the
financial statements of the Company and the
Group and the Group's interests in associates
and joint ventures.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from

of during the year are included
the date that control commenced or up to the
date that control ceased. When the Group loses
control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at that date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of an interests in associates or joint
ventures or other investments.

Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are
The
carrying amounts of the Group's interest and

accounted for as equity transactions.
the non-controlling interest are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in
subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interest is
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity

attributed to owners of the Company.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with those used
by the Group.

Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on
the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity or
deficiency in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any
additional
interests which would result in the Group as a

terms with the holders of those

whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a
liability.
combination, the Group can elect to measure

financial For each business
any non-controlling interests either at fair value
the

proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net

or at non-controlling interests’

identifiable assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
equity, equity
attributable to owners of the Company. Non-

within separately from
controlling interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the

Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, interests in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less impairment loss, if any.

Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations from 1st
January, 2010

Business combinations are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. For each business
combination, the acquirer measures the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition
costs are expensed as incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations from 1st
January, 2010 (Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses
the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This

of embedded

derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

includes the separation

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at the
acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at the acquisition-
date fair value. Subsequent changes to the fair
value of the contingent consideration which is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive
income. If the contingent consideration is
classified as equity, it shall not be remeasured
until it is finally settled within equity.

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the
excess of (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over (ii) the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date. When (i) is greater than (i), then this
excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations from 1st
January, 2010 (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is stated at
cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31st
December. For the purpose of impairment

testing, goodwill arising on a business

combination is allocated to each cash-
generating units, or group of cash-generating
units that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the Group

are assigned to those units or groups of units.

On disposal of a cash generating unit during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the
profit or loss on disposal.

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) is less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations from 1st
January, 2010 (Continued)

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) and part of
the operation within that unit is disposed of,
the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or
loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill
disposed of in this circumstance is measured
based on the relative values of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

Business combinations prior to 1st
January, 2010 but after 1st
January, 2005

In comparison to the above-mentioned
requirements which were applied on a
prospective basis, the following differences
applied to business combinations prior to 1st
January, 2010:

Business combinations were accounted for using
the purchase method. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition formed part of
the acquisition costs. The non-controlling
interests were measured at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Business combinations achieved in stages were
accounted for as separate steps. Any additional
acquired share of interest did not affect

previously recognised goodwill.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations from 1st
January, 2010 (Continued)
Business combinations prior to 1st
January, 2010 but after 1st
January, 2005 (Continued)

When the Group acquired a business,
embedded derivatives separated from the host
contract by the acquiree were not reassessed
on acquisition unless the business combination
resulted in a change in the terms of the
contract that significantly modified the cash
flows that otherwise would have been required
under the contract.

Contingent consideration was recognised if, and
only if, the Group had a present obligation, the
economic outflow was more likely than not and
a reliable estimate was determinable.
Subsequent adjustments to the contingent
consideration were recognised as part of

goodwill.

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group
has significant influence, but not control or joint
over its including

control, management,

participation in the financial and operating

policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the
Group and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have

rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

(c)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Associates and joint ventures

(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture
is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method, unless it is
classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for
sale). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any
excess of the Group's share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post-acquisition change in the Group's share of
the investee's net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment. Any acquisition-
date fair value excess over cost, the Group's
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the
year
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group's

are recognised in the consolidated
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate or the joint venture,
the Group's interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued. For
this purpose, the Group’'s interest is the
carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group's long-
term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or the

joint venture.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint venture are eliminated to
in the
losses

the extent of the Group’s interest

investee, except where unrealised
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when significant influence
or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
capital
appreciation. These include properties that are

earn rental income and/or for
being constructed or developed for future use

as investment properties.

On initial recognition, investment properties are
including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition,

measured at cost,

investment properties are
measured at their fair values using the fair value
model. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value of an investment property is

recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is
recognised in profit or loss in the year in which

the asset is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including
buildings and leasehold land held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes, other than hotel
properties and construction in progress, are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment

losses.

Advantage has been taken of the transitional
relief provided by paragraph 80A of HKAS 16
“Property, Plant and Equipment” from the
requirement to make regular revaluations of the
Group’s buildings which had been carried at
revalued amounts prior to 30th September,
1995, and accordingly no further revaluation of
land and buildings is carried out. Prior to 30th
1995, the
arising on the revaluation of these assets was

September, revaluation increase
credited to the revaluation reserve. Any future
decreases in value of these assets will be dealt
with as an expense to the extent that they
exceed the balance, if any, on the revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of the
same asset. On the subsequent sale or
asset, the

corresponding revaluation surplus is transferred

retirement of a revalued

to accumulated profits.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Hotel properties are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at their revalued
amounts, being their fair value at the date of
the
accumulated depreciation and accumulated

revaluation less any subsequent

impairment losses.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amounts
of these assets do not differ materially from
that which would be determined using fair
values at the end of the reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the
revaluation of hotel properties is generally dealt
with
accumulated as a separate component of equity
(hotel properties revaluation reserve), except to
the extent that it
decrease of the same asset previously

in other comprehensive income and

reverses a revaluation
recognised as an expense, in which case the
increase is credited to profit or loss to the
extent of the decrease previously charged. A
decrease in net carrying amount arising on the
revaluation of such buildings is dealt with as an
expense to the extent that it exceeds the
balance, if any, held on the hotel properties
relating to a previous

revaluation reserve

revaluation of that asset.

Depreciation on revalued hotel properties is
charged to profit or loss. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of a revalued hotel property,
the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in
the hotel
transferred directly to accumulated profits.

properties revaluation reserve is
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
or valuation of items of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives.

Construction in progress represents property,
plant and equipment in the course of
construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at
cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Construction in progress is classified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item)
is recognised in profit or loss in the year in
which the item is derecognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other
operating leases.

leases are classified as

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases are
recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-

line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to profit or loss using a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive
to enter into an operating lease are recognised
in profit or loss as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term using a straight-

line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of
land and building are considered separately for
the purpose of lease classification, unless the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, in
which case, the entire lease is generally treated
as a finance lease and account for as property,
plant and equipment.

Properties under development

Properties under development developed for
future sale in the ordinary course of business
are included in current assets at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. It comprises the
consideration for development expenditure
(which
construction costs and capitalised

includes cost of land use rights,
interest)
directly contributable to the development of the

properties.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Properties held for sale
Properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

Other inventories
Other inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is calculated

using the weighted average method.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction
of an asset or a group of assets, where the
customer is able to specify the major structural
elements of the design. The accounting policy
for contract revenue is set out under “Revenue
recognition”. Where the outcome of a
construction contract can be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity
at the end of the reporting period, as measured
by (a) the proportion that contract costs
incurred for work performed to date to the
estimated total contract costs or (b) the amount
of work certified by independent engineer with
reference to the completion of physical
proportion of contract work. Variations in
contract work, claims and incentive payments
are included to the extent that they have been
agreed with the customer. When it is probable
that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss s
recognised as an expense immediately. Where
the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, contract costs are
recognised as expenses in the period in which

they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Construction contracts (Continued)
Construction contracts in progress at the end of
the reporting period are recorded at the net
amount of costs incurred plus recognised profit
less recognised losses and progress billings, and
are presented in the statement of financial
position as the “Gross amount due from
customers for contract work” (as an asset) or
the

contract work” (as a liability), as applicable.

"Gross amount due to customers for

Progress billings not yet paid by the customer
“Trade and other
received before the

are included under

receivables”. Amounts
related work is performed are presented as
“Advances received” under “Trade and other

payables”.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits held at call
with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three
Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and

months of maturity at acquisition.

form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidation statement of cash flows.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into
one of the two categories, including loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other
receivables, short-term loan receivables,
amounts due from subsidiaries, associates,
fellow subsidiaries, joint ventures,
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries,
pledged bank deposits and bank balance,
deposits and cash) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses. (See accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets

below).

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are designated as available for
sale or not classified as loans and receivables.

At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-
sale financial assets are measured at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated as a
separate component of equity (investment
revaluation reserve), until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at
which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in equity is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss (see

accounting policy on impairment
financial assets below).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m

) Financial instruments (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets
(Continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments that do
not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end
of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees on points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments.

Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have
been impacted.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of that investment below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

J significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty; or

J default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

J significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables and short-term loan
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments of trade
receivables in the portfolio past the average
credit period of 30 to 90 days, observable
changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.
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POLICIES (Continued)
(m) €T A (&)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest
rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables and loan receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable or a loan receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost
if, in a subsequent period, the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed in profit or loss
in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to impairment loss is
recognised directly in other comprehensive

income.

Impairment losses other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy

in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
In addition, intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of
an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another standard,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation decrease under that standard.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTTHE(E)

POLICIES (Continued)
(m) €T A (&)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Impairment losses other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy
in respect of goodwill above)
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another standard,
in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under
that standard.

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
Group's financial liabilities are generally
classified as other financial liabilities.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life
of the financial liability, or, where appropriate,

a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective

interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and

other payables, property rental

amounts due to subsidiaries, the ultimate
holding company, an intermediate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries, non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, joint ventures, bank
and other borrowings, notes payable and loan
from a fellow subsidiary are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received,

direct issue cost.

Perpetual capital instruments issued by the
Group, which includes no contractual obligation
for the Group to deliver cash or another
financial asset to the holders or to exchange
financial assets or financial liabilities with the
holders under conditions that are potentially
unfavourable to the Group, are classified as
equity instruments and are initially recorded at
the proceeds received. Discretionary
distribution declared by the Group to the
holders of perpetual capital instrument

treated as dividend.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m

) Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the assets
expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
the difference between the asset's
the
consideration received and receivable and the
that had been

recognised directly in equity is recognised in

asset,

carrying amount and sum of the

cumulative gain or loss

profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Employee benefits
(i) Retirement benefits scheme

contributions

Payments to Group’s defined contribution
retirement benefits schemes and
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
charged as expenses when employees
have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions. Payments made to

state-managed retirement benefits
schemes are dealt with as payments to
defined contribution schemes where the
Group's obligations under the schemes are
equivalent to those arising in a defined

contribution retirement benefit scheme.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(ii) Equity-settled share-based

payment transactions
The fair
determined by reference to the fair value

value of services received
of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The impact of the revision of the
estimates during the vesting period, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to share option
reserve.

At the time when the share options are
the
recognised in share option reserve will be

exercised, amount previously
transferred to share capital. When the
share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be

transferred to accumulated profits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities.

Current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arises from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deducible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

Income tax (Continued)
The
deferred tax assets and

limited exceptions to recognition of
liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from goodwill not
deductible for tax purposes, the

recognition of assets or liabilities that affect

initial

neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries, and interests in associates and joint
ventures, to the extent that, in the case of
taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

Where investment properties are carried at their

fair value, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured using the tax rates that
would apply on sale of those assets at their
carrying value at the reporting date unless the
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather
the

amount of deferred tax recognised is measured

than through sale. In all other cases,
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are not discounted.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented
separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax
liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

o in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Income tax (Continued)

in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on

either:
. the same taxable entity; or
. different taxable entities, which, in

each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(p) Financial guarantees issued,
provisions and contingent liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the
"holder”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued,
provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

(Continued)
Where the Group
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee

issues a financial

(being the transaction price, unless the fair
value can otherwise be reliably estimated)
is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. The fair
value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to
interest rate differentials, by comparing
the actual rates charged by lenders when
the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such
Where
consideration is received or receivable for
the the
consideration is recognised in accordance

information can be made.

issuance of the guarantee,

with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable,
except for the case of the guarantee
issued by the Company to its subsidiary in
which the fair value of such guarantee is
recognised as an additional cost of
investment in a subsidiary, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on

initial recognition of any deferred income.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued,
provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued
(Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially
deferred
amortised in profit or loss over the term

recognised as income s
of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised if and when (i) it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that
claim on the Group is expected to exceed
the amount currently carried in trade and
other

payables in respect of that

guarantee i.e. the amount initially

recognised, less accumulated

amortisation.

Contingent liabilities assumed in

business combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination which are present
obligations at the date of acquisition are
initially recognised at fair value, provided
the fair value can be reliably measured.
After their initial recognition at fair value,
such contingent liabilities are recognised
at the higher of the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that
would be determined in accordance with
(iii) below. Contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination that cannot be
reliably fair valued or were not present
obligations at the date of acquisition are

disclosed in accordance with (iii) below.

4. TEEFHEGE)

(p) BRH2MBER  BE
ERAREEE)

(i)

CREZMBERF
(#&)
NEER BB 2 FERK
BEERFHANRBaNEHER
EEHPBERIUEA I
SN fid (i) ERITE AB A BE
REERBERAEEER: &
(i) AAEEREZ ZBEAH
BERSRARERRENE
GREMEREFZ (A
NPT HERZ TR R
B RS mRRERE -

EXEBEOPEREZ
NARBE
EEBAMTAEZHREE
DERKEERZRAEE R
BRANFENSER( WA
B EE) RAFEY
HHERE  ZKARBETIRY]
SRS R BT (WE
) KAl R AT S (i) EE
EZLBEMEP2RE & ME
R FEETEA PP AL Z A
BEMARENEFE IRK
BEBAYERBEEMT  BIRE
VAR &5 (jii) TR E -



4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued,
provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

(iii) Other provisions and contingent
liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other
liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the
time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value
of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and
represents amounts received or receivable from
sales of properties and goods, hotel operations,
investments, services provided and subsidies
received or receivable, net of discounts and
sales related taxes. Provided it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

a) Revenue arising from the sales of
properties is recognised upon the
execution of a binding sale agreement,
the issue of an occupation permit and a
completion certificate by the relevant
government authorities and fulfilling the
terms of the binding sale agreements,
which is taken to be the point in time
when the risks and rewards of ownership
of the property have passed to the buyer.
Deposits and instalments received on
properties sold prior to date of revenue
recognition are included in the statement
of financial position under pre-sale
deposits.

b) Revenue from sales of goods are
recognised when goods are delivered at
customers’ premises which is taken to be
the point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks
and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

c) Building management service income is
recognised over the relevant period in
which the services are rendered.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(q) Revenue recognition (Continued)

d)

9)

Revenue from hotel operations and related
services is recognised when the relevant
services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is
recognised as it accrues on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount.

Dividend
recognised when the Group’s rights to

income from investments is

receive payment is established.

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

When the outcome of a construction

contract can be estimated reliably,
construction revenue is recognised using
the percentage of completion method,
measured by reference to (a) the
proportion that contract costs incurred for
work performed to date to estimated total
contract cost or (b) the amount of work
certified by independent engineer with
reference to the completion of physical
proportion of the contract work. When the
outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract
costs incurred that it is probable will be

recoverable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Translation of foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of
that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the (i.e. the

currency of the primary economic environment

respective functional currency
in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign

transactions.

currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the statement of financial position
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the translation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except
for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in equity, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also

recognised directly in equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Translation of foreign currencies
(Continued)

the
consolidated financial

the
the assets

For purposes of presenting
statements,
and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations
are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period, and their

expenses are translated at the average

income and

exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
as a separate component of equity (the
translation reserve). Such exchange differences
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
sale are

asset for its intended use or

interrupted or complete.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income
over the periods necessary to match them with
the related costs. Grants related to depreciable
assets are presented as a deduction from the
carrying amount of the relevant asset and are
released to income over the useful lives of the
assets. Grants related to expense items are
recognised in the same period as those
expenses are charged in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and are reported

separately as other income.

Related parties
(a) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if

that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the

Group's parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Related parties (Continued)
(Continued)

(b)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Related parties (Continued)
Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse of
domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
the directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and

future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated net realisable value of
properties under development and held

for sale

Management reviews the net realisable value of the
Group’s properties under development and held for
sale with reference to its estimated costs to
completion, intended use and current market
environment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
the assets exceeds its net realisable value.
Appropriate write-off to estimated net realisable
value is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

In determining whether write-off of properties under
development and held for sale is required, the Group
takes into consideration the intended use of the
properties, the estimated costs to completion, the
current market environment, the estimated market
value of the properties and/or the present value of
future cash flows expected to receive. Write-off is
recognised based on the higher of estimated future
cash flows and estimated market value. If the market
environment/circumstances or estimated costs to
completion changes significantly, resulting in a
decrease in the net realisable value of these
properties interest, additional write-off loss may be
required. As at 31st December, 2017, the carrying
amounts of properties under development and held
for sale are HK$75,239,834,000 (2016:
HK$73,764,899,000) (net of accumulated impairment
loss of HK$812,180,000 (2016: HK$929,964,000)).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of loan

receivables and other receivables

In determining whether there is objective evidence of
impairment loss, the Group takes into consideration
the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31st December, 2017, the carrying
amounts of loan receivables and other receivables
are HK$112,583,000 (2016: HK$Nil) (net of allowance
for doubtful debts of HK$25,121,000 (2016:
HK$25,121,000)) and HK$4,532,674,000 (2016:
HK$4,313,068,000) (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of HK$123,170,000 (2016: HK$122,482,000)),
respectively. More details are given in notes 26 and
27.

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties

Investment properties were revalued as at 31st
December, 2017 based on the appraised market
value by independent professional valuer. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which
are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making the estimate, the
Group considers information from current prices in an
active market for similar properties and uses
assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties (Continued)

The fair value measurement utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs
used in determining fair value measurements are
categorised into different levels based on how
observable the inputs used in the valuation
technique utilised are (the “fair value hierarchy”):

o Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

J Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs
other than Level 1 inputs;

o Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived
from market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has
a significant effect on the fair value measurement of
the item. Transfers of items between levels are
recognised in the period they occur.

The principal assumptions for the Group's estimation
of the fair value include those related to current
market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, appropriate discount rates,
expected future market rents and future maintenance
costs. The carrying amount of investment properties
at 31st December, 2017 was HK$10,904,879,000
(2016: HK$10,406,785,000). More details are given in
note 16.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired
basis. This
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating

at least on an annual requires an
units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable
discounted rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of
goodwill at 31st December, 2017 was HKS$Nil (2016:
HKS$Nil). More details are given in note 19.

PRC enterprise income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Mainland
China. As a result of the fact that certain matters
relating to the income taxes have not been
confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective estimate
and judgement based on currently enacted tax laws,
regulations and other related policies are required in
determining the provision of income taxes to be
made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts originally recorded, the
differences will have impact on the income tax and
tax provisions in the period in which the differences
realise.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT")

The Group is subject to LAT in Mainland China. The
provision of LAT is based on management’'s best
estimates according to the understanding of the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject
to the determination by the tax authorities upon the
completion of the property development projects.
The Group has not finalised its LAT calculation and
payments with the tax authorities for its certain
property development projects. The final outcome
could be different from the amounts that were
initially recorded.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to owners of the
Company through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt,
which includes the borrowings disclosed in notes 35
and 36, cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and accumulated
profits, perpetual capital instruments and non-
controlling interests.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this
review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total bank and
other borrowings plus notes payable less bank
balances, deposits and cash. Total capital is
calculated as “equity”, as shown in the consolidated

statement of financial position, plus net debt.

The gearing ratios at 31st December, 2017 and 2016
were as follows:

Total bank and other borrowings
(note 35)
Notes payable (note 36)

(#17#35)

Net debt B FH
Total equity IetE @R
Total capital BB
Gearing ratio BEBEAKLE

6.

RITREMEERR

FE T R AR (K7 7236)
Less: Bank balances, deposits and cash J& : 2174517 - TR LB &

EXxEBEE(E)

ARBEEBYERIERARE—R- &
WEt 2 BRET  EFEEREAKA R HE
EHEARNERCER - ARESREES
ZIEBEZ  EBRRNKRE  BITHER
BERMLETHEIXBEREGAE  F
BHEBBEARE -

HEANEMAR—H AREZEERR
HRERER - GRALL R ABHBIFRERIA
BARBEEAE - @EFRARTREAME
ERENENRBRRTET FHRER
T E - ERNBEFER/EE MBI K
PR 2 TRCHE | pME 75 75 88

e e A A R

AZAEAELEMT :
2017 2016
—®-—tf C—E—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHR THAR
42,925,236 43,724,279
3,900,000 3,900,000
(20,921,650) (17,581,484)
25,903,586 30,042,795
30,816,581 26,982,059
56,720,167 57,024,854
46% 53%




7.

of financial assets and liabilities:

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Categories of financial instruments
The following table shows the carrying amount

RUBXEEMARAT | 195
T LFFR

7. EMIERBKERKBRER

() EMITEDHE
TR EGHEERBEMNREE

2017 2016
—E—+1HF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Financial assets ERMEE
Loans and receivables B 3N e U AR 3R
— Loan receivables — ERER 112,583 —
— Trade and other receivables —— EWE 5 & H {thBR X 4,518,586 4,448,030
— Amounts due from associates — J& Y B & A &) FK 1B 757,418 37,078
— Amounts due from joint — UG & ERIE
ventures 4,141,267 2,938,059
— Amounts due from — BB R A FEE
non-controlling shareholders A% R I8
of subsidiaries 939,600 542,767
— Pledged bank deposits — BEARRITER 329,237 785,305
— Bank balances, deposits and — RiITETF FRAMES
cash 20,921,650 17,581,484
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 325,839 310,877
Financial liabilities cHmaE
Amortised cost G R AR
— Trade and other payables — B E S R HEMERRK 15,473,700 13,899,985
— Property rental deposits — EHeRS 126,151 126,120
— Amounts due to joint ventures — fEff& & EFKIA 2,258,285 672,749
— Amount due to the ultimate  — B &KL A G RIE
holding company 411,592 388,469
— Amount due to an — ER—HEAFEZERA A
intermediate holding KIA
company 21,034 509,304
— Amounts due to fellow — ERRRNEB R RKIE
subsidiaries 587,869 825,110
— Amounts due to non- — FERTHB A R IEIE R
controlling shareholders of IR FKIAE
subsidiaries 2,529,004 2,161,076
— Bank and other borrowings — RITREMEE 42,925,236 43,724,279
— Notes payable — BRERE 3,900,000 3,900,000
— Loan from a fellow subsidiary — —fE[R R &R 7&K 214,286 202,247
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BE-F—+F= =1 ALFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 7. e@MTEARVKEEKRER
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (&)

(Continued)

b) MBEABREEBERBX

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies

Exposure to market risks (currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in foreign currency
rates, interest rates and equity security prices.
Market risk exposures are further measured by
sensitivity analysis. There has been no
significant change to the Group’s exposure to
market risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risk. Details of each type of
market risks are described as follows:

(i) Currency risk

The Group’'s revenue is mostly
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"),
however, the Group also undertakes
certain transactions denominated in
foreign currencies, hence exposures to
currency risk. In addition, the currency risk
also arises from funding to its subsidiaries
in the PRC. These loans to its subsidiaries
are normally denominated in RMB while
the sources of funding are usually
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
United States dollars (“US$").

Since Hong Kong dollars is being pegged
to US$, material fluctuations in exchange
rates of Hong Kong dollars against US$
are remote.

AREERERBBARTEBED S
[\ B (5 B - 2R L B K A (B
KER) FEERREREE TR
@ o BB 2 F R b 2 BORIE S
T-EEEEEREELMRER -
VAREGR ] & B A WU B 18 B 15 4

™ %5 & B

AEE 2 XBERELER - FI X
EBRAEFEBRES <M BER -
W5 R B — AR E D E
E-AKEEEzTWERBRAIEE
ERFERRzTAALBEERNE
B BEMBRARFBRHMANT

(i) EHEER
AEBEZWARE D AARE
TARBDIE AT A&
BIRETAINNESIE 2 E TR
S HEEBHEERR- Ut
S BB IR R B A AP B
BRARHES K THWER
BAZER—MRUARKEIIE
& & HIRE —ARAB TR E
JLAIME -

BB TTE X TTHES BT
ETEFHRARBEBORE
TR -



7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge against its
The
management manages its currency risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the
rate and consider

exposure to currency risk.

foreign currency
hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

The following table details the Group's
exposure as at 31st December, 2017 that
the currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional
currency and US$ of the entity to which

they relate.

Bank balances, deposits
and cash

Short-term loans to
subsidiaries

Gross exposure arising from BHEREEMEL 2

recognised assets [ fix 48 5B

7.

RFELEEARAT
T LFFR

ERTERMEEREE

(#8)

(b) MBEREEBERBX
(&)

iR E K (4)
i) R (E)

AN B AT & B ERITE
TAAMEHREEERAR - &
BENEATYERINEER
EPAERHEINERR X
REFERHZRETEREE
B

TRFANAEER _FT—LF
TTA=+—HBRANEEE
BIIREEBERETAINZER
SEZ D HEREEXABME
EZERRAR -

RITHET FRERE

BETHBARZEBRER

2017 2016
—E—+1F —E-REF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®F T
15,194 11,501
7,448,665 7,448,665
7,463,859 7,460,166
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 7. TRMIARMBRARERE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (%8)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management b) MBRBEEEEREEK
objectives and policies (Continued) (&)
Market risk (Continued) M i%ﬂ.l@'i (#8)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) (i) E¥EE(E)
The following table indicates the TRIVREAREER RS R
approximate change in the Group’s profit [EEIE-WNEL A= R N
after tax and accumulated profits that HHEIRE B KEERFE
would arise if foreign exchange rates to w A R BT A 2 A EE
which the Group has significant exposure (BRJPTHE A fth [ b B B4 15
at the end of the reporting period had TE) - BRRE D Ty REZ S
changed at that date, assuming all other KEXZPEAREREEE
risk variables remained constant. The ¥R & BACR#5 A 3 IME R
sensitivity analysis assumes that the SHemIE BEASERA
change in foreign exchange rates had BN R A A RROIE R E UK
been applied to re-measure those financial B ZERBEULEARETH
instruments held by the Group which N EBIINEEFIE -
expose the Group to foreign currency risk
at the end of the reporting period,
including inter-company payables and
receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower.
2017 2016
—E-tf —E-REF
Increase Increase
Appreciation (decrease) Appreciation (decrease)
(depreciation) in profits  (depreciation) in profits
in foreign  after tax and in foreign  after tax and
exchange  accumulated exchange  accumulated
rate profits rate profits
BB &R BRBER A
HEE = REEF I B REHEF
FE(RE) ®BmGaD) HE(EE) ECRD)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER
Renminbi ARE 5% 444,277 5% 419,110
(5%) (444,277) (5%) (419,110)




7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk
The Group
interest rate risk in relation to pledged

is exposed to fair value

bank deposits, fixed-rate bank and other
borrowings and notes payable (see notes
33, 35 and 36 for
deposits,

details of these
borrowings and notes). The
Group aims at keeping borrowings at
variable rates. Currently, the Group does
not have hedging policy. However, the
interest rate
hedging
significant interest rate risk should the

management monitors
exposure and will consider
need arise.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on
in the
liquidity risk management section of this

financial liabilities are detailed
note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of LIBOR and benchmark rate
in the PRC arising from the Group’s US$
and RMB borrowings. Benchmark rate is
the prevailing benchmark lending interest
rate promulgated by People’s Bank of
China being 4.35% (2016: 4.35%) per

annum (the “benchmark”).

7.

RFELEEARAT
—T e

EMTARMBEEREE

(#8)

(b) E{?%EH‘@%IE BERBE

(%8

)

™5 b ()

(ii)

RS
AEEREERRTER B
EMETRITREMEE R ERN
EBREHEZEER -EBER
ERZFE B2 E33
35K%36) | 2 A F B F X &
% o NEE AR LOZ B A
KEE - NEE B AL E ¥
WK -AfM BEREESERT
EZRf TERERERERE
R E KRR X E R o

AEBEGRESHAE@EREZFIE
ERFBEEHRRAN TR E
SEBEE - AEHZH
SMEF KRR E ZEF K
BEAEEETRARBEREE
EZ RBEBITEERE KT EH
BEEFEREE) - HEF K FF
BMARBITAMGHIRITEES
REFIRAE35% (=T — /K& :
4.35% ) ([ EEF K ]) o
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to amounts
due from (to) related parties with variable
bank
balances and variable-rate bank and other

interest rates, loan receivables,
borrowings (see notes 20, 21, 27(a), 29,
30, 31, 32, 33 and 35 for details of these
balances, bank balances and borrowings).
It is the Group’'s policy to keep
borrowings at floating rate of interests so

as to minimise the cash flows interest rate

its

risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for both derivatives and
non-derivative instruments at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of asset
and liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis points increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

7.

EHMTARVBRERREE

(&)

(b) Eﬂtﬁ%ﬁtﬁﬁ"éﬂ BERERBE

(%8

)

™5 b ()

(ii)

A 2 [ B (48)

AN E IR HLF B F = pE Uk (FE
MBEBEBALTRE ERE
K IRITETF ROF E R KR 1T
REMEBEE(BEEBZEET
BITHEFERIEEZFRE B2
B] Mt #2021 27(a) ~ 29 -
30313233 &35 mGIR
EREBMERR - ANEE 2K
REEHEFLAZHFRES
ZABBEERENEEBRRER
=K -

BRRE DT
ATHBREDITHERITER
FTETARBEHRZA R
[\ EE T o A B UL 0 AT B 5 1R
BRRBERRZRRBMEE K
AEZEABEEEREFZE
H-MEIEEBAEANBER
MR R RASEER
B ERREEEHMNXRS
BRI BB 2 FF A



7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
If interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's profit for the
year ended 31st December, 2017 would
decrease/increase by HK$27,793,000
(2016: HK$28,878,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable-rate bank and
other borrowings and bank balances.

(iii) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from its investment in listed
available-for-sale investments. The
management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risks. The Group’s equity price
risk is mainly concentrated on listed equity
instruments quoted in the Stock
Exchange. In addition, the Group has
appointed a special team to monitor the
price risk and will consider hedging the
risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
equity price risks at the end of the
reporting period.

If the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 5% higher/lower:

RFELEEARAT
—T e

%%IE&M%E@%E
B

w)%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁgﬁﬁ%

(%8

™5 b ()

(ii)

(iii)

) 2 2 B (48)

B E T (E)

W A & £ F+, 7 BR501E £ 25 i
Fr7a H fth ] S S 45 R
SEEE=_Z—tFt+=A
=t+t—HLEFEZMNER
/18 1127,793,000 7T (=&
—7N4F : 28,878,000/ JT) © It
BlEEEREAEEREZS
FIRBPITREMEE RIBITE
TFRTERZ F R E K -

H i (& 1% [ b2
AEEBRER EH AL E
184 1 B R AR R AR R o
BEAFKABTARRZRA
BAUNERZSRERK - AEE
2B EREREBERNE
B RFREZ ETRET A -
BN - 7S B B R B
ERERER LHEREBE
B 5 7 1 I B 2 L

FRE D
AT 8REDHT T ER & & 8
RFHE e 2 IR (B AR A B B

-
TE °

HERELAZBEEFHT
f%5% :
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Other price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
Investment revaluation reserve would
increase/decrease by HK2,218,000 (2016:
increase/decrease by HK$1,474,000) for
the Group as a result of the changes in

listed available-for-sale

fair value of

investments.

Credit risk
As at 31st December, 2017,
maximum exposure to credit risk which will

the Group's

cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the
guarantees
provided by the Group is arising from the

counterparties and financial
carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

the
management of the Group has delegated a

In order to minimise the credit risk,
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on limited

because the counterparties are banks with high

liquid funds is

credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

7.

2

(4

(b)

:f:
(==}
=

MTARBEREE

)

BRERBEEREBZ
(&)
$%Hﬁ&%
(i) EMERRR (8)
gﬁzf&ﬁ > (48)
REBZHREEGHREEGIE
0, 42,218,000 7t (= Z
— 7N N R 421,474,000

R

IE) + TyER R LA

BEYATEELR -
FERER
R-Z—tFt=A=t+-8 %

SERBFHARERTEERAE
IW%TZWﬁﬁﬁﬁM%E
ﬁZWWEEMEKEA E
WW#R%$%WREEﬁ
%Aﬂ§32$ﬁﬁﬁﬁi°

EEREEERR AEEEHE
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks
with high credit ratings, the Group does not
have any other significant concentration of
credit risk.

Liquidity risk
The Group has net current assets amounting to
approximately HK$39,624,720,000 at 31st
December, 2017.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank and other borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank and other borrowings
as a significant source of liquidity. As at 31st
December, 2017, the Group has available
unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$11,362,356,000 (2016: HK$9,356,170,000).
Details of which are set out in note 35.

The following table details the Group's
remaining contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities. For non-derivative financial liabilities,
the table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

7.

RFELEEARAT
—T e

%%IE&M%E@%E
B

(b) Eﬂﬁﬁt[‘ﬁ%ﬂ BERBE

(#8)

EERRE(E)
BRERRSEASEETIRT R
TrRBHASHERy ETEER
BN AEEVEHEMBBEASEE
EhER -

REE R
RZE—+tF+=ZA=+—H 'K
SEHBABRYEEFEY
39,624,720,0005% 7t °

REBRBECRRIE  A5H
ERM#HRBASRERRRENERE
BRARREZKE AXNAEH
LEMF O LRERSRENDLZ
RE - EREVERRITLHEME
EzR% UNBRTAERZNZ
MIE °

AEEXRBRITEEMEEERE
TRBEESRFE- R _FT—+tF
+ZA=F+—H AEBZRPH
IRITERELE A#911,362,356,00078
(= & — /X F : 9,356,170,0007
JC) o BB EH N M35 -

TRAJNAKE 2 2@ 8 &2 R
BRHR-BRIFETESRARM
FraRRIREBEERABEIRTR
RERENAEEAIKEBRKERLZ
RREAHAREERHE -ZREIA
NERAEHRERE -
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 7. eRMIARMKEEKRER
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (&)
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management b) BEBEREEBEEREEK
objectives and policies (Continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESER(E)
Liquidity and interest risk tables nBEE MM RERR

Weighted
average
effective On demand Total
interest or less than Over undiscounted Carrying
rate 1year  1-5 years 5 years cash flows amount
ik B RERH ARRRES
ELYES PR-F -ZaF BFHNE REAE EHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TERT TER TERT
2017 —E-t%
Non-derivative financial liabilities EiTELmARE
Trade and other payables 8 5 R E AR 15,473,700 - — 15,473,700 15,473,700
Property rental deposits NEREES 126,151 - - 126,151 126,151
Amount due to the ultimate [N ZERRA RFE
holding company
— interest-free — Tit 8 22,420 - - 22,420 22,420
— variable rate — FEA = 4.86% 400,984 - - 400,984 389,172
Amount due to an intermediate B —FREERAR
holding company IR
— interest-free — A 21,034 - - 21,034 21,034
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries &R ZH B A AIFHE
— interest-free — Tit 8 373,583 - - 373,583 373,583
— variable rate — FEA = 7.27% 224,022 - - 224,022 214,286
Amounts due to non-controlling FE A B B 2 R R 42 AR
shareholders of subsidiaries BRRFHE
— interest-free — P& 1,017,904 - - 1,017,904 1,017,904
— fixed rate — EEH = 6.68% 251,291 - - 251,291 241,221
— variable rate — A= 5.46% 1,313,217 - - 1,313,217 1,269,879
Amounts due to joint ventures ENaEEEREA
— interest-free — P& R 1,495,189 - - 1,495,189 1,495,189
— fixed rate — EEM= 4.55% 784,778 - - 784,778 763,096
Bank and other borrowings BOREMEE
— fixed rate — EEH = 5.80% 8,221,053 7,950,426 4,015,018 20,186,497 16,542,985
— variable rate — A= 4.61% 8,029,917 19,894,480 1,736,538 29,660,935 26,382,251
Notes payable (ARES:
— fixed rate — EEH = 4.75% 4,015,781 - - 4,015,781 3,900,000
Loan from a fellow subsidiary —HRAZMBARER 6.00% - 214,286 - 214,286 214,286
41,771,024 28,059,192 5,751,556 75,581,772 68,447,157
Financial guarantee issued in respect B % 3 & A7 &
of credit facilities to associates RECEMERE
and joint ventures EREZHBER
— maximum amount guaranteed — B ERE
(note 44) (Hi5t44) 2,088,743




7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

. ==
(Continued) (&
Weighted
average
effective  On demand Total
interest  or less than Over  undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 year 1-5 years 5 years cash flows amount
T BEg ATEBEE
BRI = PR—F —ERF AENE mEARE EHA
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR TR TET TR
2016 =
Non-derivative financial liabilities FITECRBE
Trade and other payables &8 5 K H i R 3X 13,899,985 — — 13,899,985 13,899,985
Property rental deposits MEREES 126,120 — — 126,120 126,120
Amount due to the ultimate B AR IR R A R B
holding company
— interest-free — T&t 8 21,160 — - 21,160 21,160
— variable rate — A= 4.64% 377,951 — — 377,951 367,309
Amount due to an intermediate R A — fef ot 2 R
holding company NG e
— Interest-free — T&t 8 6,228 — - 6,228 6,228
— fixed rate — EEfx 5.5% 413,446 — — 413,446 399,706
— variable rate — FHH= 5.35% 106,827 - - 106,827 103,370
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries S IEES G E e
— Interest-free — T&t 8 622,863 — - 622,863 622,863
— variable rate — FPF = 7.27% 211,437 — — 211,437 202,247
Amounts due to non-controlling JE {5 1 /B 2 R SR HE AR
shareholders of subsidiaries R R A
— Interest-free — T&t 8 557,957 — - 557,957 557,957
— fixed rate — EEfx 6.24% 668,493 — — 668,493 643,398
— variable rate — FHR= 5.02% 989,816 - - 989,816 959,721
Amounts due to joint ventures &2 MERE
— Interest-free — T&tE 672,749 — — 672,749 672,749
Bank and other borrowings BOREMES
— fixed rate — EEF%x 6.36% 5,623,000 16,761,831 — 22,384,831 19,362,685
— variable rate — FEAx 4.53% 8,188,237 17,017,001 2,258,099 27,463,337 24,361,594
Notes payable AN
— fixed rate — EEfx 4.75% — 4,482,566 — 4,482,566 3,900,000
Loan from a fellow subsidiary —RRAZHERAER 6% — 202,247 — 202,247 202,247
32,486,269 38,463,645 2,258,099 73,208,013 66,409,339
Financial guarantee issued in respect B % i & A7 &
of credit facilities to associates RELEMERREE
and joint ventures REZHBER
— maximum amount guaranteed — BA B
(note 44) (i it44) 1,853,932

FHEZEEARAR]
—T T EFH

7. EMIERBKERKBRER
(#8)

(b)

MEEEEEEREREE

(#&)
nBETRRGE)

MEE & M R RE R &
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c)

Fair values

(i)

Financial instruments carried at

fair value

The following table presents the fair value
of financial instruments measured at 31st
December, 2017 on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair
Value Measurement”. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

. Level 1 (highest level): fair values
measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for

identical financial instruments

o Level 2: fair values measured using
quoted prices in active markets for
similar financial instruments, or using
valuation techniques in which all
significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable
market data

° Level 3 (lowest level): fair values

measured using valuation techniques

in which any significant input is not
based on observable market data

7.

%%Iﬁ&%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
B

(c) B¥{E
(i) UAFEFEZZE
TH

RBEFEF B RELERNF135
[AFEFEIAREN=ELR
FEERA RZZ—tF+=
A=+t BREEHEENE
WEMIANAFEZINT
R NFEAEMBENER
T2 RATEE T EMBE A
BENAEREERERIEE

M -

s FAEFFR): A
EIERMIZ TP AR R
TANBECREHAR)

HEATE

s XA :NBAEREM
SRS R T AR
B -XMEEEHAY
EERREHERERAEER
35 BUR 2 & B Sl &t

EATE

s F=ZA(HEZFR):FA
EREZHAHIFEER
ABRmEREZAE

it &8 A FfE



7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 7.
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
(c) Fair values (Continued)
(i) Financial instruments carried at
fair value (Continued)
At 31st December, 2017, the Group had
following financial instruments carried at
fair value all of which are based on the
level 1 of the fair value hierarchy:
Assets BE
Available-for-sale investments A HERE

(ii)

— Listed

During the year ended 31st December,
2017, there were no significant transfers
between financial instruments in level 1
and level 2.

Fair values of financial
instruments carried at other
than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's
financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost were not materially

different from their fair values as at 31st
December, 2017 and 2016.

— k@

EET

==
(&

RFELEEARAT
—T e

AR EREE

(c) AFEGE)

(i)

DA EEzE#®
TAUE
R-F—tEtF+-A=1+—
A AEEATSETAZIN
DFEERHEZE—RAE
ZRFEARK:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TET
44,367 29,472

(i)

BE_T—tHFt+-_A=1—
HIEFE S—REE_L2
MTAZRYEEMERE

%

WHUAFEFEZ
SRMIAZ2AFE

AEB SR T A REEIZK
A HHEKAAR  ZEERE
BEERZZE—+tFR_T—R
F+-_A=+—HZRAFEL
BMEAEER -
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 7. TRMIARMBEAKRERE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (&)

(Continued)

(c) Fair values (Continued) (c) AFE(E)

(iii) The fair values of financial (i) tHEERSTHERE
assets and financial liabilities ZAFERUATAER
are determined as follows: EE:

The fair values of financial assets with ZERN M BRI R A -
standard terms and conditions and traded RERBREMBEBE L SHME
on active liquid markets are determined E - HERAFERME 2 ER
with reference to quoted active bid prices EERREET MEMSAE
and ask prices respectively; and the fair BEGREBBZATETIR
values of other financial assets and BARZEEER LA
financial liabilities are determined in ZETISER S EER AR
accordance with generally accepted BITRRERESNTMETE -
pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices or rates from
observable current market transactions as
input.
REVENUE 8. WA
Revenue represents the aggregate of the net WABRE =72 W R BRI FE 2 &
amounts received and receivable from third parties, HNBREN 2HBEER) - AKEFA
net of business tax payable in the PRC. An analysis of WAZ BT
the Group's revenue for the year is as follows:
2017 2016
—E-tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Sales of properties ) % 85 & 29,862,706 28,931,153
Rental income and building HeEBRAREFEERD
management service income WA 1,456,841 1,180,330
Income from hotel operations B JE B I A 196,758 189,032
Sales of goods HEE M 89,744 77,951
Others Hfth 96,993 201,860
31,703,042 30,580,326




FHEZEEARAR] 209

10.

T LFFR
OTHER GAINS, NET 9. Hfblhz » FH
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Dividend income % B U A 6,323 57,512
Exchange gain/(loss) P H W, (&i8) 440,910 (458,308)
Government subsidy BRI #78 Bh 15,388 135,924
Gain on re-measurement of an DEBWERENGE —ME
associate to acquisition date fair AN A
value in step acquisition (note 52) NFEEZ W= (B 3252) —_ 21,256
Interest income from bank R1TF B U A 139,128 130,310
Interest income from loan to an ERT—HBEEARERZ
associate B8 W A 6,844 8,299
Interest income from loans to joint ERTAREREFRZAL
ventures WA 186,774 176,721
Interest income from non-controlling  JEIE M= R Z
interest A E WA 17,170 —
Reversal of impairment loss previously % [0] 3@ 7 Tt £ b & Uk BF 3¢
recognised in respect of other R ZREERE
receivables —_ 3,250
Others E A, 181,592 82,184
994,129 157,148
FINANCE COSTS 10. B4 & XA
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RHEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Finance costs on interest bearing STEEERERR
borrowings 2,946,788 3,746,104
Less: amounts capitalised B B AL FRIB (1,984,910) (2,835,670)
961,878 910,434
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10. FINANCE COSTS (Continued) 10.

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose
from specific borrowings.

The capitalisation rate of borrowings was 5.14%
(2016: 5.82%) for the year ended 31st December,
2017.

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 11.

Directors emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section
383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) and the Companies (Disclosure of information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G)
are as follows:

Rl B A ()
FRERZERRAREREEE -
BE-F tF+-A=t—HLEE

BEBRL R A5.14% (= F — K F -
5.82%) °

EEWE

RIEFB R AR (F622F) £38MFEKE A
A(WBEEEMNEER) BB (F622GE)
BRENE=M T :

Other emoluments

Hitti &

Retirement

Salaries benefit
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits Bonuses contributions  emoluments

FeR RGBSR
e HiE A B4 HE 3 BHe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER THER TR TER

2017 —E-tF

Wang Xu B - 3,251 1,255 18 4,524
Xue Ming ZH - 437 - 18 455
Han Qingtao BE - 3,251 1,255 18 4,524
YE Liwen R — 2,801 1,146 18 3,965
Zhu Weirong SRR - 2,801 1,146 18 3,965
Choy Shu Kwan £ H 1 286 — — - 286
Ip Chun Chung, Robert — EiRA& 264 - - - 264
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia RER 286 — — - 286
Wong Ka Lun EXR M 286 - - - 286
Total =h 1,122 12,541 4,802 90 18,555




FHEZEEARAR] 211

R FFR
11. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS M. ESME (E)
(Continued)
Other emoluments
Hit &
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits Bonuses  contributions  emoluments
Fek RIRTER
e H it 48 A TEaL AT EIf B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET TET FET
2016 —B-KF
Wang Xu B — 2,467 306 18 2,791
Xue Ming S — 1,048 — 18 1,066
Han Qingtao BEE - 3,199 667 18 3,884
YE Liwen £33 — 2,807 574 18 3399
Zhu Weirong LA PN — 1,231 574 8 1,813
Choy Shu Kwan £3589 260 — — — 260
Ip Chun Chung, Robert EiRA 240 — — — 240
Leung Sau Fan, RER
Sylvia 260 — — — 260
Wong Ka Lun ER M 260 — — — 260
Total = 1,020 10,752 2,121 80 13,973
According to the relevant rules and regulations of BEHBrEEEEEEEELZESEH
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration RE SHEESFEFENSHBEREH
Commission of the State Council, the annual RANEEEFREHAZFERRME
remuneration package of Mr. Xue Ming is E-BE_ZE—+F+_A=+—HIF
determined by an assessment on his annual B ARRFEEBHE A K #380,0007T
performance at each year end by China Poly Group. (#9437,000/8 7T) " BEZ B & = A E T F
During the year end 31st December, 2017, the Bl (R F) &= B & 18 00 #hfE o

Company paid remuneration of RMB380,000
(approximately HK$437,000) which is still pending the
final approval from China Poly Group.
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11. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

In each of the two years ended 31st December,
2017, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors, as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as a compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors has waived any emoluments
during each of the two years ended 31st December,
2017 and 2016.

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, four (2016: three) were directors of the
Company whose emoluments are included in the
disclosure in note 11 above. The emoluments of the
remaining one (2016: two) highest paid individuals
are as follows:

11.

12.

EEME (B

REBE-_T—+tF+-_A=+—HILMA
FESF AEEHMEREAES M
& 1 3 5B N 82 b hn BE AN SR (B B 2 B2 R
SHBAE RBEE_T—LtFR_-F
—ANE+TA=t—HIMEFELZF "
MEEEREEAME -

AluBSEHMAL

AEERURSHFMALS  BEALQF
ME(ZE—RF:ZEF(EMEH
REXHFEI) 8T~ (ZF—RF
M) ESFEMALZBESMT

e kEMEF
1E4T
IR KR 5T B4 5K

Salaries and other benefits

Bonuses

Retirement benefits scheme
contributions

The emoluments of the remaining one (2016: two)
highest paid individuals were within the following
bands:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEX FET
2,541 5,379
1,266 2,478

234 239

4,041 8,096

BT (ZT—RF:ML)RSHFMA

T2 ME N FIATER :
2017 2016
ZE—tF —E-RF
Number of Number of
employee employee
BEAE PN

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000

2,500,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T
3,500,001 7T 24,000,000/ 7T
4,000,001% 7T £4,500,000/% 7T




13. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

EXPENSE

Profit before income tax expense is arrived at after

charging (crediting):

Staff costs
— directors’ emoluments (note 1717)
— other staff costs
— other staff's retirement benefit
scheme contributions

Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments (included in administrative
expenses)

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Total depreciation and amortisation

Auditor’s remuneration
— audit fee
— disbursements

Cost of inventories recognised as
expenses

Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries

(Gain)/loss on disposal of investment
properties

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment loss on goodwill (note 79)

Impairment loss on other receivables

Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment (note 17)

Operating lease rentals in respect of
— rented premises

Property rental income and building
management service income, net of
direct expenses of HK$537,411,000
(2016: HK$567,207,000)

13.

8 TR A
— BEMe (BiE11)
— HEME TRAK
— H B TRKEF
AT B3R

BIHENHEHERE
GIATTBHAX ZA)

ME - BELRREBTE

IrEREHAE

e B BT
— BB
— BRR
R BHE 2 FERA

R B B AT 2 B R

HEXREMEZ (KK
&8

HEME BELRZEZ
&8

B REEIEHE19)

JFE WE i BR 3 2 R (B B 18

ME BERIBZREBIE
(H1a£17)

UTgBEzE2HERS
—THEYE

MEREWAREBFERE
IRIEWA B EERX
537,411,000/ 7T
(=ZZ— /X% : 567,207,000
B 7T)

B FT 18 Bi B <

FRANEREEARR AT

T FER

EVaNY

B & F

BRATRHAAEMEME(EA):

2017 2016
—B—tF ZT-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER THT
18,555 13,973
950,862 894,726
146,854 132,099
1,116,271 1,040,798
10,160 10,636
124,950 127,905
135,110 138,541
7,900 7,100
850 854
23,852,608 24,670,727
— 110

(5,326) 10,245
10,343 4,333

— 281,331

— 86,458

— 783

41,192 36,374
(919,430) (613,123)
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14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

14. FTBHAX

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Current tax: B HARH 18 -
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BEMEN — —
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — HECEMER 925,756 1,017,635
— PRC Withholding Income Tax — FEENMER 632 5,751
— LAT — TR ER 1,329,043 947,352
2,255,431 1,970,738

Deferred tax: PR E IR
— Deferred taxation — EEFIR 67,118 41,311
2,322,549 2,012,049

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2016:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the
year. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has
been made as there is no assessable profit for both
years. The PRC Statutory Enterprise Income Tax is
calculated at 25% based on the estimated assessable
profit for the year.

The PRC Withholding Income Tax of 10% has been
levied on gain arising on dividend income from a
fellow subsidiary.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 41.

Certain PRC subsidiaries are also subject to the PRC
LAT which is levied at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation of properties, being
the proceeds from sales of properties less deductible
expenditure including costs of land use rights and
development and construction.

EBFER TR AFEE (Gt FERBORE R
Bt E16.5% (=T — NF :165% )5t & »
B A PR 4F FE 15 42 FE AR B8 A - R0 #E
EBMNESHELEEG PEEECEMS
Tt To AR ¥R AN F 2l 5T FE SR B R A R F =R
25%&T & °

BEREMEARMEREKAZKRREDIR
B EI0% AP EFRHFAFH

BRRLEN IR 2 F BRI ME41 -

ETHENBARMAESXPELIEE
o MBRBESRYEFTED (AL EY
EMERBR AR - B L E A
R AN DA B2 B 3 B2 SRR R) #5291 F-30%
260%2 REH R HU -
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T HFFER
14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 14. T8 H B X (&)
The income tax expense for the year can be FAMSEHRAXBEGEERERT ZHRAE
reconciled to the profit before income tax expense in i X AR A SRR T
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as
follow:
2017 2016
—E2—tHF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Profit before income tax expense B P 15 Bt BA 2 A& A 4,889,189 2,233,221
Tax at PRC statutory tax rate of 25% & /1 B A /& Fi R25%:+ &
(2016: 25%) ZHIB(ZF—RF : 25%) 1,222,297 558,305
Tax effect of share of results of SIEBERAIERZ
associates i 15 = 22 2,521 3,882
Tax effect of share of results of joint HDIEAEELEFEEZ
ventures B R E (49,522) 7,632
Tax effect of expenses not deductible I~ AJ {EFL 75 R 2 B 2 2
for tax purpose M= & 165,573 303,123
Tax effect of income not taxable for  HEBZRM Z WA ZH BT E
tax purpose (350,146) (45,998)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERTEBEB BT E
recognised 343,934 542,419
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses ENH ZAIARERHBEIEBZ
previously not recognised M= & (35,987) (116,782)
Effect of different tax rates of REMBDERERKE 2
subsidiaries operating in other MEBARZ NEHRE L
jurisdictions T 122,697 130,913
Effect of tax already subject to LAT BN T It ER 2 M8 1,040,699 710,514
PRC Withholding Income Tax B TE NPT AS A 632 5,751
Others HAl (140,149) (87,710)
Income tax expense FR 1S %t X 2,322,549 2,012,049
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15. EARNINGS PER SHARE BEREA

FRERERREER N TIRE TSR

15.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per

share for the year is based on the following data: FTE
2017 2016
—E-tF N S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FHET
Earnings: BF
Profit for the year attributable to RNAREE ANEAS
owners of the Company £ A 5 A 2,462,061 80,745
2017 2016
—g-tf  -—F-x
Number of shares: BB :
Weighted average number of ordinary &t & &% & A & #58
shares for the purpose of basic and Bz B m
diluted earnings per share F15 & 3,661,537,046 3,661,537,046

No diluted earnings per share is calculated for the

HRRE-F—+F+-A=+—AR=

years ended 31st December, 2017 and 31st E—ARFTZ A=+ BILFEYRER

December, 2016 as there was no potential diluted

BAEL BB

B ETEREFENOER

ordinary share in existence.

BEAaN -

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REY =%
2017 2016
—E—t —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Level 3 fair value measurement FE=MAFEF=Z

At beginning of the year F 1 10,406,785 11,095,284
Additions AN=E 2,018 737

Transfer to property, plant and ER Y BB RFE
equipment (60,000) —
Transfer to properties held for sale HRBEHEME (104,103) —
Change in fair value N EEE 66,329 116
Disposals & (14,743) (65,339)
Exchange adjustments PE 5 38 2 608,593 (624,013)
At end of the year F R 10,904,879 10,406,785




16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(Continued)

The fair values of the Group's investment properties
at 31st December, 2017 and 2016 were arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by
AA Property Services Limited, an independent
professional surveyor and property valuer not
connected with the Group. AA Property Services
Limited is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors, and has appropriate qualifications and
recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuation
were determined either on the basis of capitalisation
of rental income derived from existing tenancies or
by reference to comparable sales transactions as
available in the relevant market. The Group’s
property manager and the chief financial officer have
discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results twice a year when
the valuation is performed for interim and annual
financial reporting.

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties
measured at the end of the reporting period is
categorised as level 3 of fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13.

RFELEEARAT
—T e

16. REW X (&)

AEBREMVER_FT—LFR-_FT—RK
FT_A=T—BZAFENRBILEE
AEMRYEHEMRSYEBRRERA
Al(EASEMERE RZENGEERE
E-RDYEBRARDATEEEM
BezkE BEQREBERKIOIHHER
WEz RBREYEETHEER - Zb
BENREEREHEZHEWAZERE
HEEYRZ2EREEMBAFSZAELR
HEXFMETE AEEVEEEARE
FM B E N EF MR MG ER RBEERM
wEERKREGEEER  KEZ25FHR
FEMBHRS -

AEERMEREEEHEREURRES
SEERNEERGE2MERED  HANAR
FEEAFE APBEARINEREY
e

RBEEHRAEBZAEEREDE 2 AF
BRI BR/RE LM B RS ERE13
BAEENAFESRINEE=H

The carrying value of investment properties REWEZREEBS
comprises:
2017 2016
—E— —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
Properties held under T T 5130 75 LA 31 75 =
HEZME
— long-term leases in Hong Kong — RBEEZERHAALY 185,000 195,000
— medium-term land use rights — KBz A+
in the PRC £ FA 4 10,719,879 10,211,785
10,904,879 10,406,785
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(Continued)

Information about level 3 fair value

16. REME (&)

FEEZEH

measurements
Fair value
as at Significant Range or Relationship of
31st December, Valuation unobservable weighted unobservable inputs
2017 techniques* inputs average to fair value
R-B-tF
+t=A=t-H EART TTBEBAHERE
NATE fEERMG B3 DN ¢ HEAMETFY ATFENEE
HK$'000
THT
Completed properties 185,000 Direct comparison  Transaction price HK$24,400 The higher the transaction price,
in Hong Kong ERLER (HKS$/square feet) (2016: HK$19,000) the higher the fair value
REENRINE 5B/ 2440080 RHEHRES RTELS
(Br/ERR) (Z2—RE:
19,0007 7T)
Completed properties 4,996,335 Direct comparison  Transaction price RMB3,600-RMB45,800  The higher the transaction price,
in PRC ERLR (RMB/square metre) (2016: RMB3,600- the higher the fair value
REENRTYX RHER RMB45,800) R ZERMSE A FELR
(AR®T/FHK) AR#3,600T2
AR %45,8007C
(Z2-—RF:
ARH3,600TE
AR #45,8007C)
Completed properties 5,723,544 Income approach  Capitalisation rate 2.7% to 30% The higher the capitalisation
in PRC WA TN |dgs (2016: 2.4% to 35%) rate, the lower the fair value
NGk RS 27%%30% ERchE#S ATEGE
(ZB-—"F:
24%%35%)
10,904,879
S Fair value of completed properties is generally derived using * BRIYENRATFE-—REAEZELBERF/E

the direct comparison approach unless reliable market
information is not available for certain properties due to their

locations or specialised function uses.

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
recognised in the line item “increase in fair value of
investment properties”

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

There were no transfers into or out of level 3 during

the year.

on the face of the

(AR EXFEREMRZAETHEMDN
BT WERRI)

BREMEZ AFEABRINGEERARA
[(REMEZ RAFEZINIEB R -

REAF=RALBEMEAREL -
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17. ME-BERRKE

EQUIPMENT
Furniture,
Hotel Leasehold fixtures and Motor Plant and  Construction
properties land Buildings  equipment vehicles  machinery in progress Total
G %E
BEENE HELH BF ET RE  BEREE ERIR &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL TR T FHL TR T FHL TR
Cost or valuation: RAGME
At 1st January, 2016 RZZE-"E-A-H 1,109,881 115,230 980,972 230,100 172,219 230,024 12,179 2,850,605
Additions HE — — — 30,821 4,656 1,771 2,013 39,261
Transfer R — - — 9,322 — 1,507 (10,829) —
Transfer from properties BARBEHENS
held for sale - - 174,379 - - - - 174,379
Disposals HE — — (4,363) (3,884) (3,481) (28) (2123 (13,879)
Acquisition of subsidiaries KENBAR
(note 52) (Hits2) - - - 570 4 - - 574
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HHREAR
(note 53) (Wit53) - - - (340) - - - (340)
Deficit arising on revaluation ~ ZfEE 1 (71,323) — - — — - — (71,323)
Elimination of accumulated HERANE
depreciation (44,745) — — — — — — (44,745)
Exchange adjustments EHAE (62,353) - (54,523) (12,415) (9,085) (12922) (635) (151,933)
At 31st December, 2016 and R=F—RF
1st January, 2017 tZA=1+-AEK
“E-t%-A-H 931,460 115,230 1,096,465 254,174 164,313 220,352 605 2,782,599
Additions nE - - 4,123 18,853 4,874 3,774 685 32,309
Transfer B - - - - - 866 (866) -
Transfer from investment BEARANE
property - 54,000 6,000 - - - - 60,000
Transfer to properties BIBELENE
held for sale - - (269,537) - - - - (269,537)
Disposals e - - (335) (12,702) (50,585) (13,234) (85) (76,941)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wt E 2R
(note 52) (Hyit52) - - 4,978 2,997 161 11,205 - 19,341
Surplus arising on revaluation ~ EfF &% 44,548 - - - - - - 44,548
Elimination of accumulated HEZHE
depreciation (44,548) - - - - - - (44,548)
Exchange adjustments EXAZ 55,444 - 63,569 12,842 9,238 12,644 32 153,769
At 31st December, 2017 R-2-t#
+=B=+-H 986,904 169,230 905,263 276,164 128,001 235,607 3N 2,701,540
Comprising: (25
At cost BRA - 169,230 905,263 276,164 128,001 235,607 371 1,714,636
At valuation — 2017 RiEE -3 —t& 986,904 - - - - - - 986,904
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1st January, 2016

Charge for the year

Impairment loss

Disposals

Acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 52)

Disposal of a subsidiary
(note 53)

Elimination on revaluation

Exchange adjustments

At 31st December, 2016 and
1st January, 2017

Charge for the year

Disposals

Acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 52)

Elimination on revaluation

Transfer to properties
held for sale

Exchange adjustment

At 31st December, 2017

Carrying value:
At 31st December, 2017

At 31st December, 2016

17. W% - BMERZRE(E

Furniture,
Hotel fixtures and Plant and Construction
properties Leasehold land  Building quipment Motor vehicles  machinery  in progress Total
BARE
BENE BELH & ET RE  HEREES ERIR &it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn TR TR Fisn TR TR Fisn TR
ZitiE:
R=E-7~E-F-H - 43,689 224,852 145,152 114,159 204,283 - 732,135
FEMR 45,773 2,305 31,883 25,816 17,564 4,564 - 127,905
HEBR - - - - - 783 - 783
itk - - (3,626) (3,383) (2,512) (25) - (9,546)
WEKBA R
(Hit52) - - - 246 1 - - 247
HE-FHKEAA
(Hi##53) - - - (196) - - - (196)
BERHE (44,745) - - - - - - (44,745)
EREE (1,028) - (12,733) (8,280) 6,376) (11,579) - (39,996)
R-B-AE
+-A=+-AkK
“2-t§¥-A-AH - 45,994 240,376 159,355 122,836 198,026 - 766,587
FEMR 43,012 3,205 27,096 34,715 11,650 5,272 - 124,950
HE - - - (12,462) (41,660) (12,476) - (66,598)
KR EA R
(Hit52) - - 825 2,418 155 10,670 - 14,068
EfERHE (44,548) - - - - - - (44,548)
EIHELENE
- - (26,641) - - - - (26,641)
BN 1,536 - 14,580 9,397 5,837 11,530 - 42,880
R=B-tF
+=A=t-H - 49,199 256,236 193,423 98,818 213,022 - 810,698
REE:
R-B-+%
+=A=t-H 986,904 120,031 649,027 82,741 29,183 22,585 371 1,890,842
ANE-RE
t-A=+-A 931,460 69,236 856,089 94,819 41477 22,326 605 2,016,012
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17. W% -BERKEE)
EQUIPMENT (Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment Lty BERZEEBOREGEN
are depreciated using the straight-line basis at the E FBEWEFENAT
following rates per annum:
Hotel properties 2% B JE W) % 2%
Leasehold land over the lease term HE T 2 18 4 F B
Buildings 2%-18% BF 2%-18%
Furniture, fixtures and 20% R B RRE 20%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20% qE 20%
Plant and machinery 5%—-23% BB Kt 28 5%-23%
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
The carrying value of hotel properties, 7 R[5 LA T35 XN #FH
leasehold land and buildings ZHEEME HETHR
located at: BFZEREE:
— long-term leases in Hong Kong — RBBZRHAMEDY 142,371 86,242
— medium-term land use rights in the — R E Z & Hf 1t {E
PRC % 1,613,591 1,770,543

1,755,962 1,856,785
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17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s hotel properties at 31st
December, 2017 was arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on that date by AA Property
Services Limited, an independent professional
surveyor and property valuer not connected with the
Group. AA Property Services Limited is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and has
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in
the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations. The valuation were determined by either
discounting the construction cost or arrived at by the
income approach, whereby the income derived from
the hotel operations with regard to past trading
accounts are capitalised at an appropriate rate of
return to arrive at the value of the property interests
with due allowance for outgoings and expenses. The
Group's property manager and the chief financial
officer have discussions with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results twice a
year when the valuation is performed for interim and
annual financial reporting.

The fair value of the Group’s hotel
measured at the end of the reporting period is
categorised as level 3 of fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13.

properties

17.

MRk

Y% BB R&E(E)

AEEBEENER_FT—LF+=-A
=T -BZAFELBIEEAEMEY
XMEMRTIVEERERAR (BEAKE
EERE) R AZHEEE -RDY
XERERARNEBNEMBE 2K
B ABERAEERKIMYERILEZF
BAYMEETHEZER RHETDEBR
PHRBEXANRRABALETE - B E
FOREEBERS KRB LB EER
WABERLL UEGHEMEEDRZEE I
MAERRAXLEREEERE ~NKEY
XEBEANBEMBECREBEFMAMGE
B EM N mEERRLGERER A
B2NFHMRFEMBRSE -

RBERARAEBZAEEBEDE 2 AF
BRI BRREBMBREERF135%
MBEENATFESFRHES =M -
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e
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17. 0% - BERRE(E)
EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Information about level 3 fair value EBRE=R L FEFEZEH
measurements
Fair value as at Range or Relationship of
31st December, Valuation Significant weighted unobservable inputs
2017 techniques unobservable inputs average to fair value
RZZ-t#F
T=ZA=+-H EXTAEE EES FURZBAHBEAT
WATE HERN BAHE mELY ENBE
HK$'000
TET
Hotel properties in Beijing, 380,952 Income approach  Capitalisation rate 4.5%-9.8% The higher the
PRC (2016: 5%-11%) capitalisation rate, the
lower the fair value
AR b R 88 1 % W% BRI X 45%%9.8% B EHS
(ZE—RE: AFEBE
5%%11%)

Estimated profits from RMB6,700 The higher the estimated
operations (RMB/ (2016: RMB6,700) profits, the higher the
square metre) fair value

2EfhEHaE A ARM6,700 fEEHaEAEE
(ARET/FAEK) (ZE—RE: ATEBS

AR #6,7007)
Hotel properties in Wuhan 605,952 Cost approach Adjustment to 16%-30% The higher the discount
and Guiyang, PRC construction cost (2016: 10%-20%) rate, the lower the fair
(Discount rate on value
building cost)
REBEREREGH A BERAHE 16%%30% MHEHR
BED* (BFRAFER) (Z2-RF:10% RTEHE
£20%)

Construction cost per RMB9,500- The higher the

square meter 13,000 construction cost, the
(2016: RMB4,700- higher the fair value
RMB9,700)

BEHKRBERA AREIS00TE EBERAHS
AR#13000t 2AFEHS
(ZE—RE:
AR#4,700T 2
AE#97007T)

986,904
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Information about level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

Surplus on revaluation and exchange adjustment of
properties held for own use are recognised in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
“Surplus arising on revaluation of properties”.

There were no transfers into or out of level 3 during
the year.

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

17. W% -BERKEE)

ERE=MAVEFEZEHN
(%)

BIEERNE L BEHRELBETIR
RARERBRZ MEBHERIER -

REAF=MIBEEMEAREL -

18. A HENRE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
The Group's prepaid lease payments A% [E 2 B & 7H1B
comprise: BiE
— medium-term land use rights — KRBz A+
in the PRC {5 A 1 335,560 326,640
The Group's prepaid lease payments A& B~ A7 & FU8
comprise: BiE
— current asset — mBEE 10,175 10,397
— non-current asset — ERBEE 325,385 316,243
335,560 326,640




FRANEREEARR AT

the property development segment. Goodwill is
tested for impairment by the management by
estimating the recoverable amount of these cash-
generating units based on value in use calculations.
These calculations use cash flow projection for the
specific property development project based on the
financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period. The discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 4.4%.

B
19. GOODWILL 19. B &
2017 2016
—E—+iHF = A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT THET
Cost: B — 816,630
Accumulated impairment losses: 2t REEE
At 1st January R—H—H — 535,299
Impairment loss for the year FAREEE — 281,331
At 31st December R+ZA=+—H — 816,630
Carrying amount: BREE :
At 31st December R+ZA=+—H — —
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be T8 HA I B T SR ) BB Al BT S A e
deductible for income tax purpose.
Impairment tests for cash-generating EERBZHSELEBENZR
units containing goodwill ﬁiﬁ\ﬂ S
Goodwill of HK$Nil as at 31st December, 2017 (2016: R-ZFB—tH+-A=1+—8 BBXEH
HK$Nil) acquired through business combination has A{ﬂﬁﬁ E’JF‘?%Z\/%TE( TR F: =T
been allocated to certain cash-generating units within BT)ESEIMEZER > AE TR

@Ei%& c BRERBFEAEETEE
HET L FREEE B A AT B BB LA
TREBREANR ZFFERERFH -
NEEEREBHECVBEELRER &
"Lf %%%E&Iﬁﬁ?ﬁfﬁimifﬁ E'J Iﬁi
mMETERAZ TR EE4.4% °
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BE-F—+F= =1 ALFE

19. GOODWILL (Continued) 19. & (E)

20.

Key assumptions used in the value in use
calculations

The following describes the key assumptions on which
management has based its cash flow projects to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Revenue from the property
development project

MEZBRER ZHBA

Cost of construction

AEEREESARAZER
f& &%
MTAEREETHBRENRN B
ReRBAKEZ EERR:

The selling price is estimated by management by reference to the
average selling price of a similar property in the relevant locations

EEE2ZHAMERUME L FHEERGAZER

The cost of construction is estimated by the engineering department

based on the projected cost to completion of the project

R EEK AR

As at 31st December, 2017, due to decline in
expected
companies, the recoverable amounts of these project
companies as separate cash-generating units are
estimated to be lower than their carrying amounts
and an impairment loss of HK$Nil (2016:
HK$281,331,000) was recognised for these project
companies in 2017.

revenue from the relevant project

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

TRHIMRBEBE T T 2K AMET ZBREKRAE

R-ZE—+tE+-HA=+—H AN HHE
HEARMEHKATER  HrtEEE
2E(ERERREEESM) M KE S
EONAEREE R-E—tEEE
BERRERREEESZEL(ZE— X
£ : 281,331,000/ 7T) °

20. REFE RN Az =

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHET
Cost of unlisted investments in REgE R a2 IEET

associates REK AR 334,455 271,422

Share of post-acquisition losses and S IEEEEREE -
reserves, net of dividends received kB W B (38,410) (26,578)
Goodwill [k 2,110 1,473
298,155 246,317
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T FFER
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. Rt N Al 2w ()
(Continued)
2017 2016
ZE—iF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Amounts due from associates: JE Wt Bt & R B 5RIE
— Interest-free — TEHE 547,214 —
— Fixed rate of 8% — BEE M *=8% 92,857 37,078
— Fixed rate of 9% — BEE M E9% 117,347 —
757,418 37,078
The amounts are unsecured and repayable on EARBHREER BARERERN
demand or within one year. R—FRNERE-
Details of the Group's principal associates as at 31st AEERTZHA=+T—HB2ZEXEBE AT
December are as follows: ZEEBWMT
Proportion of ownership
interest by the Group
rEBEEEELLH
Place of
establishment and
Name of associates business 2017 2016 Principal activities
BERNT BB RUIREEMYE —ZT—tF TR TEXEK
a2 0D B b EE 2 PRC 30% 30% Property development
BRAG((AENLPEHE]) FEH ) 2 3% R
BEEXFLTEXBERAG PRC 25% — Property development
(ME Rt ]) A ) 2% % R
BEREEZXFRA A PRC 30% — Property development

(TE/sBEE]) B B R
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(Continued)

The above table lists the associates of the Group

which in the opinion of the directors, principally

affected the results or assets of the Group. To give

details of other associates would, in the opinion of

the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Additions during the year mainly included the

investments in a number of property development

companies together with third parties. None of the

acquisition was individually significant to the Group.

Summary of the acquisitions are as follows:

Rk

20. RBtE A E 2R ()

’

EERR ERIHBAKE ZXELE
EREAREZASERERR] YRR
M EMEE AR 2 ERFAIL 8%

FRENTEERBRAE=7TREXZXY
XERAR -HAKREMEMETMKE
BEREXN -WEHENT :

Total
Bt B B et
Identifiable net assets AERBFEEE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
Identifiable assets and liabilities A#HAEE K
assumed BEREAE
Assets BE 2,791,630 683,394 3,475,024
Liabilities =X (2,690,363) (629,038) (3,319,401)
Identifiable net assets A RFEEE 101,267 54,356 155,623
Reconciliation to the Group’s BEAEEABE QA
interests in associates Y FE 25 E BR
Cash consideration for the WHER R E
acquisition (29,761) (17,857) (47,618)
Fair values of the Group's share PN e e i
of identifiable net assets FEEZATE 29,761 17,308 47,069
Goodwill S — 549 549
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. A& NEl 2 fEXE (B)

(Continued)

EXBERTMBERNRE

Summarised financial information of

material associate

Summarised financial information in respect of the RNE B E KK = A E 8B5S E B ZE H5
Group’s material associate is set out below: U
HMEMNDE i E
2017 2016
—E-tF ZT-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
As at 31st December R+t=-—A=+—H
Current assets BB E 1,817,217 1,597,360
Non-current assets EMEBEE 6,522 4,830
Current liabilities mEBE (559,002) (280,424)
Non-current liabilities EmEAE (416,667) (505,618)
Included in the above amounts are: STALMRIEHNIEE A
Cash and cash equivalents RekFREE 34,107 134,123
Current financial liabilities (excluding HRBEEMEEB(TEEEZE S K
trade and other payable) E b & {5 50I8) (170,055) (141,353)
Non-current financial liabilities FRBERAE(TREEMm
(excluding other payable) &S FRE) (416,667) (505,618)
Year ended 31st December BE+T-A=1+T—HLEE
Revenue A 1,282 -
Net loss and total comprehensive ERFEREERREE
income (16,083) (51,767)
Included in the above amounts are: STALMRIEHNIEE A
Depreciation and amortisation I & N (145) (140)
Interest expense PNz (4,238) (30,789)
Income tax expense FriS %M X (1,349) (934)




230 POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO. , LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e B RR M

For the year ended 31st December, 2017

BE—F—+F1+—A=+—HIFEF

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. REE N TR 2= (58)
(Continued)
Summarised financial information of EABEQAANEERNBE
material associate (Continued) (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial L ER M EEE RS B TSRk
information to the carrying amount of the interests in R B N B A RO BRTE B A BT RR

the associates recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:

2017 2016
—T—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Net assets BEFE 848,070 816,148
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7K B # £ # 25 £t 1
interest 30% 30%
Group's share of net assets rEEDIHEEFE 254,421 244,844
Gooduwill kS 1,561 1,473
Carrying amount in the consolidated  #x& B/ 1% & R &
financial statements 255,982 246,317
Aggregate information of associates FERERNEE QA ERE
that are not individually material "
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET

Carrying amount in the consolidated 43 & M ISR X R E
financial statements 42,173 —
Group's share of losses rEBESHEE (5,258) —
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21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. REE L ERER

2017 2016
—E—+t& —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cost of unlisted investments in joint RAEZMLEZIELETMEREK
ventures PiN 4,035,953 2,364,198
Share of post-acquisition losses and SN EEBERES 10
reserves, net of dividends received BB WA B (79,001) (54,254)
3,956,952 2,309,944
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Amounts due from joint ventures: FEW & & (b ¥ FKIE ¢
— Interest-free — TF R 738,342 166,024
— Fixed rate of 4.35% — [EE F %4.35% — 528,137
— Fixed rate of 5.7% — [ E A *E5.7% 90,357 —
— Fixed rate of 5.8% — [E 7 F %&5.8% 476,191 —
— Fixed rate of 6.33% — [EE F*&6.33% —_ 337,079
— Fixed rate of 7% — [EE M E7% 373,512 352,528
— Fixed rate of 7.5% — [E E 7 *&7.5% —_ 112,360
— Fixed rate of 8% — [EE F E8% 1,206,940 848,068
— Fixed rate of 10% — (& E A *10% 519,570 —
— 110% of benchmark rate in the — 110% 7 [ = 2% Fl| =
PRC 736,355 593,863
4,141,267 2,938,059
Amounts due to joint ventures: et & & hRRIA :
— Interest-free — TFt R 1,495,189 672,749
— Fixed rate of 4.35% — [EE M %4.35% 611,905 —
— Fixed rate of 5.34% — @& E A *&5.34% 151,191 —
2,258,285 672,749
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21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. REELEZRR(B)
(Continued)
Details of the Group’s principal joint ventures as at AEERT_A=+T—BZFEELEDLE
31st December are as follows: ZEBWE

Proportion of ownership
interest by the Group

AEBMBEEEBLH
Place of
establishment and
Name of joint ventures business 2017 2016 Principal activities
EELELRE RYIREEME —ZT—tF —T—F TEEK
w I T AR B BT O A PRC 45% 45% Theatre management
AR A Gy Bl BT B 12
FERITKREERFGR LA PRC 100% (i) 50% Investment holding
(=222 H RE R
FERBEMEBRAT PRC 50% (i) 25% Investment holding
(Tkea&E]) A REE
FERMNEBIREGR QA PRC 50% 50% Investment holding
H RE R
BRRMNEFKREGR DA PRC 46.7% 41.5% Property development
Gy MEER
EMERNXEREERBRAAF PRC 50% 50% Investment holding
H RE R
LBREZEEEERAR QA PRC 50% 50% Investment holding
Gy REE
tERERKREERGR LA PRC 50% 50% Investment holding
H RE R
LERREEEEAER QA PRC 50% 50% Investment holding

B BEEK



21.

RFELEEARAT
—T e

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. REERX 2 Em (F)
(Continued)
Proportion of ownership
interest by the Group
AEBEEREELLH
Place of
establishment and
Name of joint ventures business 2017 2016 Principal activities
EHELEETE RIREEWE —T—tF T "F TBEHK
FEeRKEFRAA PRC 50% 50% Investment holding
H & 7R
AT RBEERZEEBR AT PRC 50% 50% Property development
(DRIYNR 3 5 2 1) A ) 2% % R
rIlTREFHERZBR AT PRC 50% 50% Property development
H MEER
HZE 55 0E 1 E i &= 5 3% PRC 64.3% 64.3% (iii) Property development
BERAR(EUEFBREN]D) A ) 2% % R
ErEarREFMWERZEABR LA PRC 33% (ii) — Property development
AI(MEmER] H MEER
R ENEFERAA PRC 33% (ii) — Property development
(FEk E#l) A ) 2% % R
Profit Maker Holdings Limited  BVI 50% 50% Investment holding
EERXES A& 7R

233
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21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(Continued)

The above table lists the joint ventures of the Group

which in the opinion of the directors, principally

affected the results or assets of the Group. To give

details of other joint ventures would, in the opinion

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

The Group acquired an additional 50% equity interest of £/&
B 0T in 2017 and thus accounted for as a subsidiary of the
Group. E/8E%T holds 50% equity interest in /8BS,
which is an investment holding company in the PRC. After
the acquisition of /82547, £/8218 becomes joint venture
of the Group. For details, please refer to note 52.

The Group acquired 33% equity interests in &g & {R and %
JE £ 8 respectively at a total consideration of HK$47 million

in 2017 to expand business in property development.

The Group previously indirectly held 100% of &% & [58 5
through a wholly-owned subsidiary #1t{R 3% & B R A A
("HILRFEFEE"). In December, 2016, 70% equity interest of
HIZF 57 were disposed to FBREIFEE A IKEE (IR
A 1K) ("ERBIRE") (note 53). After the disposal, # 3t 1R Fll 4%
&remains 30% equity in ELEFE[5E 7 but loss control in the
board of directors of & )& &[5 7).

KSR E is a limited partnership incorporated in PRC. &3l
RSSVEEEERBERLDA ("WARIIAIE"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, is a beneficiary partner who
entitled 49% interest in ZK/G{REl. According to R/EB{RE
partnership agreement, all partners contractually agreed
sharing of control of ¥/BRE, HIZ®EE ) become a joint

venture of the Group.

21.

ReEghEoka(E)

EERR ERIHBAKE ZXELE
EREAREZARERERE  IRR
MEEmeECEZERFAIL 8%

GEX

(i) AEBER T — L FUWIE LBRITRIN0%MK
o EAMEERAEENBARARK - LB
A LeRE(-RRPBEEMKRLINEE
2% A B))S0% AR o W BB LB ATIR - B
BERAAEENGERE - FIEHF2HME
52 ¢

(i) AEBR_ZT—tFNENREL708BTH
Rk RS R B AR R B £ HA33% AR AE - AR
MBS -

(i) AEEZEREZEMBRAAMIERFNEES
RAF (DHILRFIRE ) BESERE TG E
N100% AR - R=F—RF+=-/ &K
BHERZERG B N70%BR A DS THBREK
BEANREEERE K (THREBRZD (K
53) c HE®R  HMIERMBRERF B REFEHE
N30%H AR BREHRERHBENE
EEEEGIRE o

HKERBARTEEMKINBREE AT -
ARRzEMBARRIIA S EEEER
BRAR(DRYIFNED RESZABA » FHK
BREA9%M s - RBEIRERBABHE
BEABAZHRBARZEHIRERE BE
BERIKASASENAGERE-



21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21.

(Continued)

Summarised financial information of

material joint ventures
Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s material joint ventures is set out below:

RINRHE b E

As at 31st December R+=HA=+—H
Current assets mEEE
Non-current assets ERMBEE
Current liabilities nBaE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE

RFELEEARAT
T LR

REEhEzRRE (B

EXRELXMBENEE

AEBEAGECENMBERBEERD

m

Included in the above amounts are: GTA UGB A A A -

Cash and cash equivalents ReRkFREE
Current financial liabilities Ve =R
(excluding trade and other payable) (TEEEZESNEM
FE {5 508D
Non-current financial liabilities ERBEMEE

2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
3,231,372 182,998
14,706 2,951,308
(107,517) (120,262)
(1,058,333) (998,876)
41,057 6,589
(104,959) (120,262)

(excluding other payable) (B H th & 5KIE) (1,058,333) (998,876)

235



236

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO. , LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e RSk M T
For the year ended 31st December, 2017
BE—F—+F1+-_H=+—HIFE

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

Summarised financial information of

21. REE ¥R (E)

EXRELXMBENGE

material joint ventures (Continued) (&)
Year ended Year ended
31st 31st
December, December,
2017 2016
Bz H=
—E—tHF —E-REF
+=A +=A
=+t—H” =+—H
LtFE EFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TFET
Revenue A — -
Net loss and total comprehensive ERFERETERREE
income (26,499) (3,036)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interests in

the joint ventures recognised in the consolidated

financial statements:

Net assets
Proportion of the Group’s ownership
interest

Group's share of net assets and
carrying amount

PR BEHBERE NG B RRE
ROEELERDWREEN LK :

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZEFE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FET
BEFE 2,080,228 2,015,168
PNCETE ol s ]

50% 50%

AEELSHEEFEK
BREE 1,040,114 1,007,584
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T +FFR
21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. R R (E)
(Continued)
Summarised financial information of EXGETEVBERBE
material joint ventures (Continued) (&)
=223
2017
L
HK$'000
FHET
As at 31st December R+=-—B=+—H
Current assets mENEE 9,107,675
Non-current assets IEREBEE 713
Current liabilities mEAE (6,105,401)
Non-current liabilities EREEE —_
Included in the above amounts are: GIA_EHFIERIEE A
Cash and cash equivalents RekZFERRE 1,022,907
Current financial liabilities mEeRaE
(excluding trade and other payable) (T"BEEHKHMERNKIE) (3,663,105)
Non-current financial liabilities EREeRmaRE
(excluding other payable) (1B 48 H h FE - 5018 —
2017
—E—+tF
HK$'000
FET
Revenue A —

Net gain and total comprehensive income W F 5 & 2 W 48 5 —
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21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. REEhEEoRE(E)
(Continued)
Summarised financial information of EAGELENBERBE
material joint ventures (Continued) (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial tﬁﬁﬁ‘%ﬁﬂﬁ% BB MR a B IS ki
information to the carrying amount of the interests in VEEEEREENERENSH R :
the joint ventures recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:
2017
—E—+tfF
HK$'000
TER
Net assets BEFE 3,002,987
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 7N &S [ B R R L 50%
Group's share of net assets and carrying AEEDEEEFEKRKREE
amount 1,501,494

Aggregate information of joint ventures

that are not individually material

FEHEANEELEERE

Carrying amount of not individually EGW%?KZ%E‘:‘ FEEAEXR

material joint ventures in the aETCENKREE

consolidated financial statements

Group'’s share of loss KEEDIHEE

2017 2016
—T—tF ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET TAET
1,415,344 742,342
(44,867) (27,447)




22. DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION  22.

OF LAND USE RIGHTS

At beginning of the year F 10

Deposits paid mENE&

Transfer to properties under HEBEZERRPYE
development

Exchange adjustments ME 5, o B

At end of the year FR

The deposits were paid by the Group to PRC
government authority in connection with the bidding
of three (2016: three) pieces of lands in the PRC for
property development purpose.

FHEZEEARAR] 239

T LR

WiEtEREENEE

2017 2016
—®—tF ZTAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
1,551,551 960,518
— 1,424,584

— (779,590)

92,354 (53,961)
1,643,905 1,551,551

AEBETFBECHARENERRAR 2=
BT —RF: =R L2 BRRATE

BRERXMiEE -
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EE—

23.

24.

F— 1A= —AILFE

DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION
OF SUBSIDIARIES

At 31st December, 2017, the amount represented
deposits paid by the Group in connection with the
acquisition of subsidiaries which was mainly engaged
in property development. The acquisition has not yet
been completed at 31st December, 2017.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
AND HELD FOR SALE

2. WEMBRARAENRE

RZBE—+F+_A=+—HBHHLEELX
SERKRBIERENEERZMEBAR
ENfzRE ZBERBR-_T—tF+=
A=+—BHEAKRZK-

24, BERPRFFEHEYRE

2017 2016
—E—+t & —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET
Properties under development located 1 74 1 B ) 2 [& AP ¥ %
in the PRC
— medium term land use rights — r HA A nh (s PR 45,584,142 45,966,304
Properties under development located A7 & & K 2 R F ¥ %
in Hong Kong
— medium term leases — FHELD 8,047,211 6,893,607
Properties held for sale located R EEFEREYE
in the PRC
— medium term land use rights — R HER A b {5 BB RE 21,608,481 20,904,988

The impairment loss on properties under
development and held for sale of HKS$Nil (2016:
HK$86,207,000) is recognised in profit or loss for the
year ended 31st December, 2017. The impairment
loss of 2016 was due to the decrease in the
estimated net realisable value.

75,239,834 73,764,899

HE-T—tF+-A=t+-BLFE
RBRPERERD KA ENERE
EEZTHET(ZZT — N4 : 86,207,000%
) s ZE—AEREBBR G R EHT
8305 ER D T E -



25.

26.

OTHER INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Other receivables (net of allowance
of HK$123,170,000)
(2016: HK$122,482,000)

FRANEREEARR AT 241

25. HEE

R ¥ #t
R
LK

W B 5 BR K
B RERB R

JFEE L L Ath BR SR (30 Bk 7
123,170,0003% 7T )
ZZ— /X4 1 122,482,000
75 7T)

o
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
25,956 54,441

602 153
27,499 83,214
54,057 137,808

26. EWWE 5 & H 1 iR

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEX FET
244,123 364,339
244,123 364,339
4,532,674 4,313,068
4,776,797 4,677,407
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(@) Aging analysis

The credit terms in connection with sales of

(a) BR#R 2 AT

MRk

26 EWE S REMBRR(E)

RHENERTEFP ZEEHERN

properties granted to the customers are set out
in the sale and purchase agreements and vary
from agreements. There is no concentration of
credit risk with respect to trade receivables
arising from sales of properties as the Group
has numerous customers. In respect of sales of
goods granted to trade customers, the Group
allows an average credit period of 30 to 90
days. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables based on the invoice date, net of
allowance for doubtful debts at the end of the
reporting period:

0 to 30 days T E30K
31 to 90 days 31E90Kk
More than 90 days iR 1B90K

EEha BEOBEIEEHY
EMATRA BRAEEREERZE
P #UthENEELEZREES
RRYEETFEERR -RAES
EFHEEmME  AKEF 30
REQRNEZFHEER KR
THARREZAME2IZCRKRES
ARR (FOBR RERBUHE) FREC DT AT -

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEX FET
92,766 111,592
6,849 5,778
144,508 246,969
244,123 364,339
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—T e
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i3

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. EWE S R EMBR ()

(Continued)
(b) BHERBEZEKES

(b) Aging of trade receivables which are

past due but not impaired

91 to 365 days 91£2365K

Included
balances are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$144,508,000 (2016:

HK$246,969,000) which are past due at the end
of the reporting period for which the Group has

in the Group’s trade receivable

not provided for impairment loss. The Group

does not hold any collateral over these
The balance arises from sales of
properties of HK$136,148,000 (2016:
HK$239,292,000), sales of goods of
HK$7,597,000 (2016: HK$7,070,000) and rental
income of HK$763,000 (2016: HK$607,000).

Based on past experience,

balances.

the directors
consider that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered to

be fully recoverable.

AR X 2 AR R

2017 2016
—E—+tHF = A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
144,508 246,969

AEEEKEIRAEHANBIER
M & & 144,508,000/ T (= =
— 7N £F 1 246,969,000 JT) 2 FE U
HRE ZERBERBESHERE B
H - BAREEYERESEER
B AEBVERZEERFTHLE
MEFER - ZEEHBHEYWE
136,148,000 L (= & — /X F:
239,292,000%8 Jt) B & B M@
7,597,000 (= & — X F:
7,070,0007% 7T) & # & Y A763,000
BIL(ZZF — /N F : 607,000/ T) E
EoREBEBELR EERABE
RZEERIEFLRERE  RES
EEEETESERNES  MEHRD
AR AT 2 HUE o

N 7
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27. LOAN RECEIVABLES

(a) Non-current loan receivables

(b) Short-term loan receivables

Loan receivables include mortgage loan
receivables which are secured on properties and
repayable by monthly instalments with various
tenors not more than 25 years at the year-end
date and carry interest at rates with reference
to banks’ lending rates. As at 31st December,
2017, none of the loan receivables have been
overdue but not impaired, of which 100% are
aged less than three months since the due
dates. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom the creditworthiness,
collateral and subsequent settlement after
reporting date are assessed and there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and
the amounts are still considered recoverable.
Impairment losses in respect of loan receivables
are recorded using an allowance account unless
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against loan receivables
directly. The balance and movement of the
impairment allowance as at 31st December,
2017 is not significant.

Other loans (note)
Less: Impairment loss recognised & : & 2

(a) FRBEVER

(b) BWEHER

H Al &R (B at)

27. EWWE R

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFET
112,583 —

ERERBERKIRBEN LY
EREW REEBBFAKTE
FH - BAOHMEN MBEE2ER
TEFME - R_FT—+tF+=-A
=+t—R #SEERKEREAME
YEBE FAERKERBBHA
AR AN=EA %ZERHES
AEREEBAR - @ RN,
SRHRERZIBULETEFER =
EERWEEREH  FAEDRBR
AR E - B E R 2 RE BB A
BERIIE BRMAEERA/ZX
BAARAglE  RREEREEE
BREEBKERME R_T—1tF
TZA=+—HB REBGZ&EH
MEEBHITEK -

2017 2016
—E—4H —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
25,121 25,121
(25,121) (25,121)
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—E—+FFR
27. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 27. ERE R (&)
Movement in the allowance of short- EWEHERZRBREZEE
term loan receivables
2017 2016
—E—tfF ZT—XEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Balance at beginning and end FHRFEREH
of the year 25,121 25,121
Note: B & -
In accordance with loan agreements, the other loans carry interest RIBEE R G - EMERIRI2%(ZFE—RF : 12%)
at 12% (2016: 12%) per annum and repayable on demand. No FRERGFE UARBREE - REBEE-_ZT—+tFK
interest was accrued for the two years ended 31st December, 2017 —E—RE+_A=+t—BIRMEFELERF
and 2016. I
28. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 28. A ERE
INVESTMENTS
2017 2016
—2—t¥F —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Listed investments: EmEE :
— Interests in equity securities listed  —REBE LW Zl&A
in Hong Kong (note a) BHEZRER (Mita) 44,367 29,472
Unlisted securities: FELEMESF
— Equity securities (note b) —WAREBES (B itb) 281,472 281,405

325,839 310,877
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28. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Notes: PR -
(a) The interests in listed equity securities are measured at fair (a)
value at the end of each reporting period.
The change in fair value of HK$14,895,000 (2016:
HK$$7,289,000) was credited/charged to investment
revaluation reserve.
(b) The unlisted equity securities represent investments in unlisted (b)

equity securities in the PRC and are measured at cost less
impairment at the end of each reporting period because the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair

values cannot be measured reliably.

29. AMOUNT DUE TO THE ULTIMATE

HOLDING COMPANY

29.

TEHE
BB R K 2 92%
B R ERN K 295.1%
OB R K

Interest-free

92% of benchmark rate in the PRC
95.1% of benchmark rate in the PRC
Benchmark rate in the PRC

The amounts are unsecured and repayable on

ﬁ
\E

demand or within one year.

T ERAEZER

28. JHERE (E)

EMERARF ZzEERSREPREZDFE
u+¥

A FA{E 7 # 814,895,000 7T (=T — N 4 ¢
7,289,000 7T) B st A /B B &% & =
1% °

FEMBEAESERNFEZIF EHRARE
ZRE ARARTEERRTHAEMAE
FZERAZAFE  REZE\IIESREHR
ZRABERETE

YNEIE /]

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEX FET
22,420 21,160
32,029 30,230

— 337,079

357,143 —
411,592 388,469

%““E%ﬂﬁW&Mﬁxxiﬂ FA
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e
30. AMOUNT DUE TO AN 30. EN—REHEERQTNRE
INTERMEDIATE HOLDING
COMPANY
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Interest-free T B 21,034 6,228
Fixed rate of 5.5% & F F %&5.5% — 399,706
Benchmark rate in the PRC plus 1% AR B AL E R R 111% — 103,370
21,034 509,304
The amounts are unsecured and repayable on ZERBLREEMRRERERIN—FR
demand or within one year. & -
31. AMOUNTS DUE TO FELLOW 3. ENERKE A KA
SUBSIDIARIES
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest-free NEr B 373,583 622,863
Movement of benchmark rates in the  F B E YRR 7 & &)
PRC plus 7.27% n7.27% 214,286 202,247
587,869 825,110
The balances are unsecured and repayable on ERAEERARARERERER-

demand.
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32. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) NON- 32. BUR (f3) Fff B A B FE = R IR

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS OF RFIE
SUBSIDIARIES
2017 2016
—E—+t& —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Amounts due from non-controlling JiE U B /BB 2 &) FE 2R A%
shareholders of subsidiaries: AR SRR -
— Interest-free — & B 791,452 111,840
— Fixed rate of 10% —[& 7E A %10% 131,310 113,624
— Fixed rate of 12% —[& F F &E12% 16,838 8,988
— Benchmark rate in the PRC — R B B E R & — 308,315
939,600 542,767
Amounts due to non-controlling JE T B B 2 B 3E 15 AR
shareholders of subsidiaries: % B 5K ¢
— Interest-free =7 E 1,017,904 557,957
— Fixed rate of 6% — & F 6% 95,238 505,617
— Fixed rate of 6.85% —[& 7F #1 2£6.85% 70,983 66,995
— Fixed rate of 7.38% —[& 7F F| &7.38% 75,000 70,786
— Benchmark rate in the PRC — P B LR &K 535,714 684,956
— 106% of benchmark rate in the — i B E R K 2 106%
PRC 63,422 72,518
— Movement of benchmark rates in — i B EE R K 2 BB N
the PRC plus 7.27% 7.27% 267,857 202,247
— 120% of benchmark rate in the — R B R K 2 120%
PRC 317,588 —
— 130% of benchmark rate in the — i B E 2R 2K 2 130%
PRC 85,298 —
2,529,004 2,161,076
The amounts are unsecured and repayable on ZERELRERARARERERE -

demand.



33. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND
BANK BALANCES, DEPOSITS AND
CASH

(a)

Pledged bank deposits represents deposits
pledged to banks to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group. Deposits
amounting to HK$329,237,000 (2016:
HK$785,305,000) have been pledged to secure
general banking facilities and are classified as
current assets.

The pledged bank deposits carry interest at a
fixed rate ranging from 0.3% to 1.265% (2016:
0.3% to 0.35%) per annum. The pledged bank
deposits will be released upon settlement of
relevant bank borrowings.

Bank balances include HK$924,800,000 (2016:
HK$188,528,000) which carry interest at fixed
rates ranging from 0.37% to 3.24% (2016:
0.37% to 3.24%) per annum and
HK$19,995,108,000 (2016: HK$17,391,148,000)
which carry interest at variable rates ranging
from 0% to 1.73% (2016: 0% to 1.95%) per
annum.

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances,
deposits and cash denominated in RMB
amounted to approximately HK$18,590,753,000
(2016: HK$16,487,773,000) as at 31st
December, 2017. The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies.

FRANEREEARR AT

—T e
3P.CHMBITER RITE
FERRRE
(a) BERABATERERRERTAE

B —MEBTEEMERTRTZ
17 3 o /A& 8(329,237,000/8 7t (= &
— 7% 4F 1 785,305,000/ JT) 2 77 &
BEEEE UBE—RBITEE"
WHBERRSEE -

BEEBRTFEREN
1.265% (= T — X ¢
0.35%) 2 B E FFIE5FHBE °
MITERGREZTE @RS
B R o

> T0.3% =
0.3% %
o B 3K

1ji 1S HT

FERITHETF R - A& 2924,800,00075
JTL(Z=Z — 7N 4 : 188,528, ooo;‘%ﬁ)
% N F0.37%%£3.24% T — X
F :0.37%%E3.24%) 2 l JE F | &
=t B 5 $019,995,108,0005% 7T (—
T — N 17,391,148, 0005% JL) &
N F0%E1.73% (= T — )N F : 0%
i1.95%)2/ﬁb¢%lj%s+,%\ °

—tF+ZA=+—8" KA
RESTENEEMIBITHFR - RIT
# - F X Kk B & 8 A
18,590,753,000% jL (= & — /X F -
16,487,773,000/%8 7T) > A & ®& 4~ A]
ERERSEMER -
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33. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND
BANK BALANCES, DEPOSITS AND

CASH (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising

from Financing Activities
The table below details changes in the Group's

liabilities from financing activities, including

both cash and non-cash changes.

arising from financing activities are liabilities for
g ]

which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash

flow statement as cash flows from financing

activities.

At 1st January, 2017

Changes from financing cash flows:

Borrowings raised

Repayment of borrowings

Capital contribution by non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Dividends paid to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidaries

Advances from joint ventures

Repayment to the ultimate holding company

Repayment to an intermediate holding
company

Advances from fellow subsidiaries

Advances from non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries

Total changes from financing cash flows

Exchange adjustments

Other changes:

Discount of bank and other borrowings
Interest expenses

Construction expenses

Guarantee charges

Total other changes

As at 31st December, 2017

R=%-tF-A-H
BERSRERD:
HARR

ERER
HEAAFERRRLE
BRMEARFRRRRORE
AELRA
ERTRALRAT

T -ARRERAR
BENEARER

HEAAFRRRRERN
BERERERDER
EXAE

Ati#e:
FORABERZAR
HERX

BERAX
BRAX

EwEees
RZF-tE+-A=1-A

3P,.EEMRITHER - RITH

1z

EFERERES (&)

b) MEEBELA 2ABEHR
TREJAEEARETHELEZE
BEPFE 2R RERSE

Liglsilfias FomBEEHELECABERBE SN
EIRKRERENAEEHGZEAR
ERPROBEAREBEFINAR
ERBWAE-

Amount due  Amount due Amounts due
to the to an to non-
Amounts due ultimate  intermediate  Amounts due  controlling Bank and
to joint holding holding to fellow  shareholders other
ventures company company  subsidiaries of subsidiaries  borrowings
(note 21) (note 29) (note 30) (note 31) (note 32) (note 35) Total
FEff Efi-& Eff ERHE
Efigg BRER HEER REME  AIFER &R
b¥E AEARA AARA AARAE RR%E HitfEE
(i) (Haz) Wit30) Was) (Wi (35, At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER THR TR TER TER TER
672,749 388,469 509,304 825,110 2,161,076 43724279 48,280,987
- - - - — 17130554 17,130,554
- - - - —  (20,090,456)  (20,090,456)
- - - - 7,935 - 7,935
- - - - (59,814) - (59,814)
1,545,491 - - - - - 1,545,491
- (12,719) - - - - (12,719)
- - (518,586) - - - (518,586)
- - - 571 - - 511
- - - - 163,778 - 163,778
1,545,491 (12,19 (518,586) 571 111,899 (2,959,902)  (1,833,240)
40,045 23123 30,316 49,114 180,514 2,159,443 2,482,555
- - - - - 1416 1416
- - - - 75,515 - 75515
- - - (286,932) - - (286,932)
- 12,719 - - - - 127119
- 12719 - (286,932) 75,515 1416 (197,282)
2,258,285 411,592 21,034 587,869 2,529,004 42925236 48,733,020




34. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

35.

Trade payables

Bills payables

Other payables

& & 5 Bk
et R &
& A< L At B 5K

As of the end of the reporting period, the aging
analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date

is as follows:

0 to 30 days

31 to 90 days
More than 90 days

T E30K
31£90K
i 390K

The average credit period is 90 days. The Group has

financial risk management policies in place to ensure

that all payable is within the credit time frame.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Bank and other loans

— Secured

— Unsecured

RITREMEK
— B
— B K

FHEZEEARAR]

T LR

3. BN E Z K H iR

2017 2016
—E—+tHF = A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
10,548,019 10,492,556
4,184 —
5,000,301 3,460,506
15,552,504 13,953,062

RESHRZERAH2IN RN E S

KRBT
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT TET
3,947,813 5,071,002
79,368 300,455
6,520,838 5,121,099
10,548,019 10,492,556
FHEEHRIOKR - AEEEE BT R
REBRR  BRAEENERTBRE
ERR-
5. |MITREMEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET
19,041,370 16,915,953
23,883,866 26,808,326
42,925,236 43,724,279
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35. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 35.

(Continued)

The bank and other loans are repayable as follows:

Within one year or on demand

After one year but within two years
After two years but within three years
After three years but within four years
After four years but within five years
After five years

Less: Amounts due within one year
shown under current liabilities

Amounts due after one year

Fixed rate
Variable rate
— Benchmark rate in the PRC
— London Interbank Offered Rate
(LIBOR)

— Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (HIBOR)

—FAREEKX
—FRETBEMF
MEREBEBIBB=4F
—FRETBBHEF
MERBIBBERSF
EFEMNE

SR RE B E
—F AN HIE

—FRINBHE

& 5 A &
B FI R

— R R R R

— WBRITE %
HE (B
RITR
HE)

— BABRITAZE
"E(FE
RITR %
K E)

(5

53

ROTRHEMEE(E)

RITMEMERZBHPELT

2017 2016
—EB-tF —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
15,835,437 13,398,644
8,517,558 17,001,635
10,675,985 5,589,139
4,527,839 2,675,412
369,048 3,565,742
2,999,369 1,493,707
42,925,236 43,724,279
(15,835,437) (13,398,644)
27,089,799 30,325,635
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx THET
(i) 16,542,985 19,362,685
(ii) 20,815,833 16,915,966
(iii)
— 3,118,893
(iv)
5,566,418 4,326,735
42,925,236 43,724,279




35. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

The balance carries interest charged at fixed rates from 4.8%
to 8.8% (2016: 4.8% to 8.8%).

The balance carries interest charged at variable rates based
on benchmark rate in the PRC ranging from 90% to 130% of
benchmark rate in the PRC (2016: 90% to 130% of
benchmark rate in the PRC).

The balance of 2016 carried interest charged at variable rates
based on LIBOR plus 3.4%.

The balance carries interest charged at variable rates based
on HIBOR ranging from HIBOR plus 1.5% to 2.5% (2016:
HIBOR plus 1.5% to 3.4%).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has

the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

Variable rate

RFELEEARAT
—T e

I[/RTRHEMBE (B)

W -

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

g %

HE

R B E M K4.8%E8.8% (=T — N :
4.8%%8.8% )t B °

EARABRBPREENMENFRBEEER X
90%ZE130% (=T — /N 4F : IRP B EEF &2
90%£130% ) F B FI K5t 8 ©

“E-RFHEBBREMRBERITEEFS03.4%
FEFI KGR o
EHRRBEEBRTAERENFEBRTRE

EHRBIMIS%E25%(ZF—RNF  EHHBE
TRZEFRBNIS%E3.4% ) FEF R B -

HIR  AEEE NI RERBER

Fixed rate

7 BRI

— expiring within one year ——FRE®

— expiring beyond one year ——FRE®W
[E £ A &

— expiring within one year ——FANEm

— expiring beyond one year ——F1&Em

Several banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment

of covenants relating to certain of the Group's

financial position ratios which are commonly found in

lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the

Group breaches the covenants, the drawn down

facilities would become repayable on demand.

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
1,467,817 196,629
8,596,920 8,440,440
47,619 —
1,250,000 719,101
11,362,356 9,356,170

ZRRTEERABRTEIRETAEENK
bt & W RN B
BRI ZERLH - WAKEE RS

R R 2 RE

EXBZEENKARREREER -
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35.

36.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued)

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants and is up to date with the scheduled
repayments of the term loans. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in
note 7(b). As at 31st December, 2017 none of the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been
breached (2016: none).

NOTES PAYABLE

On 16th May, 2013, the Group issued the 4.75%
notes due 2018 in the aggregate principal amount of
US$500,000,000 (equivalent to HK$3,900,000,000).
The notes bear interest at the rate of 4.75% per
annum, which are payable semi-annually in arrears on
the interest payment dates falling 16th May, and
16th November, in each year.

The movements of the notes are set out below:

R—A—8
B

At 1st January
Interest expenses
Less: Interest paid

At 31st December

Current
Non-current

o ERAR

35.

36.

Rt+—_HA=+—8H

RITREMEE (E)

AEBEEHMERRLETZE
BREENHREEFHER -
nBEERRBRNE - FTHBENME
JEN
e

ZERLE L
Ko REBEHE
Ib) - R—ZE—+F+=-_A=+—8H
SEVTEEREBDAEEEEN
TN E)o

BARE

REZE—=FRA+,H AEEETR
ZE - N\FREHFFEBLTIS% L EE
N % # % /5500,000,000% T (H & R
3,900,000,000/% JT) ° iz & S & & F Fl X
4.75%xt B FIBREREBEUANTFEFEREN
RABSEXSMNBEIEA+BE+—A
+xB) X

SREHHINWT

2017 2016
—®-—tf C—E—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHR THAR
3,900,000 3,900,000
182,250 185,250
(185,250) (185,250)
3,900,000 3,900,000
3,900,000 —
—_ 3,900,000




FRANEREEARR AT

“E—HFFR
37. SHARE CAPITAL 37. BA
2017 2016
—E-tfF —E-RF
No. of shares HK$'000  No. of shares HK$'000
BRBEE THERT ik th % B FHET
Ordinary shares, issued and  E ik - B ETRAR :
fully paid
At 1st January and R—A—B R
31st December +=-—RA=+—H 3,661,537,046 17,685,677  3,661,537,046 17,685,677

38.

In accordance with section 135 of the Companies
Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the Company do
not have a par value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

In order to provide incentives or rewards to the
directors and certain employees of the Company and
certain eligible persons (the “Eligible Participants”) to
contribute to the long term success of the business
of the Group, the board of directors of the Company
in the best
Company to adopt a share option scheme.

considers that it is interest of the

At the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 28th May, 2014, the shareholders of the Company
adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”), pursuant to which the Eligible Participants
may be granted a maximum of 364,463,704 options
to subscribe for shares of the Company upon and
subject to the terms and conditions of the rules of
the Share Option Scheme. The Share Option Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the adoption date of 28th May,
2014 and expiring on 27th May, 2024.

38.

RIBCR AR PI) B 13505%
BRreBmEE-

/NI

EARNRROZAESARETEEIR
MRERARAEZ LEBREK -—FNE
Ao 2MEBRRARRNNBEELS

N ZAR="2 Y
=T

EREE

REBARBARREERETRERENUR
ETRERAL((AERZ2EEHAK
BEBRENKMELER  AARES
ERRRABREAETEANRRREFR

N2
S o

B

R-ZE—WERA -+ N\BETHEQT
K=y Nl ol /N [ e S
sl ([EiRERED) Bt B8R HE
& 0] AR R A 2 BR 5 B A% 48 51 B4R Bl A9 65K
NG R IR A364,463,70410 BER #E
IAREEA R R IRD o BRERT 8 AR
B —_E—mMERA -+ N\BRHABE
HTEIER —_E_NERA-++HE
W e
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38.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(Continued)

According to the Share Option Scheme, the board of
directors of the Company may grant options to (i)
any director and employee of the Company or
subsidiaries, or an entity in which the Group holds an
interest (“Affiliate”); (ii) any customer, supplier,
agent, partner, consultant, adviser or shareholder of
or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; (iii) the
trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or any
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which
include any director, employee, customer, supplier,
agent, partner, consultant, adviser or shareholder of
or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; or (iv) a
company beneficially owned by any director,
employee, consultant, customer, supplier, agent,
partner, shareholder, adviser of or contractor to the
Group or an Affiliate to subscribe for shares in the
Company for a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of

share options granted.

Share option granted should be accepted within 28
days from the date of grant. The board of directors
may at its absolute discretion determine the period
during which a share option may be exercised; such
period should expire no later than 10 years from the
date of grant of the relevant option. The board of
directors may also provide restrictions on the
exercise of a share option during the period a share

option may be exercised.

The exercise price is determined by the board of
directors of the Company, and shall not be less than
the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Company's
shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing
price of the Company’s shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the total
number of shares in issue.

38. ERAESTEI(E)

REBEBRETE  ARBEFSA RN T
BENREAIRBARA R 2 BRE - T
BFROZBEREZKERIBT: 5F
BERRE (WARAXMBARRAEH
FAEEGZER((BEBEAR ZEMNES
FEE:(WAEEABBRARZEMNE
F-#iEm K2 SEBHF @A
R RRSIEBE (iR ABREUT
AT ZEAERZZFEA AWBELERE
BATALTZERARBER: BEALE
BRAEESBMBARZEMNES &8 -
ERE el KB AERBH FA
A BB RRKARBR - k(v AEEK
BEBARCEMNES EE HHAA T
F-#tEm K2 AFEEHF KR E
HAXACHERBEANRT -

Rz BRERRRL ZBEF =N
BARERN E=ZSr2RERNBEEEER
BRI TR MABHARKERRN
BRHEEBREZCAES TFER EF
ENMARTEEBRER] TITEZARITE
B Z R

ARREZGEEZTEENSERAT
RRJEE  ()ARARMNELEERZ
W E: (NEERL BT REEEAR
RABMZ FHETHE -

FE A M AT 8 A R AR 1 R A B AR i 5T
AT A BB MR ARTTE 2 BAE
BUERATERTZBROESHE a1
TEEBBEEHITRMD BB Z30% -



38.

39.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(Continued)

The total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each
individual under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
(including both exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the total

Company.

number of shares in issue of the

As at 31st December, 2017 and 31st December,
2016, no share option was granted under the Share
Option Scheme. The total number of options
available for grant is 364,463,704 (31st December,
2016: 364,463,704), representing approximately
9.95% (31st December, 2016: 9.95%) of the issued
shares of the Company.

PERPETUAL CAPITAL INSTRUMENTS

During the year ended 31st December, 2014, the
(the
“Perpetual Capital Instruments”) to third parties with

Group issued perpetual capital instruments
an aggregate principal amount of RMB788,970,000
(approximately HK$998,696,000) and the Group
further issued an aggregate principal amount of
RMB211,030,000 (approximately HK$251,226,000) in
2015.

The Perpetual Capital Instruments have no maturity
date and the Group had discretion not to declare
any investment returns. Therefore, the Perpetual
equity
equity in the

Capital Instruments are classified as

instrument and recorded in

consolidated statement of financial position.

The Perpetual Capital
redeemed in 2016.

Instruments were fully

38.

39.

RFELEEARAT
—T e

BRER(E)

AR+ @A R - R & A
Ro 78 BUEAA] B b s B wE =1 &1 i 10 118 31 A
ITREZBERE(BREDITE THEAE
RITEZBRE) ETEBEETRAT
BT CBRPDAE - THREBRARACET
Bip e 8iz1% °

RZBE—+F+_A=F+—"HRER-_ZT—N
F+-_A=1+—8 HEREBERKETS
BEOERE THEHNBRESE S
364,463,704 (ZZE—<"E+=_A=+—
H : 364,463,70413) » {h AN 2 A E 1T
BH9.95% (—E—"F+-_A=+—8:
9.95% ) o

KAEXRTH

BHE-_Z-—MNME+_-_A=+—RBILFE
AEBEBREF=ZFETRKABEARALEA
[k ABARITED G5t AE8EA
A K #788,970,0007T ( £7998,696,000/%
T)  BEXREER _ZE—AFEHETEAS
B A K A A K #211,030,0007T ( 4
251,226,0008 7T) F) K A B AR T A o

KABARTAWESEE MAKEAH
BAEREMKEERDR - Bt - ZkAE
RIEDBERERIE WESFE MR
MRFT AR

KABRIABRZZ—AFREEZHE
[E] -
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39. PERPETUAL CAPITAL INSTRUMENTS 39. XA EAR T A (4)

40.

(Continued)

Movement of the Perpetual Capital Instruments is as
follows:

At 1st January, 2016 RZE—R"FE—H—H

Profit attributable to KABARTEREFAA
holders of Perpetual JEAE & 7
Capital Instruments

Distribution to holders of 9K FKAEBERTLEA
Perpetual Capital BHEA
Instruments

Redemption of Perpetual fEEIXKAEZEATEA
Capital Instruments

Exchange adjustments M 5, 38

At 31st December, 2016, RZZT—F
at 1st January, 2017 and +=-_HA=+—H
at 31st December, 2017 —E—t%—H—H
kK=ZF—+H%+=H
=+—H
LOAN FROM A FELLOW
SUBSIDIARY

The amount represents loan from a subsidiary of the
ultimate holding company. The amount is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable upon expiration of the
joint venture term of Poly Plaza Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company.

The fair value of the loan at initial recognition has
been determined based on the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted using the
prevailing market rate of 6% on the date the loan
was granted. The loan is then carried at amortised
cost in subsequent periods of effective interest rate
of 6% (2016: 6%).

XARATABHIOT :
Principal Distribution Total
& Pl ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TT FAEXT FET
1,190,476 36,996 1,227,472
— 72,325 72,325

— (105,617) (105,617)
(1,123,596) — (1,123,596)
(66,880) (3,704) (70,584)

40. —EF R B 2 8 & K

SRR R AR AR 2 A — R 2L A
ZER - BB ABIER T B RAR
ARAKBRAVRIAEERAR 2 A E
2T W 2

N EREZERZATFEZREHER
B HZBETMES N RRITE 2 et &K
REeERBZRBENE - ZEXRNHEEZHM
BB AN A BB R ReBHNER (ZF— X
F6%) e
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41. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 41. EEZEMRIEBELSE B E

The deferred tax assets/liabilities recognised by the REBRAFERBEFERR ZELER
Group and the movements thereon during the HEE/BABEREZHNT
current and prior years are as follows:

Expenses
recognised in
profit or loss

but deductible
in subsequent

Deferred tax assets: Tax losses period Others Total
RER
E®AET
RERSH
EEHREE: HEBR R #9 B X Hitr At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR
At 1st January, 2016 RZE-R"F—H—H 103,856 268,793 31,501 404,150

Acquisition of a subsidiary U &[T E 2 7

(note 52) (Htits52) - 4,263 - 4,263
Disposal of a subsidiary  HENELA A

(note 53) (H13253) - (6,801) (47) (6,848)
Charge to profit or loss MK EER (56,753) (16,239) (3,868) (76,860)
Exchange adjustments B 5, 5 28 (4,558) (14,679) (1,682) (20,919)

At 31st December, 2016 R-ZT—X"E+-F=+—H

and 1st January 2017 E—E—tF¥-A—H 42,545 235,337 25,904 303,786
Credit (charge) to profit T A (K A) B

or loss - 13,078 (15,703) (2,625)
Exchange adjustments PN B 2,532 14,476 981 17,989

At 31st December, 2017 RZZE—+%F
F=H=—H 45,077 262,891 11,182 319,150
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41. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 41. EZERIEEE &E (&)
(Continued)

Revaluation of properties

MEEM
Properties
Investment Hotel under
Deferred tax liabilities: properties  properties development Others Total
EEHEEE: REMF BENE BEHUE Hit &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TATL TATL TAT

At 1st January, 2016 RZZE—RF
—A—H 1,300,002 72,531 121,559 3,524 1,497,616
Credit to consolidated FAREEANER
statement of
comprehensive income - (17,831) - - (17,831)
Charge (credit) to profit or M B (Gt A) B
loss 13,287 - (48,530) (306) (35,549)
Exchange adjustments [E X A% (73,332) (4,075) (5,739) (190) (83,336)
At 31st December, 2016 ~ RZZT—RF
and 1st January 2017 +ZRA=+—-RAk
—+&—H—H 1,239,957 50,625 67,290 3,028 1,360,900
Charge to consolidated ~ HBREEHZRAZE
statement of Wi &
comprehensive income — 11,137 — — 11,137
Charge (credit) to profit or B (FFA)E &
loss 13,016 — (1,925) 53,402 64,493
Exchange adjustment [E 5 A% 74,272 3,013 3,937 2,087 83,309
At 31st December, 2017 :g tF

+-RA=1+- 1,327,245 64,775 69,302 58,517 1,519,839




41. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(Continued)

At 31st December, 2017, the Group other than its
subsidiaries in the PRC had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$901,443,000 (2016:
HK$633,896,000) for offset against future assessable
profits. Such unused tax losses may be carried

forward indefinitely.

In addition, at 31st December,
PRC subsidiaries had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$8,131,738,000 (2016:
HK$7,109,462,000) other than those unused tax losses
for which deferred tax has been provided for, for

2017, the Group’s

offset against future assessable profits. The maximum
benefit from unutilised tax losses can be carried
forward up to five years from the year in which the
loss was originated to offset future taxable profits.

At 31st December, 2017, deferred taxation has not
been provided in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to the profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries amounted to HK$16,767,441,000 (2016:
HK$13,311,558,000) as the Group is able to control
of the temporary

differences and it is probable that the temporary

the timing of the reversal

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The deferred tax assets arising from the above
unused tax losses have not been recognised in the
consolidated financial statements due to the

unpredictability of future profit streams.

41. 3

RABEEEEFR AR
T LFFER

EEREEE BE(E)

R—ZT—+tF+_A=+—H ' A&H
(?@}EZIS%IZEP!W% 7)) B REA
i I8 &5 18 #49901,443,000/8 T (= & — /X
F : 633,896,000/ T ) + A 3K 1 K 2K fE &R

B A o % FARE A 2 B IR B 18 A £ IR 1
REH o
o RZB—tF+-_A=+—H" ' &

SECZHBENBRARABABA ZHIEBERIE
#78,131,738,000/% w(= T — X F:
7,109,462,0007% 7. ) (B 1E I i 1E 76 18 # 45
ZABRAMMIEEIBERIN - AR R E
RERA o RE)BAHIBREE 2 &5 =
AIAEEERIIRRERT RN 2 BB
FEBT LERZAF -

EA:§—t¢+_H:+—E| HRRALE
Besin R = RE O RRE - mA
EZ%’*H\ MEREABARNRREAGETE
= - F RN BB A R BRI & F e
il 2 B = £16,767,441,00008 L (— =
— 7N 13,311,558,0005 7T) - £ R 47
EHBEHMERANIELRTER EEME -

B A 2R B8 TR DRI R 2RD& A 2 - Bt EattR
@Jﬁﬁmlﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁf{?EZ L IE B TR & E R
i‘ﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬁqﬁﬁm ©
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42. OPERATING LEASES 42. REHEY
The Group as lessee: AEBEEREBEA:
2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Lease payments paid under operating FREEANETE 2

leases during the year HERIE :

— office premises S NEL 41,192 36,374
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RIMEBR - AEERBEAAIRELEHE
commitments for future minimum lease payments KR T3 BARE B 8 2 R R &R TH & A 40
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due I
as follows:

Office premises

WAEYE

2017 2016
—E—tF —T-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within one year —F R 16,045 16,065
In the second and fifth year inclusive F_ZFAF(BHEEEMSF) 6,420 21,113
Over five years hF& 49 114

22,514 37,292




42. OPERATING LEASES (Continued)

The Group as lessor:

Income from operating lease
arrangements in respect of office
and management services

HA = P2 WA

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimal lease payments:

Office and shop

FHEZEEARAR]

MAERERRGESE

T +FFR
2. REHP ()

AEEEAHBAA
2017 2016
—E—4tE —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,456,841 1,180,330

RBEEHR  AEEEABAFLEFTHZRK

REEEREBWT

Management fee income

BAZEREE EEBEWRA
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E-tF ZE-RF ZE-tF ZT-R%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET FET
Within one year —FRQ 305,154 227,153 23,236 20,655

In the second to F_EFERF

fifth year inclusive (BEEEMF) 782,750 707,730 75,276 71,050
Over five years Tk 789,445 953,611 19,279 26,855
1,877,349 1,888,494 117,791 118,560

Significant leases are negotiated for a lease term of
1 to 20 years (2016: 1 to 20 years). Certain leases
contain a contingent rental element.

BB A RE R EZfﬂﬁﬁﬂmizoi
1E2205F) T & »

(—7 /\E'E'
BERARBEEED -

#THE
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43.

44.

E—+F+ - A=+—HIFFE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

43. EAREIE

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—XF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but B ~N2&BE R4
not provided in the consolidated BRNEZE M B ®REK
financial statements in respect of: BiE 2 EARY
— property development expenditures — %35 % & i 2 10,681,734 10,588,697
— acquisition of a subsidiary — WM E R A 3,750,000 —
14,431,734 10,588,697
Capital expenditure authorised but BRATISEEREBRE
not contracted for in respect of: O N
— acquisition of a land use right —— /& 1 #b 55 FA & 742,588 —
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 44. FRE R

The Group arranged mortgage loan facilities with
certain banks for purchasers of property units and
provided guarantees to banks to secure obligations
of such purchasers of repayment. The maximum
guarantees given to banks amounted to
HK$28,685,243,000 as at 31st December, 2017 (2016:
HK$28,393,520,000). Such guarantees terminate upon
the earlier of (i) issue of the real estate ownership
certificate; and (ii) the satisfaction of the mortgage
loans by the buyers of the properties. The Group has
not recognised any deferred income in respect of
these guarantees as its fair value is considered to be
minimal by the directors. The directors also consider
that the fair value of the underlying properties is able
to cover the outstanding mortgage loans generated
by the Group in the event the purchasers default on
their payments to the banks.

At 31st December, 2017, the Group had given
guarantees to certain banks in respect of credit
facilities granted to certain joint ventures of the
Group amounting to HK$2,170,910,000 (2016:
HK$1,853,932,000) respectively, of which
HK$2,088,743,000 (2016: HK$1,853,932,000) had been
utilised by the joint ventures.

AREBEMMEBUEREE TRITLH
LIEERME S RRITIREERARER
ZEEBERBTEREFE R —+tF
+TZA=+—H8 K TRONESERE
$£28,685,243,000/8 ;L(= T — /N F:
28,393,520,0007% 7T) ° B B@ERGH T 7
REEZERKL: (VBLEEHEMBE
B RNEEREMNRBER - A&H
W% S EREREAELERA - b5
HREERABEAFELTEKR - BEH
RAE BFEERTEMBITENR  HED
EZAFENMRUBRASEEEZ B
EERIBER -

RZZE—+tF+_A=+—"H T£EH
AEBETAELEMEREERERH
2,170,910,000%8 (= T — X F:
1,853,932,000/% 7o) M & T iR 17 #2 4 #&
R mEEPCEEEHHEF2,088,743,000
BT (ZZ—/N4F : 1,853,932,000/8 7T ) °



45. PLEDGED ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying
value of the Group’s assets which were pledged to

FHEZEEARAR] 265
T FER

45. EE & #

RBEEHR  BRESAKEMERER
MEZERIASEEEZREEDT ¢

secure credit facilities granted to the Group are as

follows:

Investment properties REWME
Hotel properties B TE 1) 5
Buildings BF

Prepaid lease payments T8 151 78 & K18
Properties under development BRPYME
Properties held for sale FERE W%
Bank deposits RITE K

2017 2016
—E—-tF —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
3,704,286 2,809,663
157,143 507,865

— 36,076

65,414 194,866
21,637,628 13,792,049
2,719,388 3,017,770
329,237 785,305
28,613,096 21,143,594

In addition to above pledge of assets, at 31st
December, 2017 and 2016, the Group's interests in
certain subsidiaries were pledged to secure credit
facilities granted to the Group. The details of net

BREREEEMN R_F—tFR-F
—RNFETZA=t—B AEECHME
BEETHWBARZERERESAEEM
EREERECER MBRAREEFE

assets value of subsidiaries are as follows: ZEHIBWMT
2017 2016
—E—t#F —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Total assets BEBE 12,823,267 9,413,596
Total liabilities BERS (12,999,927) (8,486,520)
Net (liabilities)/assets value (BE)FE EEFE (176,660) 927,076
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46. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong
operate a defined contribution retirement benefit
scheme for their qualified employees pursuant to the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the scheme are held separately in a fund
which is under the control of an independent trustee.
The retirement benefit scheme contributions charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represent the contributions payable by the Group to
the fund at rates specified in the rules of the
scheme. When there are employees who leave the
in the
the amount of the forfeited

scheme prior to becoming fully vested
contributions,
reduce future

contributions will be used to

contributions payable by the Group.

To comply with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPFO”), the Group also
participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
("MPF Scheme”) for its qualified employees in Hong
Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under
the MPFO. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of an independent trustee. Under the rule
of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at rate specified in the rules. The only
obligation of the Group with respect of MPF Scheme
is to make the required contributions under the
is available to

scheme. No forfeited contribution

reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising
from the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss represent contributions
payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified
in the rules of the scheme.

46.

iR K 18 A 5 2

ARABRAERZHERRARIEREERNK
BRI ARG EREBE R ERHEIEMNK
BAGE - ZEEZEERABIIEARN
HESABYERE - AFaBaRikz
BARBHFEIEA RN EEZRZTE 2
RAFAEZLRFERNTESZH
Ao MEEETENEEREMERZE
& ATR B AT 8 RDR ez 30 A (R
B AN 5 18 8 SR A 2 AR

AETREMERTEE BGRE ([RES %
) AEBITSERBEEZAERER
S2E-FERGMEREEFTE([RESE
g]) - REDF B RBEBRE S FRHIF 58
HEAESHBERBDEM - BB E
LEERASEEESHATH YHBEY
XEAREESER - REBRESTEZ
M BERERBEABBMABE ZL
KA FH IR - AEBE R RE S 88K
2R EARBEFEIEL AR -
W2 RN E] R AEHRCR R F E A 2

TR -

REIZRAFRIE L RN TES 2 #

o
NI



46. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

(Continued)

The employees in the subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefit. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme.

At the end of the reporting period, there was no
significant forfeited contributions, which arose upon
employees leaving the retirement benefit scheme,
available to reduce the contribution payable in the
future years.

The total cost charged to consolidated statement of
profit or loss approximately HK$146,944,000 (2016:
HK$132,179,000) represents contributions payable to
the schemes by the Group during the year.

RFELEEARAT
—T e

6. RIKERFH& (&)

TEMNEARZEENTEBRNEEZE
REERERARBEMAEZKE - HEBARA
BEBTIEZETADHERTHENKRE
Mt EIAE BN BRARERN - ARE RS
Mt zE—REERAREZAEELMZA

AR o

REEHR - W EEE B RO RAKEFE
81 2 A R] R AR IO R SR 6 TR H0ORUFE 5 (R
ZE R -

EGRABaRTBZERK AN A
146,944,000 T(= T — N F:
132,179,000/ 70) * 18 & A 2 & B 4 A fE
EEESE FEpALY &
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Transactions and balances with
China Poly Group

The following is a summary of principal related
party transactions and balances entered into by
the Group with China Poly Group Corporation
and its subsidiaries, apart from transactions and
balances disclosed in notes 20, 21, 29, 30 and
31. Several transactions also constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined
under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules.

Transactions: 5
Construction services fee BERBER
Property rental income MEMEE KA
Interest expenses MEXH
Guarantee charges EREX
Management fee income EEEWA
Rental expenses paid ENHeHAX
Dividend income g B A
Investment cost % & AR
Notes:

(i) The amount represents the construction services fee
paid or payable to China Poly Group for the
construction services in respect of property

development projects.

(ii) The amount represents rental income received for the
theatres which made with reference to market price.

(iii) The interest expenses derived from the loans advanced
from China Poly Group. Details of the terms are set
out in notes 29 and 30.

47. BEBAER S
(a) EPBERAINEEZRZ R

+

nA BN

N %) A B M FE20 - 21 2 29~ 30831
FTHBENR S REHIN AEEHE
FEARFEBRQRRENB QG
VYNEZEBALIRS RESH
T o ZIER G IMEK EMRAIE14A
ETENFEBRERS -

2017 2016
—F-tHF —E-RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ks THER TAT
(i 187,676 399,535
(il 15,474 14,042
(i) 96,599 115,582
(iv) 12,280 15,331
1,278 1,104
2,427 2,380
6,468 57,512
— 201,903

G

(i) BRAAENERRAR 25
BRERBENTFHRRINEEZZE
R &M -

(i) AREFREBELESEDERZEKEE

HE WA -

(i) FEXHEKEFTEARMERRNZE
R o B FRAD T B BB 5229 %30 ©
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R
47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 47. EBAER S (B)
(Continued)
(a) Transactions and balances with (a) EFERAEEZRIR

China Poly Group (Continued) Eer(4E)

Notes: (Continued) B eE : (&)

(ivi  The guarantee charges paid to China Poly Group for (iv)  EREXIMNFHBEERFSEEESR
acting as a guarantor of bank loans borrowed by SEMBRAMERITIERZER
subsidiaries of the Group and it was charged at 1% A WERGREERSHEI1%TE -
on the maximum guarantee amount.

2017 2016

—E—tHF —ET-RF

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 2 FER FAET

Balances: EER

Bank balances and deposits  $R{T 417 & 17 K (i) 482,802 458,028

Amount due from an associate J& I — [ B & A §] 58 (ii) 100,371 37,078

Bank and other borrowings RITEREMES (iii) 744,841 1,217,977

Notes: Bt 7 -

(i) The amount represents the deposits placed by the (i) ERBEASETRPERINEEH
Group with China Poly Group. ZER -

(ii) Details of the terms are set out in note 20. (ii) 16 3% 5% 15 3R M 520 -

(i)  The amount represents loan from China Poly Group, (i) AEREEFERIEEZER  RE
which was unsecured, carried interest at a variable AR~ 2R B EEF| E105%E110% 2
rate of 105% to 110% of benchmark rate in the PRC F B F & KA F5.5% F6% .2 [E TE K
and a fixed rate of range from 55% to 6% and FTERARMENEER -
repayable within two years.

(iv)  The balance with the ultimate holding company, an (iv) B REAG AR — P EER AR K&
intermediate holding company and fellow subsidiaries A KMt B 2 7] &) 45 e 8 MT 5529 - 30

are set out in notes 29, 30 and 31. K&31 e
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances with

other related parties

During the year, the Group entered into the
following transactions with related parties other
than China Poly Group:

Transactions: R :
Interest income MBI A
Interest expenses FERHAX

Notes:

(i) The amount represents the interest income from loans
to an associate, joint ventures and non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiaries. Details of the terms are
set out in notes 20, 21 and 32.

(i) The amount represents the interest paid to non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and a joint
venture. Details of the terms are set out in note 21
and 32.

Material transactions with other

state-controlled entities in the PRC
Part of the Group's operations is carried out in
an economic environment currently
predominated by entities directly or indirectly
owned or controlled by the PRC government
(“state-controlled entities”). In addition, the
Group itself is part of a larger group of
companies under China Poly which is controlled
by the PRC government. Apart from the
transactions with China Poly, other connected
persons and related parties disclosed in this
note, the Group also conducts business with
other state-controlled entities. The directors
consider those state-controlled entities are
independent third parties so far as the Group's

business transactions with them are concerned.

47. EBALTRF (E)

(b)

REMABALTZRER
A BR

£ P9+ A5 4 (8 27 B R ) 4% 18 LA )
MEBALTIITIIRS -

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B & FHET FHET
210,788 185,020

(i) 154,223 97,191

B i -

(i) ERRREERT —HBHERR &&
12 T B B 2 B IF 42 B AR 3R 5 SR A9 A
SN o BRERE B B M RE20 ~ 21%
32°

(i) BRAFERE N T HE A 7 I ERAR
RR—EEEREZFE - ERFBH
R 21532 -

HhEHMEERRZE
AR 5

7N 4 B 75 1 B A1 e o BB B
MEaEaREf 2 ER(EE e
EDEEZEABRAEPETHD ¥
B o b AEEA S Ty B AT
FiiEsl 2 RERAE T2 BAA
AR E - A TR R B R R
A Rt BEATRBBALET
2R B A R B
EETRS -EERR RAEE
EREHEELERTIEBRIM
T REHECEHBBIESS o



47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(c)

Material transactions with other
state-controlled entities in the PRC

(Continued)
In establishing its pricing strategies and
approval process for transactions with other
state-controlled entities, the Group does not
differentiate whether the counter-party is a

state-controlled entity or not.

Material transactions/balances with other state-
controlled entities are as follows:

Transactions: R
Trade sales B FEE
Trade purchases B8 E

In view of the nature of the Group's hotel
operating business,
opinion that, except as disclosed above,
impracticable to ascertain the identity of the

the directors are of the
it is

counterparties and accordingly whether the
transactions were with other state-controlled
entities.

In addition, the Group has entered into various
transactions, including deposit placements,
borrowings and other general banking facilities,
with certain banks and financial institutions
which are state-controlled entities in its ordinary
course of business. In view of the nature of
those banking transactions, the directors are of
the opinion that separate disclosure would not

be meaningful.

Except as disclosed above, the directors are of
the opinion that transactions with other state-
controlled entities are not significant to the
Group's operations.

FHEZEEARAR] 271
T FER

\

47. EBA LR B (5B)

(c)

TEZE

b B
o =
puus
&
-

>t 8
A\
4
/\\
i

ERIVEAMBECRETRSZ
EERE I EBRET  AKEYL
ERETBEELREST -

BEMEECEETZEARS
REERIDTN

2017 2016
—EF-tF ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$’000
TERT TAT
65,178 68,712
13,790 10,065

ERAER 2GR EEFHEE -
EERE BLEXEEEN B
ERXRGHFZ2HM I AINER - &

RRXHERHEMBEEPEEST
M ER ©

N REBEREB T EKBRE
REETRIT RIS (5 AR E
TEIZERS  BERALT
K EERHEM—RETEE &
RZEBTRZZ2HEE EFR
B BTEHEBETESE -

BREXMEBEREEN EEAR &
HiBECRETIRH5HAEE
ZREMELTEK
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(d) Compensation of key management

personnel
The remuneration of key management during
the year was as follows:

SRRl
BEBL 1R TR A

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

The emoluments of key management were
within the following bands:

HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000

47.

N

BERAXTRS (B)

d FEEBAEMS

FR TEEBASZMOT

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAET
37,087 34,151
932 814
38,019 34,965

TEFEBABZMEN FIATAR

2017
—E—+tF
Number of

employee

BEAH™

2016
—E-REF
Number of

employee

B & A&

2,000,0017% 7T £3,000,000/% 7T —
3,000,001 7T 4,000,000/ 7T
4,000,001 7T 5,000,000 7T 3

o
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 48. R ARIR—F—t&F+=H
POSITION OF THE COMPANY AS =Et+—HBZ2HBMRRF
AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2017
2017 2016
—E— 4t —E-RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries B /B A A #E & 589,794 589,794
Amounts due from subsidiaries AT NGIE S 22,307,446 22,163,754
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 280,281 280,281
Total non-current assets FERMBEELTE 23,177,521 23,033,829
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables JFE W E b AR 3R 100,054 66,574
Amount due from subsidiaries JE W B B R B 5K I8 3,796,442 3,643,271
Bank balances, deposits and cash R{T4&F - TR KA 935,179 1,829,800
Total current assets MEEEARRE 4,831,675 5,539,645
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables JRE < EL Ath BR 5K 44,703 38,584
Notes payable FE T =58 3,900,000 —
Amounts due to subsidiaries NN ENGIE @] 159,027 271,747
Bank borrowings — RITEBEE—
due within one year — F N E|H — 3,971,584
Total current liabilities mE B ERRE 4,103,730 4,281,915
Net current assets REBEEFE 727,945 1,257,730
Total assets less current liabilities EEZABER AT & & 23,905,466 24,291,559
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 48. KPR = —+t&E+=A
POSITION OF THE COMPANY AS =S+—HZ2HBERREF(E)
AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2017
(Continued)

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FAET FAETT
Capital and reserves EXRR#E
Share capital N 37 17,685,677 17,685,677
Reserves it 2,319,789 2,705,882
Total equity % RE 48 58 20,005,466 20,391,559
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Bank borrowings — RITEE —
due after one year — 1% 5| 5 3,900,000 —
Notes payable FEF T 1R — 3,900,000
Total non-current liabilities R aERRE 3,900,000 3,900,000
23,905,466 24,291,559

RZE-N\F=ZAZ+—AKHESSH
I R R R TIEE -

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 21st March, 2018.

HAN QINGTAO YE LIWEN
BEE BEH
Managing Director Director
BE A EF



48.

49.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY AS
AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2017
(Continued)

The reserves of the Company are as follows: RATZHEERAT
Accumulated
profits
2 5% F
HK$'000
FAET
Balance at 1st January, 2016 RZE—RFE—H—H 2,864,398
Loss for the year FEEIE (158,516)
Balance at 31st December, 2016 RZE—-—RF+=-A=+—H 2,705,882
Balance at 1st January, 2017 RZE—tF—H—H 2,705,882
Loss for the year FEEIE (386,093)
Balance at 31st December, 2017 RZE—tF+=-A=+—H 2,319,789
Notes: B =
(a) As at 31st December, 2017, in the opinion of the directors, (a) R-EBE—+E+-—HA=+—H BERA &K

the reserves of the Company available for distribution to
shareholders amounted to HK$2,319,789,000 (2016:
HK$2,705,882,000).

(b) The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
includes a loss of HK$386,093,000 (2016: loss of
HK$158,516,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid for both years.

The directors of the Company recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.135 per share
(2016: HK$ nil) for the year ended 31st December,
2017.

48.

49.

RFELEEARAT
—T e

(b) ARRHEEABEEE BT EEERAA A
B 765 7 7 P R 18 2 /5 8.386,093,000/8 7T (=&
— 7N : [£518158,516,000/5 7T ) ©

g
{4 2 3 4 3% 11 7R R . -
AARESRARFHE_T—LF+

A=1t—HALEFEZRYRKREEFM0.135
BL(ZE—RE:THEI) °
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HE=F— = =1 FILFE

50. X EME R F

RZZE—tFE+A=+—H XxRAE
EMBARICFBRT :

50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at
31st December, 2017 are as follows:
Particulars of  Attributable portion of

Place of issued and paid up the issued share capital/

incorporation/

capital/registered

registered capital

Name of subsidiary establishment capital  held by the Company Principal activity
EBITR FRRMFCBRT
SR/ Bk &/ A
WEAREM B 37 3t B o i B A A FE 16 b = TREH
Directly Indirectly
B i &
Able Lucky Development Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share — 100%  Property development
HRERARLA B8 1 REBK NEER
Bassington Investments Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares — 100%  Property investment
BEREREARAF Bt 2 REBR NELRE
Big Nice Development Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share — 100%  Property development
EXERERAA B 1 BREBRR NEER
Big Support Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 — 100%  Investment holding
AEERAF RERRES 1% REEK
CMIC Finance Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% —  Financial services
B 2 B A SRR
CMIC Management Services Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 100% —  Management services
Bt 100 F & 58 A B R
Fainland Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares — 100%  Property investment
R ER A B 2 lREBR NELRE
First Great Investments Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares — 100%  Investment holding
ERREBRAA Bt 2 REBR REEK
Geldy Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares — 100%  Property investment
BB 1,000 Az & & ik NELRE
Grandful International Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares — 100%  Investment holding
HEHRERA A Bt 2k E B REEK



50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Place of

incorporation/

FRANEREEARR AT

T FER

50. X EM B D E(E)

Particulars of

issued and paid up
capital/registered

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital

Name of subsidiary establishment capital  held by the Company Principal activity
ERITR ERRAFBERIT
aMAIL/ BRRE/ R A /5 1 AR A
WEAREM B 37 3t B o AR A A FE 1 bk 2= TREH
Directly Indirectly
H# i &
High Wealth International Limited ~ Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares — 100%  Property investment
EXBARERATF B 2R EER NERE
Honorlink Investments Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares — 100%  Property investment
EHRERRRA e 2R AR NERE
Hubei Poly Hotel Company Limited PRC Registered capital — 100%  Investment,
("Hubei Poly") (note i) RMB62,000,000 management and
operation of a hotel
WILRAKEEBR A A HE ARAARE RE EBRREE—RB
(TR (A azi) 62,000,0007C &
Johnsbury Limited British Virgin Islands US$9,600,000 100% —  Investment holding
BIERERAA AERTES 9,600,000 7t RERR
Poly Plaza Limited (“PPL") (note ij) ~ PRC Registered capital — 75%  Investment,
US$10,000,000 management and
operation of a hotel
complex
RMAEBER AR ([RMAE]) & E i B 7 RE EEREEER
(i) 10,000,000% 7T SN
Polystar Digidisc Co., Ltd. PRC Registered capital — 66%  Manufacturing and
("Polystar”) (note iii) RMB9,000,000 wholesaling of
compact discs, video
compact discs and
digital video discs
ERRFNERBE L EERRA HE A MRAARE SERME R £BE
(TRME D (K i) 9,000,0007C B R EE SR
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Particulars of
Place of issued and paid up

incorporation/ capital/registered

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital

50. T EKME QA (&)

Name of subsidiary establishment capital  held by the Company Principal activity
EBITR FRRMFCBRT
SR/ BRRER/ &/ A
WEAREM B 37 3t B o i B A A FE 16 b = TREH
Directly Indirectly
B i &
Poly (Hong Kong) Property Hong Kong 1 ordinary share — 100%  Investment holding
Developments Limited
RAEB)FHEEZRERAR BB 1 REBK RERR
Poly (Hong Kong) Real Estate Hong Kong 1 ordinary share — 100%  Investment holding
Limited
RA(BR)EHEREERAA B 1 REBR RERR
Poly Treasure Holdings Limited Hong Kong 50,000,000 100% — Inactive
ordinary shares
RAIERTEBERAA Bk 50,000,000/ # i i I ERBRS
Prime Brilliant Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares — 100%  Property investment
HEERAA B 2 lREBR NELRE
Propwood Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares — 100%  Property investment
EEARAT BE 2 REER NERE
Rapid Bloom Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 — 100%  Investment holding
AEERA A RERTES 1% RERR
Saneble Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares — 100%  Property investment
BERRDA BE 2 REER NERE
Smart Best Investments Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share — 100%  Investment holding
BEREBRAA B 1 REBR RERR



50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

FRANEREEARR AT

T FER

50. X EM B D E(E)

Particulars of
issued and paid up
capital/registered

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/

registered capital

Name of subsidiary establishment capital  held by the Company Principal activity
BETR ARARFERT
EMKL BaRE/ R/ 2 AR A
WELR AR B i B MR AFE Lt = TEXH
Directly Indirectly
EE i &
RAIEZEEFRAA (note i) PRC Registered capital — 100%  Investment holding
(Hriti) RMB2,200,000,000
HE AR AARE REZR
2,200,000,0007T
FEBNEREERAR AR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property investment
(note i) (Ffiti) US$24,000,000
H ERIITEN MERE
24,000,000% 7T
FBRAEREERARAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property investment
RMB15,000,000
Ll R A AR MERE
15,000,0007T
FEZREMEFRAA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property investment and
RMB5,000,000 investment holding
HE FRAARS NERERREER
5,000,0007T
FERTESEEEREERAR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property investment
RMB200,000,000
HE TMRAARE NERE
200,000,0007T
FERAERHEBR AR PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB150,000,000
HE ARAARE NEER

150,000,0007T
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BE-F—+F= =1 ALFE

50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. X EM B D E(E)
(Continued)

Particulars of  Attributable portion of

Place of issued and paid up the issued share capital/
incorporation/ capital/registered registered capital
Name of subsidiary establishment capital  held by the Company Principal activity
BETR RRARFERT
SR/ BRRER/ BA& /R
WEAREM B33t B o i B A A FEfh b = TREH
Directly Indirectly
B i &
FRRMERER DA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB1,000,000
FE aMRAARE NEER
1,000,0007T
EBRFMEEEERE PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property management
SEARAA RMB50,000,000
H AR AARE MEERE
50,000,0007T
EBRFICEEFZER AR PRC Registered capital — 50.10% Investment holding
RMB20,000,000
i AMRAARE REZR
20,000,0007T
FBREEXEERAA PRC Registered capital - 50.10%  Property development
RMB15,000,000
HE FRAARS NEER
15,000,0007T
FERAGEREHELLERRA  PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property agency
RMBS5,000,000
FE FRAARS E LA

5,000,0007T



(Continued)

50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Place of
incorporation/

FRANEREEARR AT

T FER

50. X EM B D E(E)

Particulars of
issued and paid up
capital/registered

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/

registered capital

Name of subsidiary establishment capital  held by the Company Principal activity
BETR ARARFERT
EMKL BaRE/ R/ 2 AR A
WELR AR B i B MR AFE FE 15 b 3 TEXH
Directly Indirectly
H# i &
FEBEEMEREEREMERA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB10,000,000
HE AR AARE MERR
10,000,0007T
FBRANKEREREFRAR  PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
H AR AARE NEER
50,000,0007T
FBRANAEREREFRAR  PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
Ll R A AR NEER
50,000,0007C
EERMEEFHEREARARF PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE FRAARS MEER
50,000,0007C
FERFBEFHERERRRA  PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE TMRAARE NEER
50,000,0007C
FERFEKEXZER AR PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE ARAARE NEER

50,000,0007T
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BE-F—+F= =1 ALFE

50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. X EM B D E(E)

(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

Particulars of
issued and paid up
capital/registered

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital

Name of subsidiary establishment capital  held by the Company Principal activity
BETR ARAMEERT
BRI e BARE/ BA/ERRA
WELR AR B X i B MR AFEE bt = TEXH
Directly Indirectly
B i &
FEREEEREEERRAR PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB100,000,000
HE AR AARE NERR
100,000,0007T
FBRNEEERERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB200,000,000
H AR AARE NEER
200,000,0007T
RIBZESE(LB)REFRRA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Investment holding
RMB580,000,000
i AMRAARE REZR
580,000,0007T
LBRAREERERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Investment holding
RMB100,000,000
HE FRAARS REZR
100,000,0007T
FERANELEERERAR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property investment
RMB208,170,000
FE FRAARS NERE
208,170,0007T
MIERFNEZFERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB100,000,000 and investment
holding
FE FRAARS NEERRREER

100,000,0007T,



50.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

FRANEREEARR AT

283
T FER

50. X EM B D E(E)

Particulars of
issued and paid up
capital/registered

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital

Name of subsidiary establishment capital  held by the Company Principal activity
BETR ARARFERT
EMKL BaRE/ R/ 2 AR A
WELR AR B i B MR AFE FE 15 b 3 TEXH
Directly Indirectly
H# i &
MR BETRER AR PRC Registered capital — 100%  Provision of construction
RMB 120,000,000 service
HE AR AARE REBERY
120,000,0007C
MILRNEERERAA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB100,000,000 and investment
holding
HE AR AARE NEBRRRERR
100,000,0007
MERMEREEXZERAA PRC Registered capital - 68%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
H AR AARE NEER
50,000,0007T
RERNBEEERAAF PRC Registered capital — 55%  Property development
RMB41,200,000
Ll TR A AR NEER
41,200,0007C
REBERNBREAREEAA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property investment
RMB100,000
HE FRAARS MERE
100,0007C
RERIREZERER AR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property management
RMB100,000,000
HE FMRAARE NEER

100,000,0007T
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BE-F—+F= =1 ALFE

50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. X EM B D E(E)
(Continued)

Particulars of  Attributable portion of

Place of issued and paid up the issued share capital/
incorporation/ capital/registered registered capital
Name of subsidiary establishment capital  held by the Company Principal activity
BETR ARAMEERT
BRI e BARE/ BA/ERRA
WELR AR B X i B MR AFEE bt = TEXH
Directly Indirectly
=8 i &
BEERMNREEERAA PRC Registered capital — 51%  Property development
RMB80,000,000
HE AR AARE NERR
80,000,0007T
EREENEFTR LA PRC Registered capital — 51%  Property investment
RMB91,656,147
H AR AARE MERE
91,656,1477C
BREFBEEERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Investment holding
RMB300,000,000
i AMRAARE REZR
300,000,0007T
BLUTRAIEZERAA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB30,000,000
HE FRAARS NEER
30,000,0007T
BMNRMEATEXZERA A PRC Registered capital — 51%  Property development
RMB30,000,000
HE FRAARS NEER
30,000,0007T
BILTRREEERERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB30,000,000
HE A RAARE NEER

30,000,0007T



50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

FRANEREEARR AT

T FER

50. X EM B D E(E)

Particulars of
issued and paid up
capital/registered

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/

registered capital

Name of subsidiary establishment capital  held by the Company Principal activity
BETR ARARFERT
EMKL BaRE/ R/ 2 AR A
WELR AR B i B MR AFE FE 15 b 3 TEXH
Directly Indirectly
H# i &
BLUTREEZEERDA PRC Registered capital 100% —  Property development
(note i) (Hf&ti) USD50,000,000
H 7 ff B 450,000,000 MEERE
e
EMRREZERAR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
H AR AARE NEER
50,000,0007T
EMNRAMNEXERAA PRC Registered capital — 51%  Property development
RMB101,800,000
Ll R A AR NEER
101,800,0007T
EMEMEREREERAR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB30,000,000
HE FRAARS MEER
30,000,0007C
BNREEHEREERA A PRC Registered capital — 55%  Property development
RMB100,000,000
HE TMRAARE NEER
100,000,0007C
EMERHEEZERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE ARAARE NEER

50,000,0007T
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

50. T EKME QA (&)

Particulars of
issued and paid up
capital/registered

Attributable portion of

the issued share capital/

registered capital

Name of subsidiary establishment capital  held by the Company Principal activity
BETR ARAMEERT
BRI e BARE/ BA/ERRA
WELR AR B X i B MR AFEE bt = TEXH
Directly Indirectly
B i &
EMREHEHERETRAA PRC Registered capital — 85%  Property development
RMB30,000,000
HE AR AARE NERR
30,000,0007T
BLUTREEEERAT PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB30,000,000
H AR AARE NEER
30,000,0007T
BMRFIEBEEHEREERRA  PRC Registered capital — 80%  Property development
RMB100,000,000
i AMRAARE NEER
100,000,0007T
BEMmRAEERERE PRC Registered capital - 70%  Property development
BRAA] RMB88,926,900
HE FRAARS NEER
88,926,9007T
AITRAFHEREERAF PRC Registered capital — 100%  Investment holding
RMB100,000,000
FE FRAARS REZR
100,000,0007T
R GR B 30 55 3t 2 A 3% PRC Registered capital — 70%  Property development
BARAR RMB50,000,000
HE HMRAEARE NEER

50,000,0007T
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

FHEZEEARAR] 287

T FER

50. X EM B D E(E)

Particulars of
issued and paid up
capital/registered

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital

Name of subsidiary establishment capital  held by the Company Principal activity
BETR ARARFERT
EMKL BaRE/ R/ 2 AR A
WELR AR B i B MR AFE FE 15 b 3 TEXH
Directly Indirectly
H# i &
RITRREEHREREFRA A PRC Registered capital — 51%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE AR AARE MERR
50,000,0007T
AT E R LL 5  E PRC Registered capital — 51%  Property development
BRARE RMB10,000,000
H AR AARE NEER
10,000,0007T
RNTREEZERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Investment holding
RMB10,000,000
Ll R A AR REZR
10,000,0007T
AT REEZBRA A PRC Registered capital — 100%  Investment holding
RMB10,000,000
HE FRAARS REZR
10,000,0007T
ATERRREERA R PRC Registered capital — 70%  Property development
RMB200,000,000
HE TMRAARE NEER
200,000,0007T
RITRAMICESER A A PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property investment and
RMB150,000,000 management
HE ARAARE NERERER

150,000,0007T
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

50. T EKME QA (&)

Particulars of
issued and paid up
capital/registered

Attributable portion of

the issued share capital/

registered capital

Name of subsidiary establishment capital  held by the Company Principal activity
BETR ARAMEERT
BRI e BARE/ BA/ERRA
WELR AR B33t B MR AFEE P14 b == TEXH
Directly Indirectly
B i &
RAEMEXEEERAA PRC Registered capital — 100% Investment holding
RMB200,000,000
FE AR AARE RERR
200,000,000t
EGRTEHEHERZERAA  PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
H AR AARE NEER
50,000,0007T
EGRFIREFHERERERRA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB20,000,000
i AMRAARE NEER
20,000,0007C
RAENEHEREER AR PRC Registered capital —  6650% Property development
RMB100,000,000
HE FRAARS NEER
100,000,0007C
RIEMBEREEERERAA PRC Registered capital —  66.50% Hot spring operation
RMB3,000,000
FE FRAARS BERR
3,000,0007T
EGRIEHEREERAR PRC Registered capital —  66.50% Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE HMRAEARE NEER

50,000,0007T



50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

FRANEREEARR AT

T FER

50. X EM B D E(E)

Particulars of
issued and paid up
capital/registered

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/

registered capital

Name of subsidiary establishment capital  held by the Company Principal activity
BETR ERRAFBERIT
EMKL BaRE/ R A /5 1 AR A
WELR AR B3 36 B MR AFE FE 15 b 3 TEXH
Directly Indirectly
H# i &
EGRFIEAEHERZEERAA  PRC Registered capital —  66.50% Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE AR AARE NEER
50,000,0007T
EGRTIBREHERZEARAA PRC Registered capital — 51%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
& AR AARE NEER
50,000,0007T
EGRNERFIEREFRAR  PRC Registered capital — 50%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE R A AR NEER
50,000,0007C
EGBRRNEEXER AR PRC Registered capital - 35%  Property development
(note v) (fti#v) RMB50,000,000
HE FRAARS MEER
50,000,0007T
ERIRTBREHEREERAAF PRC Registered capital - 58%  Property development
[RFBIR]) (note iv) (K7 7Eiv) RMB100,000,000
HE TMRAARE NEER
100,000,0007C
RMNBEEXEBERIARAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE A MRAARE NEER

50,000,0007T
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BE—F— 15+ f=f—HILFE

50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

50. T EMfE QAT

Particulars of
issued and paid up
capital/registered

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital

(%)

Name of subsidiary establishment capital  held by the Company Principal activity
BETR ARAMEERT
BRI e BARE/ BA/ERRA
WELR AR B X i B MR AFEE P14 b == TEXH
Directly Indirectly
B i &
Nﬁf-ﬂ%ﬂ%ﬁt? SN PRC Registered capital — 51%  Property development
BEREER RMB50,000,000
HE AR AARE NERR
50,000,0007T
RERERMEZRRARA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB20,000,000
H AR AARE NEER
20,000,0007T
RREEERUELERAERA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB20,000,000
i AMRAARE NEER
20,000,0007C
RREEHEHEERARA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB20,000,000
HE FRAARS NEER
20,000,0007C
RRERNEEHMEREERLR  PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB20,000,000
FE FRAARS NEER
20,000,0007C
MRERRMETHHEE PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
BARAR RMB10,000,000
HE A RAARE NEER

10,000,0007T



50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

FRANEREEARR AT

T FER

50. X EM B D E(E)

Particulars of
issued and paid up
capital/registered

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/

registered capital

Name of subsidiary establishment capital  held by the Company Principal activity
BETR ARARFERT
EMKL BaRE/ R/ 2 AR A
WELR AR B3 3t B MR AFE FE 15 b 3 TEXH
Directly Indirectly
H# i &
FILREXSEEER LA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Investment holding
RMB340,000,000
HE AR AARE REZR
340,000,0007T
WRRFIZEEXERAA PRC Registered capital — 80%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
H AR AARE NEER
50,000,0007T
WRRFERFHEREERAF  PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB10,000,000
Ll R A AR NEER
10,000,0007T
WRRMAEREMEREBRAR  PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB10,000,000
HE FRAARS MEER
10,000,0007T
BEERINEXZERAA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB237,306,206
HE TMRAARE NEER
237,306,2067T
BERTEHEREERAA PRC Registered capital — 85%  Property development
RMB200,000,000
HE A MRAARE NEER

200,000,0007T
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

50. T EKME QA (&)

Particulars of
issued and paid up
capital/registered

Attributable portion of

the issued share capital/

registered capital

Name of subsidiary establishment capital  held by the Company Principal activity
BETR ARAMEERT
BRI e BARE/ BA/ERRA
WELR AR B X i B MR AFEE bt = TEXH
Directly Indirectly
B i &
EaRNEXERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB100,000,000
HE AR AARE NERR
100,000,0007T
BBRMEZXERAA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB100,000,000
H AR AARE NEER
100,000,0007T
BN EEERAR PRC Registered capital — 70%  Property development
RMB30,000,000
i AMRAARE NEER
30,000,0007C
ERRFAEXERDA PRC Registered capital - 80%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE FRAARS NEER
50,000,0007C
EaFEEXZERAA PRC Registered capital — 55%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE FRAARS NEER
50,000,0007C
ERRABERRRA PRC Registered capital — 70%  Property development
RMB35,500,000
HE A RAARE NEER

35,500,0007T



FHEZEEARAR] 293
T FER

50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. T EMBE AT (&)

(Continued)

Particulars of  Attributable portion of

Place of issued and paid up the issued share capital/

incorporation/ capital/registered registered capital

Name of subsidiary establishment capital  held by the Company Principal activity
BETR ARARFERT
EMKL BaRE/ R/ 2 AR A
WELR AR B i B MR AFE FE 15 b 3 TEXH
Directly Indirectly
EE i &
BERIXEEXER AR PRC Registered capital — 60%  Property development
RMB16,670,000
HE AR AARE MERR
16,670,0007T
BEEMNEXERAA PRC Registered capital — 51%  Property development
RMB10,000,000
H AR AARE NEER
10,000,0007T
BeGNBEEERAR PRC Registered capital — 70%  Property development
RMB100,000,000
Ll R A AR NEER
100,000,0007T
EERMEZERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB10,000,000
FE FRAARS MEER
10,000,0007T
HEEREXEERAA PRC Registered capital — 65%  Property development
RMB10,000,000
HE TMRAARE NEER
10,000,0007T
HERFIAKEEXER A A PRC Registered capital — 65%  Property development
RMB10,000,000
HE ARAARE MERRE

10,000,0007T
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50.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

50. T EKME QA (&)

Particulars of
issued and paid up
capital/registered

Attributable portion of

the issued share capital/

registered capital

100,000,0007T

Name of subsidiary establishment capital  held by the Company Principal activity
BETR ARAMEERT
BRI e BARE/ BA/ERRA
WELR AR B X i B MR AFEE P14 b == TEXH
Directly Indirectly
=8 i &
RIEBMEZERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Investment holding
RMB180,000,000
FE AR AARE RERR
180,000,0007C
RAIZBEEHEREERAA PRC Registered capital — 80% Investment holding
RMB100,000,000
H AR AARE REZR
100,000,0007T
ZERFEHEREERAA PRC Registered capital — 80%  Property development
RMB10,000,000
i AMRAARE NEER
10,000,0007T
ERENEHEREERAR PRC Registered capital - 90%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE FRAARS NEER
50,000,0007C
ZERFBRERRRA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB10,000,000
HE FRAARS NEER
10,000,0007T
EREFEHEREERAA PRC Registered capital 73%  Property development
RMB100,000,000
HE A RAARE MERR



50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

FRANEREEARR AT

T FER

50. X EM B D E(E)

Particulars of
issued and paid up
capital/registered

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/

registered capital

Name of subsidiary establishment capital  held by the Company Principal activity
BETR ARARFERT
EMKL BaRE/ R/ 2 AR A
WELR AR B3 3t B MR AFE FE 15 b 3 TEXH
Directly Indirectly
EE i &
BEARMEXZEEERAR PRC Registered capital — 100%  Investment holding
RMB250,000,000
HE AR AARE REZR
250,000,0007T
ERRNEMEREREMLRDA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB 150,000,000
H AR AARE NEER
150,000,0007C
HENRANEHEERAR PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB10,000,000
Ll R A AR NEER
10,000,0007T
HEMHREFEHEERA A PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB10,000,000
FE FRAARS MEER
10,000,0007T
ERRTENEEERERAA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE TMRAARE NEER
50,000,0007C
MIMEFEZERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB100,000,000
HE ARAARE NEER

100,000,0007T
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. X EM B D E(E)

(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

Particulars of
issued and paid up
capital/registered

Attributable portion of

the issued share capital/

registered capital

Name of subsidiary establishment capital  held by the Company Principal activity
BETR ARAMEERT
BRI e BARE/ BA/ERRA
WELR AR B33t B MR AFEE bt = TEXH
Directly Indirectly
B i &
EREEREFERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Investment holding
RMB10,000,000
FE AR AARE RERR
10,000,0007T
ERREENEHERRAR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB1,000,000
H AR AARE NEER
1,000,0007T
BRREREERAR PRC Registered capital — 100%  Investment holding
RMB10,000,000
i AMRAARE REZR
10,000,0007T
ERFEEMEFRAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB5,000,000
HE FRAARS NEER
5,000,0007T
BRAREREERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Investment holding
RMB10,000,000
FE FRAARS REZR
10,000,0007T
BRENEMERR A PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB5,000,000
HE HMRAEARE NEER

5,000,0007T
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. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

50. X EM B D E(E)

Particulars of  Attributable portion of

Place of issued and paid up the issued share capital/

incorporation/

capital/registered

registered capital

Name of subsidiary establishment capital  held by the Company Principal activity
BETR ARARFERT
AMEL BaRE/ R/ 2 AR A
WELR AR B3 3t B MR AFE FE 15 b 3 TEER
Directly Indirectly
EE i &
BAMNBEREERA A PRC Registered capital — 100%  Investment holding
RMB10,000,000
HE AR AARE REZR
10,000,0007T
EREZ=FREEBR AR PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB10,000,000
H AR AARE NEER
10,000,0007T
ERRFAIBEZERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
(note i) (K1 7#i) HK$1,459,000,000
Ll R A AR NEER
1,459,000,0007T
ERREEZERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
FE FRAARS MEER
50,000,0007C
BERMEZERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB262,665,000
HE FRAARE NEER
262,665,0007T
BRREEZERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB10,000,000
HE ARAARE MERRE

10,000,0007T
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

50. T EKME QA (&)

Particulars of
issued and paid up
capital/registered

Attributable portion of

the issued share capital/

registered capital

Name of subsidiary establishment capital  held by the Company Principal activity
BETR ARAMEERT
BRI e BARE/ BA/ERRA
WELR AR B X i B MR AFEE P14 b == TEXH
Directly Indirectly
=8 i &
RIKRMEZER 2 Rl(note i) PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
(Hriti) HK$1,100,000,000
FE ERIITAEN NEER
1,100,000,000% 7t
RE (BN BEER AR PRC Registered capital — 100%  Investment holding
RMB1,600,000,000
H AR AARE REZR
1,600,000,0007T
HEMNRANFHERERRD A PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB1,200,000,000
i AMRAARE NEER
1,200,000,0007T
HEMEFEREEXER LA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB328,623,800
HE FRAARS NEER
328,623,8007T
ENRMEBEZERAR PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB329,108,480
HE FRAARS NEER
329,108,4807T
HEMMXEXERARA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE A RAARE NEER

50,000,0007T
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Particulars of
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TEME AR E)

Attributable portion of

Place of issued and paid up the issued share capital/
incorporation/ capital/registered registered capital
Name of subsidiary establishment capital  held by the Company Principal activity
BETR ARARFERT
aMAIL/ BRRE/ R A /5 1 AR A
WEAREM B3 36 B o AR A A FE 1 bk 2= TREH
Directly Indirectly
H# i &
HENRMNEXEXZERAR PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
(note i) (i zti) HK$380,000,000
H ERITEN MERR
380,000,0007% 7T
EERRERERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
(note i) (A1iEi) US$35,000,000
H ERIITEN NEER
35,000,000% 7
BETEEEERAAF PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
(note i) (Hiti) HK$280,000,000
H E i A 7R NEER
280,000,0007% 7T

The above table only lists those subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

EERA LREVEHAKEZEE
BENBBREAFEZARANER
A - R AN E A B A R Z B R A
it E<ERBRITE -
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

These companies are a wholly foreign owned enterprise in the
PRC.

PPL is a Sino-foreign joint venture company established in the
PRC for a renewal term of 50 years commencing 9th July,
2003.

Polystar is a Sino-foreign joint venture company established
in the PRC for a term of 20 years commencing 18th
December, 2000.

R AR
in the PRC for a term of 20 years commencing 29%th
December, 2004.

#R is a Sino-foreign joint venture company established

The Group holds 50% equity interest in & [5 (R Al 5 1% 5= i &
FEBRAA ("EHERAMEER"), which holds 70% equity
interest in BEHERFEBEZXAR A A ("EEMRF"). As a result,
the Group holds 35% effective equity interest in &3 {& 7.
According to the articles of association of &[5 1R #| (% and
EEIRF|, the Group is entitled to appoint three out of five
directors in the board of directors of each of such
companies. As a result, the Group has control over &[5 R Fl
i#1% and EE (R F, which were accounted for as subsidiaries
of the Company in November, 2015.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that

none of the Group’s subsidiaries that has non-

controlling interests are material to the consolidated

financial statement as a whole, and therefore, the

financial information in respect of those subsidiaries

that has non-controlling interests are not presented.

50.

TEMNE LR (B

o

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

IR

)

éi’*/
n‘.r

ADRAEZIEEERE -

RFKETRPRERKRLZRINEGEEERF]
KEEHR _TE=FtANARBtARR T
& o
RAMETIRFBRIZFINEEEERR " £
BB -_ETTF+ A+ \HRBFAH =1
£

RFBIRTIARBEKRILZHINEEARE QT
KEBHEA—_TTENME+ A -+t hBEFTA
=+ -

AEERFEGRINARFEHWEREBR A
B ([ERRAMEIR]) 50%A % - EERFEHR
FABERMNEZERAR ([BERFI)70%
Bt o E L - AR B A ERRNI5RE B
B-BEEGRAMERREERM O EEH
Bl - AEEERN DEARSEEFENRA
EEhZAE=REF - At  AEEHREES
EFBRFIER R EERF J:L’Aﬂﬁ":%
—hAFE T -AARASAARTNMEL

$Qﬁ§$%ﬁ$%lWE/Tﬁmim

ARBHEBRT

FBE KR R

o MUZSFAERESNHE RN
%%ﬁﬂﬂﬂiﬂ°



51.

SEGMENT AND ENTITY-WIDE
INFORMATION

Reportable segments

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into four operating divisions. These divisions are the
basis on which the Group reports its segment
information.

Principal activities are as follows:

Property development — property development
business

Property investment and — property investment and
management management

Hotel operations — hotel and restaurant

business and its related
services

Other operations — manufacturing and sales of
digital discs and others

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each

reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of interests in
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets and
other corporate assets. Segment liabilities included
trade payable, accruals and deposits received
attributable to the individual segment and other
borrowings managed directly by the segments with

the exception of other corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments.

RFELEEARAT
—T e

. DEHRELEXER

AR E D

AFEEE A£EHDANALLEH

e REBIRZHEDHZINEEBEHIE

o

IEEHWT -

EEIE T — WEER

MEREBRER  — WERERER

S4B — BEREBLBER
AR

HinsE _ BERHEYE
S RE R

FLAHE D BRI M & o EE 2 &R B

= AKESRITHRERASR T IIEE
EEREAREs A cEE BEKE
f& :

DHEEBRREMEEN BREERRY
BE HRBE/RRAERLE 2
BERERAEEREMEREERI - D&
RERREBES M ZENE SRR Bt
ERkERZEREMENDMEREE L
B8 @R D B EE 2 EE XA ERR
g @

WARRAXI2ERREDBELEZHE
RAEZAXMOREA RED XL
SENHBREEECHERBHEEZH
XmEDE »
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51.

SEGMENT AND ENTITY-WIDE
INFORMATION (Continued)

Reportable segments (Continued)

The measure used for reporting segment result is
“adjusted EBIT” i.e. adjusted earnings before interest
and taxes. To arrive at adjusted EBIT, the Group’s
earnings are further adjusted for items not
specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
share of results of associates and joint ventures, gain
on disposal of interests in subsidiaries, directors’ and
auditor’s remuneration and other head office or
corporate administration costs.

In addition to information
concerning adjusted EBIT, management is provided
with
(including inter-segment sales), interest income and

receiving segment

segment information concerning revenue
expense from cash balances and borrowings
managed directly by the segments,

amortisation, impairment losses and additions to non-

depreciation,

current segment assets used by the segments in their
operations.

51.

PHREEEER(E)

o] #R & o & (4E)
ARBEDMEEZTTERKERAE 2R
B R IEAEN ([ RHER ST &
M) BAERARRERANERN - N&E
[ 2 & I — 25 i 30 IR B i 57 X {18 Bl 9
ZHEBELAER MOEMERRREE
TEZEE HEWBARER 2 W -
EEMGEE ML EMARLEET
B AN

FESABCHEREMAAN D HE
BN BEEENEREEBRA(BRED
MAEE) MERARBDHEEER

Zﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁgﬁi IrE - #iH- R
ERBRDBEETAERZIERE N
BERNBEZDHER -



51. SEGMENT AND ENTITY-WIDE

INFORMATION (Continued)

Reportable segments (Continued)
Information about these segments is presented

below:

For the year ended 31st December, 2017

Revenue
External revenue
Inter-segment revenue*

Total revenue

Segment results

Unallocated income
Unallocated expenses
Gain on step-up acquisition
of a subsidiary
Finance costs
Share of results of associates
Share of results of
joint ventures

Profit before income tax
expense
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

*

L'ON
HAMRA
7 BB A

LON
DS
Pl ON
ADEFAX
EE-RNBARZ
Yz
DEBERRRE
PERELRER
Wi BT 45 75 B 3 A )

s

ERE

RFELEEARAT
T LR

 AWMREEEER(E)

A E D (E)
BHUES B ARZIMT -

BE-Z-—tF+-A=+—-HLFE

Inter-segment revenue were charged with reference to prices

charged to external parties for similar services or products.

Property
Property investment
development and Hotel Other

business management operations operations  Eliminations Total
RREY REREE EEEE Hitg & EiID S ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET
29,957,423 1,456,841 196,758 92,020 - 31,703,042
- 203,576 - - (203,576) -
29,957,423 1,660,417 196,758 92,020 (203,576) 31,703,042
4,006,911 337,588 (30,128) 3,768 - 4,318,139
582,730
(86,159)
848,352 - - - - 848,352
(961,878)
(10,083) - - - - (10,083)
197,548 - - 540 - 198,088
4,889,189
(2,322,549)

2,566,640

* 2R AT 2 E S MR R AR X E @
Pt W BR 22 {8 4% iy Y BR
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51. SEGMENT AND ENTITY-WIDE

INFORMATION (Continued)

Reportable segments (Continued)

Assets and liabilities

As at 31st December, 2017

Assets BE

Segment assets NHEE
Interests in associates N -UNGIPd: 3
Interests in joint ventures REEtEZRE

Unallocated corporate assets APBREEEE

Total assets BELE
Liabilities Ak

Segment liabilities Rt =i
Unallocated corporate liabilities KA B % & &
Total liabilities BfEHE

Other information Hi &R

Capital expenditure BARX
Depreciation e

Amortisation of prepaid BRREREEH

lease payments

aN A\ 2 NN =
51. 7R ELEXRER (B)
] 3 & 2 Ak (48)
EERARE
—F—tF+t=HA=+—H
Property
Property investment
development and Hotel Other
business management operations operations Total
RREH  REREE BEEEE Htt& & &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TER TET TR
87,949,525 11,511,551 1,336,220 511,842 101,309,138
298,155 - - - 298,155
3,954,970 - - 1,982 3,956,952
23,214,239
128,778,484
45,760,760 1,541,377 207,151 46,376 47,555,664
50,406,239
97,961,903
17,326 8,647 3,947 4,407 34,327
37,201 28,110 54,865 4,774 124,950
1,272 1,051 7,700 137 10,160




RFELEEARAT
T LR

51. SEGMENT AND ENTITY-WIDE 51. 7 RE2LEER (E)
INFORMATION (Continued)
Reportable segments (Continued) AR E DI (E)
For the year ended 31st December, 2016 BE-_Z—"FT+A=1+—HLFE
Property
Property investment
development and Hotel Other
business  management operations operations Eliminations Total
mE mE
BR¥B RERER BEEE HingE Eihe) Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTET FTET FTET FTET TET
Revenue 'ON
External revenue HIMRA 29,105,716 1,180,330 189,032 105,248 — 30,580,326
Inter-segment revenue* LN — 246,723 — — (246,723) —
Total revenue FU 0N 29,105,716 1,427,053 189,032 105,248 (246,723) 30,580,326
Segment results D EE 2,516,149 386,814 (9,434) 61,272 — 2,954,801
Unallocated income E N ON 130,728
Unallocated expenses APBAX (539,973)
Gain on disposal of interest & —IIEAA
in a subsidiary sz Wi 644,158 — — — — 644,158
Finance costs BE KA (910,434)
Share of results of associates 2158 = A Al £4& (15,530) — — — — (15,530)
Share of results of joint PERELERE
ventures (30,910) —_ —_ 381 —_ (30,529)
Profit before income tax B BT 45 % B8 2 Al A
expense 2,233,221
Income tax expense FiEHAY (2,012,049)
Profit for the year FRmF 221,172
. Inter-segment revenue were charged with reference to prices * D EBFEM ATy 2 E S MR ¢ B R PR A Sk E m

charged to external parties for similar services or products. BT W BR 2 B 4% T Y ER ©
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51. SEGMENT AND ENTITY-WIDE
INFORMATION (Continued)

Reportable segments (Continued)

Assets and liabilities

As at 31st December, 2016

Assets

Segment assets

Interests in associates
Interests in joint ventures

Unallocated corporate assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Total liabilities

Other information
Capital expenditure
Depreciation

Impairment loss on goodwill
Impairment loss on properties
under development and

held for sale
Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments

Banm s
NER PR3
ANEEREE

HER
NGB
e
AEREER

BRTREFELENER

EER

ENHERIREH

51. &

CIE =ik

EEREE

—E-R"FEt+ZA=1t—H

BREEEER(E)

Property
Property investment
development and Hotel Other

business  management operations operations Total

ES ES
BR¥B  RARER BEEE Hitgs A&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL TET TET TEL
86,174,488 11,264,128 1,335,946 387,940 99,162,502
246,317 — — — 246,317
2,308,266 — — 1,678 2,309,944
20,354,274
122,073,037
43,070,566 1,192,501 190,776 63,035 44,516,878
50,574,100
95,090,978
28,990 5,086 2,846 3,076 39,998
42,486 24,408 57,609 3,402 127,905
281,331 — — — 281,331
86,207 — — — 86,207
1,663 1,051 7,786 136 10,636




51. SEGMENT AND ENTITY-WIDE
INFORMATION (Continued)

Reportable segments (Continued)
An analysis of the Group’s revenue by geographical
location of its customers is presented below:

Hong Kong and Others

51. &

RFELEEARAT
T LR

okr

IRZ2EXER (B)

AR E D E(E)
REEZ W ARE FFIEM 2 547 25 40
I

PRC Total

HE |t
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tf ZE-Rf CZE-tF ZF-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR TET TR THL

BRRAM
2017 2016
“E-tF  ZT-RE
HKS$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL
Revenue KA 7,134 7,320

31,695,908 30,573,006 31,703,042 30,580,326

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
specified non-current assets, segment assets and
capital expenditure analysed by the geographical
area in which the assets are located.

Hong Kong and Others

UTHBEFRRBDEE  HHEEREE
REAFASXIREEMREZ DM -

PRC Total
T E &t
2017 2016 2017 2016

Sg-tf  ZFAF C®-tF ZFAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TRT  TRR AR ThR

EAREA
2017 2016
“E-tF  ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THEL
Specified non-current BEFRDEE
assets 462,274 305,576
Segment assets NBEE 11,500,492 9,196,353
Capital expenditure BERRX 10,144 21,612

18,908,522 19,013,186 19,370,796 19,318,762

113,022,885 110,320,423 124,523,377 119,516,776

24,183 18,386 34,327 39,998

The Group’s customer base is diversified and no
customer with whom transactions have exceeded
10% of the Group’s revenue (2016: none).

AEEzEFERZ T/ UBBEEF 2
RHBEAEEBRAZION(=ZF— X
FE)-
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52.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the
Group acquired nine companies which are engaged in
property development and management and
construction in the PRC. The acquisition from
independent third parties for an aggregated cash
consideration of RMB3,499,709,000 (equivalent to
HK$4,166,320,000). Those transactions have been
accounted for using the acquisition method. These
subsidiaries were acquired so as to provide human
resources, economies of scale and synergy to the

52. WEEH B 2 |

BE-_Z—+&+-_A=+—HILEE -
AEBBBARRFAEREVELZR &
BREENAA - BBYE=ZFRENE
& REBARS499,709,0007t (1 &
74,166,320,0007 7T) - ZE X 5 B K
BEAEE WEZSHEBAREEALE
EREADEIR - L W K 155 R 3%
Fg °

Group.

Name of entity Date of acquisition % of interest acquired

ERER Wi B FriEEZE R 2t

BRI EMERR QR ([ERFEHE] February 2017 100%
—E—+F_H

EBAEESEEMERRA A February 2017 100%
—E—tF_H

EAEEETEHESBRA A February 2017 100%
—T—t¥_H

BR=FFHERRAQA February 2017 100%
—E—+F_H

MRERTMEZTHHRERR QA July 2017 100%
—E—tF+tH

EREERNEXREGRAG August 2017 51%
—E—t&N\HAH

ErEikBEmEERA G August 2017 100%
—ZE—+tFN\A

RN RIBEWERZBRA A September 2017 51%
—E—tFhA

MIEEImERXEGR A A December 2017 65%

—F—tF+=H
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52. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

52. WHIEK B A &) (&)

RRZEFREEASEBIFERNEKR &

The information for these acquisitions was disclosed

on an aggregated basis as they were individually EHAERIEBREEERE -
immaterial to the Group.
Total amount
recognised at
the date of
Others acquisition
KEBRH
EHERE Hit BERAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET TET
Fair value of net identifiable assets U & i /& 2 = 7 & B
of the subsidiaries acquired: EEFENALE
Property, plant and mE - BERE
equipment — 5,273 5,273
Properties under EERME
development 1,709,025 3,278,442 4,987,467
Trade receivable B E 5 8B H — 538 538
Other receivable & o E At B % — 33,562 33,562
Cash and bank balances BeRBRITER 4,970 106,520 111,490
Trade payable B8 5 R — (18) (18)
Other payable FE 7 E At BR X — (934,980) (934,980)
1,713,995 2,489,337 4,203,332
Net assets acquired WiEEEFE 1,713,995 2,489,337 4,203,332
Less: Non-controlling interests e 22 — (37,012) (37,012)
1,713,995 2,452,325 4,166,320
Total consideration satisfied by:  BREXMFHR :
Cash Be 702,277 1,045,474 1,747,751
Deposits paid for acquisition of WERBRAREMNEZES
subsidiaries 1,011,718 1,369,234 2,380,952
Other payable JE A L fth BR 3% — 37,617 37,617
1,713,995 2,452,325 4,166,320
Net cash outflow on KEHBARREL
acquisition of subsidiaries: REemitFeE
Cash Re (702,277) (1,045,474) (1,747,751)
Bank balances and cash acquired B BRITERFR
A& 4,970 106,520 111,490
(697,307) (938,954) (1,636,261)
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52. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

The non-controlling interests recognised at the dates
of acquisitions were measured by reference to the
proportionate share of the recognised value of the
net identifiable assets of the respective subsidiaries
of the acquirees at the dates of acquisitions and
amounted to HK$37,012,000.

In December, 2017, the Group acquired additional 50%
equity interest of FBERITREEE AR A A
(" E/SBXDT") at the consideration of RMB330,000,000
(approximately HK$379,310,000). £ /& & %7 was
previously a joint venture of the Group.

Details of the net assets acquired in respect of the
above transaction are summarised below:

52.

Uk B BfY /BB X B) (48)

RUEE B B M R R T 2 E B
BONSHERRREER B #EIE
EFENCHIABEERELIFTE &
37,012,000/ 7T °

—E—tF+F AEEEIMNE LF
BOTHREEEERAATEEET]®
50% M AN - KB A A KR330,000,000
7T (49379,310,00078 70) ° E/BERITE AR
SEMAERE-

AR ZWBNEEFEFBRANT

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Net assets acquired: WiEEEFE:
Investment in a joint venture KE—HEaEhE 1,449,718
Cash and bank balances e hRTERF 164
Amount due to an intermediate holding JE A~ — fel P ] 42 PR 2 B 038
company (575)
1,449,307
Transferred from interests previously held #®#EEBAHELIEAEED
and classified as joint venture E - X (221,645)
Gain on step-up acquisition of a subsidiary &5 —E B Q & 2 W
— Gain on remeasurement of joint — BN EAECEENE
venture to acquisition date fair value HAYEE W (503,009)
— Gain on bargain purchase — ZEBEEBE2WE (345,343) (848,352)
379,310
Total consideration satisfied by: AREXAFFRX:
Cash He 379,310
Net cash outflow on acquisition: BEREEREREFE:
Cash paid BB E (379,310)
Cash and bank balances in the subsidiary ~ WEE A RME € RRTETF
acquired 164

(379,146)



52. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Gain on bargain purchase was mainly due to the fact
that the seller had the intention to exit from his
investment in the acquired business due to his
business reasons.

Included in the profit for the year is HK$99,354,000
attributable to the additional business generated by
the acquirees. Revenue for the year includes
HK$15,000 generated from the acquirees. Had the
acquisition been completed on 1st January, 2017, the
Group's revenue for the year would have been
HK$31,703,027,000, and profit for the year would
have been HK$2,467,286,000. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1st January, 2017, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

In October, 2016, the Group acquired an additional
36% equity interest of EE/{RE at the consideration
of RMB13,586,000 (approximately HK$15,617,000). &
JN{RE was previously an associate of the Group.
After the acquisition, the Group held an effective
interest of 85% of E /IR A.

RABEEEEFR AR
—E—tFFR

52. WEEM B2 7 (&)

ZERBIURATBERESEAEKRAM
BEERERBEHHE -

FERNHABEFEWE T EENBINESE
199,354,000/ 7T ° G KU A B 35 1 U B
75 FT1515,0008 Lo B KMBEE R ZZ
—tF—A—HBHEK AEEHFARA
# 531,703,027,00078 7T © 1 & A i A #
#2,467,286,0007 Tt © 5 &£ & B E &
BB AMNRBMKEBER - —+tF—HF—
HEKHBERLT  ANEEERSSHKA
MEEHEE T BIERRREENTE

Al e

RZZ—R"E+ A 2EERBENRE
ZEINHBE AT REAARE
13,586,0007T ( 4915,617,0005% 7T) ° & I
REBAABANEEB L NQGE - R - KX
SEEBRHFEEMREESB A -
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BE-F—+F= =1 ALFE

52. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 52. WIBHI 2 =R (%8)
(Continued)
Details of the net assets acquired in respect of the EiRZH - & EFEF B
above transactions are summarised below: T
HK$'000
FHET
Net assets acquired: WEEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment M WE k& 327
Deferred tax assets FEEFIAE E 4,263
Properties under development BEREABY 5,285,692
Trade and other receivables W E 5 Kk E b iR K 135,114
Bank balances, deposits and cash RITETF FRERE 390,140
Trade and other payables BNE S Kk EMIEERK (2,654,373)
Pre-sale deposits BEXRS (1,549,622)
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER (1,568,161)
43,380
Non-controlling interests FEE R ME R (6,507)
36,873
Less: o
Gain on re-measurement of an associate ETE—HBEEAREREBRTE
to acquisition date fair value 2 Wz (21,256)
15,617
Total consideration satisfied by: BREXAFHFRX:
Cash B& 15,617
Net cash flow arising on acquisition: WEMEEZRERE FHE:
Cash paid EENE A (15,617)
Bank balances and cash acquired FTUtiE 2 SRITHETFRIR S 390,140

374,523



53. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

In December, 2016, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with a third party to
dispose of its 70% equity interest in & )% &[5 H 77,
which is engaged in property development, at a
consideration of RMB355,000,000 (approximately
HK$408,046,000). The effect of partial disposal of
interest in EE F 5 E /7 results in loss of control on
EVE®5)E 7. The disposal was completed on 20th
December, 2016.

Details of the net assets of E)EFF5H /1 as at the
date of disposal in respect of the above transaction

RABEEEEFR AR
—E—tFFR

53. HEKHE 2 F

RZE—RNE+ A AEBBEFE=FF]
V-—EHEEWRLEEREEEG B
(MEMEBRER) 270% R Az - K
& & A E#355,000,0007T (47408,046,000
BIL) c MERZEEHBE OO R AR
BHAEBEKRERETRE B AEH % -
FHREEER_ZE—AR"F+-_A=-+HRE
ﬁjzo

Ftiiz 59 REFGE AR LE HHEH
EEFESBRADT :

are summarised below:

Net assets disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

Properties under development
Trade and other receivables

Bank balances, deposits and cash
Trade and other payables
Pre-sale deposits

Amount due to related companies
Bank and other borrowings

Net assets disposed of

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Total consideration

Total consideration satisfied by:
Cash received
Interest in a joint venture

Net cash flow arising on disposal:
Cash received

Bank balances and cash disposed of

HK$'000
FHET

HEBERE:
Y BB R 144
EERIRE E 6,848
BERPME 2,641,622
fEWE 5 & E b iR 5K 3,917
RITEF FRERE 396,635
FET 2 5 & E b BR 3K (162,148)
BERSE (447,734)
JFE 15t B Bt R B SR8 (1,006,266)
RITREMEER (1,494,253)
HEEEFE (61,235)
HE—HKHE AR WS 644,158
wWRE 582,923
|REZAHRA
B U ER & 408,046
FiFE—RaesEtEER 174,877

582,923
HEMEEZREREFHE
B U ELR & 408,046
It E2RITEFTRRE (396,635)

11,411
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BT

RESULTS
Revenue

Profit (loss) before income tax
expense
Income tax expense

Profit (loss) for the year

Attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Holders of perpetual capital
instruments

Non-controlling interests

Profit (loss) for the year

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Perpetual capital instruments

Non-controlling interests

ES |
A

B B 5 B 5 AT
a7 (B 18)
FrEHFx

FEREMN(BR)

T REAh -
ARAEEA
KAEATA
BEA
RS

FREM(EBR)

BERAR
EE#ME
AERR

RRAEAA
e
KABATE

SRR

Year ended 31st December

BZ+-A=t-BLEE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—E-=F ZT-ME ZT-RF - F ZZT—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TERL FiER FTET TRERT
28,625,008 28,508,737 24,933,367 30,580,326 31,703,042
5,462,002 3,310,736 (1,235,842) 2,233,221 4,889,189
(2,220,504)  (2,027,129)  (1,536,449)  (2,012,049)  (2,322,549)
3,241,498 1,283,607  (2,772,291) 221,172 2,566,640
2,715,626 929,448 (2,817,149) 80,745 2,462,061
— — 131,812 72,325 —
525,872 354,159 (86,954) 68,102 104,579
3,241,498 1,283,607 (2,772,291) 221172 2,566,640

At 31st December

R+=A=+-H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
“Z-=%f —T-mFfF —T-nF TR ZE-tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEL FTiEL THERT
110,822,652 129,402,885 129,578,533 122,073,037 128,778,484
(78,220,508)  (95,303,670) (100,152,585) (95,090,978) (97,961,903)
32,602,144 34,099,215 29,425,948 26,982,059 30,816,581
29,617,047 29,762,327  25560,015 24,696,715 28,296,364
— 998,696 1,227,472 — —
2,985,097 3,338,192 2,638,461 2,285,344 2,520,217
32,602,144 34,099,215 29,425,948 26,982,059 30,816,581
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES
FAEREYEHRE

At 31st December, 2017
R-ZF—+F1+=-HA=1—H

Details of the Group’s properties held for investment ASEBR-_ZT—+F+-_A=+—HZFHIE

purposes at 31st December, 2017 are as follows: WEMEZFRBOT -

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
1o B ZAHR Rz SEER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES:
KEYF :
Room 2502A, 2502C and Room 2508 of Long lease Commercial 100%
25th Floor Admiralty Centre Tower |
18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
BB ERBI8H REBZH [EES
BT L E—Hi2518
2502A % ~ 2502C = 22508 %
3 apartments of Legend Garden Villas Held under a land use right Residential 100%
89 Capital Airport Road, Beijing for a term expiring on
The People’s Republic of China 31st December, 2042
REARKE RAETMERER F=
It = 8 # 5 B 895 ZENZF+ZA=+—H

BRIEERNZ3ERABEM
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES

FEEREMEHRE

At 31st December, 2017
Ro-EB—+F+-H=1+—H

Location Term of lease

ith B YR

Group's
Type of use interest

RE SEER

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REYE (&)

Portions of Basements 1, Portions of 1st Floor, Held under a land use right
NO02, NO3 & NO04, 11th Floor, North Tower, for a term expiring on
NO2, NO3 & NO04, 12th Floor, North Tower, 14th November, 2043
Whole of 14th, 15th, 16th, 17th and 18th Floors,

South Tower, N04, NO5 & NO06, 16th floor of

North Tower, NO7, 19th Floor, North Tower,

S01, S02, S03, S04, S07, S08 & S09,

20th Floor, South Tower, N02, NO3, N06, NO7, N0O8, N09,

20th Floor, North Tower, Whole of 21st, 22nd, 23rd, 24th,

25th and 27th Floors, South Tower and North Tower,

Whole of 26th Floor, North Tower,

Shanghai Stock Exchange Building,

No. 528 Pudong Road South, Lujiazui,

Pudong, Shanghai, The People’s Republic of China

hEAREME LBHRERE FELTMERER
SR k5285 BB A ANE ZEN=F+—A+HEA
B EIEER S - 1E# 5 - L E11ENO2 - NO3K&NO4 -

JEEE12ENO02 » NO3JNO4 » R EE14 15+ 16+ 17

1822 E « 1L FE16[ZN04 + NO5 & N06 ~ 4t EE19/ZN07

7 FE20/Z£S01 ~ S02 * SO3 * S04 * SO7 * S08%2S09

JE BE20/2N02 * NO3 * N06 * NO7 * NO8 * NO9

PR &b BE21 ~ 22~ 23~ 24~ 25%27[E

2ERILEWEZE

4 houses, 6 apartments, a commercial centre, Held under a land use right
a club house, a kindergarten and an extension for a term expiring on

and a stadium Legend Garden Villas, 31st December, 2042

89 Capital Airport Road, Beijing,

The People’s Republic of China

REARKE BRELMERES

It R B #P K 5% BR 895k BE R AE B Bl 2 TN+ A=+—8H
AERIZ AR EEN  —EFEERL

—fEgm —EHEEERIRE —EREE

Commercial 100%

[GES

Commercial/ 51%
Residential

BE/EE



FRANEREEARR AT
R FFR
Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
it 2 LR A% SEER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REWE : (&)
Office Tower of Poly Plaza, The land use right for the Commercial 75%
No. 14 Dongzhimen Nandajie, property has been granted
Dong Cheng District, Beijing, for a term of 50 years
The People’s Republic of China commencing on
27th October, 2003
REARKNE MELHERAEELE B- BX
I RHREE TZE=F+A=-t+tAE A
REFIAAH145% B+
CIPNE PN
Commercial/Office buildings at Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
No. 465 Luo Shi Lu, for a term expiring on
Hong Shan District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, 12th May, 2047
The People’s Republic of China
REARKNE HAELHERER GES
I E BRI & —ZEMt+ERATZH

BIisRa65k 2%/ WAKNE

2 residential units and 6 commercial units
at Zhuo Dao Quan Bei Lu,

Hong Shan District, Wuhan, Hubei Province,
The People’s Republic of China

REARANE
ML ERET IR

7 RAL B2 T E L R oA R % B

Various commercial units, cultural centre,

exhibition centre, theatre, museum, cinemas and
car parking spaces, Shenzhen Poly Cultural Plaza, Hou Hai
Bin Lu, Nan Shan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
REARAME
BREA X meELE

B8R B R YIR A AL B 5
ZEBEREN XEES RER L
Blfe - B FhkFEEM

Held under a land use right
for a term expiring on
16th January, 2075

BEETHERER
—ZT+RF—A+H

Held under a land use right
for a term expiring on
15th January, 2054

BELWERER
—ThME-HA+hHHE

Commercial/
Residential

BE/EE

Commercial

[GES

100%

100%
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES

FEEREMEHRE

At 31st December, 2017
Ro-EB—+F+-H=1+—H

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
1t 26 R k=3 EEER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REYF : (&)
Golf training centre together with its ancillary Held under a long lease Commercial 40%
accommodations and an adjoining piece of land, for a term expiring on
89 Capital Airport Road, Beijing, 30th September, 2026
The People’s Republic of China
REARKNE NEHMHERAE [GES
16 =T & # 15 B89 —ZE-RENA=TH
RERARRG BYEERAELH
Various commercial and office units, Poly Mingmen, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
China Asean International Business District, for a term expiring on
Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, 22nd January, 2076
The People’s Republic of China
REARKE HAETMERER GRS
BOEAKERAEEED “EERF-H_-+_H
B 3R B R S O [
RAMEFIZEBERPAEEN
Various office units, Shanghai Poly Plaza, Held under a land use right Commercial 90%
No. 18 Dong Fang Lu, for a term expiring on
Pudong New District, Shanghai, 21st July, 2055
The People’s Republic of China
REARLNE RAETMERER [GES
LERRH R “ZTRRF+AZ-+—H
R 77 B8 185%
FERMESZERAZEM
Various commercial units at No. 8 Dong Wu Da Dao Te, Held under a land use right Commercial 55%
Dong Xi Hu District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, for a term expiring on
The People’s Republic of China 23rd April, 2042
REARKE BAETMERER [GES

1L E EUE T R R
RRRNERSRZ ABEEM

—EN-_FWNA=-+=H



FRANEREEARR AT

—E—tFFR
Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
ith 2 YR A% EEER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REYF : (&)
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Guiyang Poly Clouds Hill International, for a term expiring on
No. 148 Shi Bei Lu, Yun Yan District, 24th May, 2048
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARLME BRAETMERER GES
EMEEGD —EMNERAZ+MA
R R ML FE1485%:
BRSRANE L BB
ZEBEEM
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 66.5%
Guiyang Poly Hot Spring Newisland, for a term expiring on
Wen Quan Lu, Ye Jia Zhuang, Wu Dang District, 30th August, 2046
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARLME BELHERER EES
EMEEBT —EMARFENA=TH
SEERERERRE
BERRAMBRFTHZ AR EEN
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 66.5%
Guiyang Poly International Plaza, for a term expiring on
Shi Nan Lu, Nan Ming District, 24th May, 2049
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARAME RETMERER GES
EMEERBH “EMAFREAZ=-+TMA
I BA [ T R B

BSRFIBRES
ZEEmEEN
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES

FEEREMEHRE

At 31st December, 2017
Ro-EB—+F+-H=1+—H

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
1t 26 R k=3 EEER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REYF : (&)
Various commercial units, Guiyang Poly Spring Street, Held under a land use right Commercial 66.5%
Shui Dong Lu, Wudang District, for a term expiring on
Guiyang, Guizhou Province, 20th February, 2050
The People’s Republic of China
REARKNE BETHERER [GES
EMEEBT ZTRTHF-A=+H
SEEKRE
BERRMNEARBZEAREEN
Various commercial units, Guiyang Poly Park 2010, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Wudang District, Guiyang, Guizhou Province, for a term expiring on
The People’s Republic of China 15th March, 2051
i AR AME HAETMERER [EES
EMEEGTRER —Zh-%=H+HhH
EGRAARE20102 Z EEEEQ
Various Office, commercial units and car parking spaces, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Wuhan Poly Plaza, for a term expiring on
No. 790 Wuchang Minzhu Road, 19th August, 2049
Wu Chang District, Wuhan, Hubei Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hE AR KR RAETMERER GES
MIAERNETRE R —ZEMAFNAATHAA
B & R X #7905k
RERMEZZERAE HEEMREEN
A commercial unit, Kunming Sunny Lake & Splendid Life,  Held under a land use right Commercial 80%
Da Tun Xin Qu, Lian Ran Zhen, for a term expiring on
An Ning County, Kunming, Yunnan Province, 21st May, 2078
The People’s Republic of China
i AR AME HAETMERER [EES
CHEAEATRER T+ NEFERAZ+—H
ERERNHEHE

BAARMEH R — Bl X ENL



FRANEREEARR AT

R FFR
Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
ith 2 YR A% SEER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REYF : (&)
A kindergarten, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Wuhan Poly Royal Palace, for a term expiring on
Dong Hu Kai Fa Qu Shang Ma Zhuang, 10th May, 2072
Wuhan,
Hubei Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARAME HAELTMERER GRS
L& R+ -FHATH
FET
RFER EHA
B fR M 2 ED
— A HEE
A kindergarten, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Wuhan Poly Blue Ocean District, for a term expiring on
Hong Shan District, 26th March, 2051
Wuhan, Hubei Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARAME HAELTMERER GRS
Mt A —Eh-f=ZHZ-tXA
FET
HE L &
R (R 7 B VR AR
—E P HEE
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Foshan Poly Cullinan Garden, for a term expiring on
Chan Cheng District, Foshan City, 20th December, 2049
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARAME HAELTMERER GRS

BRE
e 1L T 2 35

fFRILRMREIER
ZEmEEN

“EEAFtZAZTA
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES

FEEREMEHRE

At 31st December, 2017
Ro-EB—+F+-H=1+—H

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
1t 26 R A% SEER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REYF : (&)
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Guangzhou Poly Zephyr City, for a term expiring on
Hua Du District, Guangzhou, 15th December, 2079
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARKNE BRELMERES [GES
BRE “ELhF+ZATEHER
BM I R
J& M R FTE R
ZHEEEEMQ
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Jinan Poly Hyde Mansion, for a term expiring on
Zhu Shun Lu, Li Cheng District, 29th July, 2080
Jinan, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARKNE RELMERES [GES
WREERE™ “ENEFLHA-TAR
T Y9 [ A58 5 B
B RFEEDE
ZEBEEM
Various commercial units Held under a land use right Commercial 80%
Jinan Poly Daming Lake, for a term expiring on
north of Jing Yi Lu, Li Xia District, 28th January, 2050
Jinan, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARLNE RAETMERER [GES

WIREEE™
BT & — B AL
B R K 0
ZHEEFEEM

“TATF-H-tAR



FRANEREEARR AT

R FFR
Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
ith 2 YR A% EEER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REYF : (&)
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Nanning Poly City, for a term expiring on
Wuyi Xi Lu, Jiangnan District, 29th October, 2050
Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARLME BRAETMERER GES
BOEAKERERED —ZATF+H-tAIR
L&D — e
BRI
ZEBEEM
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 50%
Guiyang Poly The Place of A Lake, for a term expiring on
Xi Nan Xin Qu, Huaxi District, 9th August, 2051
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARAME BELHERER [GES
EMEEBT —EE-¥N\ANHA
TERE R MR
B 5 RAE M
ZEBEEM
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 35%
Zunyi Poly Metropolis of Future, for a term expiring on
Zun Yi Da Dao, 13th May, 2051
Zunyi, Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARAME RETMERER GES

BEMEEED
BERE
BERRMRRAS
ZEBREN

“FR-4RATZH
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES

FEEREMEHRE

At 31st December, 2017
Ro-EB—+F+-H=1+—H

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
1t B LR A% SEER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REWE : (&)
6 office units at Long Yuan Da Xia, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
No. 24 Zhong Bei Lu, for a term expiring on
Hong Shan District, 16th May, 2052
Wuhan, Hubei Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARKNE BRELMERES [GES
ML E R ET B R i o T e AN S|
o b BE 245
BERAE6fE M A= EL
A commercial unit, Guangzhou Poly Golf Shire, Held under a land use right Commercial 51%
Ma Xi Cun, Hua Du District, for a term expiring on
Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, 26th October, 2049
The People’s Republic of China
REARKLNE RAETMERER GES
BRERM™ “EMAFTHAZ-1TRA
TEHE 5IEA
J& M 4R M B R R 2B
BEEEIS
A commercial unit at Held under a land use right Commercial 68%
Wuhan Poly City for a term expiring on
Hong Shan District, 24th October, 2052
Wuhan, Hubei Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARKLNE RHAELHERER GRS
L& BT R R “RA-F+H_-+mMA

RRRFW AR EM
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT
FAERRMEMZ

At 31st December, 2017
R-F—tF+=-A=1—H

Details of the Group’s properties held for development AEBR-_T—+F+-_A=+—HZFHIE

purposes at 31st December, 2017 are as follows: BRUMEZFRBEOT
Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
hLE®R/
i 3 7 IMHR HixIAH BREAR AR SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:
HEEZRDE
A parcel of land in Chai Lin Tou Village, Under December 2020 27,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 51%
He Ping Xiang, Hong Shan District, construction 136,000 sq.m. Residential
Wuhan, Hubei Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARANE giEh “EZoBET-R 27,00F5K/ #E/
WL E R E T 136,000¥ 7 K {E=E
IR R
SRMEEN 2 — L
A parcel of land on No. 20 Yong Wu Lu, Under January 2020 465,000 sq.m./ Residential 100%
Xing Ning District, construction (Phase V) 543,000 sg.m.
Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,
The People’s Republic of China
MEARAME et “Z-ZEF—f 4650007 7k / fEE
ERfLKREEERED (FnH) 543,000 75
2 R205%8 v — SR L3
A parcel of land on San Huan Lu, Under October 2020 567,000 sq.m./ Residential 58%
Song Bei District, construction 672,000 sg.m.

Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China

PEARAME & “EZFFTA 567,000F 5K/ %
RETIEREAED 672,000 75 %

RIEB=RKZ AL
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

FEFERMEME

At 31st December, 2017
R-ZF—+F1+=-H=1—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
EHEE/
it B TIMR BT IHE BEEEE AR SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEERYE (&)
A parcel of land on Under November 2020 354,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 66.5%
Shui Dong Lu, construction 606,000 sg.m. Residential
Wu Dang District,
Guiyang,
Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARANE B “ECBRET-A 0 35400085k BE/
EMA 606,000 77K f£%
g
FER
KREZ
— R
A parcel of land on No. 2 Baisha Lu, Under May 2019 225,000 sq.m./  Office/ 100%
Liuzhou, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,  construction (Phase V) 930,000 sg.m. Commercial/
The People’s Republic of China Residential
hEARAANE gih “Z2-NFIEA 25000¥ 77K/ HWRE/
BRI BRI T (FnHE) 930,000F 5k %/ X
AY 2%z — B
A parcel of land in Wu Dang pasture, Under December 2021 1,212,000 sq.m./ Commercial/ 100%
Wu Dang District, Guiyang, construction 2,268,000 sq.m. Residential
Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAANE et SRR 121200075k BE/AE
EMA 2,268,000 77 &
EEMSER

SENT Rz R



FRANEREEARR AT

R FFR
Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
HEE
it B 7 IHRR BEHEIAH BEEE AR SE#ER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEERNE (&)
A parcel of land in the South of Under March 2018 142,000 sq.m./ Residential 100%
Zhu Shun Lu, construction 416,000 sg.m.
Li Cheng District,
Jinan,
Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
mEARAME BE —E-N\¥=H 142000 75K/ H=E
WRE 416,000 75
HEm
[ =
N5
Bz AL
Five parcels of land in Dong Ao Zhen, Under May 2023 398,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Shenzhou Peninsula, Wanning City, construction (Phase Il1) 479,000 sq.m. Residential
Hainan Province,
The People’s Republic of China
MEARAME R ZE-ZFAA 398,000F 75K/ EE/ T
A (E5=H) 479,000 75 %
BEmMIEE
RRAZ ORI
Various parcels of land at junction of Under September 2023 369,000 sq.m./ Residential/ 100%
Guo Xiang Bei Lu and construction 1,043,000 sq.m. Commercial
Yin Shan Lake Lu,
Suzhou Wuzhong Economic
Development Zone,
Suzhou City, Jiangsu Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARAME R —TZZFNA 369,000 7K/ EE/EX

TEHEHM
FMRPEEFAER
BBLERFUHEZRZ
LRI

1,043,000 73 K
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R-ZF—+F1+=-H=1—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
EHEE/
it B TIMR B xEIAH BEEEE AR SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEERYE (&)
A parcel of land at Dong Fang Da Under April 2018 293,000 sq.m./  Residential 100%
Dao and Dushu Lake Da Dao, construction 376,000 sg.m.
Suzhou Wuzhong Economic
Development Zone,
Suzhou City, Jiangsu Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAANE et —Z-)\FHmA 293000 75K/ %
IEHRAHMD 376,000 77 K
HEMRPEERER
RARERBERREZ
—JR L
Five parcels of land in Jiading New City, Under December 2018 151,000 sq.m./ Office/ 100%
Jiading District, Shanghai, construction (Phase V) 478,000 sq.m. Commercial/
The People’s Republic of China Residential
PEARAME g “E-N\FE+ZRA 151000 K/ BAZE/
LEEER (£1H) 4780007 5K EE/EE
REMM LR
A parcel of land in Wu Kang Zhen, Under February 2022 164,000 sq.m./ Office/ 100%
De Qing County, Huzhou, construction (Phase V) 498,000 sq.m. Commercial/
Zhe Jiang Province, Residential
The People’s Republic of China
hEARAANE s ke St ol 164,000F 75K/ BWRE/
RIS (1) 498,000F 7k HE/EE
N T 1205 B
REEZ—HLH
A parcel of land in Zhenhai Under March 2019 326,000 sq.m./ Commercial/ 100%
New City, Ning Bo City, construction (Phase V) 975,000 sq.m. Residential
The People’s Republic of China
hEARANE it —R-NF=ZA 326,000F 5K/ EE/EE
ER (BmE) 975,000 7 K
HEHHZ

— Rt



FRANEREEARR AT

—E—tFFR
Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
hHER/
i B IR Hit®TEH BEEER AR SEES
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEERNE (&)
A parcel of land in Tie Ji Village, Under December 2022 390,000 sq.m./ Office/ 68%
Hong Shan District, Wuhan, construction (Phase VI) 1,731,000 sq.m. Commercial/
The People’s Republic of China Residential
PEARAME i TE-CF+ZR 0 390000FAKS BAE/
RETHLE (%7°8) 1731,000F 75k A%/ =X
HEN R
A parcel of land in Ma Chi Lu, Under June 2021 59,000 sq.m./ Commercial/ 55%
Dong Xi Hu District, Wuhan, construction 297,000 sg.m. Residential
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME et —E=—4xA 59.000F 75K/ HE/EE
HEMRAHAE 297,000 75
Sz R
Four parcels of land Under January 2022 187,000 sq.m./ Residential 70%
in Tu Hu Cun Xia Liao, Danshui, construction (Phase 1V) 863,000 sg.m.
Huiyang District, Huizhou,
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
FEARAME B —EZZf—f 187,000 75K/ H=E
EREEM® (BmE) 863,000 77 K
BERKK
THRTRBRZ
7 35 £ 4
A parcel of land at east of Under June 2018 208,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Cheng Dong Lu and South of construction 622,000 sq.m. Residential
Tan Jia Ling Dong Lu,
Li Zhou Jie Dao,
Yu Yao County,
Zhejiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARKME it —2-N\FXA 208,000F 755k EE/EE
HTE 622,000 3 K
Rokm

MMeE
BRBEARREBR KRR Z
— L
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R-ZF—+F1+=-H=1—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
EHEE/
it B TIMR BT IHE BEEEE AR SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEERYE (&)
Four parcels of land Under October 2019 89,000 sq.m./ Commercial/ 85%
in Bei Da Huai Shu region, construction 502,000 sg.m. Residential
Huaiyin District,
Jinan, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME RET —E-hETA 89,000F 77k / HEE/EE
WREERT 502,000 75
RERLAREREZ
M 35 £ 4
A parcel of land at south of Under October 2018 112,000 sq.m./ Residential 80%
Hua Yuan Lu, construction 419,000 sg.m.
east of Hua Xian Chang Lu, Lixia District,
Jinan, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
FEARAME B —E-N\FtA 12,000 5%/ H=E
WREERT 419,000 7 %
il
TEE 5
14135 P
—RL
Four parcels of land at east of Hua Xi Da Dao, Under May 2021 248,000 sq.m./ Commercial/ 51%
Nan Ming District, construction 1,566,000 sq.m. Residential
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARANE BT “ZT--%14f 24800075 K/ EE/EE
EMEERT 1,566,000 77 &
HAREERNERA

2%t



FRANEREEARR AT

R FFR
Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
HEE
it B 7 IHRR BEHEIAH BEEE AR SE#ER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEERNE (&)
A parcel of land in Dong Jiao Village Under May 2019 109,000 sq.m./ Office/ 55%
Li Wan District, Guangzhou, construction (Phase 1) 546,000 sq.m. Commercial/
Guangdong Province, Residential
The People’s Republic of China
REARKTE ZiEh “Z-AERA 109.000F 5%/ HAZE/
EREEMD (%—H) 546,000F 7k EE/EE
#ERRAN
Z—HREi
Two parcels of land at the east of Under March 2018 46,000 sq.m./ Office/ 100%
North Jianshe Road, construction 93,000 sq.m. Commercial/
South of Sandong Avenue, Residential
Huadu District, Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME el “Z-N\FZA 46,000 7K/ WRE/
BREEMT 93,0005k HWE/HEE
E#E
BRILB IR
=RAEAM
ALY i
Various parcels of land at Under October 2020 157,000 sq.m./ Residential 100%
Rongjiang Lu, Langjiang Lu, construction 610,000 sg.m.
Qunli No. 1 Da Dao and
Qunli No. 2 Da Dao,
Qunli Xin Qu, Daoli District,
Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARAME R “Z-ZEF+R 157,000F 5%/ H%E
RETIERBED 610,000 75
BRRENHE

BT ~ BAIRE -
HBNE-—RNERBENE-AE
A&
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R-ZF—+F1+=-H=1—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
EHEE/
it B TIMR BT IHE BEEE AR SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEERYE (&)
A parcel of land at Under December 2020 45,000 sq.m./  Office/ 100%
Ming Xiu Lu East, construction (Phase II) 303,000 sg.m. Commercial/
Xixiangtang District, Residential
Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARAANE BiEH ZE-EETZR 4500F 5K/ BAZE/
ERftkEAREER (F=8) 303,000F 5Kk %/ X
ABERAARE
2RI
A parcel of land in Under October 2018 130,000 sq.m./ Residential 100%
Eastern New City, construction (Phase I1l) 343,000 sg.m.
Ningbo, Zhejiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME B —E-N\EtA 130,000F 5%/ %
HLE ER T (B=8) 343,000 77 K
RBAMAZ L
Z— Rt
A parcel of land in the north of Under March 2019 172,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Shunde New City, construction (Phase VI) 663,000 sq.m. Residential
Shunde District,
Foshan, Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAANE et —E-hE=A 172000 5K/ BE/fEE
EREHLT (BRH) 663,000 75 K

IR 2% [ VB 7 37 43 A 6
LR



FRANEREEARR AT

—E—tFFR
Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
hHER/
it B 7 IHRR BEHEIAH BEEE AR SE#ER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEERNE (&)
A parcel of land at Under December 2018 10,000 sq.m./ Residential 100%
New Kowloon Inland Lot 6527, construction 70,000 sqg.m.
Kai Tak Area 1, Site 3,
Kowloon, Hong Kong,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARAME R “E-N\Ft+=A 10,000F 5K/ =%
BERNEREERIRIME 70,000 75 7K
N R R 565275
2L
Two parcels of land near Under April 2020 291,000 sq.m./ Residential 50%
Luo Ping reservoir, construction 863,000 sg.m.
Xi Nan Xin Qu, Huaxi District,
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME B “E-ZENA 291,000¥ 5%/ %
EMEERT 863,000 75 K
ERREEH R
BYKEEZ
b b
Various parcels of land at Under February 2022 1,326,000 sq.m./ Commercial/ 35%
west of Zun Yi Da Dao, construction 5,171,000 sq.m. Residential
Zunyi, Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
mEARALME i —2--%-§ 132600077 %/ B¥/HE=E

BEMEEET
HEEREBPRARZ
LRI

5,171,000 7 K
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R-ZF—+F1+=-H=1—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
HHEE
it B TEIMRR BT IHE BEEE AR SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEERYE (&)
A parcel of land at Under December 2018 45,000 sq.m./ Residential 70%
north of Xifang Road and construction 129,000 sq.m.
east to Huanshan Road,
Huancui District,
Weihai, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEAR‘AE <3t “E-N\Ft+=R 450008 7K/ {E%E
REEED 129,000 77 7K
RREEAAEAL  BERRLRE
Z—HLi
A parcel of land at Under September 2019 92,000 sq.m./ Office/ 73%
Xiao Tun Cun, construction (Phase V) 692,000 sq.m. Commercial/
Wu Hua District, Residential
Kunming, Yunnan Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARANE 3l —E-AENA 92,0005 K,/ BMAE/HEE
ZHERHAT (BmH) 692,000F 5k /%
RERNEH
2RI
A parcel of land at Under March 2019 8,000 sq.m./ Residential 100%
Tuen Mun Town Lot 542, construction 19,000 sg.m.
Castle Peak Road - Castle Peak Bay,
Area 48, Tuen Mun,
New Territories, Hong Kong,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME B “E-hnFZA 8,000F 7K/ H=E
BRI RLPIH48E 19,000 75 K

BURK-ELBE
P 5 5425
Z-ts



FRANEREEARR AT

—E—tFFR
Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
hHER/
it B IR BEHEIAH BEEER AR SEES
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEERNE (&)
A parcel of land in Shi Nan Da Dao, Under March 2020 198,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 85%
Nansha District, Guangzhou, construction (Phase 1V) 801,000 sg.m. Residential
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hE ARAAME et —Z-TE=f 1980007 5%/ B¥/HE=E
ERE (EmH) 801,000 75
EMT YR
MEAELZ—H1i
A parcel of land in east of Haibo Lu, Under May 2021 71,000 sq.m./ Residential 70%
north of Cheng Dong Da Jie, construction 203,000 sg.m.
Gaoxin District,
Yantai, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
HEARAME el —T--%1A 71.000F 5%/ £%E
IWREES T 203,000 77 K
BHEMRAEIL
BEBRRZ R
Two parcel of lands at south of Jinniu Jie, Under planning  March 2020 102,000 sq.m./ Residential 60%
Hai Zi Wa, Wenchang Street Office, 188,000 sqg.m.
Changgqing District, Jinan, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARAME A& e 359+ 102,000F 5%/ H%E
WREEED 188,000 77 &
RERNEHEMRFR
BrEeFEE M

MR
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R-ZF—+F1+=-H=1—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
HHEE
it B % IR BT IHE BEEE AR SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEERYE (&)
A parcel of land in Da Shi Zi Yuan Village, Under planning  March 2020 58,000 sq.m./ Residential 51%
Wenchang Street Office, 155,000 sq.m.
Changgqing District, Jinan, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME RE it et 39 58,0007 5k %
WREEED 155,000 73 &
REBXEHEMER
A+ B
2RI
A parcel of land at west of Yinuo Lu, Under planning  December 2020 48,000 sq.m./ Residential 65%
north of Qilu International Plastic Chemical City, 155,000 sg.m.
Linzi District, Zibo, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME RE TECRETCR 0 48000FHK/ fHE
IWREEEm 155,000 77 &
o B — R IR DA
& B2 (AL
2R
A parcel of land at north of Zhenzhu Hu Lu, Under December 2019 57,000 sq.m./ Residential 100%
east of Feicui Lu, Weitang Town, construction 150,000 sq.m.
Xiangcheng District,
Suzhou, Jiangsu Province,
The People’s Republic of China
HEAREME B —Z-AE+ZA 57,000F 5K/ %
IEHREHMD 150,000 75 &
TR B #

DR HRER
LRI



FRANEREEARR AT

R FFR
Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
hHER/
i B IR Hit®TEH BEEER AR SEES
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEERNE (&)
A parcel of land in Fuxi Street, Under October 2019 28,000 sq.m./ Residential 100%
Chengdong New District, construction 49,000 sqg.m.
Deqing, Zhejiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME B ~“E-AEF+A 28,000F 5%/ EE
MTEERED 49,000 73 &
HRNREREGE
Z—HREi
A parcel of land in Shi Nan Da Dao, Under September 2020 28,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Nansha District, Guangzhou, construction 129,000 sq.m. Residential
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARKME BT “Z-2FNA 28000F 7%/ BE/EE
EREENTHEDE 129,000F 75 /&
MEAEZ -1t
Various parcels of land at eastern region of Under December 2022 130,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Dongmeng Business Zone in Qingxiu District of ~ construction 629,000 sq.m. Residential
Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME B TECCFFZA 0 130000FFK/S EE/EE
BRAMERAERER 629,000 7

FERRABBERES
Z5%R1H
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
FAEHEYRHE

At 31st December, 2017

REZF—+F+=F=+—H

Details of the Group’s properties held for sale at 31st ASBER T —+tF+-_A=+—HBZFHIE

December, 2017 are as follows: HEWE ZFBWOT :
Location Gross floor area Type of use Group'’s interest
b B 2EEE AR EEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE:
HEFHEY R -

160 carparking spaces, N/A Residential 100%
Poly Garden,

Gao Xin District,

Suzhou, Jiangsu Province,

The People’s Republic of China

FEARKME T
LERA &N T

= &

R HE 58 2

1601 {7 B {i

(et
I8
[
o

Various commercial units 8,577 sq.m Commercial 100%
and carparking spaces,

Nanning Poly Upper House,

Zhu Jin Lu,

China Asean International Business District,

Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARANE 8577 F Kk BE

ERAKRBEAERED

TEREBERLER

KIER

MERERE LR

Z AR EEMN REEAN

Various villas, commercial units 31,096 sg.m Commercial/ 58%
and carparking spaces, Residential

Harbin Poly The Water's Fragrant Dike,

San Huan Lu, Song Bei District,

Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARANME 31,096F 75Kk BEMEE
ERIEARBET

ML @ =R

e RBRFIKEREZ

ZEME BEBEMREEMN



Location

i B

Gross floor area

BEEEE

Type of use
A%

FRANEREEARR AT

T LFFER

Group's interest

SEES

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)

HEEHEYFE (&)

Various carparking spaces,
Nanning Poly Century,

China Asean International Business District,
Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,

The People’s Republic of China
RE AR KEAE

Bl kEAEMED
TERBEBEREER
EERM2IERZ

% {815 Bz

Various carparking spaces,

Poly Harbin Contemporary No. 9 Park Life,

Song Bei Zhen, Song Bei District,
Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARANME
ERIEGMAED

A b & FA 4L R
MERBERNABNR
ZEAEEL

Various villas, residential units,
commercial units and carparking spaces,
Guiyang Poly Hot Spring Newisland,
Wen Quan Lu, Ye Jia Zhuang,

Wu Dang District, Guiyang,

Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China

RE AR KM

EME

EETSER

ERIARIE

B S RAE R 2

ZEMNE FTEBEA WEEURESEML

N/A

NiE R

N/A

7

13,122 sg.m

13,122F 75 K

Residential

Residential

Commercial/
Residential

AmEMEE

100%

51%

66.5%
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RBIEHEMFME

At 31st December, 2017

R-ZF—+F1+=-H=1—H

Location Gross floor area

b B BEEE

Type of use
A&

Group's interest

5 B0l 38

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various commercial units and 6,528 sgq.m
a business centre,

Wuhan Poly Royal Palace,

Dong Hu Kai Fa Qu Shang Ma Zhuang,

Wouhan,

Hubei Province,

The People’s Republic of China

RE ARHFE 6,528 77 K
kA

HOE M

RAAEE ESHE

FRRFZER 2

ZEMEBMR

— {8 75 7% R 0

Various commercial units and 79,910 sgq.m
carparking spaces,

Shanghai Poly Town,

Zhong Fang Cun,

Ma Lu Zhen,

Jiading District,

Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

REARKME 79,910F 5 K
lapis!

5 JE &

5 FE SR

R

EBRMREZ

ZErg B AL K= B AL

Commercial

S

Commercial/
Residential

mEMEE

100%

100%



Location

i B

Gross floor area

BEEEE

Type of use
A%

RABEEEEFR AR
—E—tFFR

Group's interest

SEES

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYFE : (F)

Various commercial units and carparking spaces,
Nanning Poly Landscape,

Jing Guan Da Dao,

West of Zhu Gan Dao,

Dong Gou Ling, Xingning District,

Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,
The People’s Republic of China
mEARAME

ERMtkEeREED

BE @RS

EHEN

RE KB

MERMILKEEZ

ZEMEEMRIEFEMN

Various commercial units and
carparking spaces,

Guiyang Poly Clouds Hill International,
No. 148 Shi Bei Lu, Yun Yan District,
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEE ANRHEME

EMEEGT

EEE ML 1485
EERMNEILEERZ
ZEmEEL R

==K Iva

Various commercial units, office units and
carparking spaces,

Shanghai Poly Plaza, No. 18 Dong Fang Lu,
Pudong New District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

hEE ANRHEME

EEEERR

R85 LB RAES 2

ZREMEEN WAEBLMRIFEN

5,932 sgq.m

5,932 77 K

4,758 sq.m

4,758 7 K

1,069 sg.m

1,069 77 2K

Commercial

S

Commercial

CES

Commercial

CES

100%

100%

100%

341
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

RBIEHEMFME
At 31st December, 2017
R-ZF—+F1+=-H=1—H

Location

b

Gross floor area

BEEE

Type of use
Az

Group's interest

5 B0l 38

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various residential units and carparking spaces,

Shanghai Poly Lakeside Garden,

Ma Lu Zhen, Jiading District, Shanghai,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARANE

teEEREEE
FERAAHE B2
ZEETELRIEEAL

Various carparking spaces, Guangzhou City of
Poly,

East of Hua Gang Da Dao, Xin Hua Zhen,
Hua Du District, Guangzhou,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
hEARANE

BRAE

&M EH R

MEHRERAER

J& N AR A3 2

ZEAEBEA

Various villas, residential units,
commercial units and carparking spaces,
Huizhou Poly Deutch Kultur, Luo Yang Zhen,
Boluo, Huizhou, Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China

hEE ARAME

BRABIMNT

BRRESE

BONRA L K3 2

ZEMNE  FEEM -
REBEMNREEMN

925 sg.m

925 75 K

N/A

A 5@

42,360 sgq.m

42,360 77 K

Commercial/
Residential

BMEMEE

Residential

Commercial/
Residential

BEMEE

100%

51%

80%



Location

i B

Gross floor area

BEEEE

Type of use
A%

RABEXEEGR AR
—E—tFFR

Group's interest

L Lt

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYFE : (F)

Various villas and residential units,
and carparking spaces,

Nanning Poly Crescendo,

No. 20 Yong Wu Lu,

Xing Ning District,

Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARKEM
ERMtkEeREED

& B % 205%

MERMLUSE 2

ZEARE FEENRFEM

Various villas, residential units, commercial units
and carparking spaces

Guiyang Poly Spring Street,

Shui Dong Lu, Wu Dang District,
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China
REARKEME

EMEERGT

58 RKRE

EBRIERKNBZ

ZEARE  FEBEMN BEEMKEFEMN

Various residential units,
commercial units and carparking spaces,
Jinan Poly Garden, northwest of
Xing Cun Li Jiao, Pan Zhuang Cun,
Gang Gou Zhen, Li Cheng District,
Jinan, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
REARHAFME

IR A FERE T

JE 35k [ 78 7 R

& A IBAY S R PR A
EERFERZ

ZA{FEEEA
REEENKEBEAML

29,830 sg.m

29,830 73 K

35,696 sq.m

35,696 77 K

7,593 sg.m

7,593 7 K

Residential

Commercial/
Residential

BmEMEE

Commercial/
Residential

BMEMEE

100%

66.5%

100%

343
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

RBIEHEMFME
At 31st December, 2017
R-ZF—+F1+=-H=1—H

Location

b

Gross floor area

BEEE

Type of use
Az

Group's interest

5 B0l 38

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various residential units,
commercial units and carparking spaces,
Jinan Poly Daming Lake,

north of Jing Yi Lu, Li Xia District,
Jinan, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
PEARKLME

IWREBEE™

& T & 48— 8% DAL
BEERMAKE M

ZEEEEM BEEULRERMQ

Various houses of

Chongging Poly Spring Villa,
No. 90 Xiao Quan,

Nan Quan Village,

Ba Nan District,

Chongging, Sichuan Province,
The People’s Republic of China
FEARAEM
mlEEE™

gl == )

/N R 905

BRERMNRZ

ZERNE

Various residential units, commercial units
and carparking spaces,

Foshan Poly Prestige City,
Donghua Road,

Longjiang, Shunde District,
Foshan City,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
hEARAME

BRAE

LT

JIg 125 (8 5E )T

RERK

BEILRAN Bz

ZEEEEM BEEULRERMQ

10,736 sg.m

10,736 75 K

385 sg.m

385F 7 K

1,615 sg.m

1,615 77 K

Commercial/
Residential

BEMEE

Residential

Commercial/
Residential

BmEMEE

80%

51%

100%



RABEEEEFR AR
—E—tFFR

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group'’s interest
o B BEEE RAE EEED
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HHIEHEYF (B
Various commercial units 1,701 sg.m Commercial/ 100%
and carparking spaces, Residential
Nanning Poly Sincere Garden,
Feng Lin Lu,
Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARANE 1701 F K B/
Bl kEAEMED
AL AR B
HMERMNELEKZ
ZEEEEMRFENM
Various residential units, commercial units and 23,932 sq.m Commercial/ 100%
carparking spaces, Residential
Liuzhou Poly Merization World,
No. 2 Bai Sha Lu,
Liuzhou, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARANE 23,932F HK  EEEE
ALk B8 RN T
B B 257
PN R R KT EB 2
ZEEEEM BAXREBEMREEM
Various residential units and carparking spaces, 1,354 sq.m Residential 66.5%
Guiyang Poly International Center,
Shi Nan Lu, Nanming District, Guiyang,
Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
RE AR KEAE 1,354 F ok £%
EMEERZT
7 BA [ T R B

EGRINBBES 2
ZEAFEEMNRIFEAM

345
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

RBIEHEMFME
At 31st December, 2017
R-ZF—+F1+=-H=1—H

Location

b

Gross floor area

BEEE

Type of use
Az

Group's interest

5 B0l 38

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various villas, residential units and
commercial units

Guiyang Poly Park 2010,

Wudang District,

Guiyang, Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China
REARKNE

EMEEGT

S5 RAMAE20102

ZERNE FEBMREEEM

Various residential units, commercial units and
carparking spaces,
Harbin The Tsinghua Summer Palace of Poly,
Zi Xing Jie, Gong Dian Lu,
Nangang District,
Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PE AR KM
ERIIEARMAED
A fidf [
ITERE
MRERNBEERZ
ZEETEM BAXEEULRFEEM

Various residential units and commercial units,
Shenzhen Poly Up Town,

at junction of Shen Hui Da Dao and Yi Cui Lu,

Ai Lian Gang Bei, Longgang District,

Shenzhen,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARANE

il

FEMEEBER

REBREMIBRER R

RINRF _ERAEEZ
ZREEEMREEEL

53,560 sq.m

53,560 /5 K

3,055 sg.m

3,055F 7K

2,271 sq.m

2,271 75 K

Commercial/
Residential

BEMEE

Commercial/
Residential

BEMEE

Commercial/
Residential

BWEEE

100%

51%

70%



Location

i B

Gross floor area

BEEEE

Type of use
A%

FRANEREEARR AT

T LFFER

Group's interest

SEES

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)

HEEHEYFE (&)

Various residential units, commercial units
and carparking spaces,

Nanning Poly City,

Wuyi Xi Lu,

Jiangnan District,

Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,

The People’s Republic of China
RE AR KEAE
ElAkEAEMED
LA — g

RERFI 2

ZEEEELNL NEEUREEMN

Various residential units, commercial units
and carparking spaces,

Jinan Poly Hyde Mansion,

Zhu Shun Lu,

Li Cheng District,

Jinan, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
REARKEME

IR A EE T

& 958, [ 40 58 B
EERABEAGEZ
ZEFEEEM EmFEBMRIEEMN

Various villas, residential units,
commercial units and carparking spaces,
Weihai Poly Triumph Mansion,

north of Wa Shan, Qi Jia Zhuang,

Huan Cui District,

Weihai, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
REARHAFME

IR A BE ™

RREERMREZILL
BOERFELIE QR 2

ZEARBIE - FEEMN BHEBMIEEM

10,590 sg.m

10,590 73 oK

11,900 sg.m

11,9003 75 K

3,387 sg.m

3,387 F 75 K

Commercial/
Residential

BEMEE

Commercial/
Residential

BmEMEE

Commercial/
Residential

BMEMEE

100%

100%

100%
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RBIEHEMFME
At 31st December, 2017
R-ZF—+F1+=-H=1—H

Location

b

Gross floor area

BEEE

Type of use
Az

Group's interest

5 B0l 38

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various residential units, commercial units
and carparking spaces,

Yantai Poly Champs Elysees Mansion,
west of Hu Shan Nan Lu,

north of Feng Huang Nan Lu,

Lai Shan District,

Yantai, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
REARHATE

IWWREEAE ™

36 1L [ 57 1L B DA P K BB R B A
BaRNEHERNEZ

ZRETEM BEECLREFEMQ

Various commercial units and carparking spaces,
Suzhou Poly Lake Mansion,

junction of Guo Xiang Bei Lu and

Yin Shan Lake Lu,

Suzhou Wuzhong Economic Development Zone,
Suzhou, Jiangsu Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARKLM

T B A &R ™

BINRPEERER

FBE b B Ko F LA B 32 57

& N AR ) B8 B B 2

ZEmEBLRIFEAL

Various villas, commercial units and
carparking spaces,

Shanghai Poly Elegant Mansion,
Jiading New City,

Jiading District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China
hEARAME

b/t

5 I % 3 E T
FERMRIBELLZ

ZERE BEEMLRFEM

9,661 sgq.m

9,661 75 K

223 sg.m

223F 75 K

5,510 sgq.m

5,510 7 K

Residential/
Commercial

(EY-ES

Residential/
Commercial

ERP S

Commercial/
Residential

BmEMEE

100%

100%

100%



Location

i B

Gross floor area

BEEEE

Type of use
A%

FRANEREEARR AT

T LFFER

Group's interest

SEES

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)

HEEHEYFE (&)

Various residential units,
Shanghai Poly Grace Garden,
Nanxiang Zhen,

Jiading District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China
RE AR KEAE

=}

FEEEAE
EERAMAMIELE 2

Z (BT = B AL

Various residential units and
commercial units,

Deging Poly Origin,

De Qing County,

Zhe Jiang Province,

The People’s Republic of China
FREE AR AN EY

LA

=5 &%

ZFERA R 2
ZEAEEEMN REEEMN

Various commercial units,
Wuhan Poly Blue Ocean District,
Hong Shan District,

Wuhan, Hubei Province,

The People’s Republic of China
REARHAFME

wib&
BUE MBI R

HRERMEBEHZ
ZEBREM

1,302 sg.m

1,302 75 2K

4,355 sg.m

4,355 7 oK

18,853 sg.m

18,853F 7 K

Residential

Commercial/
Residential

AmEMEE

Commercial/
Residential

BMEMEE

100%

100%

100%
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R-ZF—+F1+=-H=1—H

Location

b

Gross floor area

BEEE

Type of use
Az

Group's interest

5 B0l 38

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various residential units, commercial units
and carparking spaces,

Foshan Poly Cullinan Garden,
Chan Cheng District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
PEARKLME

BR4E

8 1L T I =
FRILRFIREIER 2
ZEEEEM BEEULRERMQ

Various villas, residential units, commercial units
and carparking spaces,

Guangzhou Poly Golf Shire,

Hua Du District, Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
PEARKLNE

BR4E

&M T TE# 1=

BMNRMSBRE 2

ZEAE FTEBA HEEUREFESEL

Various commercial units and
carparking spaces,
Guangzhou Poly Zephyr City,
Hua Du District, Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
PEARKLME

BR4E

&M T TEE 1=

B MR FIFE 2

LR EEMRFEMN

3,459 sgq.m

3,459 7 K

17,669 sgq.m

17,669 75 K

1,276 sgq.m

1,276 73 K

Commercial/
Residential

BEMEE

Commercial/
Residential

BEMEE

Commercial/
Residential

BEMEE

100%

51%

100%



Location

i B

Gross floor area

BEEEE

Type of use
A%

FRANEREEARR AT

T LFFER

Group's interest

SEES

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYFE : (F)

Various residential units, commercial units,
office units and carparking spaces,

Kunming Poly Lakeside Mansion,

An Ning County, Kunming,

Yunnan Province,

The People’s Republic of China
hEARKLME

ERAMLEH

ERARMNEBHAZHR

ZEETEMG BEEN PAEENUREEM

Various villas, residential units, commercial units
and carparking spaces,

Ningbo Poly City,

Ningbo,

The People’s Republic of China

RE AR KM

EIR™

EORR A 2

ZMEBIE FTEBEMN BEBEMREEN

Various villas, residential units, commercial units
and carparking spaces,

Suzhou Poly West Bank Villa,

Dong Fang Da Dao and

Dushu Lake Da Dao,

Suzhou Wuzhong Economic Development Zone,
Suzhou, Jiangsu Province,

The People’s Republic of China

RE ARHKME

L&A & N T

BMNRPLERE R

RARNERBERKNE

HmINRANEBERE 2

ZEARE  FEBMN BEBEMREEMN

6,877 sgq.m

6,877 7 K

42,948 sq.m

42,948 77 2K

22,591 sgq.m

22,591F 75 K

Commercial/
Residential

BEMEE

Commercial/
Residential

AmEMEE

Commercial/
Residential

BEMEE

100%

100%

100%
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R-ZF—+F1+=-H=1—H

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group'’s interest
ih 24 EEEE AR EEEE
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)

HHIEHEYF  (B)

Various residential units, commercial units and 22,665 sq.m Commercial/ 85%
carparking spaces, Residential

Jinan Poly Center,

Bei Da Huai Shu region,

Huaiyin District,

Jinan, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

FEARAME 22,665F 5K BEEMEE

IR E B ™

AT N L

BEERA L Z

SREEETEM BEEULREFEEL

Various residential units and carparking spaces, 105,644 sq.m Residential 100%
Ningbo Poly Jordan International,

east of Cheng Dong Lu and

south of Tan Jia Ling Dong Lu,

Li Zhou Jie Dao,

Yuyao, Zhejiang Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARKME 105,644F 75 K £

LA Rk

BN B

HRBEARKEBERERE RS

ERRNBERBREE 2

ZREETEMRFENMN

Various villas and residential units, 11,835 sgq.m Residential 100%
Hainan Poly Peninsula No. 1,

Dong Ao Zhen, Shenzhou Peninsula,

Wanning, Hainan Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARKME 11,835F 75K £

EEEBED

BN E S

ROR A

BERMNFEIHRZ
ZERMNEREEEM



RABEEEEFR AR 353
T LFFER

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group'’s interest

i B BEEER AR SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYFE : (F)

Various residential units, commercial units, 14,906 sg.m Commercial/ 100%
office units and carparking spaces, Residential
Shanghai Poly Star Island
Jiading New City,
Jiading District, Shanghai,
The People’s Republic of China
HEARKLME 14,906F 5k %/ =
FEBRETEREZENM
FERFEGEZE Y
ZEEEEL  EBN NEBEMNRIEEM

Various commercial units and carparking spaces, 39,175 sq.m Commercial 100%
Shanghai Poly Felicity,

Chang Jiang Xi Lu,

Song Nan Zhen

Bao Shan District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

PEARKME 39175 5K AE
FEBELRE

M HERIT AR

EERAME 2

SEmEBLRIFEM

Various residential units, commercial units, 64,988 sg.m Commercial/ 90%
office units and carparking spaces, Residential

Kunming Poly Sky and Earth,

Yu Chi Lu community,

Zong Shu Ying sub-district office,

Xishan District,

Kunming, Yunnan Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hE ARAMNE 64,988 oKk m¥ E=
EMEERET

ALl

RS EHERSBR

AP R

ERRMRNE R
ZEETEMN BEEM WBRAEEMREFEEN
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RBIEHEMFME
At 31st December, 2017
R-ZF—+F1+=-H=1—H

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group'’s interest
ih 24 EEEE AR EEEE
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)

HHIEHEYF  (B)

Various residential units, 7,907 sg.m Commercial/ 70%
commercial units and carparking spaces, Residential

Huizhou Poly Sunshine Town,

Tu Hu Cun Xia Liao,

Danshui, Huiyang District,

Huizhou, Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

FEARANE 7907 F K WEMEE

BREBMT

B5 R KK

TR T =M ER

BINRAMEG W 2

ZRETEM BEECLREFEMQ

Various residential units, 56,164 sgq.m Commercial/ 51%
commercial units and carparking spaces, Residential

Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay,

Hua Xi Da Dao,

Nanming District,

Guiyang, Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China

FEARANE 56,164F 75K B MEE

EMEEGT

FARIEERNE

EGRMNBEZZ

ZRETEM BEECLREFEMQ

Various villas, residential units, 6,016 sg.m Commercial/ 50%
commercial units and carparking spaces, Residential

Guiyang Poly The Place of A Lake,

Xi Nan Xin Qu, Huaxi District,

Guiyang, Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China

FEARKANE 6,016 77Kk B¥ ME=E

EMEEBT

TEX 18X 7 #1182

BEERRMER

ZERE FEEM BEELRESLQ



FRANEREEARR AT

T LFFER

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group'’s interest
i B EEEE AR EEEE
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
FHEEHEYE  (B)
Various villas, residential units, 101,405 sg.m Commercial/ 35%
commercial units, office units and Residential
carparking spaces,
Zunyi Poly Metropolis of Future,
Zun Yi Da Dao,
Zunyi, Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARKME 101,405F 77K B E=E
EMEEET
BEANE
EERF AR R 2
ZERE FEBA - EHEEM -
WMAEEBNREEN
Various residential units, 2,316 sq.m Commercial/ 100%
commercial units and carparking spaces, Residential
Harbin Poly Up Town,
Qunli Xin Qu, Daoli District,
Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
FEARAME 2316F K mE /=%
BEIARRET
BEERBENNRE
MEBERM W2
ZEEEEM HEEUREEMN
Various residential units 8,131 sq.m Commercial/ 80%

and commercial units,
Jinan Poly Elegant Garden,
Lixia District,
Jinan, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARAME
IWREBEE™
FET =
7 R R N 2E B 2
ZRETEMREEEL

8,131 7 K

Residential

BWEMEE
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R-ZF—+F1+=-H=1—H

Location

b

Gross floor area

BEEE

Type of use
Az

Group's interest

5 B0l 38

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various residential units, commercial units
and carparking spaces,

Yantai Poly Blossom Garden,

Zhi Fu District,

Yantai, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
REARKNE

IWEREES™

S RE

EARNEFRE 2

ZETEEM EmESBMREEMN

B

Various residential units, commercial units,
office units and carparking spaces,

Wuhan Poly City

Hong Shan District,

Wuhan, Hubei Province,

The People’s Republic of China
REARKME

Mib B R ET

2L &

U= R F 9 2
ZETEEMA WESEM BHAEREEAL

Various residential units, commercial units
and carparking spaces,

Poly Aegean Sea,

Northwest of Yongwu Overpass,

Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,

The People’s Republic of China
hEARKME

EriAkE aEEET

2R 7RI A

FENEZEZ

ZEEEEM BEEULRERMQ

7,623 sgq.m

7,623 75 K

35,047 sq.m.

35,047 77 K

28,418 sg.m

28,418 J7 K

Commercial/
Residential

BEMEE

Commercial/
Residential

BEMEE

Commercial/
Residential

BEMEE

55%

68%

100%



RABEEEEFR AR
—E—tFFR

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group'’s interest
b B BERE AR EEERS
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)

HHEIEHEYF  (B)

Various residential units, commercial units and 54,832 sq.m. Commercial/ 100%
carparking spaces, Residential

Poly Deluxe Mansion,

Jiading New City, Jiading District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

FEARANE 54,832 F K BE/EE

FEEERETEHM

RNREFEZ

SHEEETEM BmEECLREFEMQ

Various residential units, commercial units and 7,995 sgq.m. Commercial/ 85%
carparking spaces, Residential

Nansha Poly City,

Nansha District, Guangzhou,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

REARKNE 7,995 ¥Rk BEMEE

BRE

&M A &R

DR A 2

SHEETEM BEECLREFEMQ

Various commercial units and 559 sgq.m. Commercial 100%

carparking spaces,

Poly Up House,

Hua Du District, Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
hEARANME

BRE

J& M T TE B 1=

TR A AE 2
ZEMEENRFEEN

559 ¥ 75K

EES
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
RBIEHEMFME

At 31st December, 2017

R-ZF—+F1+=-H=1—H

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group'’s interest
ih 24 EEEE AR EEEE

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various residential units, commercial units and 51,988 sq.m. Commercial/ 100%
carparking spaces, Residential
Poly Central Park,

the north of Shunde New City,

Shunde District,

Foshan, Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARKEME 51,988 FHK HEMEE
BERE LT

JIE 122 [ JIE 422 5 99K JE &B

®APRREZ

ZEEEEM EMFESBMNREFBEMN

Various residential units and commercial units, 6,910 sg.m. Commercial/ 70%
Poly Joy-Zone, Residential
Long Guan Dong Lu and Qing Long Lu,
Long Hua Xin District,
Shenzhen,
The People’s Republic of China
FEARANE 6910 FH K mE¥ E=E
RIYITH
RENEBESRE REER
R EBIEE 2
SREEETEMREEEL

Various residential units, commercial units and 9,178 sg.m. Commercial/ 100%
carparking spaces, Residential
Poly Hearty,

Ming Xiu Lu East,

Xixiangtang District,

Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,
The People’s Republic of China

FEE AR 9178 F K mE (EX=E
BB AEEES

78 40 4% [ BF 55 R 3%

R F 058

ZEEEEMN BEEMREFEEQ



Location

i B

Gross floor area

BEEEE

Type of use
A%

RABEEEEFR AR
—E—tFFR

Group's interest

SEES

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYFE : (F)

Various residential units, commercial units and

carparking spaces,

Poly City,

Rongjiang Lu, Langjiang Lu, Qunli No. 1 Da Dao
and Qunli No. 2 Da Dao, Qunli Xin Qu,
Daoli District, Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARAME

BEIEAWMMAET

BEERHERTR

BhE_—_ KB
RFH 2
% [EA{EE B

BAIT % -

- EEEAMRIFEAML

Various residential units, commercial units and
carparking spaces,
Guangzhou Poly Gratified West Bay,
Li Wan District, Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARKME

BREEMNTHER

B MR I 78 15 /&
% [E{E=EBE N -

BEEMNREEMC

Various residential units,

Shanghai Poly Phili House,
Song Jiang District,

Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

FREE AR LA E

EERIE
EFERAEFEER
Z (B{EE B AL

B2

13,642 sg.m.

13,642 75 K

12,815 sqg.m.

12,815 ;5 K

6,472 sq.m.

6,472 J3 K

Commercial/
Residential

BEMEE

Commercial/
Residential

BmEMEE

Residential

100%

55%

100%
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RBIEHEMFME
At 31st December, 2017
Ro-EB—+F+-H=1+—H

Location

b

Gross floor area

BEEE

Type of use
A&

Group's interest

5 B0l 38

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various residential units, commercial units and
carparking spaces,

Kunming Poly One Family One World
Wu Hua District,

Kunming, Yunnan Province,

The People’s Republic of China
REARKNE

TmE AT

hER

ERHRNARZ

ZEETELNL BAEEUREEM

Various villas, residential units, commercial units
and carparking spaces,

Ningbo Poly Wonderland,

Eastern New City,

Ningbo, Zhejiang Province,

The People’s Republic of China
PEARKLNE

WOLE D

B R

BERRAMENIRE 2

ZEAE FTEBA HEEUREFESEL

19,420 sg.m.

19,420 73 K

14,418 sqg.m.

14,418 73 K

Commercial/
Residential

BEMEE

Commercial/
Residential

BEMEE

73%

100%
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